
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

GENERAL FUNCTIONS COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

WEDNESDAY 3RD DECEMBER, 2014 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF GENERAL FUNCTIONS COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Joan Scannell (Chairman), 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Wendy Prentice (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors 
 

Richard Cornelius 
Kitty Lyons 
 

Charlie O-Macauley 
Barry Rawlings 
 

Daniel Thomas 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Geof Cooke 
Tom Davey 
 

Claire Farrier 
David Longstaff 
 

John Marshall 
Alison Moore 
 

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Nathan – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Governance Service 020 8359 2761 

governance.service@barnet.gov.uk 
 

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes  
 

1 - 6 

2.   Absence of Members  
 

 

3.   Disclosable Pecuniary interests and Non Pecuniary interests  
 

 

4.   Report of the Monitoring Officer (if any)  
 

 

5.   Public Question and Comments (if any)  
 

 

6.   Members Item (if any)  
 

 

7.   Business Planning 2015/16 - 2019/20  
 

7 - 256 

8.   Any item(s) that he Chairman decides is urgent  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Governance 
Service 020 8359 2761 governance.service@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties 
who have a text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our 
Committee Rooms also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



1 

 
Decisions of the General Functions Committee 

 
11 November 2014 

 
Members:- 

 
Cllr Joan Scannell (Chairman) 

Cllr Wendy Prentice (Vice-Chairman) 

 
* Richard Cornelius 
* Kitty Lyons 
 

* Charlie O-Macauley 
* Barry Rawlings 
 

* Daniel Thomas 
 

 
* denotes Member Present 

 
1. MINUTES (Agenda Item 1): 

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 13 October 2014 be approved 
as a correct record. 
 
 

2. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS (Agenda Item 2): 
 
None. 
 
 

3. DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND NON PECUNIARY INTERESTS 
(Agenda Item 3): 
 
Councillor Barry Rawlings declared a non-pecuniary interest as a member of the 
UNISON union. 
 
 

4. REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY) (Agenda Item 4): 
 
None. 
 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTION AND COMMENTS (IF ANY) (Agenda Item 5): 
 
None. 
 
 

6. MEMBERS ITEM (IF ANY) (Agenda Item 6): 
 
None. 
 
 
The Chairman announced a variation in the order of the agenda.  Agenda item 8 (Review 
of Polling Districts and Polling Places for UK Parliamentary Elections) would be 
considered before Agenda item 7 (Family Services Transformation). 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1

1



 

2 

7. REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES FOR UK 
PARLIAMENTARY ELECTIONS (Agenda Item 8): 
 
The Acting Assurance Director and Electoral Projects Manager introduced the Review of 
Polling Districts and Polling Places for UK Parliamentary Elections report. 
 
The Committee noted the following corrections to the report: 
 

• Section titled ‘Decisions’ be corrected to read ‘Recommendations’ 
 

• Section 6.2 to be amended to highlight that the Chief Executive only has the 
authority to find and use alternative polling places in the event of a late withdrawal 
of availability of a polling place.  

 
RESOLVED that:  
 
1. The Committee approve all proposed Polling Place arrangements as laid out 

in Appendices A, B and C to the report, with the exception of the Polling 
Places listed at minute item 4 below. 

 
2. The Committee approve all of the proposed new Polling District 

arrangements as laid out in Appendix D with the exception of the Polling 
Districts listed at minute item 4 below. 

 
3. The Committee approve that an annual review of Polling Districts and Polling 

Places to be submitted to the General Functions Committee each year 
(following any borough–wide elections held or at a date determined by the 
Committee). 

 
4. The Committee refuse the following amendments to Polling Place 

arrangements as recommended in the report of officers: 
 

i) A Member MOVED that proposed that Polling Place CDB (Coppetts – 
Appendix A) be retained in its current location, and that the Polling 
District CDB (Appendix D) be retained with its current borders, giving 
the reason that where possible voting arrangements should not be 
changed as this was liable to cause confusion to electors.  The proposal 
was duly SECONDED.  Upon being put to the vote, the Committee 
agreed that the current Polling CDB Place be retained.  Voting was as 
follows: 

 
Approve: 4 
Refuse: 3 
Abstention: 0 

 
ii) A Member MOVED that proposed that Polling Place CDD - Current 

(Coppetts – Appendix A) be retained in its current location and that the 
Polling District CDD (Appendix D) be retained with its current borders 
giving the reason that where possible voting arrangements should not 
be changed as this was liable to cause confusion to electors.  The 
proposal was duly SECONDED.  Upon being put to the vote, the 
Committee agreed that the current Polling CDB Place be retained.  
Voting was as follows: 

2



 

3 

 
Approve: 4 
Refuse: 3 
Abstention: 0 

 
 

iii) A Member MOVED that proposed that Polling District HOC (Hale – 
Appendix D) be retained with its current borders and that the new 
Polling District not be created with a Polling Place (HOF – Appendix C) at 
Annuciation Catholic School, giving the reason that where possible 
voting arrangements should not be changed as this was liable to cause 
confusion to electors.  The proposal was duly SECONDED.  Upon being 
put to the vote, the Committee agreed that the current Polling HOC Place 
be retained.  Voting was as follows: 

 
Approve: 4 
Refuse: 3 
Abstention: 0 
 

iv) HUB (Edgware – Appendix C) the Committee agreed to retain the current 
Polling Place at Edgware Parish Hall and not accept the proposal put 
forward by the review to move the Polling Place to Edgware Library for 
the reason that the majority of electors would find the new polling place 
less accessible. 

 
v) HTC (Burnt Oak – Appendix C) the Committee agreed to retain the 

current Polling Place at Barnfield School and not accept the proposal 
put forward by the review to move the Polling Place to St Alphage 
Church Hall for the reason that the majority of electors would find the 
new polling place less accessible. 

 
The Committee noted the paragraph 4.2 of the report of officers should be 
amended to reflect the decision set out at minute item 3 above. 
 
 
The Committee adjourned at 7.28pm.  The meeting reconvened at 7.34pm 
 
 

8. FAMILY SERVICES TRANSFORMATION (Agenda Item 7): 
 
In accordance with section (d) of the terms of reference of the General Functions 
Committee (as set out in Responsibility for Functions, Annex A of the Council’s 
Constitution), the chairman requested that representatives of the NUT and UNISON 
trade unions address the committee.   
 
The Family Services Director and Human Resources Director presented the report. 
 
The Human Resources Director agreed to provide the Committee with details of the 
number of staff who had taken up the support available as part of the Family Services 
transformation project. 
 

3



 

4 

A Member MOVED that the consultation be extended from 30 to 45 days to allow more 
meaningful negotiations with staff.  The proposal was duly SECONDED.  Upon being put 
to the vote the proposal was LOST.  Voting was as follows: 
 
Approve: 3 
Refuse: 4 
Abstention: 0 
 
A Member MOVED that the Corporate Health and Safety Joint Negotiation Consultation 
Committee be reinstated.  The proposal was duly SECONDED.  Upon being put to the 
vote the proposal was LOST.  Voting was as follows: 
 
Approve: 3 
Refuse: 4 
Abstention: 0 
 
A Member MOVED that the data on the use of agency staff be presented in a more 
useable format.  The proposal was duly SECONDED.  Upon being put to the vote the 
proposal was CARRIED.  Voting was as follows: 
 
Approve: 7 
Refuse: 0 
Abstention: 0 
 
Members requested that the gratitude of the Committee be placed on record for the 
engagement of Family Services staff in the consultation processes. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The Committee approve the deletion of posts on the Council’s establishment 

and the creation of new posts as set out in Appendix 2.2 of the report of 
officers, subject to the extension of the consultation period on the Virtual 
School Role Profile to 20 November 2014.   

 
2. The Committee delegate authority to the Family Services Director the 

authority to introduce interim and transitional arrangements to ensure the 
continuity of service during appointments to the new structure and any 
vacancies arising.  

 
 

9. ANY ITEM(S) THAT HE CHAIRMAN DECIDES IS URGENT (Agenda Item 9): 
 
None. 
 
 

10. MOTION TO EXCLUDE THE PRESS AND PUBLIC (Agenda Item 10): 
 
RESOLVED that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended) 
 
 

4



 

5 

 
 
 
 

11. FAMILY SERVICES TRANSFORMATION (EXEMPT) (Agenda Item 11): 
 
RESOLVED that the information contained in the exempt report be noted.  
 
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 8.35 pm

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Summary 

This report asks the General Functions Committee to note the impact of the decisions of 
the Policy and Resources Committee (subject to any amendments by the Committee) of 
the 2 December 2014; and to note the actions to be taken by chief officers under Delegated 
Powers to implement the decision of the Policy and Resources Committee.  The proposals 
will result in the net reduction in workforce numbers (FTE) to discharge the Council’s 
functions.   
 
The Committee are also being advised of actions taken during 2014/15 in anticipation of 
budget allocations for 2015/16 where full year savings are required to meet budget 
allocations.  

 

 

General Functions Committee 
 

03 December 2014 
  

Title  Business Planning 2015/16 - 2019/20 

Report of 
Chief Operating Officer 
Director for Human Resources 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         

Appendix A – Cover Report for the Policy and Resources 
Committee (2 December 2014) 
Appendix B – Commissioning Plans 
Appendix C – Medium Term Financial Strategy  
Appendix D – Budget savings 2015 – 2020 
Appendix E – Capital programme additions 
Appendix F – Transformation programme 
Appendix G – Write offs 
Appendix H – Review of reserves 

Officer Contact Details  

John Hooton, Deputy Chief Operating Officer, 
John.Hooton@barnet.gov.uk  
Mark Grimley, Director for Human Resources 
Mark.Grimley@barnet.gov.uk  

AGENDA ITEM 7

7



 

Recommendations  

That General Functions Committee: 
 

1. Note the decisions of the Policy and Resources Committee 02 December 2014 
and the impact of staffing numbers. 
 

2. Adjust the Council’s workforce establishment in 2015/16 to reflect the 
proposals agreed by the Policy & Resources Committee and delegate to 
officers the necessary actions to implement these proposals (subject to 
functions and decisions reserved to Full Council or the General Functions 
Committee in respect of terms and conditions of employment). The proposed 
reduction is set out in Section 6 of this report.  
 

3. Note the requirements for statutory consultation and collective bargaining 
where there are changes proposed to terms and conditions potential impacts 
on individual roles or groups of staff.  
 

4. To note the impact on performance, staff and equalities as set out in section 
6,7, 9 and 10 of the report (Appendix A). 

 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  

 
1.1 The annual business planning cycle enables Members to set the strategic 

direction of the Council.  As part of this, the Council’s theme Committees have 
been reviewing commissioning intentions and options to ensure the Council 
operates within the resources it has, as set out in the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy.  

 
1.2 Prior to Full Council setting the budget for 2015/16, the General Functions 

Committee is being appraised of the total impact of the proposals on the 
workforce as the Committee with responsibility for ‘staff matters’ (Section 15, 
Council Constitution). In this case, staff matters includes proposed changes to 
the overall establishment of the Council through reductions in the workforce 
that may lead to redundancies, transfer of employees to other employees 
(TUPE transfers) or reorganisation of functions, including staffing. Such 
changes being made with regard to the Council’s obligations under statute, 
contract our HR Regulations to ensure full consultation with employee 
representatives (trade unions) and with the workforce at the appropriate time.  

 
1.3 Before entering into consultation with trade unions and employees, the 

General Functions Committee are being advised of the proposals.  
 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
3.1 The Council is legally obliged to set a budget each year that must balance 

service expenditure against available resources. Resulting from these 
proposals are proposed changes to terms and conditions and staffing 
numbers requiring consultation and implementation at a later date.  

 

8



4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 
4.1 Appendix A sets out a range of options across the Council’s remit to meet the 

budget challenge. This includes proposals for workforce savings, as well as 
generating income from new business. Alternatives to this could include more 
significant cuts to services the Council provides, but these are not included in 
this report. 
 

4.2 The Council is already reducing the use of agency staffing as a means of 
controlling workforce costs. We have considered reducing agency usage 
further however it is not recommended to be taken forward as a specific 
proposal as agency staffing reductions do not always result in revenue 
savings; agency posts are useful when seeking to avoid redundancies by 
prioritising employees into posts filled by temporary employees. Agency 
workers can provide a flexible workforce at a time of significant change.  

 
4.3 The Council has in place a redeployment pool to mitigate and avoid the cost 

and impact of redundancies. Potential redundancies are identified through 
service specific consultation with trade unions and employees.  The Council 
could issue a single consultation at this point, although this is not 
recommended given the breadth and timetabling of the proposals.  
Additionally, to ensure meaningful consultation is undertaken, detailed 
proposals would be required.  

 
4.4 Consideration has been given to retaining services in-house.  As part of the 

theme Committees’ work for alternative delivery models, in-house provision 
will continue to be considered next to other options for service provision.  

 
 
 

5. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

5.1 Following the decision of the Committee to amend the establishment, officers 
will consult with trade unions and employees about the budget proposals.  At 
the same time, in preparation for Council approval of the budgets, where there 
is a lead in time to achieve full-year savings, officers will undertake work 
under delegated powers to consult with staff and trade unions on specific 
proposals for implementation from the 1st April 2015.  

  

9



 
6. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  

 
6.1 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, 

Sustainability) 
 

6.1.1 As a result of the decision, the reduction in staffing establishment will reduce 
the resources allocated to the Council’s establishment.  

 
6.2 Revenue 
 
6.2.1 The MTFS (Appendix C) sets out the £73.5m savings target for the Council 

based on a number of assumptions. This includes the pay award agreed by 
the national Joint Negotiating Committees for local government employees, 
teachers and staff on other terms and conditions of employment.  It should be 
noted that the recently agreed pay award for local government workers is 
greater than the assumptions 

 
6.2.2 The revenue budget proposals plan (Appendix D) will enable the Council to 

meet its £73.5m savings target as set out in the MTFS (Appendix C).   
 
6.3 Capital 
 
6.3.1 There are no direct implications on the capital budget for staffing matters 

arising from the budget proposals for 2015/16.  
 

6.4 Staffing 
 

6.4.1 The budget proposals in this report will have an impact on staffing across the 
organisation and a reduction in the Council’s establishment. A number of 
budget proposals will result in a reduction in posts in the organisation. For 
2015/16, this impact is set out in Appendix E to the report, and is 
summarised as follows: 

 

 FTE reduction 

Adults and Communities 6 

Family Services 28 

Streetscene 29 

Commissioning Group 4 

Total 67 

 

6.4.2 The savings in Family Services related to proposals previously agreed by the 
General Functions Committee to achieve full-year savings in 2015/16.  

10



Consultation with employees and trade unions has been completed, including 
the extended period agreed by this Committee for further representations 
relating to the ‘virutal school’ proposals.  We are now in the process of 
preparing for the implementation of the proposals with effect from the 1st April 
2015.  As part of this, there is expected to be between 20 and 40 employees 
placed at risk of redundancy.  
 

6.4.3 In addition to the above, other functions within Family Services and 
Education and Skills will be subject to review and consultation including 
proposals for changes to nursery provision and early years settings.  
Additionally, the Council is currently consulting residents and employees 
about the future operating model for library services that may have 
implications for staffing structures within the service. These proposals are 
likely to be implemented in 2016/17, with a substantial amount of work and 
preparation, including consultation, in 2015/16.  

 

6.4.4 The Council is has been consulting with residents and other stakeholders, 
about proposals for alternative models of delivery for functions within the 
Education and Skills delivery unit.  This includes school support services, 
improvement, network inspectors, catering and other services.  The public 
consultation is expected to close on 1st December 2014.  Initial proposals 
have included a joint-venture, outsourcing to an external provider, social 
enterprise (or partnership with schools).  As a result of early views provided 
by trade unions, we are also now considering the option of in-house provision.  
The specific proposals and future operating model will require consultation 
with employees and trade unions.  

 

6.4.5 Adults and Community Services are reviewing administrative, clerical and 
support functions to further improve the delivery unit efficiencies and 
performance. Specific proposals and consultation will take place  prior to 1st 
April 2015, to allow for full year savings.  

 

6.4.6 The Commissioning Group, including functions for commissioning, 
assurance, financial strategy, commercial and customer strategy and the 
Council’s policy and strategy has already completed the reorganisation and 
reduction of senior management positions (and the associated administrative 
support functions) and is now in a transitional phase prior to the go-live date 
of 1st April 2015, in order to deliver full-year savings for 2015/16.  We have 
now started the initial phase of ‘strengthening commissioning’ through 
reviewing commissioning functions across the Council.  This will result in 
movement of posts from delivery units in to the Commissioning Group.  At this 
stage there are no proposals for structural changes although it is anticipated 
that this will be required. 

 

11



6.4.7 Streetscene Services will consult on proposals for savings in 2015/16 relating 
to street services through route optimisation and changes in how services are 
delivered. At the same time, waste and recycling services will be consulting 
on the introduction of harmonised structures and management arrangements.  

 

 
6.4.8 Council-wide proposals for a reduction in the overall cost of terms and 

conditions through a review of enhancements, pay protection, incremental 
progression and occupational schemes (such as sickness, parental leave) are 
currently being negotiated with trade unions. There is no proposal to reduce 
basic pay, although the introduction of a new pay and grading model will 
impact some employees, for which the Council will be consulting with trade 
unions on how to support employees detrimentally affected by the proposals. 
 

6.4.9  For 2015/16, consultation with staff will take place in accordance with the 
Council’s HR Regulations and policies.  As part of this, trade unions will 
receive the Council’s budget proposals (Appendices B to H) and will be asked 
to meet with senior managers of the Council. We are also currently in 
negotiation with trade unions about the terms and conditions savings.  

 

6.4.10 For proposals affecting teams within individual delivery units, consultations 
will take place at a local level with employees and trade unions, normally for a 
period of between 30 and 45 days. For restructures affecting 20 or more 
employees, the outcome of the consultation and the recommended structures 
will be put to the General Functions Committee for approval.  
 

6.4.11 Proposals once determined could potentially have workforce implications 
which may result in redundancies. The Council will seek to mitigate 
redundancies through the redeployment process and a reduction in agency 
usage. Any substantial changes are subject to consultation as guided by 
Council’s Managing Organisational Change Policy and will be subject to 
consultation with employees and trade unions and equality impact 
assessments before implementation. 

 
7 Legal and Constitutional References 

 
7.1.1 All proposals emerging from the business planning process must be 

considered in terms of the Council’s legal powers and obligations, including its 
overarching statutory duties such as the Public Sector Equality Duty. 

 
7.1.2 Functions relating to staffing matters are set out in Section 15 

(Responsibilities for Functions) of the Council Constitution. Functions 
delegated to officers are set out in the HR Regulations of the Council 
Constitution. 
 

 

 

12



7.1.3 Any decision made should be made after appropriate consultation and 
consideration of equality impacts. 
 

7.1.4 Decision makers should have due regard to the public sector duty in making 
their decisions.  The equalities duties are continuing duties they are not duties 
to secure a particular outcome.  Consideration of the duties should proceed 
the decision.  It is important that decision makers have regard to the statutory 
grounds in the light of all available material. 

 
Consultation 

 

 
7.1.5 There will be staff consultation about these proposals in compliance with s188 

of the Trade Union & Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.  The Council 
may be required to publish a statutory notice to the Secretary of State and 
undertake consultation should we reach the minimum thresholds for potential 
redundancies resulting from these proposals.  
 

7.1.6 The Council has in place a Managing Organisational Change Policy to guide it 
in consultation with employees and trade unions for proposals relating to the 
organisation of functions (including job functions and structures). 

 

7.1.7 Where proposals affect the terms and conditions of employees, the Council 
has in place collective bargaining mechanisms with recognised trade unions 
for the purposes of negotiation.  

 

7.1.8 The Council is required to consult and provide information to trade unions 
where there is a potential transfer of employees from the Council to another 
employer.  

 
 
Public Sector Equality Duty 

 
7.1.9 The general duty on public bodies is set out in section 149 of the Act. 

 
7.1.10 A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 

need to: 
 

(a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

(b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and 

(c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

7.1.11 Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between 

13



persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do 
not share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to: 
 
(a) Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 

(b) Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 
and 

(c) Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionately low. 

 
7.1.12 The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different 

from the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to 
take account of disabled persons' disabilities. 
 

7.1.13 Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 
involves having due regard, in particular, the need to: 

(a) Tackle prejudice, and 

(b) Promote understanding. 

7.1.14 Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons 
more favourably than others but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct 
that would otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act. 
 

7.1.15 The relevant protected characteristics are: 

• Age; 

• Disability; 

• Gender reassignment;  

• Pregnancy and maternity; 

• Race; 

• Religion or belief; 

• Sex; and 

• Sexual orientation. 
 

7.1.16 It also covers marriage and civil partnership with regard to eliminating 
discrimination. 
 

7.1.17 Through the consultation with employees and trade unions, the Council will 
provide an Equalities Assessment.  Changes proposed should support the 
objectives of the Council through proportionate and legitimate means. 
 

8 Risk Management 
 

8.1 There is a risk that the savings and efficiencies proposed for the 2015/16 are not 
delivered either on –time or through changes to proposals.  To manage this risk, 

14



each delivery unit is responsible for ensure meaningful consultation is undertaken 
to explain the objectives, the impact and to seek views from employees and trade 
unions on alternatives to the proposals to achieve savings.  
 

8.2 There is a risk of legal challenge or dispute should the Council not undertake 
consultation at the appropriate point or for a reasonable length of time. The 
Council has in place a Managing Organisational Change Policy that provides 
guidance to avoid such challenge. 

 

 
8.3  Through the Council’s employee relations mechanisms, we seek to avoid dispute 

through regular local meetings between trade unions and senior managers. 
There is also a regular monthly meeting between trade unions and the HR 
Director.  Should matters reach a potential dispute, the Council’s People 
Management Group (PMG) and the General Functions Committee are points of 
escalation.  Through such mechanisms we seek to avoid disputes and challenge.  

 
 
 
9 Equalities and Diversity  

 
9.1.1 The Council will undertake an Equality Assessment when entering into each 

consultation.  The impact assessment will take place: 
 
9.1.1.1 At the start of consultation, as part of the local consultation 

documents 
9.1.1.2 At the end of consultation, prior to publishing final proposals. 

 
 

10 CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT 
 
10.1.1 The Council has recently been improving internal communication and 

engagement with employees and proposed changes affecting the Council, 
functions of the Council or their specific area.  
 

10.1.2 Our duty is to consult with employee representatives (trade unions) in 
compliance with s188 of the Trade Union & Labour Relations (Consolidation) 
Act 1992. Collective consultation with the trade unions, and directly with 
employees, will take place following decisions by the Policy & Resources 
Committee and the General Functions Committee in the first week of 
December 2014.  

 
 

10.1.3 Consultation will take the form of the provision of the full set of documents 
made available to the Committee today, staffing data including vacancy 
reporting, agency usage and turnover. A meeting will be convened with trade 
unions to receive representations, comments and a formal response before 
the end of January 2015. 

 

15



 
 
 
11 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Relevant previous decisions are indicated in the table below. 

Item Decision Link 

Corporate Plan 
priorities and Medium 
Term Financial 
Strategy 2015-16 – 
June 2014 

To approve 5 year 
Commissioning Plan 
and, proposals for 
meeting 
financial targets set out 
in the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) 

 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieDe
cisionDetails.aspx?AIId=7360 

Finance and 
Business Planning – 
Capital Programme 
and Review of 
Reserves 

Agree the process for 
theme Committees to 
review the capital 
programme and the 
development of capital 
programme priorities 
for the period 2015-20.  
Agree the process for 
the review revenue 
reserves which will 
come back to this 
committee in 
December 2014 
 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieDe
cisionDetails.aspx?AIId=8075 

Education and Skills 
– Future Delivery of 
Services 
 

Children, Education, 
Libraries and 
Safeguarding 
Committee note that 
the draft outline 
business case will be 
referred to the Policy 
and Resources 
Committee for 
approval of the 
consideration to set up 
a separate legal entity 
to deliver education 
and skills services 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieDe
cisionDetails.aspx?AIId=7861 

 

  

16



 

 
REPORT CLEARANCE CHECKLIST 
(Removed prior to publication and retained by Governance Service) 
 
Report authors should engage with their Governance Champion early in the report 
writing process and record the date below. If the decision/report has been reviewed 
at an internal board please record the date and name of the meeting (e.g. SCB). 
Otherwise enter N/A. All reports must be cleared by the appropriate Director/AD, 
Legal, Finance and Governance as a minimum. Legal, Finance and Governance 
require a minimum of 5 working days to provide report clearance. Clearance 
cannot be guaranteed for reports submitted outside of this time.  
 
AUTHOR TO COMPLETE TABLE BELOW: 

 

Who Clearance Date Name 

Governance Champion     

Director / AD   

Enabling Board / Delivery Board   

Commissioning and Policy     

Equalities & Diversity   

HR Business Partner   

Strategic Procurement   

HB Public Law   

Finance   

Governance   

 

17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Summary 

This report seeks approval from the Policy and Resources Committee on the following: 
 

a) The Council’s strategic priorities – to frame a revised Corporate Plan - and Theme 
Committee Commissioning Plans for the period 2015 to 2020;  

b) The budget savings proposals for 2015/16;  
c) The budget savings agreed by Theme Committees for the period 2016/17 – 

2019/20, to form the basis of the Council’s new Medium Term Financial Strategy to 
2020, allowing the Council to plan ahead effectively;  

d) The capital programme additions for the period 2015-20; and 
e) The Council’s transformation programme covering the period 2015 to 2020. 

 

Policy and Resources Committee 
 

02 December 2014 
  

Title  Business Planning 2015/16 - 2019/20 

Report of 

Chief Executive 
Chief Operating Officer 
Strategic Director of Commissioning 
Strategic Director for Environment and Growth 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Enclosures                         

Appendix A – Commissioning Plans 
Appendix B – Medium Term Financial Strategy  
Appendix C – Budget savings 2015 – 2020 
Appendix D – Capital programme additions 
Appendix E – Transformation programme 
Appendix F – Write offs 
Appendix G – Review of reserves 

Officer Contact Details  

John Hooton, Deputy Chief Operating Officer, 
John.Hooton@barnet.gov.uk 
Stephen Evans, Director of Strategy, 
Stephen.Evans@barnet.gov.uk 
Ruth Hodson, Head of Finance, Ruth.Hodson@barnet.gov.uk 
Tom Pike, Head of Programmes and Resources, 
Tom.Pike@barnet.gov.uk 

19



 

 

Recommendations  

That Policy and Resources Committee: 
 
1. Agree the Council’s high-level strategic priorities, as set out in section 1.2, 
which will frame a new Corporate Plan for 2015-2020, subject to consultation 
commencing on 17 December 2014 – after Full Council – and concluding on 11 
February 2015. 

2. Agree the updated Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) up to 2020 as set 
out in Appendix B and the assumptions underpinning this in section 2 

3. Approve the budget savings proposals for 2015/16 as “budget headlines” for 
consultation from 17 December 2014 until 11 February 2015.  Approve the 
overall MTFS savings and pressures from 2016/17 to 2019/20 as set out in 
Appendix C.  Individual savings proposals for future years included in the 
MTFS will be consulted on where necessary – with full Equalities Impact 
Assessments conducted - in the relevant budget year before final decisions 
are taken by Committees and Full Council and savings are cast into future 
annual budgets.  (In the case of the Environment Committee to instruct the 
Chief Finance Officer to  include the views of Full Council on 16th December in 
the consultation document.)  

4. Agree the five year Commissioning Plans in Appendix A set out indicative 
plans to address both the high level strategic priorities outlined in section 1.2 
and the forecast budget deficit of £73.5m by 2020 and agree the 
commencement an 8 week public consultation on the Commissioning Plans 
which will conclude on the 11th of February 2015. (In the case of the 
Environment Committee to instruct the Chief Finance Officer to include the 
views of Full Council on 16th December in the consultation document).  

5. Approve the recommendation of the additional capital schemes proposals as 
set out in Appendix D, to be added to the capital programme.   

6. Approve the transformation programme as set out in Appendix E, the 
allocation of £16.1m from the transformation reserve to fund this programme 
from 2015 through to 2020 and the drawdown requested under section 2.6.10.  
This programme and funding is required to deliver annual revenue savings of 
£44.4m by 2020(cumulatively £124m).  

7. To approve the write offs in Appendix F as requested by the Policy & Contract 
Management Committee. 

8. To note the review of reserves as set out in section 2.5 and Appendix G 

9. To agree the draw-downs from reserves as set out in paragraph 2.2.1 and 
saving amendments in paragraph 2.2.4. 

 

10. Agree that the Children, Education, Libraries and Safeguarding Committee 
should complete the detailed consideration of alternative delivery options, 
including agreeing to the commencement of procurement where relevant. As 
set out in paragraph 2.2.11 of this report. 

11. To note the impact on performance, staff and equalities as set out in section 
6,7, 9 and 10 of the report; 

20



 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  

 

1.1 Executive Summary 

 

1.1.1. The challenge of reducing funding from Government, together with rising 

demand on local services driven by demographic change and increasing 

financial responsibility from Government legislation (e.g. the Care Act), 

remains the key challenge for Local Government for the remainder of this 

decade. This report reiterates the expected scale of that challenge for Barnet 

Council, alongside the Council’s response in the form of Commissioning Plans 

and budget proposals through to the end of the decade..  

 

1.1.2. Forward looking Commissioning Plans are an essential part of the Council’s 

response to the challenge, as they collectively set out how the Council will 

meet the challenges ahead. The Plans define outcomes for residents and 

service users, and set out the initiatives that will be undertaken to achieve 

these outcomes. Individual Plans have been agreed by Theme Committees 

and come together in this report to form the basis of the Council’s priorities 

across Committees to be incorporated in a new Corporate Plan for the period 

2015-2020. 

 

1.1.3. In March 2014, the Council agreed its MTFS, which set a two year budget for 

the period 2014/15 – 2015/16. This report re-affirms proposals for 2015/16. 

The total budget gap is £15.749m for 2015/16. The budget gap has been 

updated to reflect recent announcements. Savings of £17.269 and pressures 

of £1.520m have been identified to enable a balanced budget to be set. 

Proposals for 2015/16 are predicated subject to consultation on a Council Tax 

freeze.  

1.1.4 This report also sets out the expected budget gap of £73.5m for 2016-2020 

and the budget savings agreed by each Theme Committee to  help deal with 

this challenge. These savings will form the basis of a new MTFS to 2020, with 

individual savings proposals to be consulted on – and with full Equalities 

Impact Assessments conducted in the relevant budget year – before final 

decisions are taken by Committees and savings are cast into future annual 

budgets following Full Council.  These savings total £50.6m, leaving a 

remaining gap of £22.9m. The remaining gap will be allocated in the new 

financial year to Theme Committees so they may develop further proposals 

which will be subject to further consultation and an Equalities Impact 

Assessment. 

1.1.5 The report seeks approval of the allocation of capital spend for 2016-2020. 

This totals £101m and is funded from the a combination of the provision for 

capital financing included within the MTFS and external grant. 

21



1.2 STRATEGIC CONTEXT 
 
Barnet Council and the wider public sector continue to face significant 
financial challenges 
 
1.2.1 Despite significant reductions to Government spending since 2010 and a 

return to economic growth, the financial environment for the Council, the wider 
public sector, and residents continues to be challenging.  The position can be 
summarised as follows: 

   

• Further spending cuts to come: Despite nearly £100 billion of spending 
cuts since 2010, the UK budget deficit still stands at around £70 billion 
meaning that austerity will continue. 

 

• Increasing pressure on services: Increasing demand on services is 
driven by a growing and changing population.  Barnet’s population 
increased by 12% from 2001 to 2011 and will increase by a further 5% 
over the next 5 years, with health and social services in particular facing 
acute challenges due to rapid growth in young and older cohorts. 

 

• Wider financial pressure on households: From energy bills, housing 
costs, wage restraint, and benefit reforms. 

 

• Increasing public expectations: With residents expecting better services 
and more prompt responses. 

 
This means that the Council must plan for the fact that spending reductions will affect 
all parts of the public sector to the end of the decade and that increasingly levels of 
demand will not be me from simply doing more of what it is currently doing.  
  
The impact on the Council’s finances – past and future 
 
1.2.2 In Barnet, the impact of austerity has translated to the Council needing to 

save or generate £75.8m over the period 2011 – 2015, equivalent to 26% of 
the Council’s budget.  Looking ahead, based on assumptions about future 
public spending and rising demand, the Council is forecasting the need for 
further savings of £73.5 million in the latter half of the decade.  In real terms, 
by the end of the decade, the Council’s total spending power will be over 
40% less than it was at the start. 
 

1.2.3 Knowing that the Council continues to face significant financial challenges in 
the years ahead, it has a responsibility to develop and agree a plan for 
meeting the challenge.  The proposed M TFS is that plan.    
 

 
 
 
 
 

22



Opportunities ahead – Barnet is a successful borough as part of a successful, 
thriving London 
 
1.2.4 Despite austerity, the economy is now growing, particularly in London.  This 

creates opportunities for the Council; for residents; and for business.  In 
Barnet, the benefits are already being seen through reduced unemployment – 
particularly 16-18 year olds - and more people on benefits moving into work.  
The benefits of growth are being felt thorough regeneration in areas such as 
Colindale and Grahame Park and with the major redevelopment of Brent 
Cross Cricklewood due to start soon, providing new homes, space for 
businesses, thousands of new jobs.   

 
1.2.5 Most people will benefit from the success of living in Barnet without direct 

intervention from the Council.  For these residents, the Council’s role is to ‘get 
the basics right’ and maintain the environment for a thriving borough - 
disposing of waste; keeping streets clean; providing excellent customer 
service; allowing people to transact in more convenient ways; resolving issues 
promptly and ensuring the borough has the infrastructure to continue its 
success - good schools, education, training, jobs, housing and transport.  

 
1.2.6 The Council will work to ensure that all residents of Barnet can benefit from 

the opportunities of growth, whether that is through increased employment 
levels of disabled people or through developing new neighbourhoods in which 
people can live and age well. 
 

1.2.7 However, some residents will need targeted support to allow them to benefit 
from this success.  As such, the Council will need to continue to work with 
other parts of the public sector to identify those residents at risk of missing out 
and provide the right interventions at the right time.  The recent success of the 
joint Benefit Cap Task Force – which brings together the Council, Barnet 
Homes and Job Centre Plus – is an example of what is possible.  The Task 
force has engaged with over 90% of residents impacted by the Benefit Cap 
and has supported over a third into work and off the Benefit Cap. Helping 
people to help themselves will reduce dependence on services and on the 
ever diminishing resources available.   

 
Barnet’s approach to meeting the challenge  
 
1.2.8 The majority of savings made to date have been through back office 

efficiencies.  The Council has focused on cutting bureaucracy by cutting the 
number of senior managers and the Chief Executive’s pay; cutting Member 
allowances; and cutting spending on the back office – which now cost £6m 
less a year.  This has meant that the Council has avoided short-term, in year 
cuts seen in other areas and has created headroom to reinvest – in 
infrastructure, regeneration, school places.  The Council has also been able to 
keep Council Tax under control - freezing it since 2010 and cutting it this 
financial year.  Despite the challenges, satisfaction with the Council and local 
services remains relatively high in Barnet and, over recent years, resident 
satisfaction with a number of local services has increased.   

 
 

23



1.2.9 As the Council focuses on the challenges ahead, it does so from a firm 
position.  Its commissioning approach, which focuses on the quality and value 
for money of services – and how they contribute to the Council’s priority 
outcomes – rather than a pre-determined view on how services should be 
delivered and by whom, provides the flexibility and capability to respond.   

 
Barnet Council’s overarching approach - developing a Corporate Plan to 2020 
 
1.2.10 Each one of the Council’s Theme Committees has developed a 5 year 

Commissioning Plan over the last 6 months, setting out the outcomes and 
priorities the Committee will focus on as it seeks to meet the challenge.  
These Commissioning Plans, appended to this document, have been based 
on consultation to date – including recent Resident Perception Surveys and 
consultation in relation to the Priorities & Spending Review (PSR), which 
asked residents what they care about as the Council approaches the 
challenge and ideas about how savings could be made or services reformed.  
The Council will consult on these Commissioning Plans with results taken 
back to Policy & Resources Committee in February, Full Council in March and 
individual Theme Committees in the spring.  
 

1.2.11 The Council’s Corporate Plan sets the overall framework for each of the 
Committee’s individual Commissioning Plans. Whether the Plans are covering 
services for vulnerable residents or about universal services such as the 
environment and waste, there are a number of core and shared principles 
which underpin the commissioning outcomes.  These are set out below, 
based on consultation feedback received from residents through the PSR 
process. 

 
The first is a focus on fairness 
 
1.2.12 In meeting the challenge, there are no easy decisions.  The Council will seek 

to strike the right balance between fairness towards the more frequent users 
of services and fairness to the wider taxpayer and making sure all residents 
from our diverse communities - young, old, disabled, and unemployed share 
in the opportunities of growth, whilst adhering to its statutory equalities duties.  
 

1.2.13 The Council must ‘get the basics right’ so people can get on with their lives 
– disposing of waste, keeping streets clean, allowing people to transact in 
more convenient ways, resolving issues promptly in the most cost effective 
way. 
 

1.2.14 Managing the rising demand on services requires a step change in the 
Council’s approach to early intervention, prevention and demand 
management. Across the public sector, the Council and its partners will need 
to work with residents to prevent problems rather than treating the symptoms 
when they materialise.  

 
 
 
 

24



The second is a focus on responsibility 
 

1.2.15 The Council has a responsibility to ensure that certain services continue to be 
provided but, given the scale of the financial challenge, it will do so in different 
ways. 
 

1.2.16 The Council also has a responsibility to set out its plan for dealing with the 
financial challenges to the end of the decade.  The MTFS is that plan.  In 
doing so, the Council will continue to drive out efficiencies and seek value 
for money across the system, to achieve better outcomes with fewer 
resources.  This includes a focus on workforce productivity; bearing down on 
contract and procurement costs; and using assets more effectively. 
 

1.2.17 The Council will change its relationships with residents, by working with 
local people to ensure services better meet their needs and to reduce the 
impact of funding cuts.  In certain circumstances, residents will also need to 
take on more personal and community responsibility for keeping Barnet a 
great place particularly if there is not a legal requirement for the Council to 
provide services. 
 

1.2.18 In some cases, users will be required to pay more for certain services as 
the Council prioritises the resources it has available.  The Council will seek to 
create a stronger link between personal behaviour and cost, with those 
whose chosen behaviour increases the cost burden on wider taxpayers 
charged more e.g. charging individuals and businesses who increase Council 
costs through littering or fly-tipping. 

 
The third is a focus on opportunity 

 

1.2.19 The Council will prioritise regeneration, growth and income maximisation.  
Regeneration revitalises communities and provides residents and businesses 
with places to live and work. 
 

1.2.20 There is a trade-off between the amount of income the Council is able to 
generate and the level of savings it needs to make.  Growing the local tax 
base and generating more income makes the Council less reliant on 
Government funding and helps to offset the impact of service cuts. 
 

1.2.21 Income maximisation through growth and regeneration also generates 
resources for investment in future infrastructure - roads and transport 
infrastructure, housing and schools. 
 

1.2.22 The Council will redesign services and deliver them differently through a 
range of models and providers.  The Council’s Commissioning Council 
approach means that it does not have a pre-determined view about how 
services should be designed and delivered – its concern is primarily with 
service quality and value for money for the taxpayer. The Council will continue 
to develop a mixed economy of providers from across the public, private and 
voluntary sectors through a variety of delivery models - in-house, outsourced, 

25



Joint Ventures, Social Enterprises, Mutual – that are appropriate to the 
service. 
 

1.2.23 This approach - based around Fairness, Responsibility and Opportunity – 
will be articulated in the Council’s new Corporate Plan to 2020 which will be 
developed over the coming weeks and brought back to the Policy & 
Resources Committee for recommendation to full Council  before publication 
in April.  Officers will develop a range of measures and targets so that the 
Council is able to measure success against the Plan. 
 

1.2.24 At this stage, the Council will consult on the high-level strategic priorities 
which flow from the approach articulated above, to inform development of the 
more detailed plan.  The Council’s proposed high-level strategic priorities 
are as follows: 

 
 

Barnet Council, working with local, regional and national partners, will 
strive to make sure the Barnet is the place: 

1 Of opportunity, where people can further their quality of life. 

2 Where responsibility is shared, fairly. 

3 Where people are helped to help themselves, recognising that 
prevention is better than cure. 

4 Where services are delivered efficiently to get value for money for the 
taxpayer. 

 
 

2 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 
 

2.1 Funding from Government, Council Tax and other assumptions 
 
2.1.1 Appendix B sets out the indicative MTFS for Barnet Council through to 2020, 

taking into account the national economic context such as Government 
spending cuts and inflation, along with local factors such as population and 
demand pressures. The budget gap facing the Council includes assumptions 
about levels of expected Government grant, future levels of business rates 
and changes to the Council Tax base, along with a range of other 
assumptions about pay and non-pay inflation, future levies and other risks. 
 

2.1.2 The Government has already announced indicative funding levels for 2015/16 
and these have been included in the MTFS. Beyond that point, it is possible to 
model further cuts to Government grant through to the end of the decade, 
based on budget announcements and Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) 
reports. Within this report it is broadly assumed that Government grants will 
continue to reduce from 2016 to 2020 at the same level as they did between 
2011 and 2015. These assumptions on Government grant, along with 
assumptions on growth in population, inflation and a range of other factors, 
are used to inform the MTFS and budget gap and will be kept under review 
following further announcements and changes in the macro-economic picture. 
In detail, these assumptions are as follows: 

 

26



• Demographic pressures – an assumption has been made in the budget 
envelope for future demographic pressures specifically for Adults and 
Children’s Social Care costs. This is based on data provided by the 
Greater London Authority.  

• Inflation (pay): in line with the Local Government pay award for 2013/14, 
a 1% increase in pay is assumed for each year from 2015 to 2020; 

• Inflation (non-pay): figures from the Office for Budget Responsibility 
(OBR) for inflation have been used to estimate the increase in non-pay 
costs; 

• North London Waste Authority levy: figures for the NWLA levy are 
based on the latest information from the NLWA for the period from 2015-
2020; 

• Capital financing costs:  no provision has been added for 2015/16 as the 
current budget provision is considered to be sufficient, but a provision has 
been added each year beyond that point; 

• Council Tax Support: a provision has already been set aside for risks 
associated with Council Tax support, and this is considered to be sufficient 
for future years;  

• Concessionary fares: increases have been projected in line with 
demographic changes of 60+ in Barnet; 

• Care Act: a staged introduction of the Care Act has caused a financial 
pressure for 2015/16 for the assessment of carers which is above the 
funding made available by Government. This additional pressure is 
reflected in the MTFS.  The new burdens money for future years has not 
yet been published, so no provision has yet been included in the MTFS for 
Care Act implementation in 2016/17; 

• Future allocations of New Homes Bonus are projected in line with known 
developments in the borough, and is reserved for infrastructure purposes; 

• Business rates: there has been no growth assumed in business rates.  
An increase in yield has been estimated in line with inflation; 

• Business rates top up grant: the business rates top up grant is assumed 
to increase in line with inflation; 

• Revenue Support Grant: the assumption for the reduction in RSG is such 
that the reduction in the total quantum of retained business rates and RSG 
is approximately £10m per annum. This total reduction is in line with 
previous reductions in government grant support from 2011 to 2015; 

• Council Tax: The proposal subject to consultation and the Equalities 
Impact Assessment is that a Council Tax freeze is factored into the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2015/16 and 2016/17, with an 
increase of 2% per annum beyond that point.  The Council tax baseline 
takes into account current developments and regenerations schemes 
where developers are in place.  It does not take into account schemes that 
are proposed, but where developers are not yet in place; 

• Education Support and Council Tax & Housing benefit administration 
grants have been assumed to reduce by 10% in line with previous 
reductions of specific grants; and 

• The PFI credit is fixed and no change has been factored in. 
 
 
 

27



2.2 Draft budget proposals 2015 to 2020 and current budget decisions 
 
Current budget decisions 
 
2.2.1 This report is primarily concerned with the setting of a new Corporate Plan, 

Commissioning Plans and indicative MTFS the period from 1st April 2015 
through to 2020 which will collectively form the Council’s plan for meeting the 
challenge. However, as part of the regular decision making process around 
on-going financial management, this report proposes the following: 

• That Policy and Resources Committee agree to fund the budgetary 
shortfall arising from the Parking Judicial Review for 2014/15. This will 
require a draw down from the risk reserve of £1m (one off);  

• That Policy and Resources Committee agree to allocate £600k per annum 
in 2015/16 and 2016/17 from the risk reserve to fund the revenue pressure 
arising from the Sports and Physical Activity Project going live in 2017/18; 

• That Policy and Resources Committee agree to allocate £9m from the 
infrastructure reserve into the capital programme to pursue alternative 
proposals for the depot relocation; and  

• That Policy and Resources committee agree the write offs as set out in 
Appendix F to this report.  

 
2015/16 budget proposals 
 
2.2.2 The proposed budget for 2015/16 reflects a budget gap of £17.269m, with 

savings proposals to reach a balanced position. These savings are set out in 
detail at Appendix C.  

 

 2015/16 
£000 

Budget Gap before savings and pressures 15,749 

Proposed Pressures 1,520 

Proposed Savings (17,269) 

  

Budget Gap after savings 0 

 
2.2.3 The total savings for 2015/16 agreed by Full Council in February 2013 were 

£20.1m. Savings proposals for 2015/16 have been reviewed across the 
Council to ensure they remain deliverable and are line with the direction of 
policy. 

 
2.2.4 Following the review it is recommended that the following savings are re-

profiled: 
 

• Family Services: due to lead in time of implement projects it is 
recommended that savings of £1.873m (Libraries, £0.352m, Early Years 
Savings, £0.175m and Family Services £1.346m) be moved from 2015/16 
to 2016/17.  

 

28



• Family Services: due to the continuing number of Barnet young people 
requiring services it is prudent to withdraw the saving put forward to 
reduce placement costs by £940k. 

 
2.2.5 Following these amendments, the proposed 2015/16 savings by theme 

committee are as below. These are set out in detail at Appendix C. 
 

Theme Committee 
Total 
£’000 

Adults & Safeguarding (8,424) 

Assets, Regeneration & Growth (300) 

Children, Education, Libraries & Safeguarding (3,394) 

Environment (1,851) 

Housing (300) 

Policy & Resources (3,000) 

Total (17,269) 

 
 
2016/17 – 2019/20 budget proposals – savings and pressures 
 
2.2.6 Successfully meeting the financial challenges ahead requires careful 

planning.  Knowing that Barnet continues to face severe budgetary constraint, 
the Council has carried out a Priorities & Spending Review (PSR) - a detailed, 
12 month process of analysis, engagement and ideas generation.  The PSR 
commenced in summer 2013 and concluded in June this year, with the 
ambition of understanding the level of financial challenge facing the Council 
and its local strategic partners up to 2020 and developing options for 
Committees to consider closing the budget gap. 

 

2.2.7 The PSR represents a considered, rational process for developing a range of 
options for meeting the projected budget gap of £73.5 million between 2016 
and 2020.  The fundamental driver of the PSR was to ensure that decisions 
taken by Committees about how to allocate budgets across different part of 
the Council – and the decisions required to live within those budgets – were 
taken on the basis of a bottom up process informed by engagement and 
consultation rather than allocating budgets and taking decisions in an 
arbitrary, top down way. 
 

2.2.8 The headline figure is a budget gap of further £73.5m for 2016-20.  This 
means that the Council will need to find recurrent baseline savings of £73.5m 
a year by 2019/20.  There are savings proposals that have been agreed of 
£50.6m as listed in Appendix C. This leaves a remaining gap of £22.9m 
which will still need to be identified.  

29



 

 2016/17 
£000 

2017/18 
£000 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

Total 
£’000 

Budget 
Gap 
before 
savings 
and 
pressures 

18,427 14,741 13,194 12,677 59,039 

Proposed 
Pressures 

3,992 3,583 3,382 3,593 14,550 

Proposed 
Savings 

(19,547) (12,269) (10,677) (8,109) (50,632) 

      

Budget 
Gap after 
savings 

2,842 6,055 5,899 8,161 22,987 

 
 
2.2.9 Indicative savings proposals have been agreed by each Theme Committee. 

The combined position for 2016 through to 2020, is set out below: 
 

 

Theme 
Committee 

2016-17 
£’000 

2017-18 
£’000 

2018-19 
£’000 

2019-20 
£’000 

Total 
£’000 

Adults & 
Safeguarding 

(2,656) (3,514) (3,199) (3,238) (12,607) 

Assets, 
Regeneration 
& Growth 

(4,635) (3,553) (1,417) (472) (10,077) 

Children, 
Education, 
Libraries & 
Safeguarding 

(3,795) (2,195) (1,973) (1,912) (9,875) 

Community 
Leadership 

(9)   (843) (852) 

Environment (3,530) (1,410) (800) (100) (5,840) 

Health and 
Wellbeing 
Board 

      

Policy & 
Resources 

(4,922) (1,596) (3,289) (1,544) (11,351) 

Total (19,547) (12,268) (10,678) (8,109) (50,602) 

 
2.2.10 In addition to the savings above, savings of £4.2m have been agreed by the 

Housing Committee which will reduce the costs of services within the Housing 
Revenue Account.  
  

30



2.2.11 In order to achieve its budget savings for 2015/16, the Children, Education, 
Libraries and Safeguarding Committee will consider a final outline business 
case setting out recommendations on the preferred option for the future 
delivery of the Education and Skills service at its meeting on 12th January 
2015.  Three of the four options that are being considered would require the 
establishment of a separate legal entity partly owned by the Council to deliver 
the Education and Skills service.  Policy and Resources Committee has 
responsibility for determining the overall strategic direction of the Council, 
specifically in relation to internal transformation programmes and strategic 
partnerships. This report therefore seeks approval from the Policy and 
Resources Committee for the Children, Education, Libraries and Safeguarding 
Committee to complete the detailed consideration of alternative delivery 
options involving the Council partly owning an arms-length delivery company, 
including agreeing to the commencement of procurement if appropriate.  The 
final decision on new proposals relating to significant partnerships with 
external agencies and local authority companies are reserved to the full 
Council and, as such, the final decision on whether to set up a partly owned 
organisation will be taken by full Council, based on a recommendation from 
the Policy and Resources Committee. 
 

2.2.12 An allowance has been included within the budget envelope for demographic 
growth in line with population projections for Adults and Communities and 
Children’s Services. A small additional pressure is included for additional 
Streetscene costs arising from population growth.  

 
2.2.13 The total pressures for each delivery unit are summarised below: 
 

 2015/16 
£m 

2016/17 
£m 

2017/18 
£m 

2018/19 
£m 

2019/20 
£m 

Adult and 
Communities 

0.8 1.68 2.018 2.014 2.375 

Children’s 
Services 

0.72 1.952 1.565 1.368 1.281 

Street Scene 0 0.36    

Total 1.52 3.992 3.583 3.382 3.656 

 
2.3 Emerging risks over the next two years 

 
2.3.1 There are a number of risks to the Council’s financial position as a result of 

changes in demographics, changes to legislation and other factors.  The 
Council holds reserves and contingency balances to address future risks and 
concerns.  These risks will be kept under review as they materialise. 

 

• Welfare Reform: The Government’s Welfare Reform programme is 
continuing to be rolled out across the country.  The Council is anticipating 
that Universal Credit will begin to be rolled out in Barnet from next spring, 
which will have an impact on housing and social care services (in Adults 
and Communities and Children’s Services).   
 

31



• Social care funding reform and Care and Support Bill: an introduction 
of a cap on contributions towards care costs will be introduced in 2016/17.  
This is likely to increase the pressure on the service.  There will be 
additional funding for social care to local authorities however; at this stage 
it is unclear if this will meet the likely pressure; 

 

• Temporary Accommodation Costs: The cost of temporary 
accommodation above the Local Housing Allowance has had an impact on 
the budgets of the Council and this could continue to increase unless 
alternative strategies are agreed. The Council allocated £1.5m into 
contingency in 2013 for temporary accommodation pressures. 

 

• Children’s Placement Costs: due to recent legislation changes within 
Children’s services means that young adults will continue with foster 
carers until 21 and children who are placed with families now have to 
receive allowances that are the same rate as foster carers.  These will 
increase the financial pressure on services. 
 

• Building Costs as the economy has improved there has been an 
increased demand for building contractors which in turn has led to an 
increase in costs and materials.  Also as Councils in London are building 
more this has meant that framework agreements at time have reached full 
capacity. 

 
2.3.2 No additional budgetary provision has been made for these risk items in the 

MTFS at this stage. However, the Council’s approach to contingency will need 
to continue to be cautious in the event that any of these risks materialise.  
 

 
2.4 Capital programme additions 2015-2020 
 

2.4.1 The MTFS includes provision for future capital expenditure on Council 
priorities through to 2020. These draft budget proposals include capital 
investment plans through to 2020 to ensure that Barnet continues to have the 
infrastructure it needs to be successful.  So for example, sufficient provision 
needs to be made to ensure that sufficient school places exist in Barnet 
through to 2020. Roads and pavements investment is also important; this is a 
key concern for residents as demonstrated by recent residents’ perception 
surveys. The Council also needs to ensure that sufficient provision is made for 
rolling programmes of upgrades to buildings, equipment, IT and other 
investment that supports the delivery of services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



2.4.2 The current programme for each theme committee is as below: 
 

Theme 
Committee 

2015-16 
£’000 

2016-17 
£’000 

2017-18 
£’000 

2018-19 
£’000 

Total 
£’000 

Adults & 
Safeguarding 

1,026    1,026 

Assets, 
Regeneration & 
Growth 

38,066 8,400 10,281 3,050 59,797 

Children, 
Education, 
Libraries & 
Safeguarding 

44,694 28,000 28,400  101,094 

Environment 3,100 3,100   6,200 

Housing 1,970 1,970   3,940 

Policy & 
Resources 

12,883 1,010   13,893 

Total 101,739 42,480 38,681 3,080 185,950 

 
 
2.4.3 The capital programme is funded in a number of different ways, but is 

summarised as follows: 
 
a) The Education Capital Programme is funded by a combination of Council 
allocated resources and government grant; 
 
b) The Housing Capital Programme is funded from available resources within 
the housing revenue account, brought together into the housing investment 
plan; 
 
c) Infrastructure needs and requirements are funded by the Council through 
the infrastructure reserve, which includes New Homes Bonus and Community 
Infrastructure Levy contributions; and 
 
d) Other corporate, highways and environmental requirements which are 
funded mainly through capital receipts and borrowing. 

 
2.4.4 A capital budget envelope was given to each Committee as set out in the 

Policy and Resources Committee paper in September. It was recommended 
that Theme Committees review the capital programme for their respective 
remits and agree any proposed amendments and additions. These additional 
Capital proposals are summarised below for more detail in Appendix D: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

33



Theme 
Committee 

2015-16 
£’000 

2016-17 
£’000 

2017-18 
£’000 

2018-19 
£’000 

2019-
20  
£ 

Total 
£’000 

Children, 
Education, 
Libraries & 
Safeguarding 

(9,020) 2,825 (8,585) 25,400 25,400 36,020 

Environment 15,750 13,350 9,100 8,450 7,525 54,175 

Housing  1,080 1,630 1,680 1,730 6,120 

Policy & 
Resources 

0.750 0.75 1,000 1,000 1,000 4,500 

Total 7,480 18,005 3,145 36,530 35,655 100,815 

 
 
2.5 Review of reserves and contingency 
 
2.5.1 Policy and Resources Committee in July 2014 agreed that a review of 

reserves and contingency be undertaken prior to the draft budget being 
presented back to Committee on 2 December. 

2.5.2 Ultimately, it is the role of the Section 151 officer to recommend a level of 
reserves within the Council’s budget. However, it is important that members 
understand the level of reserves that the Council holds, and ensure that the 
reserves policy fits in line with the organisational strategy. 

2.5.3The Council holds general unringfenced and not earmarked annual reserves of 
£15m to deal with any in year and unplanned pressures.  This is equivalent to 
5% of annual expenditure and this amount is in line with Audit and Regulatory 
good practice.   

2.5.4 Corporate earmarked reserves have been set aside by the Council for a 
variety of purposes. Principally these are for unforeseen risks. The Council 
could, should it wish, change the basis of the allocation of these reserves. Any 
such change would be made by Council in setting the budget and would be on 
the advice of the Chief Finance Officer.  

2.5.5 The infrastructure reserve holds New Homes Bonus, the Community 
Infrastructure Levy and the Council’s share of profits from the Inglis 
Consortium. The Council is not legally bound to spend this money on 
infrastructure, but there is an expectation that it is used for this purpose, and 
the Council has a significant infrastructure burden across the borough which it 
must service. 

2.5.6 Ring fenced reserves include money that is ring fenced by statute and can 
only be used for their designated purpose (such as schools and public health 
balances), funding held to service a long term PFI contract, and also funding 
held on behalf of other organisations such as the North London Sub Region. 

2.5.7 A review of reserves has been undertaken. In undertaking this review, a 
comparison has been made to levels of reserves held by other boroughs 
across London, and also a review has been undertaken of each specific 

34



reserve. In terms of comparison across London, the following table sets this 
out: 

Local Authority Total 

Earmarked & 

Unallocated 

Reserves 

£'000 

Net Revenue 

Expenditure  

£'000 

Total Reserves as 

% of Net Revenue 

Expenditure 

City of London 175,883 90,842 194% 

Kensington & Chelsea 185,023 169,711 109% 

Greenwich 232,397 234,368 99% 

Hackney 197,316 261,507 75% 

Wandsworth 122,329 188,730 65% 

Bromley 98,730 176,698 56% 

Hounslow 93,072 174,929 53% 

Tower Hamlets 142,526 269,931 53% 

Merton 69,603 135,299 51% 

Bexley 74,067 148,396 50% 

Redbridge 91,061 188,061 48% 

Camden 124,509 261,625 48% 

Westminster 90,752 194,757 47% 

Hammersmith & Fulham 76,468 166,025 46% 

Brent 98,651 228,780 43% 

Havering 63,187 150,358 42% 

Ealing 103,665 250,586 41% 

Sutton 50,103 122,204 41% 

Southwark 116,964 291,307 40% 

Waltham Forest 74,625 194,591 38% 

Barnet 91,215 243,778 37% 

Barking & Dagenham 52,045 144,774 36% 

Richmond upon Thames 52,274 146,282 36% 

Haringey 82,934 237,579 35% 

Enfield 81,679 247,313 33% 

Islington 77,280 245,805 31% 

Lambeth 92,642 300,330 31% 

Lewisham 72,218 259,656 28% 

Croydon 65,124 258,677 25% 

Kingston Upon Thames 28,065 120,175 23% 

Hillingdon 41,885 181,669 23% 

Newham 58,482 261,089 22% 

Harrow 26,355 163,888 16% 

 

2.5.8 A list of all Council reserves, and commentary, is included in Appendix G. 
The outcome confirms that the Council is holding an appropriate amount in 
reserves. It also proposes that the service development reserve be merged 
with the transformation reserve. 

35



2.5.9 A review has also been undertaken of contingency balances. This has 
confirmed that the Council holds an appropriate level of contingency given the 
risks and pressures identified in this report.  The current contingency balance 
sits at £4.981m. Of this, £0.6m is held for pressures in respect of temporary 
accommodation, £2m in respect of welfare reform pressures, £0.251m in 
respect of inflationary pressures, and £2.13m for general budgetary risks.  In 
light of potential future costs of the implementation of the Care Act and the 
remaining budget gap it is recommended that contingency balances remain at 
this level. 

2.6 Transformation programme 
 
Programme approach 

2.6.1 Delivery of the outcomes set through Corporate Plan and the savings required 
by the MTFS will be achieved by putting in place a transformation programme.  
At the heart of this approach is an invest to save model, achieving cumulative 
benefits of £124m by 2020.   

2.6.2 The delivery of a transformation programme will require additional funding to 
be allocated to the Transformation Reserve, with an expectation that the 
programmes and projects achieve significant financial benefits for the 
taxpayer as well as delivery of the desired outcomes. The Council has a 
strong track record in achieving efficiency savings and will continue to deliver 
continuous improvement within services.  However, the size of the challenge 
requires additional skilled capacity and delivery arrangements, beyond current 
business as usual operations. Between 2010 and 2020, the Council’s 
spending power will have reduced by 40%, and the draft budget and 
Corporate Plan set out a wide range of changes and reforms.  A programme 
team will be established, funding backfill to enable Council service leads to 
have capacity to design and implement changes, provide project management 
capacity, and ensure that effective legal, commercial and technical support is 
in place.  Where ever possible, our approach will be to use fixed-term salaried 
posts to provide value for money for taxpayers.   

2.6.3 The successful delivery of the transformation programme will achieve savings 
of £44.4m over the duration of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), 
with an estimated cost of £16.1m.  This gives a return of investment of close 
to £3 saved from the base budget for every pound spent from the 
Transformation Reserve.  For illustrative purposes, the estimated cumulative 
saving over the period of the MTFS is £124m. 

2.6.4 The Council already has an established model for ensuring projects are 
developed and delivered in an effective way, with business cases and 
recommendations presented to Committees at set points.  This approach, 
reviewing projects at set gateways, testing and refining business cases is 
intended to ensure that the Council delivers the desired benefits and 
outcomes, with appropriate funding in place.  We will continue to review and 
challenge the delivery of all projects using a risk-based approach.  Larger, 
more complex or more innovative projects will be subject to internal audit and, 
where required, external gateway reviews.    

36



2.6.5 The transformation programme is planned to operate over the medium-term.  
At this stage, the Council is identifying the anticipated funding requirements to 
enable the programme to progress.  Each project will be subject to review and 
challenge, with business cases reported to Committees at relevant points in 
time - with a strong focus on ensuring that the costs are proportionate with the 
benefits of delivering the project.  

2.6.6 The initial estimate of the cost to the Transformation Reserve is based upon:  

• The confirmed costs of projects which have already been initiated through 
Committees 

• The estimated costs of later phases of projects which are currently in 
progress 

• An indication of areas of work which are within the Council’s Corporate 
Plan and Commissioning Plans but have yet to be developed into projects, 
with an estimated budget allocation to enable delivery   

2.6.7 Each project will set out clear benefits, related to the delivery of the Corporate 
Plan and MTFS.   

2.6.8 This is an on-going programme and the content and structure of the 
programme has been developed to reflect this.  A further iteration of the 
programme will be developed in early 2015, following consultation and 
engagement on the Corporate Plan, budget and MTFS – to ensure the 
programme is enables and delivers the required outcomes.  Progress against 
relevant programmes and projects will be reported to Performance and 
Contract Monitoring Committee each quarter.  

Use of the Transformation Reserve  
 
2.6.9 The Council has put in place a Transformation Reserve to enable successful 

delivery of required changes. The majority of savings identified and agreed 
within the budget for 2015/16 have already been enabled through projects 
delivered during the current financial year.  

 
2.6.10  A projected balance on the transformation reserve is expected to be 

approximately £6m at the end of 2014/15. The total funding required for future 
projects is £16m, so the balance of £10m will be transferred to the 
transformation reserve from the service development reserve. An initial draw 
down of £2.2m is requested in line with the table below, and the remaining 
balance will be earmarked for future projects. These drawdowns will be 
requested when projects reach the appropriate gateway. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37



Funding request Amount  

 
To effect drawdowns requested 
by Children’s, Education and 
Libraries Committee (September 
2015 and October 2015) and full 
Council (November 2014).  
 

 
- Libraries Strategy:  £200,350 
- Early Years:  £345,290 
- Nurseries:  £70,000 
- Education & Skills:  £50,000 

 
Sub-total: £665,640 
 

 
To continue to deliver projects 
achieving savings in 2015/16  
 

 
- Unified Reward: £450,000 
- Streetscene:  £650,000 
- Housing improvement and 

efficiency:  £150,000 
- Banking procurement:  £115,000 
- Programme support:  £250,000 
- Smarter Working:  £250,000 

 
Sub-total: £1,505,000 
 

 
 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
3.1 The Council is legally obliged to set a budget each year which must balance 

service expenditure against available resources. It is also a key element of 
effective financial management for the Council to put together a financial 
forward plan to ensure that it is well placed to meet future challenges, 
particularly in the context of cuts to local authority funding, demographic 
increases and legislation changes.  

 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 
4.1 This report sets out a range of options across the Council’s remit to meet the 

budget challenge. This includes proposals for workforce savings, as well as 
generating income from new business. Alternatives to this could include more 
significant cuts to services the Council provides, but these are not included in 
this report. 
 

5. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

5.1 If this report is agreed, these budget proposals will be incorporated into the 
Council’s draft budget proposals for 2015-20, which will be considered by 
Policy and Resources Committee in February 2015 and Full Council in March 
2015. The Commissioning Plan will form the basis of the Policy and 
Resources Committee future strategic work programme including future 
business cases to deliver savings. 

  

38



 
6. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  

 
6.1 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, 

Sustainability) 
 

6.1.1 In addition to continued spending reductions, demographic change and the 
resulting pressure on services poses a significant challenge to the Council. 
The organisation is facing significant budget reductions at the same time as 
the population is increasing, particularly in the young and very old population 
cohorts. Given that nearly two thirds of the Council’s budget is spent on Adult 
Social Care and Children’s Services, this poses a particular challenge as 
these services are predominantly ‘demand led’. 

 
6.2 Revenue 
 
6.2.1 The MTFS (Appendix B) sets out the £73.5m savings target for the Council 

based on a number of assumptions listed above. 
 
6.2.2 The revenue budget proposals plan (Appendix C) will enable the Council to 

meet its £73.5m savings target as set out in the MTFS (Appendix B).  These 
budgets will be formally agreed each year, after appropriate consultation and 
equality impact assessments, as part of Council budget setting, and therefore 
could be subject to change. 

 
6.3 Capital 
 
6.3.1 Policy and Resources Committee on the 21st July 2014 agreed the process 

for Theme Committees to review the capital programme and the development 
of capital programme priorities for the period 2015-2020. 

 
6.3.2 As part of that process, Policy and Resources Committee allocated funding for 

capital investment to be reviewed and prioritised by the Theme Committee 
including any amendments and additions. 

 
6.3.3 The allocation of the additional Capital which was agreed by Committees is 

attached (Appendix D). 
 

6.4 Staffing 
 

6.4.1 The budget proposals in this report will have an impact on staffing across the 
organisation. A number of budget proposals will result in a reduction in posts 
in the organisation. For 2015/16, this impact is set out in Appendix C to the 
report, and is summarised as follows: 

 

 

 

39



 FTE reduction 

Adults and Communities 6 

Family Services 28 

Streetscene 29 

Commissioning Group 4 

Total 67 

 

6.4.2 The savings in Adults and Communities relate to a review of back office 
support in the delivery unit. The savings in Family Services relate to the cross-
service restructure which is currently in progress. The savings in the 
commissioning group relate to review which is currently in progress. Savings 
in streetscene relate to changes in the delivery of street cleansing, waste 
route optimisation and the internalisation of fleet 
 

6.4.3 In addition to the above, an options appraisal for the future delivery of 
Education and Skills services is currently being undertaken, the preferred 
option which could result in staff TUPE to another provider. Future budget 
savings for 2016 onwards will be reviewed for the impact on staffing at the 
appropriate time following public consultation and committee decisions.  
 

6.4.4  For 2015/16, consultation with staff will take place in accordance with the 
Council’s HR policies and are being led by the respective delivery unit. A 
report on the full impact of budget proposals on staff, which will trigger staff 
consultation on the budget package as a whole, will go to general functions 
committee in December. 
 

6.4.5 Proposals once determined could potentially have workforce implications 
which may result in redundancies. The Council will seek to mitigate 
redundancies through the redeployment process and a reduction in agency 
usage. Any substantial changes are subject to consultation as set out in the 
Council’s Managing Organisational Change Policy and will be subject to 
consultation with Staff and Trade Unions and equality impact assessments 
before implementation. 

 
7 Legal and Constitutional References 

 
7.1.1 All proposals emerging from the business planning process must be 

considered in terms of the Council’s legal powers and obligations, including its 
overarching statutory duties such as the Public Sector Equality Duty. 

 
7.1.2 Constitution Responsibilities for Functions Annex A sets out the terms of the 

Policy and Resources Committee. 
 

 

40



7.1.3 Any decision made should be made after appropriate consultation and 
consideration of equality impacts. 
 

7.1.4 Decision makers should have due regard to the public sector duty in making 
their decisions.  The equalities duties are continuing duties they are not duties 
to secure a particular outcome.  Consideration of the duties should proceed 
the decision.  It is important that decision makers have regard to the statutory 
grounds in the light of all available material. 

 
Consultation 

 

7.1.5 As a matter of public law the duty to consult with regards to proposals to vary, 
reduce or withdraw services will arise in 4 circumstances: 
 

• Where there is a statutory requirement in the relevant legislative 
framework; 

• Where the practice has been to consult or where a policy document states 
the Council will consult then the Council must comply with its own practice 
or policy;  

• Exceptionally, where the matter is so important that there is a legitimate 
expectation of consultation and 

• Where consultation is required to complete an equalities impact 
assessment. 
 

7.1.6 Regardless of whether the Council has a duty to consult, if it chooses to 
consult, such consultation must be carried out fairly. In general, a consultation 
can only be considered as proper consultation if: 

 

• Comments are genuinely invited at the formative stage; 

• The consultation documents include sufficient reasons for the proposal to 
allow those being consulted to be properly informed and to give an 
informed response; 

• There is adequate time given to the consultees to consider the proposals;  

• There is a mechanism for feeding back the comments and those 
comments are conscientiously taken into account by the decision maker / 
decision making body when making a final decision.  

• The degree of specificity with which, in fairness, the public authority should 
conduct its consultation exercise may be influenced by the identity of those 
whom it is consulting and  

• The consultation is clear on the extent to which alternatives and discarded 
options are required to be consulted on  
 

7.1.7 Finally there will be staff consultation about these proposals in compliance 
with s188 of the Trade Union & Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.  
The Council may be required to publish a statutory notice to the Secretary of 
State and undertake consultation should we reach the minimum thresholds for 
potential redundancies resulting from these proposals.  

 
 

41



Public Sector Equality Duty 
 

7.1.8 The general duty on public bodies is set out in section 149 of the Act. 
 

7.1.9 A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to: 

 
(a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

(b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and 

(c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

7.1.10 Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between 
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do 
not share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to: 
 
(a) Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 

(b) Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 
and 

(c) Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionately low. 

 
7.1.11 The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different 

from the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to 
take account of disabled persons' disabilities. 
 

7.1.12 Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 
involves having due regard, in particular, the need to: 

(a) Tackle prejudice, and 

(b) Promote understanding. 

7.1.13 Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons 
more favourably than others but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct 
that would otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act. 
 

7.1.14 The relevant protected characteristics are: 

• Age; 

• Disability; 

• Gender reassignment;  

• Pregnancy and maternity; 

42



• Race; 

• Religion or belief; 

• Sex; and 

• Sexual orientation. 
 

7.1.15 It also covers marriage and civil partnership with regard to eliminating 
discrimination. 
 

7.1.16 Through the process of finalising the budget and Corporate Plan, the Council 
will need to satisfy itself that these requirements have been adhered to in 
formulating the proposals referred to in this report. 
 

 
8 Risk Management 

 
There is a risk that the savings and efficiencies proposed for the 2015/16 
budget and MTFS to 2020 may have a negative impact on some groups of 
residents when combined with the impact of welfare reform and increasing 
cost of living. The Council has put in place support for people who will be 
affected by welfare reform, in particular measures to  support people into work 
and to stay in work, and through funding support such as Discretionary 
Housing and Crisis Fund payments. In addition, the Council has also sought 
to bear down on Council Tax since 2010.Further analysis of budget proposals 
will be undertaken following the budget consultation to consider the 
cumulative impact of changes and to draw this to the attention of decision 
makers 
 

8.1.1 As the Council continues to transform and reduce expenditure, there is a 
continuing risk of challenge.   Any decision (for example reductions to service 
budgets or service redesign) is potentially open to challenge. Whilst no public 
body is immune from challenge the risk can be significantly reduced by 
adopting best business planning practice, an inclusive approach to 
engagement, a clear understanding of the impact of proposed changes, 
consideration of mitigations and monitoring of outcomes. To mitigate the risk 
and to provide a robust response in the event of any challenge, it is important 
to demonstrate that the Council has complied with all relevant statutory duties 
in budget planning and that processes have been conducted in a consistent, 
rigorous and open minded way, carried out a full consultation and taken the 
consultation results into consideration before making the final decisions. 
 

8.1.2 The Government has already announced indicative local government funding 
allocations for 2015/16, and it is clear that future funding reductions will 
continue beyond that point. Current modelling suggests that this is likely to 
equate to further annual reductions of between £15m and £20m to the 
Council’s budget. For this reason, it is important that the Council continues to 
be prudent with its use of reserves and contingency to militate against future 
cuts. 

 
 
 

43



9 Equalities and Diversity  
 

9.1.1 The Equality Act 2010 and The Public Sector Equality Duty outlined in that 
statute (See paragraph 7 of this paper on legal issues and the equalities 
section of this report) require Members to satisfy themselves that equality 
impact considerations have been fully taken into account in all proposals 
emerging from the finance and business planning process, together with any 
mitigating factors. At Policy and Resources Committee on 10 June, Members 
discussed the concept of fairness and advised that Theme Committees 
‘should be mindful of fairness and in particular, of disadvantaged communities 
when making their recommendations on savings proposals’ 

 
9.1.2 The Council’s aim – particularly during these financially challenging times – is 

to make sure that all residents from our diverse communities share the 
opportunities of growth and to ensure that the decisions we take do not 
disproportionately impact on people who may experience disadvantage.  This 
includes groups with protected characteristics across the borough.  
 

9.1.3 As with last year, the Council will consider the cumulative impact of the budget 
proposals on the 9 characteristics protected by Equality Act 2010, together 
with the cumulative impact on other areas of disadvantage which were 
highlighted in last year’s assessment of cumulative equalities impact of 
budget proposals.  This includes those on low wage and benefits, people who 
are unemployed, adult dependent and young carers people with particular 
disabilities for example learning and mental health difficulties, particular 
geographic areas of disadvantage which might mean they face additional 
barriers 
 

9.1.4 The Council’s aim is to provide equality of access and opportunity by knowing 
about differences and responding to different needs so that all our citizens 
can make equal choices and have fair life chances in Barnet.  The Council’s 
commitment to fairness is set out in our Equal Opportunities Policy and our 
Strategic Equalities Objective - that citizens will be treated equally, with 
understanding and respect; have equal opportunity with other citizens; and 
receive quality services provided to Best Value principles. This will be 
delivered through the Corporate Plan, Theme Committee Commissioning 
Plans and Priorities and Delivery Unit and Corporate Strategies. 
 

9.1.5 Growing diversity in the demographic makeup of the borough’s population 
including growth in both young and older people, has been taken into account 
in Barnet’s approach to determining both the corporate strategy and service 
responses in this paper so that we reflect the aspirations and contributions of 
current residents   
 

9.1.6 Similarly, all human resources implications will be managed in accordance 
with the Council’s Managing Organisational Change policy that supports the 
Council’s Human Resources Strategy and meets statutory equalities duties 
and current employment legislation. Full equality impact assessments have 
been completed on the outsourced projects to ensure that section 149 of the 
Equalities Act is complied with. 
 

44



9.1.7 Since January 2014, in response to organisation change, including the set-up 
of the Customer and Support Group and Re, the Developmental and 
Regulatory Services, the Council has taken action to strengthen it’s approach 
to Equalities. The action taken ensures that roles and responsibilities are clear 
and allows a common approach to equalities to be taken across internal and 
external Delivery Units.  The Council’s Equality Policy has been refreshed and 
guidance provided to Delivery Units, through workshops and updates to 
intranet and internet sites.  An equalities briefing was organised for Members 
and the Council published an Annual Report on  equalities in June 2014. 

 
9.1.8 As in previous years, the focus of the 2015/16 proposals has been to make 

savings as far as possible through efficiencies and to target limited financial 
resources to the services that deliver the best outcomes for residents. 
According to the budget templates for 2015/16, 93% of the proposed savings 
will come from efficiencies. 
 

9.1.9 At this stage of the budget planning process for 2015/16 savings and MTFS 
savings to 2020, Delivery Units have conducted a preliminary high level 
review of the equalities impact of initial proposals. Some budget savings are 
continuing from previous years and a small proportion are new.  

 
9.1.10 To meet the requirement for Members outlined at paragraph 5.1 Delivery 

Units will review  their equality analyses as proposals  develop and in 
response to consultation feedback. Savings that are continuing from previous 
years will require on-going analysis and new savings will require initial 
analysis. The council will take a consistent approach to assessing the 
equalities impact of their proposals including any cumulative impact on any 
particular group and any mitigating actions that can be put in place and to 
refine equality assessments as proposals develop.  
 

9.1.11 The majority of EIAs have been completed and updated in relation to 2015/16 
proposals and the detail will be included in the final budget report to Policy & 
Resources Committee and Full Council.  The ‘people’ services - Children’s 
Services and Adults and Communities - are amongst the Delivery Units 
conducting EIAs on proposals that will impact residents.  Of the EIAs 
submitted for 15/16, none are showing significant negative impact.  There are 
8 EIAs for Adults savings proposals for 2015/16.   Of these 3 are showing 
significant positive impacts from support for independent living for younger 
adults with disabilities, supporting people who live outside the borough to 
settle in their chosen area and younger adults mental health 
arrangements;   3 are showing minimal positive impact, the community offer, 
working with leisure services to reduce dependency on specialist day care 
provision and support for carers; 1 is showing impact not known for back 
office staff reductions and two savings proposals from renegotiation of 
existing contracts and 1 EIA is showing minimal negative impact from 
changes to the model for Floating Support. 
 

9.1.12 The Children’s Service EIA for early years is showing a minimal positive 
impact from a model that aims to deliver improved outcomes and for the 
Education and Skills EIA. This will be updated before Policy & Resources 

45



Committee in February and the final budget decisions are taken at Full 
Council in March.  
 

 
9.1.13 An EIA is required to outline the impact of the savings efficiency for  SEN 

transport for children.  This is currently being prepared by Children’s Services 
and will come back to Policy and Resources Committee in February 2015. 
 

9.1.14 Mitigations for negative impacts are listed in equality Action Plans for relevant 
proposals. 

 
 

10 CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT 
 
10.1.1 Budget proposals for 2015/16 and the indicative MTFS to 2020 will be subject 

formal consultation before final decisions are taken at Full Council in March 
2015. 
 

10.1.2 This report also sets out proposals from the Council’s high-level strategic 
objectives – to form the basis of a new Corporate Plan from 2015 - 2020, 
Commissioning Plans for 2015-20 and an indicative MTFS which sets out 
indicative plans which go a long way to meeting the meet the forecast budget 
deficit of £73.5m by 2020. Individual proposals for future years included in the 
MTFS will be subject were necessary to full consultation and equalities impact 
assessments at the appropriate time before they are cast into the annual 
budget. 
 

10.1.3 The Council is committed to involving residents, businesses and service users 
in shaping the borough and the services they receive. Consultation and 
engagement is one of the key ways the council interacts with and involves 
local communities and residents, providing them with opportunities to: 

• Gain greater awareness and understanding of what the council does 

• Voice their views and understand how they can get involved 

• Feed in their views to the democratic decision making process. 
 
10.1.4 The consultation aims to set a new approach to business planning and 

engagement by consulting on the combined package of the Corporate Plan; 
Commissioning Priorities; and budget. The consultation aims to; 

• Create a stronger link between strategy, priorities and resources 

• Place a stronger emphasis on commissioning as a driver of the business 
planning process. 

• Focus on how the Council will use its resources to achieve its 
Commissioning Plans. 

 
Preliminary consultation 
 
10.1.5 The Council has already undertaken a range of consultation to inform the 

Council’s development of the Corporate Plan strategic priorities and 5 year 

46



Commissioning Plans, along with indicative savings proposals to inform the 
MTFS, setting the scene for upcoming consultation. 

 
10.1.6 The preliminary consultation was designed to; 

 
a. Inform the Priorities and Spending Review by gathering insight to 

explore where savings and income generation can be made across the 
Council 

b. Understand residents’ views of Council priorities and valued services  
c. Gain an in-depth understanding of stakeholders’ priorities and how they 

would want the Council to approach the budget and allocation of 
resources over the next five years. 
 

10.1.7 The table below outlines the phases of the preliminary engagement; 
 

Phase Date Summary 

Phase 1: Setting out 
the challenge 

Summer 

2013 
 

The Council forecast that its budget would 
reduce by a further £72m between  2016/17 
and 2019/20, setting  the scene for the PSR 
consultation 

Phase 2: PSR 
consultation to inform 
development of 
options 
 

October 2013 

- June 2014 
 

• Engagement through Citizen's Panel 
Workshops which  focused on stakeholder 
priorities and how they would want the 
Council to approach the Priorities and 
Spending Review 

• An open ‘Call for Evidence’ asking residents 
to feedback ideas on the future of public 
services in Barnet. 

Phase 3: 
Engagement through 
Committees 

Engagement 
through 
Committees 
 

• Focus on developing Commissioning Plans 
and MTFS proposals for each of the 6 
committees 

• Engagement through Committee meetings. 

 
10.1.8 Consultation through this period has included staff briefings with 1,400 staff 

engaged through over 20 briefings during September 2014. 
 
Formal consultation 
 
10.1.9 The preliminary engagement has informed the development of the Council’s 

budget proposals, to be put forward for consultation. This phase will be split 
into three strands: 

  

• General budget consultation on the 2015/16 budget 

• Service specific 2015/16 proposals that have not yet been consulted on 

• Corporate Plan Priorities, and Theme Committee Commissioning Plans, 
and the overall MTFS from 2015 - 2020. 

 

47



10.1.10 To allow for an 8-9 week budget consultation, Consultation will begin 
after Full Council on 17 December 2014 and conclude on 11 February 2015, 
with an interim consultation report taken to Policy & Resources Committee in 
February 2015 and the final report – reflecting any variations – taken to Full 
Council in March 2015.  

.  

General budget consultation on the 2015/16 budget 
 
10.1.11 The 2015/16 budget consultation will focus on the overall size and 

individual components of the 2015/16 budget in general terms. 
 

10.1.12 Residents will be invited to give their views through an online survey. 
Also as part of the Council’s statutory duty to consult with National Non 
Domestic Rate Payers (NNDRs), letters will be sent out to all the council’s 
NNDRs inviting them to take part in the online consultation. 
 

10.1.13 In terms of service specific consultations the Council has a duty to 
consult with services in a number of different situations including where 
proposals to significantly vary, reduce or withdraw services.  Consultation is 
also needed in other circumstances, for example to identify the impact of 
proposals or to assist with complying with the Council’s equality duties. In 
regard to the 2015/16 budget there will be specific service consultations 
including Education and Skills: Special educational needs transport savings 

 

Staff Consultation 
 
10.1.14 There will be staff consultation about these proposals in compliance 

with s188 of the Trade Union & Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
This collective and individual staff consultation will take place following GFC 
on the 3rd December. 

 
Corporate Plan Priorities, Commissioning Plans, and Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS) Consultation 
 
10.1.15 The Corporate Plan priorities, Commissioning Plans and MTFS 

consultation will focus on the Council’s high-level strategic priorities, forming 
the basis of the revised Corporate Plan for 2015-20 as well as each individual 
Committee’s Commissioning Plans, which sets out the shape of the 
Committee’s budget to 2020. . The consultation will use a mixed method 
approach of an online survey, face to face engagement and a series of 
workshops which will be targeted at a demographically representative sample 
of Barnet residents to understand the views of our different communities. 
 

10.1.16 There will be further consultation on individual savings proposals 
outlined as part of the MTFS when they are cast into budgets in future years, 
before final decisions are taken. Consultation will be used to identify the 
impact of proposals in-depth and to assist with complying with the Council’s 
equality duties. 

 

48



11 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Relevant previous decisions are indicated in the table below. 

Item Decision Link 

Corporate Plan 
priorities and Medium 
Term Financial 
Strategy 2015-16 – 
June 2014 

To approve 5 year 
Commissioning Plan 
and, proposals for 
meeting 
financial targets set out 
in the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) 

 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieDe
cisionDetails.aspx?AIId=7360 

Finance and 
Business Planning – 
Capital Programme 
and Review of 
Reserves 

Agree the process for 
theme Committees to 
review the capital 
programme and the 
development of capital 
programme priorities 
for the period 2015-20.  
Agree the process for 
the review revenue 
reserves which will 
come back to this 
committee in 
December 2014 
 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieDe
cisionDetails.aspx?AIId=8075 

Education and Skills 
– Future Delivery of 
Services 

 

Children, Education, 
Libraries and 
Safeguarding 
Committee note that 
the draft outline 
business case will be 
referred to the Policy 
and Resources 
Committee for 
approval of the 
consideration to set up 
a separate legal entity 
to deliver education 
and skills services 

http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieDe
cisionDetails.aspx?AIId=7861 

 

 

49



50

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix A1 - Adults & Safeguarding Committee - 

Commissioning Plan 2015 - 2020 

1. The context for the development of this plan.    

 

Public services in England during the decade 2010-2020 face an unprecedented 

challenge as the country deals with the impact of the financial crisis of 2008, 

alongside the opportunities and challenges that come from our changing and ageing 

population.   

Despite a growing economy, the UK budget deficit is forecast to be £75bn at the 

2015 General Election, with cuts set to continue to the end of the decade no matter 

who is in Government. At the same time, demand on local services continues to 

increase, driven by a growing population, particularly the number of young and older 

residents. We therefore must plan for the fact that austerity will affect all parts of the 

public sector to the end of the decade and that we will not be able to meet increasing 

levels of demand by simply doing more of what we are currently doing.   

The public too, does not expect simply more of the same. Expectations of local 

services are increasing, advances in customer services and technology provide the 

ability to interact with services 24/7. Local residents as a result expect better 

services and more prompt responses from the Council. However satisfaction with the 

Council and local services remains relatively high in Barnet, and over recent years 

resident satisfaction with a number of local services has increased, despite these 

challenges. 

In thinking about how the Council lives within its means, the Council needs to 

recognise that residents are also facing wider financial pressures, from high energy 

bills, increasing housing costs, continued wage restraint, and benefit reforms, so the 

ability of many households to absorb the impact of reductions from public sector 

funding through increased financial contributions is constrained.  

We can however expect over the duration of this plan that significant opportunities 

will flow from Barnet being part of a growing and arguably booming London 

economy. Unemployment levels have fallen by a third in the last year, the number of 

16-18 year old ‘NEETs’ in Barnet is, at 2.3%, the fourth lowest in England and fewer 

Barnet residents are claiming out-of-work benefits than the London average. This 

plan needs to ensure that all residents of Barnet can benefit from the opportunities of 

growth, whether through new employment opportunities, increased investment in 

infrastructure such as roads and schools, or enjoying new neighbourhoods and 

places in which all people can live and age well. 

 

 

51



 

 

Barnet Council’s Overarching Approach to meeting the 2020 Challenge 

The Council’s Corporate Plan sets the framework for each of the Commissioning 

Committees’ five year commissioning plans. Whether the plans are covering services 

for vulnerable residents or about universal services such as the environment and 

waste, there are a number of core and shared principles which underpin the 

commissioning outcomes.   

The first is a focus on fairness.  

Fairness for the Council is about striking the right balance between fairness towards 

the more frequent users of services and fairness to the wider taxpayer and making 

sure all residents from our diverse communities - young, old, disabled, and 

unemployed - benefit from the opportunities of growth.  

The Council must ‘get the basics right’ so people can get on with their lives – 

disposing of waste, keeping streets clean, allowing people to transact in more 

convenient ways, resolving issues promptly in the most cost effective way.  

We must shift our approach to earlier intervention and demand management. 

Managing the rising demand on services requires a step change in the Council’s 

approach to early intervention and prevention. Across the public sector, we need to 

work with residents to prevent problems rather than treating the symptoms when 

they materialise.  

The second is a focus on responsibility.  

Continue to drive out efficiencies to deliver more with less. The Council will drive out 

efficiencies through a continued focus on workforce productivity; bearing down on 

contract and procurement costs and using assets more effectively. All parts of the 

system need to play their part in helping to achieve better outcomes with reduced 

resources.  

Change its relationships with residents, with residents working with the Council to 

reduce the impact of funding cuts to services. In certain circumstances, residents will 

also need to take on more personal and community responsibility for keeping Barnet 

a great place particularly if there is not a legal requirement for the Council to provide 

services. In some cases users will be required to pay more for certain services as 

the Council prioritises the resources it has available.  

The third is a focus on opportunity.  

Prioritise regeneration, growth and maximising income – Regeneration revitalises 

communities and provides residents and businesses with places to live and work. 

Growing the local tax base and generating more income through growth and other 

sources makes the Council less reliant on government funding; helps offset the 

52



 

 

impact of service cuts and allows the Council to invest in the future infrastructure of 

the Borough.  

Redesign services and deliver them differently through a range of models and 

providers - The Council has no pre-determined view about how services should be 

designed and delivered. The Council will work with providers from across the public, 

private and voluntary sectors to provide services which are more integrated, through 

a range of models most appropriate to the service and the outcomes that we want to 

achieve.  

Planning ahead is crucial - The Council dealt with the first wave of austerity by 

planning ahead and focusing on the longer-term, thus avoiding short-term cuts - the 

Council is continuing this approach by extending its plans to 2020. 

Adults and Safeguarding Committee Commissioning Plan 

Adults and Safeguarding Committee agreed the priorities and key outcomes which 

will inform the 5 year Commissioning Plan at the Committee meeting on 30 July 

2014. This Commissioning Plan outlines how the London Borough of Barnet will 

manage the key changes required by the Care Act, health and social care integration 

at a time of rising demand, increased expectations and shrinking resources. In order 

to allow for the Council to live within its means, the Adults and Safeguarding 

Committee has been required to identify £12.6m of savings through to 2020.   

 

In addition, during the period of this plan, the Care Act 2014 will be implemented. 

The Care Act represents the most significant reform of care and support in more 

than 60 years, putting people and their carers in control of their care and support 

together with a Central Government commitment to make joined-up health and care 

the norm by 2018. For the first time, the Act will put a limit on the amount anyone will 

have to pay towards the costs of their care as well as giving carers new rights to 

support that put them on the same footing as the people they care for. These two 

significant and welcomed changes will lead to an increased demand for adult social 

care support over and above the increased levels of demand from demographic 

pressures referred to above. At the time of setting this plan, the Council has 

estimated that the costs of implementing the Care Act during the duration of this plan 

could amount to an additional £7.8m recurring commitment by 2020.  

 

The key priorities and outcomes reflect the corporate ambition to ensure that the 

London Borough of Barnet focuses its resources on those most in need whilst 

supporting people to help themselves as much as possible. In addition the priorities 

and outcomes are in keeping with those of local and national policy, legislation and 

feedback from service users and carers.  

 

The Committee’s vision is that all adults will be given the opportunity to live well, age 

well and stay well. This means that all adults will feel safe and be safe in their 

53



 

 

environment. Financial constraints should not hinder the delivery of good outcomes 

for all but to achieve this Barnet’s community will need to continue to play an 

important part, creating responsive and responsible neighbourhoods and 

communities in which vulnerable adults can live well and with personal autonomy, 

meeting principles of fairness through a targeting of resources on those that need it 

most. In order to support our growing and ageing population we will need a stronger 

focus on prevention and early intervention with a reshaped specialist care offer for 

those that need it. The commissioning intentions described below support this vision.  

 

In summary we need to redesign the current offer and find new ways to reduce the 

demand for adult social care through enabling people to live healthier, full and active 

lives and to take responsibility for their future as they plan to age well. For those that 

need care and support, we need to find ways to improve the quality  of services 

whilst reducing overarching care packages costs through more creative and 

personalised support plans, improved carer support, use of new technologies and 

integrating care and health services where this delivers the best outcomes. As the 

Borough grows, the new communities created need to be inclusive for adults with 

disabilities and support residents to age well in Barnet. 

 

Proposals within the Commissioning Plan to address the challenges, reshape 

services and deliver the savings for services within this committee area over the next 

five years include: 

 

Alternative ways to deliver services, in partnership with other organisations 

and residents 

● Integrating care and health services where this delivers the best outcomes. 

● Introduce a 0-25 disabilities service to better bring together health, care and 

education and support the development of more effective relationships of trust 

with families.  

● Better support for individuals with mental health issues to retain or regain 

employment and suitable housing that supports their well-being. 

● Stronger integration with customer services and public health to help people 

better self-manage and plan to age well. 

 

Implementing the Care Act 

● Re-modelling our approach to assessment and support planning to meet the 

increase in demand predicted to arise from the new cap on care costs. 

● Improved advice and advocacy services with a greater availability of helpful 

information to support ageing well. 

● Greater support to enable carers to continue in their caring role. 

 

Going further with personalisation – developing more creative approaches to 

meeting care needs 

● More creative and personalised support plans. 

54



 

 

● Increased use of new support and enabling technologies. 

● A shift from specialist segregated services to community settings.  

● Support to remain at home for longer. 

 

Focus of efficiency, effectiveness, and impact 

● Challenge all services we commission, our own workforce and our partners to 

evidence the impact they have.  

● Explore alternative delivery models for adult social care to maximise the 

Council’s chance of achieving the above. 

 

None of this is easy and will require the Council to work more closely than ever with 

the residents, the voluntary and community sector, NHS, Department for Work and 

Pensions, Public Health and housing.  The overarching priorities and key outcomes 

for the Adults and Safeguarding Committee commissioning plan which were agreed 

on the 30 July 2014 are as follows. 

 
Barnet’s Adult Social Care Outcomes 2015-2020 
 
Underpinning this Commissioning Plan are six outcomes that shape the 

commissioning intentions contained within this plan. These have been developed 

based on consultation undertaken as part of the Priorities and Spending Review 

Process, review of best practice as well as linking to the Council’s overarching 

strategic priorities and principles.  The Council cannot achieve these outcomes 

alone, but they represent the ambition that we have for the residents of the Borough 

who require social care services or who use the Council’s leisure provision. Within 

the resources available to the Committee up to 2020, achieving the following 

outcomes will steer the strategic decision making in relation to service delivery and 

investment.  

 

 

 

Priority Key Outcomes  

Planning for 
Life  

Working age adults and older people live a healthy, full and 
active life and their contribution to society is valued and 
respected. 
 
Working age adults and older people live in homes that meet 
their needs and are well connected socially. 
 
Older people have sufficient finances to meet the full range of 
their needs and are able to access advice to make sure they 
spend wisely. 
 

55



 

 

Early 
Intervention 
and Prevention 

Older people have timely access to diagnosis and are 
provided with the tools which enable them to manage their 
condition and continue to live a full life. 
 
Working age adults and older people know what is available to 
increase and maintain their well-being and independence and 
can obtain it when they need to. 
 
Working age adults and older people are well-connected to 
their communities and engage in activities that they are 
interested in, and which keep them well 
 

Person centred 
Integrated 
support 

Working age adults and older people are able to access help 
when needed for as long as they need it. 
 
Working age adults and older people are supported to get 
back on their feet when they have a crisis and to identify ways 
of preventing further crises. 
 
Person centred support plans inform the delivery of support in 
the most appropriate place (usually someone’s home or 
community) that best meets people’s needs in the most cost-
effective way possible. 
 
Working age adults and older people have timely access to 
health and social care support that maintains independence 
and avoids hospital admission or admission to residential 
care. 
 
Working age adults and older people who have health or 
social care needs can still expect to live an independent life 
and have relationships based on reciprocity. 
 

Safeguarding Working age adults and older people are supported to live 
safely through strategies which maximise independence and 
minimise risk.   
 
Where people acquire vulnerabilities as they age, every effort 
is made to enable older people to remain in familiar 
surroundings, being cared for safely by people who know and 
love them. 
 

56



 

 

 
Carers 

Carers are supported to continue caring for as long as they 
wish. 
 
Carers are valued as expert partners in supporting working 
age adults and older people to live independent lives. 
 
Families provide support to other families, sharing their 
experience of using certain services and what they have learnt 
from the process. 
 
Carers are supported to achieve their ambitions whilst 
continuing to care. 
 

Leisure 
Services 

Health and wellbeing outcomes are achieved in a manner that 
is sustainable. 
 

 
About this Plan 

This commissioning plan has been developed in sections for the following service 

components that make up the Adults and Safeguarding Committee’s remit: 

• Social Care Services for Adults with a Learning Disability 

• Social Care Services for Adults of Working Age with Mental Health Needs 

• Social Care Services for Adults with a physical disability / sensory impairment 

• Social Care Services - Information, Advice and Prevention Services 

• Social Care Services for Older People 

• Social Care Services for Carers 

• Leisure Services (sports centres) provided by the Council 

• Cross-cutting commissioning intentions.  

For each service component, the strategic direction is set out together with the 

commissioning intentions, proposed revenue budget up to 2020 and the outcomes to 

be achieved.  

 

57



 

 

1. Service component:  Adults with Learning Disabilities 

Over recent years significant progress has been made in improving social care 

services for adults with learning disabilities. This has been through moving away 

from specialist segregated services which often overly restricted their lives to 

community based opportunities, building on friendships and relationships, utilising 

the flexibilities provided by personalisation, a wider range of housing options. 

However, the Council is ambitious to do more to further improve outcomes and 

reduce cost for this cohort.  

The introduction of a 0-25 disabilities service that better brings together health, 

care and education should support the development of more effective support for 

families and disabled children, improve the way in which agencies work together in 

partnership with families and help young people to achieve more. Our ambition is 

every young person with a disability will have the opportunity to live in their 

own home as a part of their family and local community and not in registered 

care homes often out of the Borough.   

Services will also recognise that adults with learning disabilities deserve to have the 

same rights and opportunities as everyone else to live a full life, realising their 

ambitions whether that be to contribute economically to society, have fulfilling 

relationships or to remain close to families and friends, receiving specialist support 

as and when they need it. As such, through every contact with services, the Council 

will seek to maximise the opportunities that people with learning disabilities have, 

using a wide range of resources and different approaches which include increasing 

the use of social networks and ordinary mainstream activities.  Where possible 

specialist segregated services will be minimised and instead, learning from the 

lessons of Winterbourne View, people will receive the specialist support they require 

in a community setting where both they and those that support them can develop the 

skills they need in a respectful and dignified way that values the individual.    

In addition, the Council needs to ensure a more creative and cost effective review 

and support planning process which promotes an ordinary life and can take 

advantage of housing, technology, employment and other support options.  

For residents this will mean: 

- Better planning and support to support children and young people with 

disabilities to achieve their personal potential for independence in adulthood. 

There will be a reduction in use of specialist residential placements in 

adolescence and transitions.  

- Greater involvement in the planning of care services and use of direct 

payments to fund care and support. 

- A smoother journey through childhood, adolescence and early adulthood.  

- Some individuals in residential care will be supported to transition to 

supported living where appropriate.  

58



 

 

- More travel training to support people to travel more independently 

For suppliers this will mean: 

- A continued shift from out-of-Borough provision to Barnet provision. 

- A shift in demand and spend from expensive specialist registered provision 

to community based services.  

- Increased demand for enabling technologies to replace face to face care 
where appropriate. 

- Refocussing of day care to employment support.  
- Integrated specialist support for people with complex disabilities is delivered 

locally as part of a community based offer.  
 

1a Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen? 

1 Implement a 0-25 disabilities 
service that better brings together 
health, care and education to 
enable young people with 
disabilities to fulfil their potential 
to be an active citizen and 
improves relationships between 
families and the local authority. 
 
 
 

- Business case for 0-25 service presented 

to committee in spring 2015. 

- Mobilisation of the new model by autumn 

2015. 

- Development of shared decision making 

and funding arrangements by March 

2016. 

Some rebalancing of cost from expensive 
specialist provision to preventative and 
enabling services commencing from 
16/17. 

2 Increase the supply and take-up 
of supported living and 
independent housing 
opportunities supporting more 
people to live in a home of their 
own with support and not in 
residential care.  

- Work with private landlords and other 
organisations to increase the supply of 
housing options during 15/16 and beyond. 

- Utilise the housing revenue account to 
develop new supported living 
accommodation options. 

- Work effectively with individuals and their 
families to enable moves out of residential 
care where appropriate. 

3 Develop a more creative and cost 
effective review and support 
planning process. Ensure that this 
considers how technology can 
enable people with learning 
disabilities to live more 
independently. 
 

- Review of the section 75 agreement for 
health and social care learning disabilities 
services by summer 2015. 

- Further testing and embedding of new 
review approach in 15/16. 

- Continued exploration of alternative 
support planning processes including the 
Centre for Independent Living in 15/16.  

- Implementation of Care Act and new IT to 
include training on community resources 
and family networks. 

- Increase range of technology on offer and 

59



 

 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen? 

support offered to take this up as part of 
the assessment and support planning 
process by March 2016. 

4 Improve the carer’s offer and 
support planning process to 
ensure carers feel able to 
continue to support an individual 
for as long as they can. This 
should enable a reduction in the 
number of carer breakdowns and 
improved family satisfaction from 
sustaining the family environment. 
 

- A strengthened carer focused approach to 
be implemented as part of the Care Act 
implementation programme by April 2015. 
 

5 Stimulate the market to 
encourage providers who can 
effectively focus on enablement 
and personal development. 
 

- Enhance commissioning strategies and 
ensure procurement exercises incentivise 
enablement and development by summer 
2015.  

- Offer a series of workshops highlighting 
best practice and enabling the 
identification of outcomes to be delivered 
in 15/16.  

- Develop a toolkit with providers to use to 
evidence outcomes (e.g. outcomes star) 
by March 2016. 
 

6 Develop the employment support 
offer for adults with learning 
disabilities and ensure there are 
sufficient employment 
opportunities available in the 
Borough. Raise employment 
aspirations as a key component 
of the review and support 
planning process and increase 
the proportion of adults with 
learning disabilities in 
employment.  
 

- Identify the potential to increase the 
proportion of adults with learning 
disabilities in employment by summer 
2015. 

- Develop a strategic partnership between 
social care, public health and Job Centre 
Plus to increase the number of people 
with learning disabilities in employment.  

- Offer work placements / trials in the 
Council and across the strategic 
partnership in Barnet to enable the 
development of individual work portfolios 
and employment opportunities. 

- Council contracts to include the 
requirement to increase the number of 
disabled people in paid employment.  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

60



 

 

These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Planning for Life  

� Early Intervention and Prevention 

� Person centred Integrated support 

� Safeguarding 

� Carers 

1b Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

% of people with a learning disability 
receiving direct payments 

20.5%  Increase 

Proportion of people with learning 
disabilities who feel safe 

To be baselined Increase  

Proportion of adults with learning 
disabilities in paid employment 

9.4% Increase 

Proportion of adults with learning 
disabilities who live in stable 
accommodation 

58.1%  Increase 

Proportion of people with learning 
disabilities accessing telecare services 

To be baselined Increase 

Average weekly cost of care for people 
with learning disability 

£1,483  Decrease 

 

1c Financial impact 

A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this service component is shown 

in the table below: 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund 
budget 

£34.35m  £31.20m  £31.77m  

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  (£3.46m) (£4.37m) 

Inflation  - £1.85m 

Demographic 
growth 

 £0.31m £3.09m 

 

The savings profiled above include a contribution to service wide procurement and 

workforce savings which when fully planned may result in a different attribution.  

A fuller profile of savings can be found in Appendix B.  

 

 

61



 

 

2. Service component:  Working Age Adults with Mental Health Needs 

Adults with a severe and enduring mental illness face considerable social exclusion. 
This is evidenced through high rates of worklessness, social isolation, poorer 
physical health and insecure housing arrangements all of which create demand on 
other elements of the state for support.  
 
Across London and in Barnet adult mental health services across the NHS and 
social care are under considerable pressure. As the number of acute in-patient beds 
decreases, the pressure on social care budgets for adult mental health services now 
represents the fastest area of demand-led spend.    
 
With social care services integrated into secondary care mental health services, 
specialist assistance and advice is not always readily available in the community for 
low level issues. This risks assistance only being provided following a crisis situation. 
There are opportunities to redefine the role of mental health social workers to 
focus on more protective factors such as having a job and a secure home, being 
socially connected and to provide independent challenge and review of support 
proposals for people with mental health needs. 

 
In Barnet, there are instances where individuals are being placed in residential 
settings because of a lack of local supply of alternatives. There is the need for the 
development of a wide range of accommodation options, including home 
ownership schemes, with a varying spectrum of support to meet the differing needs 
of the adult mental health population. The quality and availability of community 
mental health support will drive demand for restrictive and traditional placements 
where quality is poor or where support is not provided in a timely and accessible 
manner. 
 
For residents this will mean: 

- Improved whole system response when mental health issues arise that 
supports recovery, social inclusion and enablement. 

- Better support for individuals with mental health issues to retain or regain 
employment and suitable housing that supports their well-being. 

- Greater involvement in the planning of social care services and use of direct 

payments to fund care and support. 

For suppliers this will mean: 
- A new specification for mental health social work focused on employment, 

housing, earlier intervention and enablement.  
- A shift in demand and spend from expensive specialist registered provision 

to community based services.  

- Increased demand for community based services including early intervention 
and prevention.  

- Greater integration of housing functions with social care.  
 
 
 
 
 

62



 

 

2a  Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen? 

1 The re-focusing of social care on 
recovery, social inclusion and 
enablement. This will require a 
redefining of the integrated 
services model with the mental 
health trust to enable both parties 
to focus on core competencies and 
develop effective partnership 
practice.  
 
A smaller number of social workers 
would be based within the Mental 
Health Trust to support effective 
crisis resolution and effective 
management of people subject to 
community treatment orders and 
section 117. 
 

- Development of new model for social 
care to include stronger working with 
primary care. Redefine the mental health 
social work role to provide a move away 
from delivery of the approved mental 
health professional (AMPH) role and care 
co-ordination to one which focuses on 
promoting recovery and social inclusion 
with individuals and families by summer 
2015. 
  

2 Review delivery models to ensure 
that the social work service for 
working age people with mental 
health issues can best focus on the 
quality of services and strengthen 
the voice of both workers and 
service users. We will have a 
model for social work which is 
commissioned to promote 
recovery, maximise inclusion and 
reduce long term care costs. This 
will require working co-productively 
and innovatively with local 
communities, primary care and 
housing providers to support 
community capacity, personal and 
family resilience, earlier 
intervention and active citizenship. 
 

- Delivery model options appraisal 
completed by June 2015. 

- Develop a ‘community budgets’ based 
approach to ensure that mental health 
services are effectively incentivised to 
reduce the overall public sector burden of 
mental illness within Barnet, particularly 
to address issues of long term 
worklessness by March 2016. 

 

3 Introduce a ‘Consultant Social 
Worker’ role to work with acute 
mental health services and 
children’s social care. The role will 
provide independent review and 
challenge to support plans and 
proposed changes to ensure all 
appropriate support opportunities 
are explored and provided in 
situations characterised by high 

- Development of ‘Consultant Social 
Worker’ role by spring 2015. 

63



 

 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen? 

levels of social, family and 
interpersonal complexity, risk and 
ambiguity. 
 

4 Align social work delivery model 
with community development, 
whole family approaches and wider 
wellbeing, particularly focusing on 
tackling social exclusion and 
worklessness. 

- Working closely with other public sector 
agencies such as Job Centre Plus, 
develop a clear pathway to support 
people with mental health problems back 
into work by summer 2015.  

- Explore opportunities for the social work 
delivery model to be jointly 
commissioned by Job Centre Plus to 
ensure people are work ready and 
supported back into work by March 2016. 

- Council contracts to include the 
requirement to increase the number of 
disabled people in paid employment.  

 

5 Increase the range of sustainable 
accommodation options for people 
with mental health problems in 
conjunction with the NHS. There is 
a compelling evidence base that 
where we live has a significant 
impact on our mental health. For 
the NHS, inadequate access to 
housing increases costs and 
demand for acute services. 
Supported housing for people with 
a mental illness could benefit the 
NHS year in and year out to a 
suggested annualised return of 
investment of 7% when compared 
to inpatient care or residential 
provision. 
 

- Needs assessment and supply analysis 
of housing options and housing support 
completed as part of the work on 
Housing Strategy by spring 2015. 

- Development of commissioning approach 
by summer 2015. 

 

6 Promoting mental well-being and 
reducing stigma through 
establishing joint commissioning of 
social care with public mental 
health provision. 
 

- Including mental health within the 
preventative agenda as an equal to 
physical health, and targeting support at 
those with known risk factors, will create 
reduced demand and allow earlier 
intervention. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

64



 

 

These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Planning for Life  

� Early Intervention and Prevention 

� Person centred Integrated support 

� Safeguarding 

� Carers 

2b Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Proportion of people with mental health 
needs who feel safe  

To be baselined Increase 

Proportion of adults with mental health 
needs in paid employment 

5.7%  Increase 

Proportion of adults with mental health 
needs who live in stable accommodation 

71%  Increase 

Proportion of people with MH volunteering New indicator Increase 

Proportion of people with MH accessing 
telecare 

To be baselined Increase 

Admissions to residential care  New indicator Decrease 

Average weekly cost of supporting adults 
with mental illness in residential and 
nursing care 

£870.64  Decrease 

 

2c Financial impact 

A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this service component is shown 

in the table below: 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund 
budget 

£7.98m  £6.89m  £7.31m  

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  (£1.14m) (£0.51m) 

Inflation  - £0.41m 

Demographic 
growth 

 £0.05m £0.51m 

 

The savings profiled above include a contribution to service wide procurement and 

workforce savings which when fully planned may result in a different attribution.  

A fuller profile of savings can be found in Appendix B.  

  

65



 

 

3. Service component:  Disabled working age adults with physical disabilities 

or sensory impairments 

Significant progress has been made in supporting disabled working age adults with 

physical disabilities, sensory impairments and long-term conditions through 

developments in healthcare, enablement, personalisation – in particular direct 

payments, and more opportunities for disabled people to carry on working. All of 

these initiatives have improved the quality of life for disabled working age adults and 

contributed to them being, and feeling, in control. We need to build on this 

foundation, working closely with people to design how people access the kind of help 

they want.  

The introduction of a 0-25 disabilities service that better brings together health, 

care and education should support the development of more effective relationships 

of trust with families, improve the way in which agencies work together in partnership 

with families and help young people to achieve more.  

In addition, health and social care integration, increasing use of technology, 

promotion of accessible housing, whether through DFGs or lifetime homes, 

ensuring that people have access to skills development such as self-management 

and support to help people get back on their feet through enablement will all 

contribute to ensuring that an increasing number of people stay as independent as 

possible. As a result we will see more disabled adults living fuller lives as an active 

and valued member of their local communities. 

For the cohort of individuals already receiving services, the Council needs to ensure 

a more creative and cost effective review and support planning process that 

not only builds upon peoples’ abilities and choices but also can take advantage of 

housing, technology, employment and other support options. 

For residents this will mean: 

- Better planning and support to support the growth and development of 

children and young people with disabilities which also results in a reduced 

need for social care services. 

- Greater involvement in the planning of care services. 

- A smoother journey through childhood, adolescence and early adulthood.  

- Better support to live independent lives. 

For suppliers this will mean: 

- A shift in demand and spend from expensive specialist provision to 

community based services. There will always be a demand for high quality 

specialist services.  

- Increased demand for enabling technologies. 
- Refocussing of day care  

 

66



 

 

3a Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Implement a 0-25 disabilities service 
that better brings together health, care 
and education to enable young people 
with disabilities to fulfil their potential to 
be an active citizen and improve 
relationships between families and the 
local authority  
 

- Business case for 0-25 service 

presented to committee in spring 

2015. 

- Mobilisation of the new model by 

autumn 2015. 

- Development of shared decision 

making and funding arrangements by 

March 2016. 

- Some rebalancing of cost from 
expensive specialist provision to 
preventative and enabling services 
commencing from 16/17. 

2 Increase the supply and take-up of 
supported living and independent 
housing opportunities supporting 
transitions from those currently in 
residential settings. This should lead to 
improved outcomes for adults supported 
to live more independent lives. 
 
 

- Work with private landlords and other 
organisations to increase the supply 
of housing options during 15/16 and 
beyond. 

- Utilise the housing revenue account 
to develop new supported living 
accommodation options. 
Work effectively with individuals and 
their families to enable moves out of 
residential care where appropriate. 

3 Develop a more creative and cost 
effective review and support planning 
process. Ensure that this considers how 
technology can enable people with 
disabilities to live more independently. 
 

- Further testing and embedding of 
new review approach in 15/16. 

- Continued exploration of alternative 
support planning processes including 
the Centre for Independent Living in 
15/16.  

- Implementation of Care Act and new 
IT to include training on community 
resources and family networks. 
Increase range of technology on offer 
and support offered to take this up as 
part of the assessment and support 
planning process by March 2016. 

4 Commission an integrated health and 
social care service for those with long 
term conditions. 

- Finalise and agree the health and 
social care integration business case.  

- Agree funding and risk share 
arrangements. 

- Section 75 agreement in place that 
includes joint equipment service by 
April 2016. 

5 Commission high quality flexible 
specialist home support services 
including personal assistants (PAs). 
 

- Develop homecare strategy to inform 
the retender of homecare services. 

- Develop the PA strategy to increase 
the number of PAs in Barnet 

67



 

 

These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Planning for Life  

� Early Intervention and Prevention 

� Person centred Integrated support 

� Safeguarding 

� Carers 

3b Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Proportion of adults with physical 
disabilities/sensory impairment who feel 
safe  

To be baselined Increase 

Proportion of people with physical 
disabilities/sensory impairments who 
receive direct payments 

To be baselined Increase 

Proportion of adults with physical 
disabilities or sensory impairments known 
to our services in paid employment 

New indicator Increase 

Proportion of people with physical 
disabilities or sensory impairments 
volunteering 

New indicator Increase 

Proportion of people with physical 
disabilities or sensory impairments 
accessing telecare 

New indicator Increase 

Average weekly cost of residential and 
nursing care for people with physical 
disabilities  

£1066.30  
 

Decrease 

Number of people with physical disabilities 
or sensory impairments accessing housing 
advice and adaptations 

New indicator Increase 

Number of people with long term 
conditions accessing self-management 
support 

New indicator Increase 

Number of residential care admissions  To be baselined Decrease 

Number of emergency hospital admissions  New indicator Decrease 

 

  

68



 

 

3c Financial impact 

A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this service component is shown 

in the table below: 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund 
budget 

£6.64m  £6.00m  £5.90m  

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  (£0.70m) (£1.10m) 

Inflation  - £0.36m 

Demographic 
growth 

 £0.06m £0.63m 

 

The savings profiled above include a contribution to service wide procurement and 

workforce savings which when fully planned may result in a different attribution.  

A fuller profile of savings can be found in Appendix B.  

 

 

  

69



 

 

4. Service component:  Older People: Feeling Well, Enjoying Life  

Barnet will experience one of the largest increases in elderly residents out of all 

London Boroughs over the next five to ten years. This is because the life expectancy 

of our residents is growing due to the general good health of our population. There 

are currently 52,000 people in Barnet over the age of 65, and this will increase to 

59,800 by 2020.  

More than half of our residents aged 65 and over will not acquire a limiting long-term 

illness and Barnet Council wants to increase this proportion by encouraging people 

to stay healthy, well and independent, living life to the full. Our older people are a 

significant resource – nationally 58% of people aged 65 and over are volunteers, 

and local surveys have indicated that the proportion may be higher in Barnet. In 

addition, Barnet Council wants those older people who do suffer from a long-term 

illness to take advantage of the full range of opportunities on offer so that they too 

maximize their independence and well-being. 

Not only does this approach benefit older residents, but it also means that there will 

be less call on our health and social care services as many of the health conditions 

experienced in old age are preventable. For example, obesity increases the risk of 

Type 2 diabetes twenty-fold and doubles or triples the risk of other chronic conditions 

including high blood, pressure, heart disease, and colon cancer. Smoking accounts 

for nearly one-fifth of all deaths from cardiovascular disease. Men who smoke 

increase their risk of dying from lung cancer by 22 times, and women by nearly 12 

times. Studies have shown that activities such as ballroom dancing can reduce or 

delay dementia, and that the reduction of social isolation can reduce visits to the GP 

from 13 visits a year to 5 or 6 times a year.  

The commissioning outcomes in this service component therefore focus on keeping 

older people healthy and well for longer, and in supporting those people who 

have been unfortunate enough to need a little bit of help to access that support in a 

timely fashion but in a way that means that older residents are still firmly in control of 

their own lives.  

The commissioning intentions focus on enabling older residents, and their families, 

to be able to find out about what is available in the Borough whether looking for 

advice about making homes easier to live in, interesting activities to do or 

opportunities to continue working or volunteering. Not all of the opportunities that 

older residents will want to engage in will be run by or even commissioned by the 

Council. Many services will be run by older people themselves. Barnet Council 

also recognizes that older people will often prefer to receive a little bit of help from a 

friendly neighbour who they can help in return rather than through a commissioned 

service. The role of Barnet Council will be primarily in removing barriers from 

communities supporting each other, and in ensuring that with health colleagues, 

there is a robust prevention offer which delays, reduces or avoids the need for 

care and support through targeted health promotion services, such as self-

70



 

 

management, a wide range of assistive technology and equipment and a full range 

of easily available information and advice services.  

For residents this will mean: 

- Improved advice and advocacy services with a greater availability of helpful 

information to support ageing well. 

- An increased use of new technologies to support independence and safety.  

- New opportunities to develop local communities and continue to contribute 

positively to society. 

For suppliers this will mean: 

- New specifications for services. 

- An increase in demand for assistive technology, equipment, adaptations. 

4a Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen  

1 To develop improved information, 
advice and planning services 

- New information, advice and 
advocacy services to be 
commissioned by April 2015 

- Social Care Connect to be 
reviewed and improved by April 
2015 

- Database of all voluntary and 
community organisations to be 
developed by September 2015 

2 To promote digital inclusion, assistive 
technology, equipment, adaptations 

- Enhanced advice and adaptation 
service to be offered from  April 
2016 

3 To increase social networks and 
community connections 

- Establish Dementia Friendly 
Communities from April 2014 

- Continue with neighbourhood 
services and later life planners 

- Expand navigator service (part of 
health and social care 
integration) to include developing 
social networks from April 2015 

4 To commission and influence the 
development of opportunities for older 
people to continue working or offer 
mentoring   

- Continue to promote Trading 
Times 

- Promote mentoring as part of the 
volunteering offer 

5 To develop a joined up prevention offer 
which is easy to recognise and use 

- Identify funding to further this as 
part of Tier 2 of the HSCI model 

6 To commission the best delivery vehicle 
possible to support older people who 
need a little bit of help 

- Review the current offer in the 
light of HSCI and the Care Act 
and develop an option to improve 
delivery and increase 
independence and well-being 

71



 

 

These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Early Intervention and Prevention 

� Person centred Integrated support 

� Carers 

4b Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Number of people who are supported by 
later life planners to develop plans and 
other navigator services. 

New indicator Increase 

Number of older people who access 
services to help them plan financially.  

New indicator Increase 

Number of older people who volunteer. New indicator Increase 

Number of older people supported to 
remain in employment through later life 
planning. 

New indicator Increase 

Number of older people given advice and 
supported to adapt homes or move. 

New indicator Increase 

Number of older people who take up 
leisure services. 

New indicator Increase 

Number of people who have as much 
social contact they want with people they 
like (Public Health Ooutcomes 
Framework measure) a) all service users 
b) older people. 

a)41.1%  
b)41.8%  

Increase 

Number of people who feel that 
‘loneliness is something that affects my 
life’. 

New indicator Decrease 

 

4c Financial impact 

A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this service component is shown 

in the table below: 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund 
budget 

£1.08m  £1.08m  £1.09m  

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  (£0.00m) (£0.04m) 

Inflation  - £0.05m 

Demographic 
growth 

 - - 

The savings profiled above include a contribution to service wide procurement and 

workforce savings which when fully planned may result in a different attribution.  

A fuller profile of savings can be found in Appendix B.  

72



 

 

5. Service component:  Older People Social Care Services  

Barnet’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy sets out the Borough’s ambition to make 

Barnet ‘a place in which all people can age well’. With the increasing numbers of 

older people, and the expectations about the kind of care and support available, the 

challenge is to make this a reality in the context of rising health and social care 

needs among older people, and the financial pressures facing both the Council and 

the NHS. The challenge for both agencies is significant - approximately 45% of the 

adult social care budget and 70% of the health budget is spent on frail older 

residents with complex needs.  

In order to deliver the quality of care and support that our older residents deserve, 

Barnet Council will tackle the reasons why older people need social care – 

poor health, unsuitable housing, loneliness and carer breakdown. The limited 

resources that the Council has will focus on support for the most vulnerable older 

people that cannot be provided by any other means. 

At present, there is estimated to be 23,355 people aged 65 or over in Barnet with a 

limiting, long term illness – approximately 45% of people aged 65 and over. This 

particular cohort is expected to increase by more than 20% over the next ten years 

and in addition this cohort overlaps with an estimated 17,922 over 65s unable to 

manage at least one self-care activity on their own. The conditions most commonly 

associated with ageing are: coronary heart disease and stroke, diabetes, cancer, 

chronic pulmonary obstructive disease, incontinence, Alzheimer’s disease and other 

forms of dementia, osteoporosis and osteoarthritis. Older people may also 

experience some decline in hearing, vision, physical strength and balance and there 

may be some loss in mental acuity.  

The chances of developing dementia are significantly increased in old age. Barnet 

will experience an increase in the volume of dementia cases reported, because the 

life expectancy of its residents is continually increasing. In 2012, Barnet had a 

higher population of adults with dementia than any other London Borough (the 

2012 percentage was also significantly higher than national averages). In 2014, 

there was estimated to be 4,000 people living in Barnet with dementia. This number 

is rapidly increasing (1.5 times faster than other London locations) making this a key 

challenge for health and social care. 

As the number of older people requiring social care support increases because of 

illness, it is essential they are offered services that help them to remain independent 

and live healthily in their own homes for as long as possible. They need access to 

crisis response services, and support to recover quickly from illness. Barnet Council 

will ensure, with health colleagues, that the required community provision is in place 

to enable older adults to be better supported at home, avoiding the need for hospital 

or residential care admissions. In addition, residents will receive high quality, 

compassionate care that is designed to meet their personal needs delivered by an 

appropriately skilled workforce. Such provision will also delay and reduce the 

73



 

 

potential requirement for a higher cost traditional package of care. When a hospital 

admission does become necessary, Barnet Council will support patients to be 

discharged and returned to their home as quickly and as efficiently as possible. This 

will reduce the need for care home placements. 

Housing which supports people to live as independently as possible is crucial for all 

older people but can particularly restrict the lives of people who require health or 

social care services. The impact of having a fall, for example, for someone who has 

arthritis or who has limited mobility because of a stroke, can result in long-term 

complications significantly affecting the person’s quality of life and costing social care 

services up to £17,000 per person. The total social cost of falls alone to Barnet 

Council is over £19,000,000 based on the projected number of falls of 1135. 

(Projected Older People Population Information Systems analysis of ONS data). 

Barnet Council will ensure that there is a choice of available housing within the 

Borough, which through the design, supports to enable older people to age well and 

live life to the full. 

Traditionally, care packages have focused entirely on service delivery. Older people 

and their families have reported that they do not always feel fully in control of their 

lives, and many older people feel that services present a barrier to remaining 

connected to social and family networks. Other older people have become more 

socially isolated and lonely as their families move away, their neighbourhood 

changes and their own health prevents them from engaging as actively as they used 

to. Barnet Council will use every contact to actively reconnect people with their 

family and social networks and communities, using such services as enablement, 

not only to help people get back on their feet, but wherever possible  as a step on 

the way to develop or redevelop contact with local people and community based 

resources. With over 5,000 older people aged 75 and over who are socially isolated 

and at risk of being lonely, this is an essential development in ensuring that Barnet’s 

older residents have a good quality of life. 

For residents this will mean: 

- The right support to remain at home for longer  - with greater use of 

technology to help keep people safe  

- Greater use of direct payments and self-directed support.    

- Greater choice and flexibility of accommodation options and home based 

support.  

For suppliers this will mean: 

- New contracts for home based support that further focus on achievement of 

outcomes. 

- A shift in demand from acute and residential provision to community based 

support.  

- Single contracts for health and social care provision.  

74



 

 

5a Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Commission an integrated health and 
social care service for frail older people 
and those with long term conditions. 
Consider alternative models of delivery 
to ensure best fit. 

- Finalise and agree the HSCI 
business case by November 
2014 

- Agree funding and risk share 
arrangements by March 2015 

- Implement and evaluate the tiers 
- Review the model and 

assumptions and  develop 
commissioning intentions with 
clarity around delivery models by 
March 2015 

2 Increase housing choices for older 
people where the existing 
accommodation is not suitable 

- Develop 150 extra care and 
specialist integrated housing by 
2020 and promote lifetime homes 
throughout the regeneration 
period  

 

3 Commission high quality flexible 
specialist home support services 
including personal assistants 

- Develop homecare strategy to 
inform the retender of homecare 
services by November 2014 

- Develop the workforce strategy to 
inform the retender of homecare 
services by March 2015 

- Develop the PA strategy to 
increase the number of PAs in 
Barnet by March 2015 

4 Increase the use of enablement services 
for all older people 

- Review and implement the policy 
framework to ensure that all older 
people who would benefit from 
enablement are offered it at every 
opportunity by March 2015 

- Increase the number and variety 
of telecare choices offered 

5 All support plans will increase the ability 
of older people to access community 
resources and social/family networks 

- Implementation of Care Act and 
new IT will include community 
resources and family networks in 
modules and social workers will 
receive training on this 

- Commission brokerage service  

 

These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Person centred Integrated support 

� Safeguarding 

� Carers 

 

75



 

 

5b Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Number of appropriate safeguarding alerts To be baselined Increase 

Proportion of older people accessing 
enablement 

5.6% Increase 

Proportion of older people accessing 
telecare 

To be baselined Increase 

Proportion of people who feel in control of 
their own lives 

73.3% Increase 

Proportion of people who leave 
enablement with a reduced/no care 
package  

50% 
 

Increase 

Proportion of older people remaining at 
home 90 days after discharge 

71.9%  Increase 

Unit cost of care for older people £591  Decrease 

Number of non-elective hospital 
admissions. 

New indicator Decrease 

Number of residential care admissions  486.9  
 

Decrease 

Number of people who feel that their social 
situations and relationships are as good as 
they want 

To be baselined Increase 

 

5c Financial impact 

A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this service component is shown 

in the table below: 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund 
budget 

£37.40m  £34.73m  £34.41m  

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  (£3.02m) (£6.47m) 

Inflation  - £2.41m 

Demographic 
growth 

 £0.37m £3.74m 

 

The savings profiled above include a contribution to service wide procurement and 

workforce savings which when fully planned may result in a different attribution.  

A fuller profile of savings can be found in Appendix B.  

76



 

 

6. Service component:  Carers 

Barnet Council recognises that the best people to provide support and care are 

usually those people that know and love their family members or friends. For some 

carers, this can be one of the most rewarding experiences of their lives – for others, 

caring can be at the expense of their health, wealth and personal aspirations. The 

support that carers require to prevent or minimise the negative aspects of caring will 

vary according to the individual circumstances of the carer and the disability or 

illness of the person who is being supported. For example, carers may require 

support to juggle the competing demands of work or education, such as employers 

or teachers who understand what they can do to help; access to emergency help in a 

crisis etc. For others it may be gaining a better understanding of the condition and 

the best way of supporting their family member through expert carer programmes, 

and for many carers, it will be access to support where they can share their concerns 

or frustrations.  

The Care Act 2014 brings with it new duties of assessment and support for 

carers and will increase the number of carers that identify as carers and request 

support in their role. This will bring with it new opportunities to better support more 

carers. The census identified 32,320 people who are carers in Barnet, yet we 

currently support less than 10,000 carers, and the majority of this support is 

information and advice. The Care Act will also bring financial challenges in terms of 

an increased ask of Council resources.  

Barnet Council values the support that carers offer and will strengthen and expand 

the range of support that is offered to carers to continue to support people for as 

long as they wish. Carers will be treated as expert partners in the delivery of 

care and support. In order to maintain and strengthen, rather than intervene in the 

relationship between the carer and cared for, each assessment will focus on the 

carer and their service requirements, developing a foundation offer, which will 

then be topped up with additional support where required for the cared for. The full 

range of available help – from assistive technology to training in caring tasks – will 

be explored with the carer to make sure that caring is doable and rewarding. All 

carers will also be able to take advantage of the opportunities that have been 

described in other service components, whether for themselves or for the people 

they support.  

For residents this will mean: 

- Greater support to enable carers to continue in their caring role. 

For suppliers this will mean: 

- Procurement of new carer support services.  

- Expectation that family carers are actively involved in the planning, delivery 

and design of support packages.  

77



 

 

6a Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen? 

1 To prioritise meeting the needs of 
carers, including young carers, through 
the assessment and support planning 
process by better supporting carers’ 
own physical and mental health needs. 
 

A carer focused approach will be 
implemented as part of the Care Act 
implementation programme by March 
2015  

2 To strengthen the current carers’ 
support offer e.g. assistive technology, 
intensive support for carers of people 
with dementia. 

A full analysis of how the carers’ offer 
can be strengthened to be undertaken 
as part of the Care Act 
implementation. It will be promoted as 
part of the carers’ offer from 2015 
The intensive support package for 
carers of people with dementia will be 
commissioned and piloted in 2015 

3 To better support carers to balance 
work and caring commitments. Local 
small businesses know how to retain 
carers in their workforce. 

Workability carers package will be 
commissioned in 2015 

 

These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Person centred Integrated support 

� Safeguarding 

� Carers 

6b Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Proportion of carers satisfied with social 
services 

34.6%  
(12/13) 

Increase 

Proportion of carers included or consulted 
in decisions 

66%  
(12/13) 

Increase 

Number of carers attending peer group / 
support networks run through carers hubs 

New indicator Increase 

Carers’ reported quality of life 7.7 (12/13) Increase 

Number of carers giving up work to care New indicator Decrease 

Number of carers giving up caring to work New indicator Decrease 

Number of residential admissions as a 
result of carer breakdown 

New indicator Decrease 

Number of safeguarding cases where 
carer is found to have instigated abuse 

To be baselined Decrease 

 

  

78



 

 

6c Financial impact 

A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this service component is shown 

in the table below: 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund 
budget 

£1.87m  £1.78m  £1.88m  

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  (£0.10m) (£0.11m) 

Inflation  - £0.09m 

Demographic 
growth 

 £0.01m £0.12m 

 

The savings profiled above include a contribution to service wide procurement and 

workforce savings which when fully planned may result in a different attribution.  

A fuller profile of savings can be found in Appendix B.   

79



 

 

7. Service component: Leisure Services 

The Council owns five leisure centres at Burnt Oak, Hendon, Finchley, Copthall and 
Church Farm with their management sub-contracted out to Greenwich Leisure 
Limited (GLL) under their ‘Better’ brand (a charitable trust).  The contract for their 
management of the leisure centres runs until December 2017 when it will need to be 
re-commissioned.  

The overall aim is to end up with a contract that can improve the participation 
levels in sport and physical activity across the Borough while delivering cost 
neutral sport and physical activity services for the Council. In parallel, the 
current SPA project will take a wider strategic approach to SPA provision to ensure 
that key Public Health objectives, inclusive of the health and wellbeing outcomes as 
incorporated into the current Health and Wellbeing strategy and Public Health 
commissioning strategy, are considered to ensure sustainable delivery in the long 
term. 

National evidence indicates that the health of Barnet’s population is likely to be 
enhanced by increased physical activity across the population with the greatest 
gains coming from enabling the sedentary, those who are least active, to undertake 
a degree of physical activity. Increasing physical activity can create less 
dependency on health and social care by having a preventative effect on the 
development of conditions such as diabetes, Coronary Heart Disease (CHD), some 
cancers and obesity. Being more active can also assist in re-enabling people with 
long-term conditions to manage their own health and well-being, therefore delaying 
the progression into more dependency. For many people, enjoying being more active 
can bring them into contact with others; this might be through volunteering in a club 
or sports organisation, joining in with an informal activity or being part of a regular 
session. Although we know that purely being in contact with others does not address 
social isolation, we know that the more contact points people have and the more 
belonging they feel as part of a community, the easier it is to tackle some of the 
issues that arise from social isolation, and becoming more active can contribute to 
this.  
 
7a Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen? 

1 Achievement of a cost-neutral 
provision of the Council-owned 
leisure centre facilities. 

• To finalise the vision for leisure services 
with a clear strategy for each of the 5 
leisure centre sites described in a 
feasibility study and masterplan. 
(Complete Feb 2015) 

• To develop a procurement specification 
that will deliver the vision from the 
feasibility study and planning 
masterplan. (Complete April 2015) 

• To work with stakeholders throughout 
the Council to ensure that any new 
leisure contract delivers against 
strategic priorities across the authority 
e.g. health, prevention, re-ablement. 

80



 

 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen? 

2 Improved levels of physical activity 
within Barnet, particularly in target 
geographical areas for both adults 
and children, leading to 
improvements in public health 
outcomes and general wellbeing. 
 

• More focussed KPI’s on new leisure 
services contract and more effective 
and pro-active contract management. 

• Public Consultation with residents, 
including focus groups (Complete Jan 
2015) 

 

 

7b Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline  Target - 19/20  

Increasing participation in sport and 
physical activity 

38.3% (12/13) Increase 

Increasing residents’ satisfaction with the 
Council’s provision 

38% satisfaction 
(13/14) 

Increase 

 

7c Financial impact 

The current contractual commitment includes a c. £1.2m annual management fee 

which the Council pays to GLL to operate and maintain the current leisure centre 

facilities. This annual payment runs to the end of the contract in December 2017. 

The project intends to deliver a zero subsidy leisure services contract from January 

2018. 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund 
budget 

£0.46m  £0.46m  £0.46m  

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  - - 

Inflation  - - 

Demographic 
growth 

 - - 

 

  

81



 

 

8. Service component:  cross-cutting issues 

In order to preserve the frontline face to face services, the Council will seek to 

make efficiencies across the Council in a number of key areas – efficiencies will 

focus on the Council workforce, support costs – such as IT and in the costs of 

externally procured services. 

8a Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen next? 

1 Ensure that the voice of people who 
use adult social care and carers 
contributes to the design and delivery 
of services. 
 

- All service redesigns must 
evidence that people who use 
adult social care and carers have 
contributed to the design and 
delivery of the service. 

2 Promote and maintain the quality and 
consistency of the social care 
workforce.  
Ensure that the workforce 
development programme is focused 
on strengthening the quality and 
consistency of practice. 
 

- Workforce strategy to be 
developed which looks at 
recruitment, retention, skill set, 
qualification requirements and 
costs of the adult social care 
workforce as a whole.  

3 Constrain inflationary pressure on 
procured goods and services to 0.5% 
from 16/17 – 19/20. 
 

- Timetable for negotiation and 
agreement of contract costs. 

4 Identify measures to reduce the cost 
of the workforce employed by LBB. 

- Plan to achieve cost savings 
needs to be developed and 
agreed  

5 To adopt new policies on eligibility, 
contributions and deferred payments. 
 

- Consultation on proposals to take 
place during winter 2014/15 

- Report on new policies to be 
agreed by Adults and 
safeguarding Committee in March 
2015 

 

 

8b Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Number of Personal Assistants supporting 
adult social care clients in Barnet 

To be baselined Increase 

 

82



 

1 

 

Appendix A2 - Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee 

Commissioning plan 2015-2020 

NOTE: The Assets, Regeneration and Growth (ARG) Commissioning Plan will be 

considered at the ARG meeting on 15 December 2014.  The Committee agreed its 

overarching outcomes and approach to delivering savings at its meeting on 8 

September, and these are reflected below.  Consultation on the ARG Commissioning 

Plan will commence on 17 December subject to the approval of ARG Committee. 

1. Organisational Narrative 

1. The Context for the development of this plan.    
 
Public services in England during the decade 2010-2020 face an unprecedented 
challenge as the country deals with the impact of the financial crisis of 2008, 
alongside the opportunities and challenges that come from our changing and ageing 
population. 
 

Despite a growing economy, the UK budget deficit is forecast to be £75bn at the 
2015 General Election, with cuts set to continue to the end of the decade no matter 
who is in Government. At the same time, demand on local services continues to 
increase, driven by a growing population, particularly the number of young and older 
residents. We therefore must plan for the fact that austerity will affect all parts of the 
public sector to the end of the decade and that we will not be able to meet 
increasingly levels of demand from simply doing more of what we are currently 
doing. 
 

The public too, does not expect simply more of the same. Expectations of local 
services are increasing, advances in customer services and technology provides the 
ability to interact with services 24/7. Local residents as a result expect better 
services and more prompt responses from the Council. However satisfaction with the 
Council and local services remains relatively high in Barnet, and over recent years 
resident satisfaction with a number of local services has increases, despite these 
challenges. 
 

In thinking about how the Council lives within its means, the Council needs to 
recognise that residents are also facing wider financial pressures, from high energy 
bills, increasing housing costs, continued wage restraint, and benefit reforms, so the 
ability of many households to absorb the impact of reductions from public sector 
funding through increased financial contributions is constrained.  
 

We can however expect over the duration of this plan that significant opportunities 
will flow from Barnet being part of a growing and arguably booming London 
economy. Unemployment levels have fallen by a third in the last year, the number of 
16-18 year old ‘NEETs’ in Barnet is, at 2.3%, the fourth lowest in England and fewer 
Barnet residents are claiming out-of-work benefits than the London average. 
 
This plan needs to ensure that all residents of Barnet can benefit from the 
opportunities of growth, whether through new employment opportunities, increased 
investment in infrastructure such as roads and schools, or enjoying new 
neighbourhoods and places in which all people can live and age well. 

83



 

2 

 

 
2. Barnet Council’s Overarching Approach to meeting the 2020 Challenge 
The Council’s Corporate Plan sets the framework for each of the Commissioning 
Committees five year commissioning plans. Whether the plans are covering services 
for vulnerable residents or about universal services such as the environment and 
waste there are a number of core and shared principles which underpin the 
commissioning outcomes.   
 
The first is a focus on fairness.  
Fairness for the Council is about striking the right balance between fairness towards 
the more frequent users of services and fairness to the wider taxpayer and making 
sure all residents from our diverse communities - young, old, disabled, and 
unemployed benefit from the opportunities of growth.  
 
The Council must ‘get the basics right’ so people can get on with their lives – 
disposing of waste, keeping streets clean, allowing people to transact in more 
convenient ways, resolving issues promptly in the most cost effective way.  
 
We must shift our approach to earlier intervention and demand management =. 
Managing the rising demand on services requires a step change in the Council’s 
approach to early intervention and prevention. Across the public sector, we need to 
work with residents to prevent problems rather than treating the symptoms when 
they materialise.  
 
The second is a focus on responsibility.  
Continue to drive out efficiencies to deliver more with less= The Council will drive 
out efficiencies through a continued focus on workforce productivity; bearing down 
on contract and procurement costs and using assets more effectively. All parts of the 
system need to play their part in helping to achieve better outcomes with reduced 
resources.  
 
Change its relationships with residents, with residents working with the Council to 
reduce the impact of funding cuts to services .=In certain circumstances, residents 
will also need to take on more personal and community responsibility for keeping 
Barnet a great place particularly if there is not a legal requirement for the Council to 
provide services. In some cases users will be required to pay more for certain 
services as the Council prioritises the resources it has available.  
 
The third is a focus on opportunity.  
Prioritise regeneration, growth and maximising income – Regeneration revitalises 
communities and provides residents and businesses with places to live and work. 
Growing the local tax base and generating more income through growth and other 
sources makes the Council less reliant on government funding; helps offsets the 
impact of service cuts and allows the Council to invest in the future infrastructure of 
the Borough.  
 
Redesign service and deliver them differently through a range of models and 
providers = The Council has no pre-determined view about how services should be 
designed and delivered. The Council will work with providers from across the public, 
private and voluntary sectors to provide services which are more integrated, through 
a range of models most appropriate to the service and the outcomes that we want to 

84



 

3 

 

achieve.  
 
Planning ahead is crucial# The Council dealt with the first wave of austerity by 
planning ahead and focusing in the longer-term, thus avoid short-term cuts - the 
Council is continuing this approach by extending its plans to 2020. 
 

 

2. Committee Outcomes 

Priority Key Outcomes  

Regeneration • Regeneration schemes are delivered to a high standard, 
maximising benefits to the community. 

 

• New communities at Brent Cross Cricklewood and Colindale are 
desirable and attractive places to live, work and spend time, 
which set the standard for future development across London. 

 

• Regeneration and growth schemes are supported by 
appropriate, high quality infrastructure. 

Economy • Barnet is established as the best place in London to be a small 
business.  In particular: 
- Business customers find it easy to deal with the Council 
- Barnet is a good place to do business, with good quality 

public realm and infrastructure that meets business’ needs 
- Businesses can access the workforce they need; and 

entrepreneurs have the skills for success 
- Small and local businesses are able to access Council 

contracts 
- Business support in Barnet is effective, with businesses 

accessing the advice and guidance that they need. 

Town Centres • Key town centres are thriving, with reduced numbers of vacant 
units. 

 

• Residents and local businesses and residents play an active 
role in shaping their High Street as a place to live, work, shop 
and spend leisure time. 

85



 

4 

 

Assets • The Council’s asset portfolio should be managed and 
considered as a whole rather than considering assets in 
isolation;  

• That the asset management plan should drive a reduction in use 
of space to achieve savings;  

• That the asset management plan should reduce running costs 
and increase energy efficiency;  

• That the plan should maximise letting income, but this should be 
balanced against community or social value;  

• That efficiency should be achieved by sharing assets across the 
public sector; 

• That the Council’s assets are used to support longer term 
regeneration and growth; and 

• That Community assets are used transparently to support a 
range of activities that contribute to delivery of the Council’s 
corporate objectives. 

Housing 
growth 

• New developments meet housing need, and contribute to 
Barnet’s reputation as a desirable place to live. 
 

• Developments on Council land meet housing need and 
maximise benefits to the Council.  

 

Challenges 
 
1.1 There are a range of strategic challenges that need to be addressed in the 

Commissioning Plan to ensure that the Council uses the levers at its disposal 
to deliver outcomes such as those described above.  These are summarised 
below. 
 

Ensuring quality and community benefit from regeneration and growth 
 
1.2 Regeneration schemes at Dollis Valley, Grahame Park (Stage A), Granville 

Road, Stonegrove Spur Road and West Hendon, and the growth scheme at 
Mill Hill East, are already under contract and, with the exception of Granville 
Road, have planning permission in place.  The scope for the Committee to 
commission revised outcomes in relation to these schemes is therefore 
comparatively limited.   

 
1.3 However, the Committee has a major opportunity to shape the new 

communities at Brent Cross Cricklewood and Colindale.  On 9 July the 
Committee agreed its requirements for the Brent Cross South development, 
and it will no doubt want to maintain oversight of how these requirements are 
being interpreted as the scheme is developed.  In Colindale, private sector 
developments will be shaped through the planning system in accordance with 
the existing Colindale Area Action Plan, but the Committee will have a role in 
guiding placemaking through development of the Supplementary Planning 
Document to support Grahame Park Stage B.   

 
1.4 When the existing schemes get nearer to completion, the Committee will want 

to consider how it shapes the next wave of regeneration.  There are a number 
of factors and constraints that may shape thinking about the future: 

86



 

5 

 

 

• The London Plan and Local Development Framework 

• Pressures on town centres (see below) 

• Analysis of deprivation, housing stock condition, and other pressures 

on communities 

• Availability of land 

• The Council’s general principle that schemes should be broadly self-

funding over their lifetime (though many require cashflow support) 

Creating the environment for businesses to thrive 
 
1.5 The Committee considered a draft approach to growing the economy at the 8 

September meeting.  Entrepreneurial Barnet proposes adopting the aim of 
making Barnet the best place in London to be a small business, and sets out 
the ways in which the Council and other public service partners will go about 
delivering this aim.  Consultation on Entrepreneurial Barnet closed on 20 
November.  Feedback was broadly positive, with all respondents supporting 
the aim of making Barnet “the best place in London to be a small business”.  
More detailed analysis of the responses, together with a final draft for 
approval, will be presented to Assets Regeneration and Growth Committee on 
15 December. 

 
Supporting our Town Centres 
 
1.6 Entrepreneurial Barnet also addresses the pressures being faced by Town 

Centres across the country, including in Barnet.  It describes how the Council 
could work in partnership with local communities to support town centres to 
thrive; and the different approaches the Council proposes to take in these 
different types of centres. Area committees have made recommendations as 
to which Town Centres should be regarded as main centres, and which 
perform more local roles, for consideration at ARG Committee on 15 
December. 
 

Delivering a fit for purpose Civic Estate 
 
1.7 The Council is driving a significant reduction in the cost of office 

accommodation over the next few years. Part of this reduction in office 
accommodation cost is included within the CSG contractually guaranteed 
savings (£125m), but further initiatives to reduce office accommodation costs 
will contribute to the savings target set for this committee. Consultation closed 
on 17 November on the Strategic Asset Management Plan, which sets out the 
Council’s medium term approach to managing assets, including the 
opportunities to deliver savings through reducing the cost of office 
accommodation.  The results of the consultation, and a draft Plan for approval 
will be put to 15 December ARG.  

 
Ensuring that buildings and land are managed effectively 
 
1.8 Good strategic asset management will drive a number of benefits for the 

Council. It will ensure that office, operational and community asset utilisation 

87



 

6 

 

is maximised, that costs are minimised, and that buildings are fit for purpose 
to deliver services. The Strategic Asset Management Plan explains how this 
approach will be implemented.  
 

Delivering new developments on Council land 
 
1.9 At its meeting on 9 July 2014, the ARG Committee agreed the principles that 

should govern a pipeline of developments on its own sites.  The Committee 
wanted to ensure that such developments delivered both high quality 
outcomes and value for money the Council and the community; and in 
particular that development should support Council services in meeting their 
objectives (for example around improving housing choice for older people, or 
meeting homelessness obligations).  ARG Committee on 8 September agreed 
that, subject to consultation, a first tranche of sites should be taken forward to 
achieve planning consent.  

 
 
Delivering savings 
 
1.10 Policy and Resources Committee on 10 June 2014 established a savings 

target of £10.1m for Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee.  This was 
split into two categories: Promoting growth and raising income (£5.4m); and 
improving organisational efficiency (£4.7m). 
 

Income and growth 
 
1.11 Modelling undertaken in 2013 considered the implications of the contracted 

regeneration and growth schemes for recurring for recurring income streams 
(notably Council Tax base and Business Rate Growth) and non-recurring 
income streams (notably New Homes Bonus and Community Infrastructure 
Levy).   
 

1.12 ARG Committee in September noted an income figure of £5.4m.  Earlier than 
projected delivery of some development schemes, along with the Committee’s 
decision to adopt a development pipeline on Council land, have increased the 
projected income to £5.9m.   

 
Organisational efficiency 
 
1.13 A significant saving on office accommodation costs has already been factored 

into the current Medium Term Financial Strategy through the CSG contract. 
This will be delivered through a reduction in space requirement at North 
London Business Park (NLBP) through enabling the Council to exercise a 
break clause on NLBP 4 in October 2015. Over and above this, it is currently 
estimated that further savings can be made through additional office 
accommodation rationalisation including relocating the Council’s offices to 
Grahame Park by 2017 and exiting from Barnet House and NLBP 2. It is also 
estimated that additional income can be generated from the Councils wider 
commercial estate. These opportunities total £2m per annum. 
 

88



 

7 

 

1.14 Contractual savings have been identified in respect of the remit of this 
committee. These are in respect of removing duplication in the supply chain 
within the Re contract (£750k), savings on highways maintenance from the 
set-up of the London-wide London Highways Alliance Contract (£550k), 
savings of £200k per annum from using alternative surfaces to paving stones 
for highways repairs, and reviewing contracting activity in grounds 
maintenance (50k).   
 

1.15 Improvements in the timeliness of interventions to address highways repairs 
will drive a reduction in insurance claims for the Council. This is estimated to 
save £150k per annum. 
 

1.16 Through the process of developing proposals to inform the Priorities and 
Spending Review report, it was identified that £500k per annum of 
regeneration related expenditure could be charged to capital projects. This will 
create a saving in the Council’s revenue budget which will contribute to this 
Committee’s saving target.  
 

1.17 Subject to the adoption of the Strategic Asset Management Plan by the 
Committee on 15 December, and implementation of the proposed 
development pipeline, these savings can be delivered within existing policy 
frameworks. 

 

89



90

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix A3 - Children, Education, Libraries and Safeguarding 
Committee  
 
Commissioning Plan 2015 - 2020 
 
1. The context for the development of this plan.  

Public services in England during the decade 2010-2020 face an unprecedented 
challenge as the country deals with the impact of the financial crisis of 2008, 
alongside the opportunities and challenges that come from our changing and ageing 
population.   
 
Despite a growing economy, the UK budget deficit is forecast to be £75bn at the 
2015 General Election, with cuts set to continue to the end of the decade no matter 
who is in Government. At the same time, demand on local services continues to 
increase, driven by a growing population, particularly the number of young and older 
residents. We therefore must plan for the fact that austerity will affect all parts of the 
public sector to the end of the decade and that we will not be able to meet 
increasingly levels of demand from simply doing more of what we are currently 
doing.   
 
The public too, does not expect simply more of the same. Expectations of local 
services are increasing, advances in customer services and technology provides the 
ability to interact with services 24/7. Local residents as a result expect better 
services and more prompt responses from the Council. However satisfaction with the 
Council and local services remains relatively high in Barnet, and over recent years 
resident satisfaction with a number of local services has increases, despite these 
challenges. 
 
In thinking about how the Council lives within its means, the Council needs to 
recognise that residents are also facing wider financial pressures, from high energy 
bills, increasing housing costs, continued wage restraint, and benefit reforms, so the 
ability of many households to absorb the impact of reductions from public sector 
funding through increased financial contributions is constrained.  
 
We can however expect over the duration of this plan that significant opportunities 
will flow from Barnet being part of a growing and arguably booming London 
economy. Unemployment levels have fallen by a third in the last year, the number of 
16-18 year old ‘NEETs’ in Barnet is, at 2.3%, the fourth lowest in England and fewer 
Barnet residents are claiming out-of-work benefits than the London average. This 
plan needs to ensure that all residents of Barnet can benefit from the opportunities of 
growth, whether through new employment opportunities, increased investment in 
infrastructure such as roads and schools, or enjoying new neighbourhoods and 
places in which all people can live and age well. 
 
Barnet Council’s Overarching Approach to meeting the 2020 Challenge 
The Council’s Corporate Plan sets the framework for each of the Commissioning 
Committees five year commissioning plans. Whether the plans are covering services 
for vulnerable residents or about universal services such as the environment and 

91



 

waste there are a number of core and shared principles which underpin the 
commissioning outcomes.   
 
The first is a focus on fairness: Fairness for the Council is about striking the right 
balance between fairness towards the more frequent users of services and fairness 
to the wider taxpayer and making sure all residents from our diverse communities - 
young, old, disabled, and unemployed benefit from the opportunities of growth.  
 
The Council must ‘get the basics right’ so people can get on with their lives – 
disposing of waste, keeping streets clean, allowing people to transact in more 
convenient ways, resolving issues promptly in the most cost effective way.  
We must shift our approach to earlier intervention and demand management =. 
Managing the rising demand on services requires a step change in the Council’s 
approach to early intervention and prevention. Across the public sector, we need to 
work with residents to prevent problems rather than treating the symptoms when 
they materialise.  
 
The second is a focus on responsibility: Continue to drive out efficiencies to 
deliver more with less= The Council will drive out efficiencies through a continued 
focus on workforce productivity; bearing down on contract and procurement costs 
and using assets more effectively. All parts of the system need to play their part in 
helping to achieve better outcomes with reduced resources.  
 
Change its relationships with residents, with residents working with the Council to 
reduce the impact of funding cuts to services .=In certain circumstances, residents 
will also need to take on more personal and community responsibility for keeping 
Barnet a great place particularly if there is not a legal requirement for the Council to 
provide services. In some cases users will be required to pay more for certain 
services as the Council prioritises the resources it has available.  
 
The third is a focus on opportunity: Prioritise regeneration, growth and 
maximising income – Regeneration revitalises communities and provides residents 
and businesses with places to live and work. Growing the local tax base and 
generating more income through growth and other sources makes the Council less 
reliant on government funding; helps offsets the impact of service cuts and allows 
the Council to invest in the future infrastructure of the Borough.  
 
Redesign service and deliver them differently through a range of models and 
providers = The Council has no pre-determined view about how services should be 
designed and delivered. The Council will work with providers from across the public, 
private and voluntary sectors to provide services which are more integrated, through 
a range of models most appropriate to the service and the outcomes that we want to 
achieve.  
 
Planning ahead is crucial: The Council dealt with the first wave of austerity by 
planning ahead and focusing in the longer-term, thus avoid short-term cuts - the 
Council is continuing this approach by extending its plans to 2020. 
  

92



 

2. Committee context 
 
Barnet’s Children and Young People Plan sets out a shared partnership ambition for 
children and young people: 
 
All children and young people in Barnet should achieve the best possible outcomes, 
to enable them to become successful adults, especially our most vulnerable children. 
They should be supported by high quality, integrated and inclusive services that 
identify additional support needs early, are accessible, responsive and affordable for 
the individual child and their family 
 
Compared with the rest of the country and statistical neighbours, Barnet’s children 
do well at school, have good health, benefit from low crime rates, live their lives 
safely and have access to high quality open spaces. To ensure that this success is 
maintained and that children who currently do less well have a better start in life will 
require determination and focus from the council and its partner organisations given 
demographic and funding challenges. 
 
The number of children and young people in Barnet is increasing, with the population 
projected to grow every year until the end of the decade and beyond. Within this 
increase, there is some evidence that the complexity of need for some groups of 
children and young people is growing. Against this trend, we need to deliver services 
at less cost. Services for children and young people in Barnet are already amongst 
the lowest cost in London and finding further ways to deliver savings will require new 
and innovative approaches as well as a relentless pursuit for efficiency. It will also 
require new ways of working in partnership with schools, other public sector services 
and the voluntary sector, all of whom face the shared challenge of sustaining 
performance in the face of financial and demographic challenges. 
 
This plan contains proposals to address these challenges over the next five years 
including developing alternative ways to deliver services in partnership with other 
organisations and Barnet residents. We have ambitious plans to form a new way of 
delivering education services in which schools take a leading and central role in the 
strategic direction and delivery of the services they need. We also intend to develop 
a sustainable model for our library service, to ensure that it continues to perform its 
statutory duties, promote literacy and access to information, and ensure that it is 
suited to the needs of the local community at the same time as meeting this 
significant financial challenge.   

 
Certain groups of children and young people do less well than children in Barnet 
overall, by nature of their family circumstances, or, for example, through having a 
learning difficulty and/or disability. We will continue to focus effort and resources to 
‘narrow the gap’, targeting support to families early and working with schools to help 
children and young people overcome barriers to their wellbeing and success. In 
particular, we will seek to support more of our looked after children locally, especially 
those with a range of complex needs, enabling them to benefit from the quality of 
local schools and other local services. We will also develop a new model for services 
for families and children with disabilities that will provide support from birth through to 
the age of 25, helping to ease the transition for children through to adulthood. 

 

93



 

We will work closely with families to broaden the opportunities to provide 
personalised budgets for services where they can be better shaped to meet the child 
and family’s individualised needs and can give children and families more control 
and choice, for example in the provision of respite care.  

 
When resources are under strain, it is ever more critical that we are sure that the 
services we deliver make a difference. We will challenge all of the services we 
commission, our own workforce and our partners to evidence the impact that they 
have.  

 
Within the council’s medium term financial strategy, the budget reduction required for 
2015/16 is £3.4m. The Children, Education, Libraries and Safeguarding Committee 
was tasked by the Council’s Policy and Resources Committee to identify further 
savings of £8m to be delivered between 2016/17 and 2019/20. In addition £1.875m 
has been re-profiled from 2015/16 to 2016/17 increasing the total saving for this four 
year period to £9.875m. 

 
In summary, proposals within the Commissioning Plan to address the challenges, 
reshape services and deliver the savings for services within this committee area over 
the next five years include 
 

a) Alternative ways to deliver services, in partnership with other 

organisations and residents 

● A new delivery model for education services with schools taking the lead 
in setting the strategic direction and delivery of services. 

● A modernised library service which utilises latest technology and 
maximises commercial opportunities to ensure that the service continues 
to perform its statutory duties, promoting literacy and access to 
information within a significantly reduced budget. 

● Redesigned early years services, which focus on developing a more 
flexible, targeted and collaborative model with greater community 
involvement and improved identification and support for vulnerable 
families. 
 

b) Narrowing the gap and targeting support to those that need it' 

● A focus on ‘narrowing the gap’, targeting support early to those that do 
less well, working with schools to help children and young people 
overcome barriers to wellbeing and success. 

● More looked after children supported locally and benefitting from the 
quality of local schools and other services.  

● Continuing to invest in early intervention and prevention services to 
improve outcomes and achieve medium to long term savings. 

 

c) Greater personalisation, choice and control over services 

● A partnership approach to working with parents to improve outcomes for 
disabled children through a ‘birth to age 25’ disability service. 

● Broaden opportunities to provide personalised budgets to ensure 
support and spend is proportionate to individual needs, with more control 
and choice.  

94



 

 
d) Focus of efficiency, effectiveness, and impact 

● Challenge all services we commission, our own workforce and our 
partners to evidence the impact they have.  

 
 

3. Outcomes 
 
Within the resources available to the Committee up to 2020, achieving the following 
outcomes will steer strategic decision making in relation to service delivery and 
investment. 
 

Priority Key Outcomes  

Safeguarding - Children and young people are safe in their homes, schools 
and around the borough, with an ability to develop healthy 
relationships with others. 

- When children are at risk, by intervening early the Council 
will improve outcomes for children, young people and 
families, enabling them to thrive. 

Education Excellent school standards result in all children achieving their 
best, being safe and happy and able to progress to become 
successful adults. 

● Every child attends a good or outstanding school, as 
judged by Ofsted. 

● The attainment and progress of children in Barnet 
schools is within the top 10% nationally. 

● The progress of the most disadvantaged and 
vulnerable pupils is accelerated in order to close the 
gap between them and their peers. 

Health & 
emotional well-
being 

- Children and young people are physically, mentally and 
emotionally healthy. 

- Every child in Barnet has a great start in life, with the 
security and safety to grow in a nurturing environment. 

- Childhood in Barnet is safe and fun, with lots of 
opportunities to grow and develop through education, 
leisure and play. 

- Children and young people feel supported to achieve and 
engage, while developing their identities and resilience. 

Preparation for 
adulthood 

- Young people are ambitious for their futures, ready for 
employment and contribute positively to society. 

- Young people with special educational needs or disabilities 
and their families are able to plan for their future and 
enable growth. 

Parenting - All parents and carers are able to develop high quality 
relationships with their children, establishing effective 
boundaries and support physical and emotional well-being.  

95



 

Libraries - Children benefit from reading, literacy and learning 
opportunities. 

- Adults benefit from reading, learning opportunities and 
easy access to the wider world of knowledge and 
information. 

- A range of outcomes are achieved by community groups 
through community spaces, access and resources. 

 
 
4. About this plan 
 
The commissioning plan has been developed in sections for the following service 
components that make up the Children, Education, Libraries and Safeguarding 
Committee’s remit: 

� Education services. 
� Children with disabilities, special educational needs (SEN) and high 

needs, child and adolescent mental health services (CAMHS). 
� Looked after children and young people. 
� Safeguarding and children in need. 
� Family and youth support. 
� Libraries 
� Cross-cutting. 

 
For each service component, the strategic direction is set out together with the 
commissioning intentions, proposed revenue budget up to 2020, capital 
requirements and the outcomes to be achieved.  

96



 

5. Service component:  Education services 
 
The quality of Barnet’s education offer is one of the key attractions for Barnet 
residents and sustaining this quality is key to Barnet’s ambition for growth. Overall, 
children and young people achieve well in Barnet schools and on leaving school, the 
overwhelming majority of go on to either further study or employment. Within this 
success, our challenge is to ensure that all children and young people benefit and 
make progress, narrowing the gap between groups of pupils who currently do less 
well than their peers, enabling all children to make a successful transition into 
adulthood.  
 
The vast majority of resources for education reside in schools, with governing bodies 
accountable for the quality of the educational provision and the outcomes for their 
pupils.  Schools are becoming increasingly autonomous and more funding and 
responsibilities now sit with schools than ever before. This shift is changing the roles 
and responsibilities of schools and the local authority and the level of funding 
available to the council. The ability of the local authority to fund services to meet its 
remaining statutory duties is therefore being impacted by both the reduction in local 
government funding overall and by a reduction in government grant as individual 
schools convert to Academy status. 
 
In recent years, Barnet schools have been among the best in the country. 
Maintaining this performance is challenging and some recent Ofsted inspections 
have been disappointing. In partnership with schools, we are determined to maintain 
our reputation as among the best education systems in the country. Therefore, 
working with schools, we will develop a new way of delivering education services 
that recognises the changing roles and responsibilities, the financial challenges we 
face and provides the support schools need. We will work with schools to ensure that 
alongside this new model, there is a sustainable, robust school improvement system 
that is led by schools and utilises the expertise of Barnet schools to the benefit of 
each other. 
 
Schools now receive significant additional funding to support groups of pupils such 
as those eligible for free school meals and those looked after, who on average tend 
to do less well than their peers. As part of our role to monitor and challenge schools, 
we will champion the needs of these pupils in particular.  
 
On leaving school, the overwhelming majority of Barnet’s young people are actively 
participating in either higher or further education, training or employment. However, a 
small number find it more challenging to identify a path to employment and we need 
to ensure that there are sufficient opportunities to support, engage and advise this 
group. Conversely, employers tell us that young people are not always equipped with 
the right skills and behaviours for the world of work and we will work with schools to 
help get young people ready. 
 
During the period of this plan, the numbers of pupils in our schools is projected to 
grow and continue to grow into the next decade. We have already provided 4,300 
permanent new school places in the last 5 years and we will continue to invest to 
ensure there are sufficient places for primary and secondary pupils as well as 
specialist provision for children with special educational need.  

97



 

 
For residents this will mean; 

● The retention of Barnet’s high quality education offer through the provision of 
high quality support services to schools 

● Narrowing the gap between groups of children who do less well, such as 
those on free school meals, and their peers 

● More opportunities to access apprenticeships or other vocational pathways to 
employment for a successful transition to adulthood 

● An increase in the number of places available at good or outstanding schools 
 
For providers this will mean 

● Schools playing a central role in the commissioning and delivery of the 
services they need  

● Schools more effectively challenged and supported by their peers and in turn, 
challenging and supporting others 

 
5a. Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 To develop a new delivery model, in 
partnership with schools, to deliver 
cost-effective and sustainable 
education services. 

- New delivery model developed in 
partnership with schools, final 
business case agreed by January 
2015, model operational by October 
2015 

2 The school improvement system will 
ensure that all schools are challenged 
and ambitious for Barnet’s children 
and young people. It will better utilise 
the expertise within the sector in 
Barnet.  

- A schools-led, self-sustaining school 
improvement system in place through 
the development of local School 
Improvement Partnerships of schools 
by April 2015 

3 There are a broad range of 
opportunities available for young 
people post 16 and they are 
supported to make well informed 
choices. 

- Maximise apprenticeship, local labour 
and training opportunities available 
through regeneration and 
development in the borough through 
to 2020 and beyond 

4 Young people are equipped with the 
skills needed by the local, London 
and national labour markets. 

- Promote opportunities for schools and 
employers to work together to 
develop young people’s skills and 
understanding of career pathways 
(through schemes such as "Let's Talk 
Shop) 

5 There is a sufficient supply of school 
places through to 2019/20 and 
beyond.  

- Delivery of new permanent primary 
secondary and special school places 
at a pace and scale to meet demand 
from demographic growth and 
regeneration 

- Admission priority areas for primary 
phase reviewed, first cohort under 
new arrangements by September 
2016. 

98



 

These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Safeguarding 
� Education 
� Health & emotional well-being 
� Preparation for adulthood 
� Parenting 

 
5b. Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 
13/14 

Target - 
19/20  

Percentage of primary schools rated as ‘good’ or 
better 

94% 
(September 
2014) 

increase 

Number & percentage of secondary schools rated 
as rated as ‘good’ or better 

86.4% 
(September 
2014)  

increase 

The percentage of primary pupils reaching 
achieving end of key stage expectations in 
nationally reported subjects- two levels progress in 
reading between key stages 1 and 2 

71.5% 
(2013) 

sustain 

The percentage of primary pupils reaching 
achieving end of key stage expectations in 
nationally reported subjects- two levels progress in 
writing between key stages 1 and 2 

91% 
(2013) 

increase 

Achievement gap between pupils eligible for FSM 
and their peers achieving end of key stage 
expectations in nationally reported subjects 
(Reading Writing and Maths) at Key Stage 2 

18% 
(2013) 

decrease 

Percentage of 17 year olds recorded in education 
and training (Participation rates 17 year olds) (inc 
part time) and Work Based Learning) 

94% 
(2014) 

increase 

Percentage of young people who are not in 
education, employment or training (16 to 18 year 
olds) 

92.3% 
(2013/14) 

sustain 

Persistent absentees as a percentage of all pupils in 
primary schools 

2.6% 
(As at end of 
April 2014) 

reduce 

Persistent absentees as a percentage of all pupils in 
secondary schools 

2.9%  
(2012/13) 

reduce 

Percentage of applicants who are offered a primary 
place at one of their top three schools of preference. 

4.8 
(2013) 

increase 

 
5c. Financial impact 
 
Revenue 
A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this service component is shown 
in the table below: 
 

99



 

 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund budget £2.38m  £1.98m  £1.64m 

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  (£0.4m) (£0.85m) 

Inflation    £0.51m 

Demographic growth    

 
 

In 14/15, the Dedicated Schools Grant budget for this service component was 
£23.4m. 
 
The savings profiled above include a contribution to service wide procurement and 
workforce savings which when fully planned may result in a different attribution.  
A fuller profile of savings and capital expenditure can be found in Appendix B.  
 
Capital  
To provide sufficient school places at primary, secondary and special school places 
up to 2019/20, the capital requirement is estimated to be £115m as set out in the 
report considered by the Children, Education, Libraries and Safeguarding Committee 
on the 15th September 2014 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s17582/Planning%20for%20New%20Sch
ool%20Places%20201516%20to%20201920.pdf  
 
 
  

100



 

6. Service component:  Children with disabilities, SEN and high needs, CAMHS 
 
Reforms set out in the Children and Families Act (2014) challenge professionals to 
change the way in which they work with each other and families, to focus relentlessly 
on improving outcomes for children and young adults with SEND, give children and 
families more control and choice and, critically, to earn their trust and confidence. A 
fundamental change will be extending the system up to 25 years, to achieve a 
holistic vision of development from birth through to their transition into adulthood. 
 
Since September 2014, several core changes have been implemented to support 
this vision including the replacement of Statements of SEN with new birth-to-25 
combined education, health and care plans (ECHP), a right to a personal budget for 
some young people whose needs cannot be met by universal or targeted services 
and a published local offer of services available.  
 
With these changes now in place, the challenge to the Council and its partners in 
Barnet is to embed them in such a way that enables effective relationships of trust 
with families, improves the way in which agencies work together in partnership with 
families and helps young people to achieve more. The 0-25 service should improve 
outcomes and the experience of services for children and young people of all ages 
along with their families, avoiding them having to repeatedly tell their story to 
different professionals.  
With the transfer of public health responsibilities to the local authority and the 
developing joint commissioning relationship with the CCG there is now a strong 
opportunity to improve services in Barnet for children with mental health issues. This 
should strengthen early intervention and prevention services and ensure that 
children and young people who need more support can access it in a timely way in a 
community setting with the minimum disruption to their schooling. 
 
For residents this will mean: 

- Better planning and support to support the growth and development of 
children and young people with disabilities. 

- Greater involvement in the planning of care services. 
- A smoother journey through childhood, adolescence and early adulthood.  
- For mental health services, more community based services that are better 

able to intervene early to stop issues from escalating. 
 
For providers this will mean: 

- A continued shift from out-of-borough provision to Barnet provision. 
- A gradual shift in demand and spend from expensive specialist provision to 

preventative and enabling services. There will always be a demand for high 
quality specialist services.  

- A new specification for child and adolescent mental health services. 
- Reduction in spend on transport services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

101



 

 
 
6a. Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Implement a 0-25 disabilities service 
that better brings together health, 
care and education.  
This should result in growth and 
development better enabled for 
young people with disabilities; 
improved relationships between 
families and the local authority and 
reduced costs to adult social care 
arising from lower care package costs 
for those transitioning. 
 

- Business case for 0-25 service 
presented to committee in spring 
2015. 

- Mobilisation of the new model by 
Autumn 2015. 

- Development of shared decision 
making and funding arrangements by 
March 2016. 

- Some rebalancing of cost from 
expensive specialist provision to 
preventative and enabling services 
commencing from 16/17. 

2 Develop a new specification for child 
and adolescent mental health 
services with the CCG and Public 
Health that invests in prevention and 
early intervention and delivers more 
effective and timely targeted 
interventions. 
This should lead to improved mental 
well-being of children and young 
people and a reduction in demand for 
intensive child and adolescent mental 
health services (tier 3 and 4). 

- New specification for child and 
adolescent mental health services 
developed by April 2015. 

- New specification implemented by 
April 2016 

- More specialist services delivered in 
the community with better outcomes, 
reduced waiting times and improved 
satisfaction by Autumn 2016. 

3 All eligible children and young people 
have a personalised, outcome 
focused Education, Health and Care 
Plan that is regularly reviewed.  
This should result in better co-
ordinated plans that more effectively 
achieve the identified outcomes for 
children and young people. 

- Embedding of new approach that 
strengthens joint planning, review and 
delivery during 15/16. 
 

4 Families of children with additional 
needs have greater choice and 
control over the services included in 
the plan. The new short breaks offer 
will provide greater choice and control 
to families. 

- All families with short breaks to have 
a personal budget and option for a 
direct payment in 15/16. 

- More personalised plans that more 
effectively achieve the identified 
outcomes for children and young 
people. 

5 The local offer for children with SEND 
clearly sets out a comprehensive, up-
to-date range of services. 
This should mean that parents and 
carers are enabled to better plan for 
the future. 

- Embed local offer as tool to support 
better enabling work and life planning 
during 15/16. 

- Use local offer to inform procurement 
and market development to promote 
innovation and improvement in the 

102



 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

 market to best meet the needs of 
local children and young people.  

6 To meet growing demand for school 
places for children with SEND we will 
increase the availability of provision in 
Barnet and seek to ensure 
consistently high quality service by 
making better use of our centres of 
excellence. 

- Higher quality provision leading to 
better educational outcomes. 

- A reduction in specialist and out-of-
borough places. 

- A reduction in SEN transport costs. 

7 Reduce the demand for SEN 
transport through better enabling 
work and reduce the cost through 
more efficient and effective service 
delivery. 
  

- More extensive use of travel training 
by 15/16. 

- Offer personal transport budgets by 
Autumn 15/16. 

- Transport improvement plan by 
Spring 2015 to include more effective 
route planning, use of escorts and 
procuring better value services. 

 
 
These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Safeguarding 
� Education 
� Health & emotional well-being 
� Preparation for adulthood 
� Parenting 

 
6b. Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

% with level 4 or above at KS2 (inc English 
& Maths) - pupils with an EHCP 

52.5% of pupils 
with Statements of 
SEN from 
provisional results 
2013/14 achieved 
a level 4+ in 
Reading, Writing 
and Maths 

Increase 

Percentage achieving 5 or more A* to C 
GCSE (inc English & Maths) - pupils with 
an EHCP. 

9.5% of pupils with 
Statements of SEN 
from validated 
results in 2012/13 
attained 5 A*-C 
incl. English and 
Maths (provisional 
2014 results will be 
available from 
approx. 30th 
September) 

Increase 

Satisfaction of children and parents with New indicator Increase 

103



 

services for disabled children and their 
families. 

Proportion of 18-24 year olds eligible for 
adult social care in education, training or 
employment. 

New indicator Increase 

Proportion of 25-30 year olds eligible for 
adult social care in employment. 

New indicator Increase 

Proportion of 25-30 year olds eligible for 
adult social care in residential or nursing 
care. 

New indicator  Decrease 

Satisfaction of young adults / carers with 
transitions process 

New indicator Increase 

NB: Additional measures may be identified through the development of the 0-25 
disabilities model. CAMHS outcome measures need to be added as part of new 
specification development. 
 
 
6c. Financial impact 
 
Revenue 
A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this service component is shown 
in the table below: 
 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund budget £8.27m  £7.35m  £8.79m  

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  (£0.96m) (£0.03m) 

Inflation  - £0.38m 

Demographic growth  £0.36m £1.09m 

 
In 14/15, the Dedicated Schools Grant budget for this service component was 
£16.8m. 
 
The savings profiled above include a contribution to service wide procurement and 
workforce savings which when fully planned may result in a different attribution.  
A fuller profile of savings and capital expenditure can be found in Appendix B. 

 
Capital 
The capital requirements to provide additional school places for children with Special 
Educational Needs are included in section 5c. above.  

104



 

7. Service component:  Looked after children and young people 
 
Barnet Council will seek to enable children to remain with their families but for those 
that do need to enter the care system we will endeavour to give them a good start in 
life, with a stable home and access to education and other support. There are a 
comparatively low number of looked after children in Barnet when accounting for 
population. However, Barnet is no different to the rest of the country in that those 
that there is a significant gap in educational and other outcomes between those 
under the care of the local authority and the general population.  
 
We seek to increase the overall availability of LBB foster placements by increasing 
the number of approved LBB fostering households and the overall number of 
placements that our fostering households can offer.  The recruitment targets set for 
the service are very challenging and would see Barnet amongst the very best local 
authorities if achieved. We need to improve the ability and confidence of LBB foster 
carers to support children with more complex needs, through targeted recruitment of 
foster carers.  Through a consolidation of our core support offer and the 
development of an enhanced support offer, we seek to offer more placements in-
house that would otherwise have been provided for by independent providers, 
prevent looked after children’s needs from escalating and facilitate the step-down of 
children and young people from residential care into foster placements where 
appropriate. 
 
For some children and young people, their plan of permanence means they exit care 
and are no longer looked after.  We work to support young people back to their 
families’ care wherever possible and are working collaboratively with other services 
to achieve this.  We have seen increasing numbers of looked after children and we 
will review the use of all permanence options to ensure ourselves that we are 
securing the most appropriate permanence options for our looked after children. 
 
For residents this will mean: 

- A greater proportion of children and young people in care living in local, family 
homes. 

- Improved outcomes for children and young people leaving care including 
education, employment and housing.  

- An increased number of local households will be foster carers.  
 
For providers this will mean: 

- Reductions in demand for and spend on external foster care and residential 
placements. 

- Increased spend on wrap-around services to support internal foster carers 
with more complex placements. 

- A continued shift from out-of-borough provision to Barnet provision. 
- For residential providers, a greater focus on enabling and step-down work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

105



 

 
7a. Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Grow and strengthen the in-house foster care 
service. Intervene early to prevent placement 
breakdown through better case management 
and access to a wider range of support 
services.  
This should lead to greater stability of local 
placements in a family home leading to better 
outcomes for looked after children and a 
reduction in the average cost of placements for 
looked after children. 
 

- Consolidate new recruitment 
methods, marketing 
materials and re-designed 
assessment processes in 
15/16. 

- Enhance our support offer to 
foster carers and looked 
after children including the 
commissioning of wrap-
around services by Autumn 
2015.  

- Will significantly shift spend 
from external foster care and 
residential placements to in-
house fostering between 
15/16 and 19/20. 

2 Develop more effective approaches to enable 
appropriate young people to step-down from 
residential to foster care placements. 
More effectively deal with the causes of 
disruptive and challenging behaviour leading 
to better outcomes for looked after children 
and a reduction in the average cost of 
placements for looked after children. 

- Ensure appropriate training, 
performance management 
and contract management 
mechanisms are in place by 
summer 2015. 

- Shift spending from 
residential to fostering 
services from 15/16. 

3 Re-location of one of Barnet’s in-house 
children’s homes to improve the quality of 
facilities.  
Improved aspirations and life outcomes for 
young people resident in the home. 

- Identification of site by 
spring 2015. 

- Design, build, fit-out and 
relocation of home by 2017. 

4 Adoption and other options for permanence 
are secured for a broader range of children, 
especially for older children and those with 
complex needs. 
More children and young people benefit from a 
permanent family environment, children and 
young people spend less time waiting for a 
permanent placement and adopters wait less 
time between approval and placement. This 
should result in a reduced cost of placements 
to the local authority. 

- Review of adoption and 
permanence by Autumn 
2016 including effectiveness 
of sub-regional working 
arrangements.  

5 Develop and enhance the leaving care service 
in partnership with other local agencies. 
This should result in improved life outcomes 
including employment, income, involvement in 
criminal activity and stability of future family life 
and ensure that young people leaving care are 

- Review of service and work 
with partners and agreement 
of improvement plan by 
spring 2015. 

106



 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

able to secure local and appropriate housing. 

6 Improve the educational offer to all our looked 
after children through use of the pupil premium 
and better use of the Virtual School. 
This should result in better educational 
outcomes for looked after children (attainment, 
attendance and transitions). 

- Review of use of pupil 
premium for looked after 
children in 15/16.  

- Delivery of service 
improvement plan arising 
from this review. 

 
These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Safeguarding 
� Education 
� Health & emotional well-being 
� Preparation for adulthood 
� Parenting 

 
7b. Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Number of children adopted  38 
(2013/14) 

Increase 

Average length of care proceedings 
(weeks) 

26  
(2013/14) 

Decrease 

The average time between a child entering 
care and moving in with its adoptive family 
(days) 

590 
(2011-2014) 

Decrease 

Percentage of children in care in LBB 
foster care  

38% 
(March 2014) 

Increase 

Total number of external residential 
placement weeks commissioned 

147.7 
(March 2014) 

Decrease 

Average weekly placement spend (per 
child) for looked after children 

New indicator Decrease 

Percentage of children in care with three 
or more placements during the last 12 
months 

11.9% 
(2013/14) 

Decrease 

The percentage of looked after children 
making the expected level of progress in 
English and Maths between Key Stages 2 
and 4 

11.8% 
(2013) 

Increase 

Proportion of care leavers age 19 – 21 in 
education, employment or training. 

61% 

(March 2014) 

Increase 

Proportion of care leavers age 19 – 21 in 
suitable accommodation 

84.3% 

(March 2014) 

Increase 

 
 
 
 
 
7c. Financial impact 

107



 

 
Revenue 
A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this service component is shown 
in the table below: 
 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund budget £22.30m  £21.98m  £24.15m  

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  (£0.69m) (£2.27m) 

Inflation   £1.01m 

Demographic growth  £0.36m £3.29m 

 
In 14/15, the Dedicated Schools Grant budget for this service component was 
£0.4m. 
 
The savings profiled above include a contribution to service wide procurement and 
workforce savings which when fully planned may result in a different attribution.  
A fuller profile of savings and capital expenditure can be found in Appendix B.  
 
Capital 
The capital requirement for delivering an improved local placement offer for looked 
after children is estimated to be £1.2m up to 2019/20. 
  

108



 

8. Service component:  Safeguarding and Children In Need 
 
We want Barnet to be a place where all children and young people thrive, receive 
protection and feel safe. Effective working between the council, health, the police, 
education and the voluntary sector is essential to achieve this and the Barnet 
Safeguarding Children Board brings these partners together to improve performance 
and practice, ensure safeguarding partners share information, resources and 

expertise and to be relentlessly self‐critical in understanding from our data what 
works and what needs to change and improve. 
 
All safeguarding and early intervention referrals now come through to a single team 
with access to data from a range of partners to enable effective screening and 
ensure the right team respond to concerns. Through a whole family approach we will 
ensure all children in need are given high quality social care support that seeks to 
improve the family environment wherever possible but that intervenes strongly when 
in the best interest of the child.  
 
The Council is committed to safeguarding and protecting children from sexual 
exploitation, neglect and domestic violence and ensuring they are safe online. A 
range of recent reports, wide national media coverage and recent convictions in 
Oxfordshire, Derby and Rochdale highlight that this form of child abuse is often 
hidden from sight and preys on the most vulnerable in our society.  Children and 
young people exploited are subject to significant risks to their physical, emotional 
and psychological wellbeing. We seek to combat child sexual exploitation through 
effective prevention, identification, intervention, disruption and prosecution.  
 
For residents this will mean: 

- A high quality safeguarding service is maintained throughout the period of the 
plan despite financial pressures. 

 
 
8a. Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Through a strong commitment to 
implementing the business plan of the 
Barnet Safeguarding Children Board, 
consolidate safeguarding work across 
the partnership. 
 

- Protect children and young people 
from harm in particular those being 
sexually exploited and neglected and 
for missing children.  

- Better outcomes for children and 
young people at risk of harm through 
better preventative work and earlier 
intervention. 

2 Consolidate and embed the Multi-
Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 
as Barnet’s integrated front door for 
both safeguarding and early help. 
 

- Ensure that all referrals are effectively 
screened in a timely manner and that 
decision making is well informed and 
of a high quality. 

- Use the intelligence developed from 
the MASH to improve service design, 
planning and sign-posting. 

 

109



 

These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Safeguarding 
� Health & emotional well-being 
� Parenting 

 
8b. Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Children made subject to Child Protection 
Plans 

458 Monitor 

Children made subject to CPP for a 
second or subsequent time 

18 Reduce 

Number of children subject to Child 
Protection Plans for 2 or more years 

8.5 
(2013) 

Reduce 

Number of referrals to social care (per 
10,000 of the under-18 population)    

416 
(March 2014) 

Monitor 

Number of single assessments 321 Monitor 

Number of new CAFs opened (by consent 
date) 

468 Increase 

 
8c. financial impact 
 
Revenue 
A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this service component is shown 
in the table below: 
 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund budget £10.50m £10.34m £10.6m 

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  (£0.32m) (£0.98m) 

Inflation  - £0.48m 

Demographic growth  £0.17m  £0.76m 

 
The savings profiled above include a contribution to service wide procurement and 
workforce savings which when fully planned may result in a different attribution.  
A fuller profile of savings and capital expenditure can be found in Appendix B.  
 
  

110



 

9. Service component:  Family and youth support 
 
Barnet Council is committed to an early intervention and prevention model of family 
support to address problems experienced by children and families as early as 
possible to improve outcomes, and to lower costs.  
 
Our principles are to intervene as early as possible, take a whole family approach 
and use evidence based monitoring systems to demonstrate the benefit of 
interventions. Analysis of local data has identified 8 themes or problems which are 
most likely to drive poor outcomes for Barnet families: domestic violence; alcohol 
and/or drug misuse; parent / carer mental health; poor parenting and neglect; 
unemployment; involvement with police; missing from school; and child sexual 
exploitation. Of these, domestic violence, alcohol / drugs and mental health were the 
most prevalent causes of poor outcomes.  
 
Through targeted work with vulnerable families in the last three years, the lives of 
over 300 families have been turned around, and we are now working with an 
additional 400 families – this work has saved the state millions of pounds. On the 
basis of this progress, Barnet has been selected as an early starter for phase II of 
the national Troubled Families programme. The Council will consolidate the learning 
of recent experience to ensure that future targeted family support work can have the 
maximum positive impact for families and help to avoid significant further costs to the 
Council and its partners.  
 
The early years of childhood development present us with the best early intervention 
opportunity across the public sector to improve outcomes for local residents and 
reduce the financial burden on the state. Following an early years review, the council 
and partners have developed a bold vision for early years services, which focuses on 
developing a more flexible, targeted and collaborative model with greater community 
involvement and improved identification and support for vulnerable families. 
 
For residents this will mean: 

- An early years service that integrates universal provision with targeted 
services with a specific focus on improving outcomes for the most vulnerable 
families. 

 
For providers this will mean: 

- A new early years delivery model. 
- A reduction in council spend - predominantly delivered through more efficient 

and effective delivery. 
- An increase in demand for childcare places, especially with the expansion of 

the free entitlement for 2 year olds. 
 
9a. Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 A strengthened early years service 
that integrates universal provision 
with targeted services with a specific 
focus on improving outcomes for the 

- New early years model to launch in 
August 2015 

- Decision on future delivery model – 
October 2015 

111



 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

most vulnerable families.  
Ensure that early years is a priority 
investment area for the ring-fenced 
public health grant. 
Create an early years centre of 
excellence to improve the quality of 
early education across the borough.  
 

- Improved integration with health 
visiting by April 2016 

- Launch of early years centre of 
excellence nursery school model – 
September 2015 

-  

2 To continue with our early 
intervention approach to family 
support. As early implementers of the 
next phase of the Troubled Families 
Programme we will work with an 
expanded cohort of families and seek 
a sustainable funding approach for 
when the grant ceases.  
 

- Implementation of Early Intervention 
Strategy and the next phase of the 
Troubled Families programme during 
15/16. 

- Commissioning strategy for early help 
services agreed by spring 2015. 

3 Increased use of evidence based 
programmes to improve the 
effectiveness and value for money of 
interventions. Rigorously evaluate our 
family support work and ensure 
investment is focused on services 
that demonstrate the highest impact. 

- Development of business case for 
evidenced based programme 
interventions by April 2015. 

- Roll-out of evidence based 
programmes by March 2016. 

- Implementation of improved 
performance framework in 15/16. 

4 Develop Barnet’s partnership 
approach to work with young people 
at risk of involvement in youth 
violence and those already actively 
involved. 

- Commitment to multi-agency working 
group on youth violence.  

5 Work with partners to better support 
young offenders and other high risk 
young people to access education, 
training and employment 
opportunities available in Barnet. 

- Continue to develop support to young 
offenders and other high risk young 
people in education, training and 
employment. 
 

6 Improve working across the public 
sector to achieve better outcomes for 
vulnerable young adults age 16 - 24. 

- Development of opportunities for 
better multi-agency working to reduce 
the longer term costs to the public 
sector, re-offending, long-term 
unemployment and homelessness. 

7 Continue to prioritise detached youth 
work with the most vulnerable young 
people in the Borough through a 
partnership approach. 

- Continue with approach to improve 
life outcomes for young people and 
reduce the longer term costs to the 
public sector.  

 
These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Safeguarding 
� Health & emotional well-being 
� Preparation for adulthood  
� Parenting 

112



 

 
9b. Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

The number of free entitlement early years 
places available for eligible two-year-olds. 

935 
2013/14 

Increase 

Percentage of families  with child/ren 
under 5 within the borough are registered 
and accessing services at children's 
centres 

New indicator Increase 

Percentage of families with child/ren under 
5 within deprived LSOA’s are registered 
and accessing services at children's 
centres 

New indicator Increase 

Number of supported mothers who 
continue to breast feed at 6-8 weeks. 
 

33.3% Increase 

Percentage of childcare settings in the 
borough achieving ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ 
Ofsted judgement’ 

76% 
(March 2013) 

Increase 

Outcome measurements for family and 
targeted youth work 

New indicator New 

New common assessments completed by 
council and non-council teams 

Council – 99  
Non-Council - 369 

Increase 

Proportion of common assessment 
framework episodes closed when family 
needs met. 

227 Increase 

Number of first time entrants to the Youth 
Justice System aged 10 to 17 (per 10,000 
of the population). 

357 
July 2012-June 
2013 

Maintain or 
decrease 

Young offenders in education, training or 
employment  

77% 
March 2014 

Increase 

   

 
 
9c. Financial impact 
 
Revenue 
A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this service component is shown 
in the table below: 
 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund budget £9.49m  £8.62m  £7.28m  

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  (£1.03m) (£2.90) 

Inflation  - £0.60m 

Demographic growth  £0.15m £0.96m 

 

113



 

 
In 14/15, the Dedicated Schools Grant budget for this service component was 
£6.3m. 
 
The savings profiled above include a contribution to service wide procurement and 
workforce savings which when fully planned may result in a different attribution.  
A fuller profile of savings and capital expenditure can be found in Appendix B.  
 
Capital 
The capital requirement to reshape early years provision within the borough is 
estimated to be £3m up to 2019/20.  
 
  

114



 

 
10. Service component:  Libraries 
 
The library service in Barnet is very well thought of by the residents that actively use 
the service and by the general population as a whole. Library buildings often act as 
focal points of community activity but there is potential for further integration of 
services and better use of library spaces to reflect local needs.  
  
The council seeks to increase the opportunities for local people to shape and support 
library services through an expanded range of volunteering roles, advisory groups 
and community recognition schemes. 
 
Barnet’s library service provides children and adults with reading, literacy and 
learning opportunities through reading and learning materials provided for loan and 
library use in traditional print copy as well as through online learning resources.   
We want to ensure that at least 95% of Barnet residents can reach their local public 
library by public transport within thirty minutes. This, along with online access, will 
ensure that knowledge and information that is easily accessible to those that live, 
work and study in Barnet.  
 
Through the development of a new model of library provision, the Council will be 
able to meet current and future financial challenges whilst safeguarding services for 
local people, especially those in more vulnerable groups. 
 
For residents this will mean: 

- The continuation of a comprehensive, efficient and ‘local’ library service but 
with some significant service reductions. 

- Enhanced online library service. 
 
For providers this will mean: 

- Reduction in spend on the library service including on stock purchased. 
 
10a. Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 To deliver a comprehensive and 
efficient library service that best 
meets the demands of residents with 
a significantly reduced budget. 
 

- Recommendations to Committee in 
2015 following consultation. 

- Implementation of proposed approach 
– commencing in summer 2015. 

 
 
These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Health & emotional well-being 
� Libraries 

 
 
 
 
 

115



 

10b. Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Library user satisfaction 93% 
Autumn 2013 

Maintain / 
minimise 
reduction 

Proportion of children and young people 
who believe the library has helped them to 
improve or develop their reading skills 
(October 2013) 
a)KS1 
b)KS2 

a)76.% 
b)90.8% 

Increase 

Volunteer hours worked in Barnet libraries. 3110.55 Increase 

Attended hours of events in libraries New indicator Increase 

 
 
10c. Financial impact 
 
Revenue 
A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this service component is shown 
in the table below: 
 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund budget £4.54m  £4.54m  £1.93m  

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  - £2.85m 

Inflation  - £0.24m 

Demographic growth  - - 

 
 
The savings profiled above include a contribution to service wide procurement and 
workforce savings which when fully planned may result in a different attribution.  
A fuller profile of savings and capital expenditure can be found in Appendix B.  
 
Capital 
The capital requirement to support the modernisation of the library service is 
estimated to be £2m up to 2019/20.  

116



 

11. Service component:  cross-cutting 
 
Across all of the work of the Committee, the Council is committed to listening to the 
voices of children and young people and using them to help shape and design 
service provision. There is also a clear recognition that a highly skilled, motivated 
and well trained workforce will be needed to achieve the outcomes detailed in this 
plan.  
 
The fp and spending review process identified a range of demographic and 
inflationary pressures that the Children, Education, Libraries and Safeguarding 
Committee is likely to face in the period between 2016 and 2020 and as such 
£9.46m has been allocated to meet these. 
 
The Council is committed to improving efficiency wherever possible. Budget 
proposals for 2016-20 include efficiency savings on third party contracts of 
approximately 2% per annum. The overall budget envelope includes provision for 
contract inflation of 2.5% per annum, so this saving could be made either from 
containing inflation on contracts, or through improved contract management and 
negotiation of better rates. 
 
Workforce efficiency savings of approximately 10% of the relevant delivery unit 
employee budgets have also been included. As government funding for local 
government services continues to reduce, all Council delivery units will need to 
review their workforce budgets to ensure that they can improve efficiency by 10% by 
2020. Corporate initiatives such as the review of terms and conditions and the 
unified pay project will support delivery units in achieving this saving. Delivery units 
will also need to review performance management, use of agency staff, 
management layers and productivity to ensure that this saving can be achieved. 
Libraries and early years budgets have not been subject to this 10% saving given the 
other proposal in this plan.  
 
Further savings to be achieved by improving operational efficiency will be 
determined following a review will be undertaken in 2015 to identify specific 
measures but these are likely to include redesigning processes, improved case 
management and improved administration. 
 
For residents this will mean: 

- Services that are designed based on the active involvement of children and 
young people. 

 
For providers this will mean: 

- Continued demands for improved efficiency and the containment of inflation. 
This may require the development of new approaches to meet the same 
needs more effectively. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

117



 

11a. Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Ensure that the voice of children and 
young people contributes to the 
design and delivery of services. 

- Services that better meet the needs of 
children and young people. 

2 Promote and maintain the quality and 
consistency of social and family work.  
Ensure that the workforce 
development programme is focused 
on strengthening the quality and 
consistency of practice. 
 

- Maintain the safety of looked after 
children. 

- Ensure that young people are at the 
centre of planning for their future. 

- High quality decision making. 
- Effective working with families. 
- Improved staff retention. 

3 Constrain inflationary pressure on 
procured goods and services to 0.5% 
from 16/17 – 19/20. 

- Avoidance of cost pressures from 
third party spending. 

4 Improve the efficiency of workforce 
spend. 

- Reduced cost of workforce without an 
impact on other outcomes. 

 
11b. Financial impact 
 
Revenue 
Efficiency savings including workforce and procurement savings have been included 
within each service component. When fully planned, the savings profile may result in 
a different attribution between individual service components. 
 
Capital  
The capital requirement to invest in new information management systems to 
modernise support for youth and family services is estimated to be £650k. 

118



Appendix A4: 
 
Community Leadership Committee Commissioning Plan 2015 - 
2020 
 
1. The context for the development of this plan.    

Public services in England during the decade 2010-2020 face an unprecedented 
challenge as the country deals with the impact of the financial crisis of 2008, 
alongside the opportunities and challenges that come from our changing and ageing 
population.   
 
Despite a growing economy, the UK budget deficit is forecast to be £75bn at the 
2015 General Election, with cuts set to continue to the end of the decade no matter 
who is in Government. At the same time, demand on local services continues to 
increase, driven by a growing population, particularly the number of young and older 
residents. We therefore must plan for the fact that austerity will affect all parts of the 
public sector to the end of the decade and that we will not be able to meet 
increasingly levels of demand from simply doing more of what we are currently 
doing.   
 
The public too, does not expect simply more of the same. Expectations of local 
services are increasing, advances in customer services and technology provides the 
ability to interact with services 24/7. Local residents as a result expect better 
services and more prompt responses from the Council. However satisfaction with the 
Council and local services remains relatively high in Barnet, and over recent years 
resident satisfaction with a number of local services has increases, despite these 
challenges. 
 
In thinking about how the Council lives within its means, the Council needs to 
recognise that residents are also facing wider financial pressures, from high energy 
bills, increasing housing costs, continued wage restraint, and benefit reforms, so the 
ability of many households to absorb the impact of reductions from public sector 
funding through increased financial contributions is constrained.  
 
We can however expect over the duration of this plan that significant opportunities 
will flow from Barnet being part of a growing and arguably booming London 
economy. Unemployment levels have fallen by a third in the last year, the number of 
16-18 year old ‘NEETs’ in Barnet is, at 2.3%, the fourth lowest in England and fewer 
Barnet residents are claiming out-of-work benefits than the London average. This 
plan needs to ensure that all residents of Barnet can benefit from the opportunities of 
growth, whether through new employment opportunities, increased investment in 
infrastructure such as roads and schools, or enjoying new neighbourhoods and 
places in which all people can live and age well. 
 
Barnet Council’s Overarching Approach to meeting the 2020 Challenge 
The Council’s Corporate Plan sets the framework for each of the Commissioning 
Committees five year commissioning plans. Whether the plans are covering services 
for vulnerable residents or about universal services such as the environment and 

119



waste there are a number of core and shared principles which underpin the 
commissioning outcomes.   
 
The first is a focus on fairness: Fairness for the Council is about striking the right 
balance between fairness towards the more frequent users of services and fairness 
to the wider taxpayer and making sure all residents from our diverse communities - 
young, old, disabled, and unemployed benefit from the opportunities of growth.  
 
The Council must ‘get the basics right’ so people can get on with their lives – 
disposing of waste, keeping streets clean, allowing people to transact in more 
convenient ways, resolving issues promptly in the most cost effective way.  
We must shift our approach to earlier intervention and demand management =. 
Managing the rising demand on services requires a step change in the Council’s 
approach to early intervention and prevention. Across the public sector, we need to 
work with residents to prevent problems rather than treating the symptoms when 
they materialise.  
 
The second is a focus on responsibility: Continue to drive out efficiencies to 
deliver more with less= The Council will drive out efficiencies through a continued 
focus on workforce productivity; bearing down on contract and procurement costs 
and using assets more effectively. All parts of the system need to play their part in 
helping to achieve better outcomes with reduced resources.  
 
Change its relationships with residents, with residents working with the Council to 
reduce the impact of funding cuts to services .=In certain circumstances, residents 
will also need to take on more personal and community responsibility for keeping 
Barnet a great place particularly if there is not a legal requirement for the Council to 
provide services. In some cases users will be required to pay more for certain 
services as the Council prioritises the resources it has available.  
 
The third is a focus on opportunity: Prioritise regeneration, growth and 
maximising income – Regeneration revitalises communities and provides residents 
and businesses with places to live and work. Growing the local tax base and 
generating more income through growth and other sources makes the Council less 
reliant on government funding; helps offsets the impact of service cuts and allows 
the Council to invest in the future infrastructure of the Borough.  
 
Redesign service and deliver them differently through a range of models and 
providers = The Council has no pre-determined view about how services should be 
designed and delivered. The Council will work with providers from across the public, 
private and voluntary sectors to provide services which are more integrated, through 
a range of models most appropriate to the service and the outcomes that we want to 
achieve.  
 
Planning ahead is crucial: The Council dealt with the first wave of austerity by 
planning ahead and focusing in the longer-term, thus avoiding short-term cuts - the 
Council is continuing this approach by extending its plans to 2020. 
  

120



2. Committee context 
Barnet is a safe borough with strong, cohesive communities. It is a large diverse 
place, made up of suburban communities as well as 20 town centres. Barnet is the 
second most populous borough in London, with 366,400 residents and 146 different 
languages spoken in our schools. It is a place of growth, with an extra 41,600 people 
expected to live in the borough over the next five years, with the greatest growth 
concentrated in the west. 
 
Over the past 10 years Barnet has become more diverse – 36 per cent of people 
now identify themselves as Black or minority ethnic and the fastest growing ethnic 
group in the borough is the Asian community. Barnet is also home to the country’s 
largest Jewish community, and remains a place where people have positive 
relationships in the community: 83 per cent of residents agree that people from 
different backgrounds get on well together in Barnet. 
 
The Council’s aim is to build on the strong sense of community in Barnet to 
encourage wellbeing, to act early when giving support to the most vulnerable or at 
risk. We will continue to support the work of the police to address anti-social 
behaviour and crime. 
 
The Committee will facilitate the Council’s community leadership role, supporting 
residents and communities to become more active, independent and resilient. This 
will include providing residents with opportunities to take responsibility for their local 
areas, enabling demand on Council services to reduce. 
 
Through the implementation of a new Community Participation strategy, a planned 
programme of engagement with and support for residents and communities will 
mobilise capacity and resources to support the priorities of the Borough. The Council 
will provide cross-cutting support for communities to help reduce demand on Council 
services. 
 
Barnet Council has wide-ranging roles to improve the safety of the Borough, some of 
which fall under the terms of reference of the Community Leadership Committee 
whilst others will be influenced through leadership of the community safety agenda. 
 
The Council, along with its partners on the Safer Communities Partnership, will work 
to ensure that Barnet remains one of the safest boroughs in London. Our Community 
Safety Strategy will focus on supporting victims of crime, managing offenders to 
reduce their offending and directing partnership resources to the high crime and ASB 
areas in the borough.  This strategy is underpinned by commitments to: reduce 
crime; reduce the fear of crime; and, especially, working to support the most 
vulnerable in the community to be free from the fear of crime and anti-social 
behaviour. Domestic Violence and Violence against Women and Girls will remain 
one of the key strategic priorities for the partnership.  
  

121



Outcomes 

 
 

Priority Key Outcomes  

Safe communities Crime levels in the borough remain low and people feel safe to 
live and work in Barnet. 
Victims of crime and anti-social behaviour are well supported. 
Offenders are effectively managed by public sector agencies 
and as a result re-offending rates are low. 
Locations in the borough that experience persistent crime and 
anti-social behaviour are made safer through a partnership 
response. 

Strong 
communities 

Residents and community groups are independent and 
resilient and take on responsibility for their local areas 
Communities are stronger and more cohesive. 
 

Active, involved 
communities 

Residents and community groups are more involved in 
delivering services and functions, in areas where there is a 
clear rationale for this and where the community may be better 
placed to do so 
Residents have more options available for delivery of services 
and outcomes. 

Emergency 
preparedness 

The borough is well prepared for an emergency and responds 
quickly and appropriately when any arise. 
 

 
 
The commissioning plan has been developed in sections for the following service 
components that make up the Community Leadership Committee’s remit: 

� Community Safety. 
� Community Participation 
� Emergency Planning. 

  

122



Service component:  Community Safety 

Community safety is an issue for local authorities along with the police, fire and 
rescue authorities and other partners in the criminal justice system.  Barnet Council 
has wide-ranging roles to improve the safety of the borough some of which fall under 
the terms of reference of the Community Leadership Committee whilst others will be 
influenced through leadership of the community safety agenda. 

Barnet has established effective joint working arrangements through the the Safer 
Communities Partnership and will continue promote the work of the partnership and 
provide it with strategy, policy and operational advice and direction. The Council also 
will lead on performance management and tracking progress of the Safer 
Communities Strategy to hold partners to account to commitments made in the 
strategy. Through an annual analysis of crime and anti-social behavior the Council 
will ensure the partnership remains focused on the right priorities for the borough. 

Residents consistently report that anti-social behaviour is a top concern. Barnet 
Council will contribute to anti-social behaviour strategies through a range of council 
services including lighting, street cleansing, planning and leisure. We will co-ordinate 
actions across the partnership and the council to tackle complex crime and ASB, 
keeping elected members and residents informed on progress.  
 
The CCTV service provides live monitoring and automatic number plate recognition 
across the borough leading to a reduction in crime, reduction in the fear of crime, 
improved detection and sanction rates. The current contract runs until 2019 and 
towards the end of this contract the Council will work hard to identify alternative 
funding sources for this service. 
  
Other important elements of the Council’s contribution to community safety are 
covered in the commissioning plans of other committees, for example safeguarding 
of vulnerable adults and young people and youth offending. 

 

Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Through leadership of Barnet’s Safer 
Communities Partnership provide 
strategic direction to community 
safety and impetus to improve and 
enhance initiatives and services to 
deliver the Safer Communities 
Strategy. 
This should help maintain low levels 
of crime, reduce the fear of crime and 
increase community confidence in the 
police and council responding to anti-
social behaviour and crime. 
 

- Continue to develop community 
leadership role in community safety. 

- Develop strong partnership with the 
Mayor’s Office for Police and Crime. 

123



 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

2 Move the CCTV service to a revenue 
neutral position at the end of the 
current service, preferably through 
the identification of alternative 
funding sources to maintain the 
benefits of service – reduction in 
crime, reduction in the fear of crime, 
improved detection and sanction 
rates. 
 

- Discussions with MOPAC, other 
partners and local businesses – 
increased focus from 2017. 

3 Ensure a co-ordinated partnership 
approach to address anti-social 
behaviour which follows a risk based 
approach.  
 
 

- Effectively implement the Anti-social 
Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 
2014. 

- Introduce a multi-agency approach 
that is victim and community centred, 
to respond to repeat incidents of anti-
social behaviour to include the 
establishment of the Multi-Agency 
Risk Assessment Conference 
(MARAC), Community Trigger and 
Community Remedy. 

4 Ensure a co-ordinated partnership 
approach to address domestic 
violence (DV) and violence against 
women and girls (VAWG) with a clear 
focus on partnership, prevention, 
protection and provision.  
This should mean that more victims 
feel confident in reporting DV and 
VAWG, and therefore an increase in 
reports across the partnership; a 
reduction in repeat DV victims; and 
improved sanction and detection 
rates. 
 
 
 
 

- Ensure effective working across the 
Adults and Children’s Safeguarding 
Boards and the Safer Communities 
Partnership Board. 

 

5 Prevent young people from being 
victims or offenders of crime and anti-
social behaviour (ASB). 
 

- Implementation of the youth violence 
strategy. 

124



 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

6 Ensure a co-ordinated approach to 
the management of offenders to 
reduce re-offending and therefore see 
a reduction in crime and the number 
of victims of crime. 
 

- Establishment an ‘Offender 
Management Strategy’ for the 
borough, to include effective working 
with the new offender management 
services delivered through the 
National Probation Service and the 
Community Rehabilitation Company.  
 

7 Address under-reporting of hate 
crime and for the most vulnerable 
groups. 
 

- Multi-agency review of systems in 
place to encourage and enable the 
reporting of hate crime. 
 

 

These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Safe communities 

� Strong communities 

� Active, involved communities 

� Emergency preparedness 

 

Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Number of repeat victims of domestic 
violence.  

8.9% Decrease 

Domestic violence with injury sanction and 
detection rates. 

55% Increase 

Percentage of people reporting the extent 
to which they are very/fairly worried about 
ASB in their area.  

26% 
(Spring 2014) 

Decrease 

Public confidence in police and council in 
dealing with anti-social behaviour and 
crime issues that matter in their area  

68% 
(Spring 2014) 

Increase 

Number of hate crimes reported 50 Monitor 

Repeat offending of those on the probation 
caseload  

7.7% 
(October 12 – 
September 13) 

Decrease 

Incidence of domestic burglary  20.27 
(March 13 – 
February 14) 

Decrease 

Incidence of violence against the person 
crimes per 1,000 population  

12.53 
(March 13 – March 
14) 

Decrease 

 

 
 

125



 
Financial impact 
A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this service component is shown 
in the table below: 
 

 14/15 15/16   19/20 

General fund 
budget 

£1.2m  £1.2m  £0.3m  

 
 Taking 

account of: 
Taking 
account of: 

Savings  (£m) (£0.8m) 

Inflation  - - 

Demographic 
growth 

 - - 

 

  

126



Service component:  Community Participation 

Through improved Community Participation, Barnet Council aims to:  

• Increase the level of community activity across the borough;  

• Build stronger partnerships between the community and the Council;  

• Coordinate and improve the support the Council gives to communities; and  

• Help the Council take more account of community activity when it makes 

decisions about how it delivers services and outcomes.  

These aims are designed to benefit both the Council and the community by 

increasing residents’ independence and resilience; improving the quality and 

efficiency of services by tailoring them more effectively to people’s needs; and  

reducing demand on the public sector, which will be crucial during times of continued 

austerity.  

Various initiatives are going on across the Council which support this agenda, but 

unless action is taken to bring them together and make them work in a coordinated 

way, the Council will not realise their full benefits. Over the next five years, funding 

restrictions mean that the Council will have to do less in certain areas. To ensure 

Barnet continues to thrive, the Council will need to build stronger relationships with 

the community, share more responsibility, and get local people more involved in 

work to improve outcomes for the Borough.  

Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention Intended impact 

1 Create a clear and coordinated 
package of measures by which the 
Council can support community 
activity, including grant funding, use 
of assets, and officer time. 

- Increase in organised resident and 
community activity 

- Resident and community groups are 
more sustainable 

- Resident and community groups 
have a clear understanding of the 
support available to them from the 
Council, and make use of it 
 

2 Devise a framework coordinating the 
Council’s community engagement to 
make it more targeted and efficient 

- Relationships between the Council 
and the community are strengthened. 

- All engagement routes work to 
promote increased community 
participation 

 

127



 Commissioning intention Intended impact 

3 Agree an implementation plan for the 
transfer of appropriate services or 
functions into community ownership 
or delivery. 

- Voluntary and community groups are 
empowered to deliver services and 
outcomes on the Council’s behalf. 

- Services are available according to 
the most appropriate model to meet 
local need  

- Outcomes are improved for service 
users. 
 

 

These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Strong communities 

� Active, involved communities 

Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Residents responding ‘A great deal/To 
some extent’ to Residents’ Perception 
Survey question: The Council acts on the 
concerns of local residents. 

50% Increase 

Residents responding ‘Very strongly/Fairly 
strongly’ to Residents’ Perception Survey 
question: How strongly do you feel you 
belong to your neighbourhood? 

74% Increase 

Residents responding ‘Strongly 
agree/Tend to agree’ to Residents’ 
Perception Survey question: To what 
extent would you agree or disagree that 
people pull together to help improve their 
area? 

49% Increase 

Residents responding ‘Strongly 
agree/Tend to agree’ to Residents’ 
Perception Survey question: To what 
extent would you agree or disagree that 
your neighbours help each other out when 
needed? 

80% Increase 

Proportion of residents reporting that they 
volunteer at least once a week or once a 
month via Residents’ Perception Survey  

28% Increase 

Number of volunteers working within 
Council services  

New measure Increase 

Take-up of volunteer-led initiatives such as 
Adopt a Place 

New measure Increase 

Number of voluntary and community 
groups registered as suppliers with the 
Council 

New measure Increase 

 

128



Service component:  Emergency planning 

Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention Intended impact 

1 Through joint leadership of the Barnet 
Borough Resilience Forum with 
London Fire Brigade, provide 
strategic and operational direction to 
multi agency partners involved in 
encouraging local communities to 
become involved in emergency 
planning, preparedness and 
response.  
 

- Increase in targeted and accessible 
multi agency publicity to warn and 
inform the public about emergency 
situations occurring in the Borough 

- Increase in public awareness around 
multi agency response during 
emergency incidents 

- Residents have a clear understanding 
of support available to them from the 
Council and other responders during 
an incident but are also encouraged 
to prepare themselves. 

- Encourage individuals and families to 
plan and prepare for likely 
emergencies e.g. evacuation 

- Involve communities in learning to 
work together and respond 
appropriately to a variety of incidents  

-   

2 Working with other responders via the 
BBRF, create impetus to enhance 
initiatives to improve public 
understanding of and involvement in 
emergency planning across the 
Borough. 
 

- Increase public understanding of 
emergency planning and response 

- Increase public involvement in 
emergency planning and response 

- Improve community resilience to 
emergency incidents 

- Residents more aware how to prevent 
certain emergency situations e.g. 
house fires to improve resilience 

-  
-  

129



 Commissioning intention Intended impact 

3 Ensure a multi-agency approach to 
identifying and supporting vulnerable 
residents during emergency 
situations with a clear focus on 
prevention and partnership working 
 
 
 
 

- Information sharing protocols are 
agreed between partner agencies 
to ensure fast and effective 
identification of and response to 
vulnerable people during incidents 

- Partner agencies encourage 
vulnerable people to take up 
existing incentives to improve 
safety and security e.g. LFB 
Home Fire Safety Check 

- Vulnerable residents are aware of 

a range of multi-agency safety 

and security schemes and know 

how to access them to help 

prevent emergencies 

- Vulnerable people feel confident 
to register with Utility companies 
for priority services during 
incidents involving water, gas or 
electricity 
 

 

4 Engage with faith and community 
leaders and groups to ensure they 
understand the role they would play 
in responding to large scale 
emergency situations and are 
involved at the planning stage 

- Council and partners able to message 
large numbers of people within a 
short space of time about potential or 
threatened incidents 

- Building trust and relationships with 
leaders will improve the chances of 
engaging with whole community and 
faith groups 

 

These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
� Safe communities 

� Active, involved communities 

� Emergency preparedness 

Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Communities are better prepared and 

more resilient during incidents   

New measure Increase 

Increased numbers of vulnerable people 

identified quickly and supported during 

emergencies.  

New measure Increase 

130



Measure Baseline – 13/14 Target - 19/20  

Vulnerable people are better prepared and 

aware of the assistance they can expect 

during emergencies 

New measure Increase 

Communities more aware how to prevent 

emergency situations and thereby improve 

community resilience 

New measure Increase 

Increased awareness by residents of multi-

agency emergency planning, 

preparedness and response in future 

citizens panel surveys 

New measure Increase 

Faith and community groups more 

engaged in resilience activities 

New measure Increase 

 

 

131



132

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix A5 – Environment Committee 

Commissioning Plan 2015 - 2020 

1. The Context for the development of this plan.  

 

Public services in England during the decade 2010-2020 face an unprecedented 

challenge as the country deals with the impact of the financial crisis of 2008, 

alongside the opportunities and challenges that come from our changing and ageing 

population.   

Despite a growing economy, the UK budget deficit is forecast to be £75bn at the 

2015 General Election, with cuts set to continue to the end of the decade no matter 

who is in Government. At the same time, demand on local services continues to 

increase, driven by a growing population, particularly the number of young and older 

residents. We therefore must plan for the fact that austerity will affect all parts of the 

public sector to the end of the decade and that we will not be able to meet 

increasingly levels of demand from simply doing more of what we are currently 

doing.   

The public too, does not expect simply more of the same. Expectations of local 

services are increasing, advances in customer services and technology provides the 

ability to interact with services 24/7. Local residents as a result expect better 

services and more prompt responses from the Council. However satisfaction with the 

Council and local services remains relatively high in Barnet, and over recent years 

resident satisfaction with a number of local services has increases, despite these 

challenges. 

In thinking about how the Council lives within its means, the Council needs to 

recognise that residents are also facing wider financial pressures, from high energy 

bills, increasing housing costs, continued wage restraint, and benefit reforms, so the 

ability of many households to absorb the impact of reductions from public sector 

funding through increased financial contributions is constrained.  

We can however expect over the duration of this plan that significant opportunities 

will flow from Barnet being part of a growing and arguably booming London 

economy. Unemployment levels have fallen by a third in the last year, the number of 

16-18 year old ‘NEETs’ in Barnet is, at 2.3%, the fourth lowest in England and fewer 

Barnet residents are claiming out-of-work benefits than the London average. This 

plan needs to ensure that all residents of Barnet can benefit from the opportunities of 

growth, whether through new employment opportunities, increased investment in 

infrastructure such as roads and schools, or enjoying new neighbourhoods and 

places in which all people can live and age well. 

 

133



 

 

Barnet Council’s Overarching Approach to meeting the 2020 Challenge 

The Council’s Corporate Plan sets the framework for each of the Commissioning 

Committees five year commissioning plans. Whether the plans are covering services 

for vulnerable residents or about universal services such as the environment and 

waste there are a number of core and shared principles which underpin the 

commissioning outcomes.   

 

The first is a focus on fairness.  

Fairness for the Council is about striking the right balance between fairness towards 

the more frequent users of services and fairness to the wider taxpayer and making 

sure all residents from our diverse communities - young, old, disabled, and 

unemployed benefit from the opportunities of growth.  

The Council must ‘get the basics right’ so people can get on with their lives – 

disposing of waste, keeping streets clean, allowing people to transact in more 

convenient ways, resolving issues promptly in the most cost effective way.  

We must shift our approach to earlier intervention and demand management =. 

Managing the rising demand on services requires a step change in the Council’s 

approach to early intervention and prevention. Across the public sector, we need to 

work with residents to prevent problems rather than treating the symptoms when 

they materialise.  

 

The second is a focus on responsibility.  

Continue to drive out efficiencies to deliver more with less= The Council will drive 

out efficiencies through a continued focus on workforce productivity; bearing down 

on contract and procurement costs and using assets more effectively. All parts of the 

system need to play their part in helping to achieve better outcomes with reduced 

resources.  

Change its relationships with residents, with residents working with the Council to 

reduce the impact of funding cuts to services .=In certain circumstances, residents 

will also need to take on more personal and community responsibility for keeping 

Barnet a great place particularly if there is not a legal requirement for the Council to 

provide services. In some cases users will be required to pay more for certain 

services as the Council prioritises the resources it has available.  

 

 

134



 

 

The third is a focus on opportunity.  

Prioritise regeneration, growth and maximising income – Regeneration revitalises 

communities and provides residents and businesses with places to live and work. 

Growing the local tax base and generating more income through growth and other 

sources makes the Council less reliant on government funding; helps offsets the 

impact of service cuts and allows the Council to invest in the future infrastructure of 

the Borough.  

Redesign service and deliver them differently through a range of models and 

providers = The Council has no pre-determined view about how services should be 

designed and delivered. The Council will work with providers from across the public, 

private and voluntary sectors to provide services which are more integrated, through 

a range of models most appropriate to the service and the outcomes that we want to 

achieve.  

 

Planning ahead is crucial' The Council dealt with the first wave of austerity by 

planning ahead and focusing in the longer-term, thus avoid short-term cuts - the 

Council is continuing this approach by extending its plans to 2020. 

135



 

 

2. Committee context 
 
The purpose of this environment commissioning plan is to protect and enhance the 

borough's infrastructure alongside the planned growth of homes, businesses and 

population over the coming years. In this context infrastructure refers to services 

such as waste and street cleaning as well as physical assets such as parks and 

highways. 

 
The Environment Committee has specific responsibilities to commission services in 
the following areas: 
 

• Street Scene including pavements and all classes of roads 

• Parking provision and enforcement 

• Road Safety 

• Street Lighting 

• Transport and traffic management including agreement of London Transport 
Strategy-Local Implementation Plan 

• Refuse and recycling 

• Street Cleaning 

• Waste Minimisation 

• Waterways 

• Allotments 

• Parks and Open Spaces 

• Fleet Management 

• Trees 

• Cemetery and crematorium and Mortuary 

• Trading Standards 

• Contaminated land and all statutory nuisances. 

• Flood Risk Management (scrutiny aspect) 

• Council highways functions (including highways use and regulation, access to 
the countryside, arrangements and extinguishment of public rights of way) 
which are limited to 

o creating, stopping up and diverting footpaths and bridleways 
o asserting and protecting public rights to use highways 
o removing things deposited on highways which cause nuisance 

• Gaming, entertainment, food and miscellaneous licensing in so far as not 

otherwise the responsibility of the Licensing Committee or the Licensing Sub-

Committee, and Health and Safety regulation (otherwise than as an 

employer). 

Committee narrative 

This section sets out the overarching objectives of the Environment Committee. 

Section 1 sets out the high level vision and strategic outcomes the Committee may 

focus on, and section 2 describes how the services within the Committee’s remit 

could look from a residents’ perspective 2020, should the vision be realised. 

136



 

 

1. OBJECTIVES OF THE COMMITTEE 

Based on what we know already about environmental services in Barnet, we can 

identify the following emerging strategic priorities for the Environment Committee: 

- Driving an increase in overall resident satisfaction with Barnet as a 

place to live to amongst the highest of any Outer London borough 

- Facilitating economic growth and the success of residents, and 

removing any barriers or unnecessary costs to growth for successful 

local businesses 

- Increasing recycling rates and minimising tonnages collected  

- Meaningful and on-going engagement with residents across the borough 

around waste minimisation activity resulting in changing resident 

behaviour and high levels of satisfaction with the service 

- With the help of residents Protecting, conserving and enhancing green 

space and the leafy character of Barnet for current and future generations 

- Supporting and improving the health and wellbeing of the population, by 

providing safe green spaces to play, participate in sports and physical 

activity, walk and cycle 

- Ensuring that Highway services in the borough – including both roads and 

pavements – are maintained to a high quality, and that improvements 

in quality and capacity are focused on areas where highest growth is 

expected, and of highest strategic importance. Always focusing on 

safety in every aspect of service delivery 

- Making Regulatory services high quality and efficient, whilst prioritising 

attention on key risks to health and safety, so that they do not impose 

unnecessary costs or burdens on businesses  who want to grow or 

relocate to the Borough 

- Delivering Cemeteries and Crematoria Services that are high quality and 

efficient, and respond to changing resident preferences in dealing with 

the deceased respectfully. 

Taking into account these objectives, we can describe the overall vision for 

Environmental Services in Barnet as: 

“Barnet is a place that supports growth in a way that allows both 

existing and future residents to succeed, and which drives 

satisfaction with the Borough as a place to live to amongst the 

highest in the country” 

2. ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES IN 2020 – PEN PORTRAIT 

Barnet in 2020 has developed a reputation as a place where growth and physical 

change happens in a way that allows current and future residents to prosper in a 

pleasant and well managed environment. This approach has has driven resident 

137



 

 

satisfaction with Barnet to amongst the highest in the country. The borough’s 

environmental services are fully aligned around delivering sustainable growth 

efficiently, including waste management, street cleansing, parks and green spaces, 

highways, regulatory services including Environmental Health, and cemeteries and 

crematoria. 

Barnet in 2020 is one of the cleanest boroughs, with high quality, efficient, and 

responsive waste collection and disposal services, and amongst the lowest level of 

littering in London. Waste services have a well-articulated purpose not just in a 

narrow operational terms but also as an enabler of a more attractive, successful 

place to live, work and invest, and as a driver of local growth and employment.  

Barnet has remodelled the overall waste “offer”, prioritising prevention, behaviour 

change, and recycling. As a result, residents in Barnet are engaged with waste 

issues and have amongst the highest recycling rates in London, and one of the 

lowest levels of waste per resident of any outer-London borough.  

Levels of street cleanliness have been maintained through improved approaches 

including increased education and prevention through targeted enforcement and the 

flexible use of resources applied where required. 

The level of fly tipping in the borough is at a historical low, with residents, the 

Police, businesses, and community groups all actively engaged with and supporting 

the council to quickly identify and remove fly tipping, and an active process of 

business engagement and enforcement activity in place resulting in this being the 

third year in a row where the level of fly tipping in the borough has experienced a 

decline.  

The significant issues we had in the borough of owners failing to clean up after their 

dogs has been significantly improved by the range of initiatives under taken by the 

Council. Responsible dog owners have welcomed the introduction of dog walking 

areas in parks and the campaign to encourage owners to clean up after their 

animals. Reductions of fouling have occurred following the introduction of targeted 

enforcement patrols in parks and town centres, combined a systematic programme 

of behaviour change and resident communications.  

Barnet’s green spaces are widely recognised as some of the best around, effectively 

combining a well-conserved green and leafy character with strong community links 

and a focus on delivery of wider health, social, and economic outcomes. We are 

interested in exploring the London Mayor's idea (in the 2050 infrastructure plan) for a 

new regional park in the heart of Barnet. This could help us preserve the green 

nature of Barnet for the long term.  The eastern part of the borough contains a string 

of medium-sized, high quality parks that serve a variety of roles; providing recreation 

space, improving health and wellbeing, and creating places where different 

communities can come together and experience “park gate moments” and other 

high quality social interaction. In the West, parks have been pivotal in creating 

138



 

 

successful new communities and balanced, high quality urban space in Colindale 

and Brent Cross. Green space, including Barnet’s significant and unique area of 

central green belt, are a compelling part of the Barnet story, attracting people to 

come here to live, work and raise a family, and driving a level of resident satisfaction 

that is now at an all-time high.  

Whilst some of the borough’s parks and green spaces are still run directly by the 

council, wider community partners play a bigger role in their ownership, day to 

day operations, and in attracting and defining how capital investment is spent. In 

areas of high growth, particularly in and around the Borough’s successful 

regeneration schemes, local residents are engaged with the ownership, design, 

management and operations of parks, building on the successful approach 

developed in Millbrook Park. 

As the borough grows and evolves this is placing new demands in existing 

infrastructure, highways and pavements are being maintained to a high 

standard, with complaints relating to potholes and surface condition at a three year 

low, and areas of high growth and strategic importance being progressively 

upgraded and improved to reflect higher levels of use – especially in areas of high 

growth and regeneration, greater footfall, and rising resident, business and visitor 

expectations about the quality of these vital assets. Travellers and commuters are 

able to get around Barnet quickly, efficiently and safely at any time of the day, 

with traffic flow continually optimised and capacity being upgraded.  

Growth in the size of Barnet’s population and economy has resulted in an increase 

in the number of small businesses in the Borough, who are attracted by the 

growing size of the internal market and a highly positive business atmosphere that 

has been cultivated by the council and its strategic partners. The council’s regulatory 

services, including environmental health, licencing, and trading standards are 

ensuring that this growth happens safely and in a way that protects residents 

and consumers, whilst also focusing relentlessly on their own efficiency, and 

on minimising the amount of red tape and bureaucracy that local business are 

required to go through in order to succeed. 

Cemeteries and crematoria in the borough are providing an extremely high quality 

of service for residents, and is evolving as preferences for burial and 

cremation change through greater use of green burials for example. The quality of 

cemeteries is being improved by increasing engagement from community 

groups such as the “friends of Hendon Cemetery”, supporting both community 

engagement, resident satisfaction, and improving the efficiency of the service 

overall. 

139



 

 

3. Outcomes 
Within the resources available to the Committee up to 2020, achieving the following 
outcomes will steer strategic decision making in relation to service delivery and 
investment. 
 

Priority Key Outcomes  

Parking Parking is an important service to residents. An 
improvement programme has created a more 
efficient parking database for permits and PCNs, a 
new Parking Policy and web-enabled new GIS 
parking system which displays all of our parking 
restrictions and parking bays. 

Waste and recycling Barnet has amongst the highest levels of recycling 
and the lowest levels of waste compared with 
similar councils. This results in high levels of 
resident satisfaction and maintains the green and 
clean nature of the borough 

Parks and green spaces Barnet is seen as a national leader in developing 
attractive suburban parks with its communities 
that promote health and wellbeing, conserve the 
natural character of the area, and encourage 
economic growth 

Street cleansing Barnet has amongst the lowest levels of littering 
compared with similar councils. This results in 
high levels of resident satisfaction and maintains 
the green and clean nature of the borough 

Cemetery and crematoria 
Barnet has a cemetery and crematoria service 
that delivers the highest possible standards in 
meeting the needs of the bereaved safely. This 
includes services including administration, burial, 
cremation, memorial management, and ground 
maintenance and cremation memorial options. 

Highways 
Highways and network management in Barnet 
delivers a high quality, responsive service that 
optimises travel times across the borough by both 
roads and pavements, is safe for users, and 
reflects the growing nature of the borough 

Regulatory services 
Regulatory Services in Barnet are effective, 
targeted, proportionate and easy to access and 
navigate by users. Breaches in regulatory services 
are effectively and efficiently enforced and costs 
recovered by the council. Regulatory services are 
directly contributing to public health and improved 
public safety. 

Efficiency and holding Many of the services within the remit of this 
committee are delivered through contractual 

140



 

 

Priority Key Outcomes  

providers to account relationships.  It is important to ensure that these 
providers are held to account to deliver what is 
required at the cost expected. 

 
4. About this plan 
 
This commissioning plan has been developed in sections for the following service 

components that make up the Environment Committee’s remit: 

• Parking 

• Waste and recycling 

• Parks and green spaces 

• Street cleansing 

• Cemetery and crematoria 

• Highways 

• Regulatory services 

For each service component, the strategic direction is set out together with the 

commissioning intentions, proposed revenue budget up to 2020 and the outcomes to 

be achieved.  

  

141



 

 

5. Service component:  Parking 
 
This element of the commissioning plan has been developed from the foreword from 
the consultation draft Parking Strategy – it needs to be reviewed in light of 
consultation responses to the Strategy, which is still on-going. The results of 
consultation will be reported to committee on the 18th November 2014. 
 
Driving and parking in London is a highly emotive subject, with the demands of the 
motorist to get their destination quickly and parking easily competing with need for 
better air quality, pedestrian safety, traffic control and a finite supply of parking 
spaces.  
 
The London Borough of Barnet’s Parking Policy seeks to balance a number of these 
conflicting demands and priorities. In acknowledging that Barnet is a diverse borough 
with complex traffic and congestion matters, our Parking Policy does not offer “one-
size fits all” solution.  
 
The borough’s road transport emissions are currently among the highest in London 
with exhaust emissions from standing traffic being a major contributor to air pollution 
which is damaging our health. Unusually for a London Borough we have a high 
number of town centres which we aim to keep vibrant and diverse and encourage 
people to visit. We also have a population that has on average over one car per 
household and who want to park easily and near their home.  
 
Our aims are to: -  
 

• keep traffic moving, 

• making roads safer 

• reduce air pollution, 

• ensure as much as possible that there are adequate parking places available 
on the high street and 

• that residents can park as near as possible to their homes. 
 
To support these aims we need robust traffic management for our road network and 
effective but fair enforcement. We acknowledge that the availability and pricing of 
parking has an impact on attractiveness of our town centres and so plan to set 
different prices for on-street parking across the borough.  
 
This builds on a review of high street car parking undertaken from late 2012 where 
new prices and where possible, some free short stay parking areas have meant 
parking numbers on the high street have increased. The Council needs to ensure 
there is a steady turnover of motorists to support local trade. If shoppers drive to 
their local town centres to discover that there is nowhere to park, they may not 
return.  
 
In order to ensure a steady turnover of parking spaces in our town centres we will set 
pricing to ensure spaces regularly become free for new shoppers. We are proposing 
that prices are set at a level that aspires to an occupancy rate of 85 per cent of 
parking spaces being on average occupied, meaning that on high streets parking 
spaces are available at all but the busiest times.  

142



 

 

 
We have a number of Controlled Parking Zones and use them to not only ease 
congestion but also aim to ensure parking is available for residents. These will 
continue to be used and enforced appropriately.  
 
We aim to increase the availability of funding to implement traffic management 
improvements in and around our schools. This will include taking positive action to 
prevent any parent parking, promote car sharing and improve cycle parking facilities 
and will encourage more children to walk and cycle to and from school.  
 
Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Outsourced service contributing to 
£5.9 m per annum savings whilst 
improving performance and overall 
quality of the service and delivering 
our aims to: - 

• keep traffic moving, 
• make roads safer, 
• reduce air pollution, 
• ensure as much as possible 

that there are adequate 
parking places available on 
the high street and 

• • that residents can park as 
near as possible to their 
homes. 

Parking Database with improved 
customer experience with online permit 
and PCN transactions 

Fully consulted Parking Policy agreed by 
Members 

Full borough survey of all signs, lines 
and bays to eradicate all TMO errors and 
mapped into Parkmap/Traffweb GIS map 
system 

Traffweb customer portal for GIS map 
showing all Traffic management orders 
online and including smart phone friendly 
and consultation functionality. 

Customer service Code of Conduct 
review of NSL’s approach to 
enforcement including all non-statutory 
correspondence for PCN’s 

Transparent Contract Management – 
Publish Contract Performance 
information 

My account for parking transactions and 
information dashboard interfaced with 
the parking permit and PCN database 

 
Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 
13/14 

Target - 
19/20  

Increased parking in town centres (on street) 1,633,986 
2013/14 

1,715,865 

Increased parking in town centres (car parks) 275,283 
2013/14 

289,047 

% satisfaction (parking) 23%  
2013/14 

Meeting 
London 
average 

143



 

 

satisfaction 

Response processing in time 99% 2013/14 99% 

% concerned about traffic congestion 18% 
Spring 2014 

Meeting 
London 
average 

 
 
 
Financial impact 
The outline budget plan to achieve the £5.9 million saving is shown below. The final 
column indicates the budget position achieved after implementing the MTFP and 
proposed Priority and Spending Review Transformation Proposals and shows the 
costs of inflation and demographic pressures. A summary of the change in net 
revenue budget for this service component is shown highlighted in the table below: 
 

  MTFP PSR 

Service Area 
2014/15 budget 

(£'000) 

Planned Suggested 

2015/16 budget 
(£'000) 

2019/20 budget 
(£'000) 

Waste Collection 
(Expenditure) 

10,005 9,747 9,017 

Waste Collection (Income) (4,781) (5,208) (5,978) 

NLWA Waste Levy 
(Disposal) 

11,324 13,776 15,209 

Parks (Expenditure) 6,691 6,531 5,781 

Parks (Income) (1,559) (1,659) (1,759) 

Street Cleansing 
(Expenditure) 

4,215 3,665 3,265 

Street Cleansing (Income) (40) (40) (40) 

Contracts & management  
(expenditure) 

7,316 7,039 6,634 

Contracts & management  
(income) 

- (80) (80) 

SUB TOTAL 33,171 33,771 32,049 

Inflation - - 2,163 

Demographic pressure - - 360 

TOTAL 33,171 33,771 34,572 

    

Special Parking Account 
(SPA) 

-7,381 -7,421 -7,571 

 
 

144



 

 

6. Service component:  Waste and Recycling 
 
Waste Futures Summary 

The waste sector as a whole continues to face a number of policy and cost 

challenges including the achievement of 50% recycling by 2020, potentially higher 

recycling targets for 2030 set by the EU, and the prospect of restrictions on the end 

disposal of certain waste types, for example landfill bans. 

The focus of the approach around waste and recycling will be on enabling residents 

to change behaviours in relation to waste collection and disposal, to ensure food 

waste is minimised, recycling is maximised, and to reduce the total amount of waste 

produced by each household in the Borough to the lowest level possible. 

The waste service continues to work in partnership with the North London Waste 

Authority (as the statutory waste disposal authority) to ensure that a ‘whole systems’ 

approach is delivered in order to avoid ‘cost shunting’ between disposal and 

collection. 

3. WHAT IS THE WASTE AND STREET CLEANING SERVICE FOR? 

Based on what we know already about Barnet’s waste service, and subject to further 

evidence review and analysis, we can suggest the following emerging strategic 

priorities for delivery by 2020: 

- Increasing recycling rates and minimising tonnages collected to the best 

10% compared with our statistical neighbours in London and nationally. 

- Meaningful and on-going engagement with residents across the borough 

around waste issues resulting in changing resident behaviour and high levels 

of satisfaction with the service and Barnet as a whole. 

- High quality services maintained whilst reducing unit costs to the lowest 

amongst Barnet’s statistical neighbours. 

- Working with our partners within and outside of London, reliance on landfill 

is reduced to almost zero, and all waste is treated as close to its point of 

collection as possible. 

- Delivering a financially sustainable trade waste service that supports local 

businesses to succeed, and is not a bottleneck to growth. 

- The link between economic growth and increases in the volume of waste 

generated has been broken. Products from waste treatment (e.g. metal) 

are recirculating in the economy, boosting growth, and being used to 

generate electricity. 

- Management of the waste production chain in the Borough to prevent fly-

tipping of waste including as appropriate the use of enforcement. 

Taking into account these objectives, we can describe the overall vision for waste in 

Barnet as: 

145



 

 

“Barnet has amongst the highest levels of recycling and the lowest 

levels of waste and littering compared with similar councils. This results 

in high levels of resident satisfaction and maintains the green and clean 

nature of the borough” 

 
Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Reuse, recycle or compost  50% of 
all household waste by 2020. 

Develop new waste strategy 

 Minimise the amount of municipal  
waste being sent to landfill 

Develop new waste collections offer to 
deliver improved recycling including 
garden waste recycling 

 Provide a waste collection service 
that is accessible and easy to use,  
that  encourages residents to 
recycle their waste effectively 

Options analysis and delivery plan for 
revised Trade Waste offer 

 Provide waste services to local 
businesses that are cost effective 
and that allows them to manage 
their waste sustainably. 

Review and implement (in partnership 
with NLWA) new transparent 
arrangements for re-charging the cost of 
disposal & treatment of recyclables and 
residual waste. 

 Alternative delivery model 
contributing to £5.9m per annum 
savings by 2019/20 whilst improving 
performance and overall quality. 

Options appraisal and delivery plan for 
potential transfer of CARC to NLWA 

 Encourage residents to change 
behaviours in relation to waste 

Develop and implement waste 
minimisation and resident  engagement 
plan  

 
Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 
13/14 

Target - 
19/20  

Waste tonnage - residual per household  639 kgs per 
HH 

502 kgs per 
HH 

Waste tonnage- recycling per household 365 kgs per 
HH 

502 kgs per 
HH 

Increase the percentage of household waste sent 
for reuse, recycling and composting 
[CPI] 

36.35% 
2013/14 

50% 

% Satisfied (refuse and recycling) 
[CPI] 

79 % 
Spring 2014 

85% 

Recycling participation rate First baseline 
survey due 

To be 
developed 

146



 

 

Autumn  
2015 

from the 
baseline 
survey 

 
Financial impact 
The outline budget plan to achieve the £5.9 million saving is shown below. The final 
column indicates the budget position achieved after implementing the MTFP and 
proposed Priority and Spending Review Transformation Proposals and shows the 
costs of inflation and demographic pressures. A summary of the change in net 
revenue budget for this service component is shown highlighted in the table below: 
 

  MTFP PSR 

Service Area 
2014/15 budget 

(£'000) 

Planned Suggested 

2015/16 budget 
(£'000) 

2019/20 budget 
(£'000) 

Waste Collection 
(Expenditure) 

10,005 9,747 9,017 

Waste Collection (Income) (4,781) (5,208) (5,978) 

NLWA Waste Levy 
(Disposal) 

11,324 13,776 15,209 

Parks (Expenditure) 6,691 6,531 5,781 

Parks (Income) (1,559) (1,659) (1,759) 

Street Cleansing 
(Expenditure) 

4,215 3,665 3,265 

Street Cleansing (Income) (40) (40) (40) 

Contracts & management  
(expenditure) 

7,316 7,039 6,634 

Contracts & management  
(income) 

- (80) (80) 

SUB TOTAL 33,171 33,771 32,049 

Inflation - - 2,163 

Demographic pressure - - 360 

TOTAL 33,171 33,771 34,572 

    

Special Parking Account -7,381 -7,421 -7,571 

 
Capital requirements:  
 

Proposal Proposal 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Bin renewals 625 125 125 125 125 125 

Refuse collection vehicle 
renewals 

2,000     2,000 

TOTAL Street scene £ 2,635      

 
 

147



 

 

7. Service component:  Parks and Green Spaces 
 
Parks Summary 

Parks and Open Spaces have a really positive impact on the quality of life of Barnet 

residents. However, it is too simplistic to assume this can be achieved without 

regular and targeted intervention that begins with a clear vision of what we want from 

our parks and open spaces and includes investment and proactive management of 

the asset. This falls clearly within the commissioning role of Barnet Council. 

With a clearly defined strategy the parks service can begin to address strategic 

issues such as developing a stronger asset management approach for managing the 

buildings and facilities provided within our parks and open spaces, and attracting 

much needed new investment, which together should drive increased usage, 

improve utilization across the parks service portfolio and thereby increase income 

opportunities as well as provide basic better value for money.  

There are also opportunities to attract new capital and a little revenue funding 

particularly with regeneration match money, and the service needs to develop the 

capacity to work with funding partners such as the Football Foundation to invest in 

new high quality artificial pitches that will deliver a revenue return to the Council. 

4. WHAT ARE PARKS AND GREEN SPACES FOR? 

Based on what we know already about Barnet’s parks and green spaces, and 

subject to further evidence review and analysis, we can suggest the following 

emerging strategic priorities: 

- Protecting, conserving and enhancing green space and the leafy character 

of Barnet for current and future generations 

- Keeping our air and water clean, counteracting the damaging effects of 

pollution. 

- Playing a vital role in flood risk management in terms of drainage and run-

off by providing porous surfaces and water storage areas. 

- Supporting and improving the health and wellbeing of the population, by 

providing safe spaces to play, participate in sports and physical activity, walk 

and cycle. 

- Maintaining and boosting Barnet’s reputation as a leafy borough and as a 

good place to live, work, and raise a family 

- Improving resident satisfaction with Barnet as a place to live and with the 

council 

- Involving communities (residents of all ages and backgrounds, 

businesses and community groups) in the maintenance and development 

of green spaces assets, including greater use of parks as multi-functional 

spaces by schools for subjects like PE and science. 

148



 

 

- Where there are new developments in the borough they will play a critical role 

in creating new self-maintained green spaces and (in the appropriate 

circumstances) contribution to the improvement of existing green spaces.  

- Creating places where small businesses and cultural activities are 

enabled to thrive. 

- Promoting economic growth that is balanced and also of direct benefit to the 

local community 

- Protecting and conserving biodiversity. Parks and the Borough’s area of 

Green Belt offer refuges for threatened species. 

Taking into account these objectives, we can describe the overall vision for green 

spaces in Barnet as: 

“Barnet is seen as a national leader in developing attractive suburban 

parks with its communities that promote health and wellbeing, conserve 

the natural character of the area, and encourage economic growth” 

Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Create a high quality physical 
environment that contributes to the 
quality of life of residents and 
visitors 
 

Develop Parks & Open Spaces Strategy 

 Manage and maintain parks and 
open spaces that support healthy 
living and contribute to building a 
thriving local economy 

Develop asset management and parks 
investment strategy 

 Work with partners to secure  
investment in  new  public spaces 

Complete relevant master plans for 
identified priority parks 

 Implement relevant delivery models 
that deliver a stable and sustainable  
financial position 

Complete sports pitches assessment 

 Build stronger local communities by 
promoting volunteering and other 
forms of community engagement 

Revised Events policy for Parks 

 Alternative delivery model 
contributing to £5.9m per annum 
savings by 2019/20 by 2019/20 
whilst improving performance and 
overall quality. 

Develop alternative delivery model 
options for grounds maintenance 
services 

Consider alternative delivery models for 
Parks and Green Infrastructure  

 

149



 

 

Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 
13/14 

Target - 
19/20  

% satisfied (parks, playgrounds and open spaces) 69% 
Spring 2014 

75% 

% satisfied (parks, playgrounds and open spaces) - 
users 

74% 
Spring 2014 

80% 

% of Households which have used Parks, 
Playgrounds or open spaces in the last 12 months 

84% 
2013/14 

90% 

Measure of revenue return on parks capital value Appropriate measures and 
baselines to be established as 
part of the parks strategy 
development 

 
 
 
Financial impact 
The outline budget plan to achieve the £5.9 million saving is shown below. The final 
column indicates the budget position achieved after implementing the MTFP and 
proposed Priority and Spending Review Transformation Proposals and shows the 
costs of inflation and demographic pressures. A summary of the change in net 
revenue budget for this service component is shown highlighted in the table below: 
 

  MTFP PSR 

Service Area 
2014/15 budget 

(£'000) 

Planned Suggested 

2015/16 budget 
(£'000) 

2019/20 budget 
(£'000) 

Waste Collection 
(Expenditure) 

10,005 9,747 9,017 

Waste Collection (Income) (4,781) (5,208) (5,978) 

NLWA Waste Levy 
(Disposal) 

11,324 13,776 15,209 

Parks (Expenditure) 6,691 6,531 5,781 

Parks (Income) (1,559) (1,659) (1,759) 

Street Cleansing 
(Expenditure) 

4,215 3,665 3,265 

Street Cleansing (Income) (40) (40) (40) 

Contracts & management  
(expenditure) 

7,316 7,039 6,634 

Contracts & management  
(income) 

- (80) (80) 

SUB TOTAL 33,171 33,771 32,049 

Inflation - - 2,163 

Demographic pressure - - 360 

TOTAL 33,171 33,771 34,572 

    

Special Parking Account -7,381 -7,421 -7,571 

150



 

 

 
 
Capital requirements: 
 

       

Proposal Proposal 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Green spaces & Streets 
Vehicles (street sweeping, grass 
cutting etc) 

3,110 1,360 100 750 100 800 

Parks Infrastructure 3,900 780 780 780 780 780 

TOTAL Street scene £ 7,100      

151



 

 

8. Service component:  Street Cleansing 
 
Borough Cleanliness 
 
Borough cleanliness remains an important priority for the council and Street Scene 
services given the role it plays in driving public satisfaction with the local 
environment. 

The way streets and other public spaces are cared for has an impact on every 
household within the borough, the success of businesses operating in the locality 
and the attraction of visitors to the area. The quality of the local environment, in 
particular the standard of street cleansing, is one of the main barometers used by the 
public to judge how well an area is being managed and its suitability as a place in 
which to live, work or visit 
 
There is a strong correlation between the standards of cleanliness in the local 
environment and the overall satisfaction with local services, the fear of crime and the 
perception of the Council itself.  
 
The cleansing service needs to continue to maintain a focus on cost efficiency and 
this can best be achieved by developing an ‘intelligence-led’ approach to deploying 
resources to match those periods during the day where footfall and therefore litter 
are at their peak, and by focusing on encouraging some residents and visitors to 
change their behaviour in relation to littering and street cleanliness.  

Our priorities include: 

- Maintaining the green and pleasant nature of the borough by reducing the 

amount of litter and detritus to the lowest level in London. 

 

- Using encouragement, behaviour change and, where necessary, 

enforcement to persuade litterers to not drop litter in the Borough, including 

chewing gum and dog fouling. 

 

- High quality services maintained whilst reducing unit costs to the lowest 

amongst Barnet’s statistical neighbours. 

 
Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Maintenance of a clean and well-
cared for local environment, and 
public spaces, that enhance local 
areas and support economic well-
being. 

Develop new Borough Cleanliness 
Strategy (BCS) 

 Relevant and targeted enforcement 
that promotes prevention of forms of 
anti-social behaviour. 

Refresh enforcement policy to support 
delivery BCS 

152



 

 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

 Build stronger local communities by 
promoting volunteering and other 
forms of community engagement 

Develop and implement new Target 
Operating Model (TOM )for street 
cleansing services 

 Alternative delivery model 
contributing to £5.9m per annum 
savings by 2019/20 whilst improving 
performance and overall quality. 

Develop alternative delivery model 
options for street cleansing services 

 
Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 
13/14 

Target - 
19/20  

% satisfied (street cleansing) 56% 
Spring 
2013/14 

70% 

% of unacceptable levels of litter 8% 

Q3 13/14 

3% 

% of unacceptable levels of detritus 24.5%  

Q3 13/14 

10% 

% concerned about litter/ dirt in streets (in top 3) 19% 
Spring 2014 

10% 

 
 
Financial impact 
The outline budget plan to achieve the £5.9 million saving is shown below. The final 
column indicates the budget position achieved after implementing the MTFP and 
proposed Priority and Spending Review Transformation Proposals and shows the 
costs of inflation and demographic pressures. A summary of the change in net 
revenue budget for this service component is shown highlighted in the table below: 
 

  MTFP PSR 

Service Area 
2014/15 budget 

(£'000) 

Planned Suggested 

2015/16 budget 
(£'000) 

2019/20 budget 
(£'000) 

Waste Collection 
(Expenditure) 

10,005 9,747 9,017 

Waste Collection (Income) (4,781) (5,208) (5,978) 

NLWA Waste Levy 
(Disposal) 

11,324 13,776 15,209 

Parks (Expenditure) 6,691 6,531 5,781 

Parks (Income) (1,559) (1,659) (1,759) 

Street Cleansing 
(Expenditure) 

4,215 3,665 3,265 

Street Cleansing (Income) (40) (40) (40) 

153



 

 

Contracts & management  
(expenditure) 

7,316 7,039 6,634 

Contracts & management  
(income) 

- (80) (80) 

SUB TOTAL 33,171 33,771 32,049 

Inflation - - 2,163 

Demographic pressure - - 360 

TOTAL 33,171 33,771 34,572 

    

Special Parking Account -7,381 -7,421 -7,571 

 

154



 

 

9. Service component:  Cemeteries and Crematoria 
 
Scope of the Outsourced Service 
 
The service provider delivers the highest possible standards in meeting the needs of 
the bereaved in the delivery of cemetery and crematorium and related services 
including administration, burial, cremation, memorial management, ground 
maintenance and cremation memorial options in partnership with relevant council 
and external organisations. 
 
The service provider shall meet all legislative, industry standards and crematoria 
permit requirements such as employing best available techniques for its 
management and operation and to prevent or where this is not practicable, to reduce 
emissions, whilst at the same time maintain and where possible expand the delivery 
of quality bereavement services for the benefit of the bereaved and council, and in 
doing so increase income. 
 
The service provider shall meet all statutory Registration services as directed by the 
cremation regulations 2008 and the local authority cemeteries order 1977. 
 
The service provider shall deliver all management and ancillary tasks required to 
ensure the service runs efficiently. 
 
Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Outsourced service contributing to 
£3.9m per annum savings whilst 
improving performance and overall 
quality. 

Achieve the Gold Standard of the 
Charter for the Bereaved, which sets out 
standards of facilities and services 

Achieve Green Flag status for the 
cemetery, which sets out standards for 
public open spaces 

Establish a ‘Friends of Hendon 
Cemetery’ group to encourage 
community involvement with the facility. 

Use available statutory provisions to 
commence the reclamation and re-use of 
unused graves and graves over 75 years 
to maximise the longevity of the 
cemetery beyond approximately 5 more 
years (2 for Muslim burial) and maintain 
burial space for residents wishing to be 
buried at Hendon. 

Explore the options for a new cemetery 
and green burial site in Barnet to 
respond to rapidly decreasing available 
burial space in the borough and 
customer requirements for sustainable 
alternatives to traditional burial. 

Explore options for bringing the disused 

155



 

 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

and fire damaged ‘superintendents 
house’ back into use to provide a 
modern, fit for purpose office and 
reception facility and café and function 
facility. 

Review the Cemetery rules and 
regulations to bring them up to date and 
to ensure that the highest standards are 
maintained. 

Introduce a memorial safety policy to 
ensure the safety of users of the site. 

 
Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 
13/14 

Target - 
19/20  

Meeting religious burial needs 
Re HCC01 

100% 
Q1 2014/15 

95% 

Charter for the Bereaved 
Re HCC04 

2012 
baseline 
66.8% 

By end of 
year 3 
achieve and 
maintain Gold 
standard 

 
 
Financial impact 
 
The revenue budget for these services form part of the Development and Regulatory 

Services contract being delivered by the joint venture with Capita Property and 

Infrastructure Ltd. The budget for this contract is dealt with by the Assets, 

Regeneration and Growth Committee. Changes in the net revenue budget for this 

service will be presented to Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee for 

consideration and agreement. 

 
Capital requirements:  
 
Currently considering the funding arrangements for the major repair, renovation and 

development of the buildings, grounds and facilities at Hendon Cemetery & 

Crematorium. Also, to consider the funding arrangements for a potential new 

cemetery and green burial site within Barnet. 

Proposals from Re were considered initially by the Partnership Operations Board. As 

a result Re have been tasked to develop a full business case for consideration. 

156



 

 

10. Service component:  Highways 
 
Scope of the Outsourced Service 
 
Traffic and Development 
The Traffic and Development section is responsible for Parking Design, Traffic 
Schemes, Highways Planning, Development Control, Travel Planning, Road Safety 
Education and the Highway Maintenance programme.  
 
Work within the section is aimed at enhancing the quality of life for all within the 
Borough resulting in a safer, more attractive area to live, work and visit, and 
providing an improved quality of service. 
 
The main functions within the Traffic and Development Section are as follows: 
 
Design Function 
 

• Discharges the Borough’s statutory duties and its stated priorities. Progresses 
all changes to existing and introduction of new parking bays and parking 
restrictions, in particular relating to the consideration of measures ensuring 
movement and safety on the borough’s network including measures 
associated with the Council’s off-street car parks.  

• Responsible for all relevant statutory requirements relating to Traffic 
Management Orders including temporary traffic orders to facilitate special 
events, road closures and development works. 

• Liaises with TfL re draft TMOs on TLRN. Investigates and progresses 
schemes to reduce congestion and improve safety by consideration of such 
measures as road widening, junction redesign, signal modification, bus stop 
location, rationalization of existing road layouts including the removal of 
excessive signage, the introduction of Vehicle Activated Signs and improved 
pedestrian facilities such as controlled crossings and footway improvements 
and facilitates Street scene improvements.   

• It is also the main area responsible for commissioning and organizing traffic 
data surveys and analysis to facilitate effective traffic management. The 
Design Team also provide advice to various elements of the service and 
externally regarding parking legislation, accident data etc.  

 
Road Safety Function 
 
Monitors the removal of traffic calming measures following highway carriageway 
resurfacing.  
 
Delivers Road Safety education, training and publicity aimed at reducing casualty 
figures, and delivers cycle training to primary, secondary and special schools as well 
as adults.   
 
The team also provides guidance on school travel plans. It is planned that this will 
move to being very much an internet based completion and update with a staff 
review. We also provide a support service to those schools wishing to provided their 

157



 

 

own School Crossing Patrol officer to satisfy they are fit and proper to carry out this 
function on the Public Highway 
 
Planning and Development Function 
 

• Secures funding of offsite highway infrastructure improvements through S106 
agreement linked to Planning permissions.  

• Provides Highway recommendations on planning applications by providing a 
highway assessment of the traffic impact of proposed developments.   

• Discharges the statutory duties of the Highway Authority in respect of new 
development proposals.  

• The team is responsible for securing funding of offsite highway infrastructure 
improvements as well as adoption of new roads within the Borough.  

• The team also processes stopping up orders; Highway Projection Licences 
and Development enquires relating to highway matters. 

• The team is also responsible for analysing highway condition data; prioritising 
and preparing Highway Planned Maintenance Programmes for carriageways 
and footways in the borough including Town Centre Schemes and also 
currently facilitates London Cycle Network schemes. 

 
Travel Planning Function  
 
Monitoring of Travel Plans (also secured by the S106 Process) and the development 
of the Council’s own Travel Plan (this function will be carried out on the appointment 
of a Travel Plan Advisor). 
 
Supports schools with the development, implementation and monitoring of  School 
Travel Plans, assesses travel and transport needs of children and young people, 
audits the sustainable travel and transport infrastructure within the authority that may 
be used when travelling to and from, or between schools/institutions, develops 
strategy to develop the sustainable travel and transport infrastructure within the 
authority so that the travel and transport needs of children and young people are 
better catered for and promotes sustainable travel and transport modes on the 
journey to, from and between schools and other institutions.  
 
Network Management 
The Network management section is responsible for: 

• Implementation of carriageway resurfacing Schemes 
• Implementation of Footway Relay schemes 
• Implementation of highway improvements schemes 
• Signs, Lines, Street Furniture  and Width Restriction Maintenance 
• Weed Spray operations management 
• Highway Safety Inspections 
• Emergency and Reactive Response 
• Insurance Claims 
• Insurance claim investigation 
• Health & Safety Regulations Compliance 
• Temporary Road Closures 
• NRSWA Management including operation of the  London Permitting scheme 
• Network Management 

158



 

 

• Highway Asset Management 
• Commissioning Annual Highway Condition Assessment 
• Issuing of Highway Licences 

 
Highways Strategy 
The highways strategy section is responsible for: 

• Developing transportation policy documents and work programmes 
• Monitoring Road Traffic Accident patterns in the borough 
• Private and temporary direction signs requests to premises and community 

events 
• Public Rights of Way enquiries 
• Public Transport liaison especially with London Buses 
• Liaison with provider regarding street furniture agreement 

 
 
Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Outsourced service contributing to 
£3.9m per annum savings whilst 
improving performance and overall 
quality. 

Annual Local Implementation 
Programme (LIP) with TfL 

Annual Planned Maintenance 
Programme – Carriageways and 
Footways 

Streetworks and London Permits 
Scheme (LoPS) 

Highway Safety Inspection and Repairs 
Programme 

Delivery of the strategic approach to 
highways 

- Traffic Management Act Network 
Management Plan 2014 (NMP) 

- Network Recovery Plan (NRP) – 
Addendum to the existing LBB 
Highway Asset Management Plan 
(HAMP) 

- Operational Network Hierarchy 
(ONH) 

- Developer’s Design Guide (DDG) 

2 Street lighting contributing to £5.9m 
per annum savings by 2019/20 
whilst improving performance and 
overall quality. 

Review of street lighting delivery to 
maintain quality standards relating to 
lighting levels whilst minimising costs. 

 

159



 

 

Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline Target - 
19/20  

Annual Programme relating to Carriageway 
Resurfacing schemes 

100% 
Q1 and Q2 
2014/15 

100% 

Annual Programme relating to Footway relay 
schemes 

100% 
Q1 and Q2 
2014/15 

100% 

Make Safe within 48 hours all intervention level 
potholes reported by members of the public 

95.6% Q1 
2014/15 
98.3% Q2 
2014/15 

100%  
(KPI target 
currently 
under review) 

Implementation of the Annual programme relating to 
highway safety inspections 

99.2% Q1 
2014/15 
100% Q2 
2014/15 

100% 

% satisfied (Street Lighting) 72% 
Spring 2014 

72% 

 
Financial impact 
 
The revenue budget for these services form part of the Development and Regulatory 

Services contract being delivered by the joint venture with Capita Property and 

Infrastructure Ltd. The budget for this contract is dealt with by the Assets, 

Regeneration and Growth Committee. Changes in the net revenue budget for the 

outsourced service will be presented to Assets, Regeneration and Growth 

Committee for consideration and agreement. 

A summary of the change in net revenue budget for elements of service component 
not part of the Development and Regulatory Services contract (i.e. street lighting and 
highways DSO) is shown highlighted in the table below: 
 

  MTFP PSR 

Service Area 
2014/15 budget 

(£'000) 

Planned Suggested 

2015/16 budget 
(£'000) 

2019/20 budget 
(£'000) 

Waste Collection 
(Expenditure) 

10,005 9,747 9,017 

Waste Collection (Income) (4,781) (5,208) (5,978) 

NLWA Waste Levy 
(Disposal) 

11,324 13,776 15,209 

Parks (Expenditure) 6,691 6,531 5,781 

Parks (Income) (1,559) (1,659) (1,759) 

Street Cleansing 
(Expenditure) 

4,215 3,665 3,265 

Street Cleansing (Income) (40) (40) (40) 

160



 

 

Contracts & management  
(expenditure) 

7,316 7,039 6,634 

Contracts & management  
(income) 

- (80) (80) 

SUB TOTAL 33,171 33,771 32,049 

Inflation - - 2,163 

Demographic pressure - - 360 

TOTAL 33,171 33,771 34,572 

    

Special Parking Account -7,381 -7,421 -7,571 

 

 
Capital requirements: 
 

Highways and Transport       

Proposal Proposal 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Borough wide highways 
maintenance programme Inc. 
Borough wide signs and lines 
programme 

50,000 15,000 13,000 8,000 8,000 6,365 

TOTAL Highways and 
Transport £ 

£50,365 

161



 

 

11. Service component:  Regulatory Services 
 
Re Development and Regulatory Services Summary 

The services in scope of the Environment Committee are: 

Strategic Services: 

• Highways Strategy 

Operational Services: 

• Highways Network Management 

• Highways Traffic and Development 

Public Health, Consumer and Regulatory Services 

• Environmental Health 

• Trading Standards & Licensing 

• Cemetery & Crematorium 

 

5. WHAT ARE DEVELOPMENT AND REGULATORY SERVICES FOR? 

The DRS project is part of the One Barnet programme. The project aim was to form 

a strategic partnership with a private sector partner to deliver the services listed 

above in order that the following aims can be achieved; 

• meet the unprecedented financial pressures it is facing; 

• invest in these services; and 

• preserve and improve on existing service levels. 

Detailed delivery specifications are contained in the output specifications of the 
Development and Regulatory Services (DRS) contract. The high level benefits 
from the whole service are shown below: 

 

Priority Benefit 

Citizens get the 
services they need 
for successful lives 

Build on the Council’s successful development, enhancement 
and protection of the built environment. 

Barnet is a 
successful place 

Capture and maximise the financial, economic and social 
benefits of large developments and ensure that these are 
returned to the Council in order to further support the 
Borough whilst keeping Barnet a green and pleasant place. 

A new relationship 
with citizens 

To provide truly citizen-centred services that are easy to 
access and simple to navigate, and as a result, improve 
customer satisfaction. 

A one public sector 
approach 

Close and effective working links with other public sector 
bodies. Develop new and innovative ways to engage and 
involve the community in co-delivering some services. 

Build and innovate on the Council’s successful record of 
community consultation and engagement. 

162



 

 

A relentless drive for 
efficiency 

Maximise the revenue and minimise the cost of the services 
and, where appropriate, to make the services more 
commercially aware in order to further enhance the 
maintenance and development of the Borough. 

Access to appropriate levels of service investment. 

Secure a reduction in service operating costs, and an 
increase in income, whilst acknowledging the trade-off 
between the two. 

 
Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Outsourced service contributing to 
£3.9m per annum savings whilst 
improving performance and overall 
quality. 

To contribute to the production of the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. 

To undertake projects agreed with the 
Director of Public Health, that are within 
the remit of Environmental Health and 
Trading Standards that support the 
objectives of the Health & Wellbeing 
Strategy. 

Respond to service requests, carry out 
investigations and take appropriate 
actions where necessary to resolve 
issues. 

Carry out planned and proactive 
inspection and where appropriate and 
necessary, undertake enforcement 
action to resolve issues. 

Provide sufficient resources for Trading 
Standards and Licensing to enable a 
proportionate and appropriate response 
to the trading standards and licensing 
issues that are of a concern to residents 
and to protect consumers and the wider 
business community, particularly from 
rogue traders. 

 
Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline Target - 
19/20  

Customer Satisfaction (Env Health) 
Re KPI EH02L 

New target -  
To be 
reported from  
Q3 FY14/15 

2019/20 
target is 
minimum 75% 

Compliance with Licensing Requirements for 
Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) - Licenced 
HMOs meeting legal standards Re EH021 

59.7% 
Q1 2014/15 
54.5% Q2 
2014/15 

2018/19 
onwards 90% 

163



 

 

Measure Baseline Target - 
19/20  

Food Sampling Inspections 
Re EH02D 

125% Q1 
2014/15 
139.1% Q2 
2014/15 

100% 

Appropriate response to statutory deadlines 
Re TSLKPI02 

100% Q1 
2014/15 
100% Q2 
2014/15 

100% 

 
 
Financial impact 
 
The revenue budget for these services form part of the Development and Regulatory 

Services contract being delivered by the joint venture with Capita Property and 

Infrastructure Ltd. The budget for this contract is dealt with by the Assets, 

Regeneration and Growth Committee. Changes in the net revenue budget for this 

service will be presented to Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee for 

consideration and agreement. 

164



 

Appendix A6 - Housing Committee  
 
Commissioning Plan 2015 - 2020 
 
1. The Context for the development of this plan 

 

Public services in England during the decade 2010-2020 face an unprecedented 

challenge as the country deals with the impact of the financial crisis of 2008, 

alongside the opportunities and challenges that come from our changing and ageing 

population.   

Despite a growing economy, the UK budget deficit is forecast to be £75bn at the 

2015 General Election, with cuts set to continue to the end of the decade no matter 

who is in Government. At the same time, demand on local services continues to 

increase, driven by a growing population, particularly the number of young and older 

residents. We therefore must plan for the fact that austerity will affect all parts of the 

public sector to the end of the decade and that we will not be able to meet 

increasingly levels of demand from simply doing more of what we are currently 

doing.   

The public too, does not expect simply more of the same. Expectations of local 

services are increasing, advances in customer services and technology provides the 

ability to interact with services 24/7. Local residents as a result expect better 

services and more prompt responses from the Council. However satisfaction with the 

Council and local services remains relatively high in Barnet, and over recent years 

resident satisfaction with a number of local services has increases, despite these 

challenges. 

In thinking about how the Council lives within its means, the Council needs to 

recognise that residents are also facing wider financial pressures, from high energy 

bills, increasing housing costs, continued wage restraint, and benefit reforms, so the 

ability of many households to absorb the impact of reductions from public sector 

funding through increased financial contributions is constrained.  

We can however expect over the duration of this plan that significant opportunities 

will flow from Barnet being part of a growing and arguably booming London 

economy. Unemployment levels have fallen by a third in the last year, the number of 

16-18 year old Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEETs. in Barnet is, at 

2.3%, the fourth lowest in England and fewer Barnet residents are claiming out-of-

work benefits than the London average. This plan needs to ensure that all residents 

of Barnet can benefit from the opportunities of growth, whether through new 

employment opportunities, increased investment in infrastructure such as roads and 

schools, or enjoying new neighbourhoods and places in which all people can live and 

age well. 

 

165



 

Barnet Council’s Overarching Approach to meeting the 2020 Challenge 

The Council’s Corporate Plan sets the framework for each of the Commissioning 

Committees five year commissioning plans. Whether the plans are covering services 

for vulnerable residents or about universal services such as the environment and 

waste there are a number of core and shared principles which underpin the 

commissioning outcomes.   

The first is a focus on fairness  

Fairness for the Council is about striking the right balance between fairness towards 

the more frequent users of services and fairness to the wider taxpayer and making 

sure all residents from our diverse communities - young, old, disabled, and 

unemployed benefit from the opportunities of growth.  

The Council must ‘get the basics right’ so people can get on with their lives – 

disposing of waste, keeping streets clean, allowing people to transact in more 

convenient ways, resolving issues promptly in the most cost effective way.  

We must shift our approach to earlier intervention and demand management >. 

Managing the rising demand on services requires a step change in the Council’s 

approach to early intervention and prevention. Across the public sector, we need to 

work with residents to prevent problems rather than treating the symptoms when 

they materialise.  

The second is a focus on responsibility  

Continue to drive out efficiencies to deliver more with less: 

The Council will drive out efficiencies through a continued focus on workforce 

productivity; bearing down on contract and procurement costs and using assets 

more effectively. All parts of the system need to play their part in helping to achieve 

better outcomes with reduced resources.  

Change its relationships with residents, with residents working with the Council to 

reduce the impact of funding cuts to services: 

In certain circumstances, residents will also need to take on more personal and 

community responsibility for keeping Barnet a great place particularly if there is not a 

legal requirement for the Council to provide services. In some cases users will be 

required to pay more for certain services as the Council prioritises the resources it 

has available.  

The third is a focus on opportunity  

Prioritise regeneration, growth and maximising income – Regeneration revitalises 

communities and provides residents and businesses with places to live and work. 

Growing the local tax base and generating more income through growth and other 

166



 

sources makes the Council less reliant on government funding; helps offsets the 

impact of service cuts and allows the Council to invest in the future infrastructure of 

the Borough.  

Redesign service and deliver them differently through a range of models and 

providers: 

The Council has no pre-determined view about how services should be designed 

and delivered. The Council will work with providers from across the public, private 

and voluntary sectors to provide services which are more integrated, through a range 

of models most appropriate to the service and the outcomes that we want to achieve.  

Planning ahead is crucial: 

 

The Council dealt with the first wave of austerity by planning ahead and focusing in 

the longer-term, thus avoid short-term cuts - the Council is continuing this approach 

by extending its plans to 2020. 

 
  

167



 

2. Committee context 
 
Background to Housing Provision 

A rapidly increasing population in Barnet has resulted in increased demand for 

housing and rising housing costs. In addition, there has been a significant shift in 

tenure, which has seen owner occupation reduce and private renting increase by 

about 10% respectively between 2001 and 2011. Over the next ten years it is 

expected that renting will rise to comprise 50% of the housing accommodation in 

Barnet. 

WHAT IS HOUSING IN BARNET FOR? 

Based on what we know already about housing in Barnet we arrive at the following 

emerging strategic priorities which will be consulted upon as part of the draft housing 

strategy: 

- We will prioritise Increasing the Housing Supply, including the use of our 

own resources to build new houses,  

- The Delivery of homes that people can afford, including homes for rent at 

local housing allowance levels and low cost home ownership. 

- The increased level of private renting means that we will focus on sustaining 

quality in the Private Rented Sector, including the use of discretionary 

powers to control poorly managed houses in multiple occupation. 

- We will continue to help those that need assistance by Tackling 

Homelessness, with a focus on prevention as well as making best use of our 

existing housing stock.  

- Providing suitable housing to support vulnerable people, including older 

residents, those with disabilities and mental health problems and young 

people leaving care will be a priority.  

- We will ensure that housing finances are optimised to maximise the amount 

of money to invest in delivering new homes, including a review of our rents 

policy. 

- We will work with Barnet Homes, our Arm’s Length Management Organisation 

(ALMO) to review the housing services to ensure that they are fit for the 

future, able to deliver our wider objectives and deliver efficient and effective 

services to residents.  

Taking into account these objectives, we can describe the overall vision for housing 

in Barnet as: 

“Barnet is a place where housing helps individuals and families who add 

economic, social, civic or cultural value to communities, to live as 

owners or renters of property.” 

 

168



 

HOUSING IN BARNET IN 2020 – PEN PORTRAIT 

Barnet in 2020 is a place where individuals and families who add value to the 

community, be it financially, culturally, or through the provision of important 

services like teaching or nursing can find a place to live and are able to put 

down roots. The borough’s population has reached a new high of 387,000 people, 

20,000 more than the number in 2014, with more growth anticipated for the 

foreseeable future. This growth reflects not just the rise of London as a whole, but 

also the relative success of Barnet, which is now widely viewed as an aspirational 

suburb where people from a wide range of backgrounds want to live, work and raise 

families. 

This is partly as a result of Barnet’s close proximity to excellent infrastructure 

connections and the City of London, but also the fact that housing in the borough 

reflects its current and expected future population. The more traditional and 

established parts of the borough are conserved to a high standard, whilst areas of 

higher future growth such as Colindale and Brent Cross-South are enabled to 

grow to their full potential through active brokerage by the council and its partners 

to unlock growth and deliver infrastructure, and by actively engaging with home 

builders to create high quality housing for the growing population. Additional 

supply of housing is being unlocked by bringing vacant properties back onto the 

market at affordable prices. 

Housing in Barnet is differentiated from other areas by its high quality 

developments and focus on creating places and homes that people, whether 

home owners or renters, want to live in for the medium and longer-term. 

Homes in Barnet are not only an adequate size and quality internally, but also 

integrate particularly well into the existing physical and social fabric of the 

borough. For instance, by matching with the local vernacular and providing the right 

infrastructure for the new residents’ and “building out” negative impacts  like 

crime and anti-social behaviour, whilst making it easier for new residents to 

interact with each other and build cohesive communities. 

In 2020 owning a property remains a key aspiration for many people living in the 

borough. This is recognised by both the council, central government and developers 

who are responding by delivering historically high levels of new housing through 

regeneration and non-regeneration building in all parts of the borough, particularly 1 

and 2 bedroom properties demanded by those taking their first steps onto the 

property ladder. New housing in the borough is appropriate not just for new families 

and younger people, but is also designed explicitly with the needs of an ageing 

population in mind, both in terms of their health and their needs as active 

participants in the local community. 

 

169



 

The nature of the housing market in 2020 has more emphasis on private renting 

than was the case in 2014, with the majority of people moving into the borough 

renting, and the overall percentage of owner-occupied properties falling.. More and 

more highly skilled residents are also choosing to rent. This combination of 

greater numbers of renters, and a changing profile of renters means that the quality 

of the quality of private rented properties is increasingly in line with the best 

owner-occupied properties. The length of tenure of private rented contracts is 

increasing, with 2, 3 and 5 year contracts for families and more mature renters 

increasingly becoming the norm and helping the market to mature. An important 

principle of the councils approach to housing is that anyone who works and adds 

value to the community is able to live in Barnet, even if this includes support from 

local housing allowance. In 2020 some school staff, nurses and carers are included 

in this cohort. 

Barnet continues to manage the supply of houses in multiple occupation through 

its Article 4 adopted planning powers. It intervenes in the private rented market 

where rogue landlords fail to meet minimum health and safety standards for rented 

property, and supports good landlords. 

Homelessness has reached the lowest level for 15 years, with people identified as 

vulnerable or homeless being offered temporary accommodation and 

additional support and mentoring to help them re-engage with the private sector 

renting safely and quickly. The Council works hard to find the best option for 

vulnerable people, whether that’s local to Barnet, or further afield. Unlike the rest of 

London Barnet continues with its policy of no homeless person ever being put into 

bed and breakfast accommodation. Coordinated preventative work by the council 

and its partners means that fewer and fewer vulnerable people are reaching a point 

of crises where temporary accommodation needs to be found for them. 

  

170



 

3. Outcomes 
Within the resources available to the Committee up to 2020, achieving the following 
outcomes will steer strategic decision making in relation to service delivery and 
investment. 
 

Priority Key Outcomes  

Increasing 
Housing Supply  

Barnet is delivering large numbers of new homes with an 
appropriate mix of  size and tenure through its growth and 
regeneration programmes in particular: 

• Housing Strategy has set out Barnet’s plans for increasing 
supply 

• Housing Needs Assessment have identified the quantum 
and mix of housing required 

• Growth and Regeneration programmes and new private 
developments meet housing need, and contribute to 
Barnet’s reputation as a desirable place to live. 

• Developments on Council land meet housing need and 
maximise benefits to the Council. 

Delivery of 
Affordable 
Housing  

Barnet has identified the number of affordable homes it needs 
and is delivering these in particular: 

• Housing Strategy has identified Barnet’s approach to 
providing affordable homes 

• Housing Needs Assessment has identified the amount of 
affordable housing needed 

• Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document 
has set out how much affordable housing will be sought 
from new developments as part of the planning process 

• A new Framework Agreement with the GLA will set out our 
approach to delivery of affordable homes in the context of 
the London Housing Strategy 

• The HRA Business Plan has set out the investment 
priorities for new and existing council homes 

• Developments on Council land meet needs for affordable 
housing and maximise benefits to the Council. 

Council Housing 
and Housing 
Needs Services 

Barnet has arrangements in place for providing housing and 
homelessness services that deliver high satisfaction amongst 
residents and minimises the number of people being admitted 
to emergency temporary accommodation in particular: 

• The Housing Strategy has set out objectives for Housing 
Services in Barnet 

• The future of homelessness and housing management 
services beyond 2014/15 has been established 

• The contribution of homelessness and housing 
management services to the Council’s overall aims has 
been developed 

171



 

Tackling 
Homelessness 

Homelessness and use of emergency accommodation has 
been minimised in particular: 

• Development of a detailed Homelessness and Temporary 
Accommodation action plan 

• Budget monitoring will help to contain costs associated 
with use of emergency accommodation 

• Housing Allocations Scheme will ensure that scarce 
affordable housing is targeted at those in need and making 
a contribution to the borough 

• Tenancy Strategy will ensure that more council housing is 
made available for those who need it 

Sustaining quality 
in the Private 
Rented Sector 

Barnet has a good quality private rented sector that provides a 
key role in meeting the housing needs of the borough in 
particular: 

• Supporting good landlords in the Private Rented Sector 
and intervening where necessary. 

• Bringing empty properties back into use 

• Houses in Multiple-Occupation – Business Case to extend 
licensing beyond the statutory minimum scheme to assist 
in improving the housing impact of houses in multiple-
occupation. 

• Use of Article 4 direction to control development of new 
HMOs 

Providing suitable 
housing to 
support 
vulnerable people 

Barnet is delivering homes with an appropriate mix of  size 
and tenure for the needs of vulnerable groups through its 
growth and regeneration programmes in particular: 

• New integrated specialist housing including extra care 

• Wheelchair accessible housing 

• Continuation of the Winter Well programme 

• Creating a supported housing pathway for children leaving 
care 

• Creating a supported housing pathway for people with 
mental health needs which promotes independence and 
recovery 

Financial 
contribution to the 
Council 

The Council will work to review the current arrangements with 

The Barnet Group to assess value for money and to explore 

options for the future delivery of services to meet the Councils 

strategic needs. This will include options for the delivery and 

management of new homes and a mixed economy of private, 

social and affordable rents. Revised arrangements will be in 

place by April 2016.   

 

 
  

172



 

4. About this plan 
 
The commissioning plan has been developed in sections for the following priorities 
that make up the draft Housing Strategy: 
 

� Increasing Housing Supply  
� Delivery of Affordable Housing  
� Council Housing and Housing Needs Services 
� Tackling Homelessness 
� Sustaining quality in the Private Rented Sector 
� Providing suitable housing to support vulnerable people 
� Financial contribution to the Council 

 
For each priority, the strategic direction is set out together with the commissioning 
intentions and the outcomes to be achieved. 
  

173



 

5. Priority: Increasing Housing Supply and Delivery of Affordable Housing 
 
Delivering homes that people can afford 

• Increasing supply will help ease the pressure on housing costs over the longer-
term.  However, there is a more immediate need to address the issue of a 
lack of housing – across all tenures - that people can afford. 

 
Reviewing the amount of affordable housing in new developments 
 

• The Council will review its Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning 
Document, which determines the amount of affordable housing for rent and sale 
as part of new developments.  The current requirement is for 40% of homes on 
new developments to be affordable and the review will consider whether this 
should change. 

 
Rented homes at affordable prices 
 

• The Council believes that, for most people, including working households on 
modest incomes, ‘affordable’ means rent at Local Housing Allowance (LHA) 
level – meaning that residents will qualify for Housing Benefit if their income is 
low enough to qualify.  As a result, the Council will seek to increase the supply 
of rented homes at LHA level by making use of available resources to develop 
new homes. 

 
Simplifying rents policy and reinvesting to build more homes that are 
affordable 
 

• There is a link between the level of rent that is charged for council housing 
and the amount of resource available to invest in the construction of more 
homes that are affordable. 

• The Council needs to strike the right balance between setting council rents at a 
level which is fair and generating income to increase the total number of 
homes that are affordable. 

• In view of this, the Council will charge an affordable rent at Local Housing 
Allowance (LHA) levels or 80% of average market rent whichever is lower 
for all new council homes it builds.  This will generate an additional income to 
be reinvested in building more homes that are affordable. 

• To ensure consistency in relation to existing properties, the Council will set 
rents at LHA levels or 80% of the average market rent whichever is lower 
when empty properties are re-let.  For existing tenants, the Council will 
consult on proposals for increasing rents to LHA levels or 80% of average market 
rents whichever is lower.  Each additional 1% increase will generate around 
£550,000 of additional income to be reinvested in building more homes that 
are affordable. 

 
In delivering more homes that people can afford, the Council will: 
 

� Increase the supply of housing over the longer-term. 
� Revise its Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document, which 

guides applicants, agents, developers and planners through the affordable 

174



 

housing delivery mechanism and clarifies Barnet's application of Local Plan 
and London Plan policy requirements.   

� Increase the supply of rented homes at Local Housing Allowance level 
(LHA). 

� Strike the right balance between the level of council rents and the amount of 
resource available for building more homes that are affordable by charging 
rent at LHA levels or 80% of average market rent for all new council 
homes; existing council properties that are re-let and, over time increase, 
for existing council tenants. 

� Additional revenues generated through this change in rents policy will be 
reinvested to increase the number of affordable homes across the 
borough. 

 
 
For residents this will mean; 

● An increased supply of homes at affordable prices 
● New homes that will meet housing need in the borough 

 
For providers this will mean 

● Developers and Registered Providers will have the opportunity to work with 
the council to build new homes including new and innovative products 

 
Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Increasing the supply of new homes  - Housing Strategy has set out Barnet’s 
plans for increasing supply 

2 
 

New homes that will meet the needs 
of Barnet’s households 

- Housing Needs Assessment has 
identified the quantum and mix of 
housing required. 

- Growth and Regeneration 
programmes and new private 
developments meet housing need, 
and contribute to Barnet’s reputation 
as a desirable place to live. 

- Developments on Council land meet 
housing need and maximise benefits 
to the Council 

175



 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

3 Delivering Homes that people can 
afford 

- Housing Strategy has identified 
Barnet’s approach to providing 
affordable homes 

- Housing Needs Assessment has 
identified the amount of affordable 
housing needed 

- Affordable Housing Supplementary 
Planning Document has set out how 
affordable housing will be sought from 
new developments as part of the 
planning process 

- A new Framework Agreement with 
the GLA will set out our approach to 
delivery of affordable homes in the 
context of the London Housing 
Strategy 

- The HRA Business Plan has set out 
the investment priorities for new and 
existing council homes 

- Council rents policy in place that 
provides additional income for 
building new council homes 

- Developments on Council land meet 
needs for affordable housing and 
maximise benefits to the Council. 

 
These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
 

� Increasing Housing Supply 
� Delivery of Affordable Housing 

 
Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 
13/14 

Target - 
19/20  

Additional Homes provided on HRA land  - 500 additional 
homes 
provided by 
2019/20 

% of New Build homes that are affordable   40% 

Reduction in those considering affordable housing 
as a concern in residents’ survey. 

 Reduce to 
average for 
London by 
2020 
(Barnet 6% 
above London 
Average 
Spring 2014)  

 

176



 

Revenue impact 
 
The revenue position for the services is detailed at the end of the plan. 
 
Capital requirements 
 
The capital position for the services is detailed at the end of the plan. 
  

177



 

6. Priority: Council Housing and Housing Needs Services and Tackling 
Homelessness 
 

• Barnet Council will continue to take action to reduce the number of people 
placed in temporary accommodation and, in doing so, has successfully 
avoided the use of bed and breakfast accommodation. 

• The Council’s strategy for reducing the number of residents in temporary 
accommodation will continue to focus on increasing the number of private lettings 
to homeless households working with private landlords to achieve this; a 
greater focus on homelessness prevention measures; sourcing 
accommodation in less expensive areas outside of Barnet; and working in 
partnership with Job Centre Plus to create a multi-agency benefits Task Force 
to work closely with households affected by welfare reform to minimise the risk of 
homelessness.  

 
Making best use of existing housing stock 
 

• In order to make the best use of existing stock, the Council has already changed 
the way that these homes are allocated and restricted allocations to those 
households that are in the highest need. 

• Barnet’s housing allocations scheme also already recognises the contribution that 
people who are working or volunteering make to the community by taking this 
into account. 

• In order to increase the turnover and availability of council homes, most new 
tenants now receive a fixed term tenancy of five years, 

• A review of the operation of the Barnet’s Tenancy Strategy by February 2015 to 
ensure that its stated objectives are being achieved. 

 
In tackling homelessness in Barnet, the Council has: 
 

� Increased incentives to private landlords to increase the number of private 
lettings to homeless households. 

� Placed a greater focus on homelessness prevention measures. 
� Sourced accommodation in less expensive areas outside of Barnet. 
� Partnered with Job Centre Plus to create a multi-agency benefits Task Force 

to work closely with households affected by welfare reform to minimise the 
risk of homelessness.  

� Reformed its Tenancy Strategy to recognise volunteering and setting fixed 
term tenancies of five years for new tenants to increase the turnover of 
council homes and make more homes available to those that need them. 

 
 
For residents this will mean; 

● Support from the Council via Barnet Homes to prevent Homelessness 
● Access to homes in more affordable areas outside of the borough 
● Support for residents affected by welfare reform to minimise the risk of 

homelessness 
● Additional priority for affordable housing for those residents making a 

contribution to the community by working or volunteering 
 

178



 

For providers this will mean 
● Opportunity to provide high quality and efficient housing services for Barnet’s 

residents 
 
Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 Housing Services provision that 
meets the needs of Barnet’s residents 

- The Housing Strategy has set out 
objectives for Housing Services in 
Barnet 

 - Work to ensure high quality and 
efficient homelessness and housing 
management services beyond 
2014/15  

 - The contribution of homelessness and 
housing management services to the 
Council’s overall aims has been 
developed. 

2 Reducing Homelessness and the use 
of Temporary Accommodation 

- Development of a detailed 
Homelessness and Temporary 
Accommodation action plan 

 - Budget monitoring will help to contain 
costs associated with use of 
emergency accommodation 

 - Housing Allocations Scheme will 
ensure that scarce affordable housing 
is targeted at those in need and 
making a contribution to the borough 

 - Tenancy Strategy will ensure that 
more council housing is made 
available for those who need it 

  
These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
  

� Council Housing and Housing Needs Services 
� Tackling Homelessness 

 
Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline 
– 13/14 

Target - 19/20  

Percentage of respondents very or fairly satisfied 
with the service provided by their social housing 
provider  
  

 No less than 81% 
annually 

Numbers in Emergency Temporary 
Accommodation (ETA)  

 No More than 500 
at financial year 
end  

Number of households living in Bed and Breakfast  Zero 

179



 

Percentage of those households in ETA pending 
enquiries or found to be intentionally homeless 

 No more than the 
London Average 
quarterly  

Homelessness Preventions  No less than  the 
London Average1 

 
Revenue impact 
 
The revenue position for the services is detailed at the end of the plan. 
 
Capital requirements 
 
The capital position for the services is detailed at the end of the plan. 
 
  

                                                           

1
 Total number of cases of  homelessness prevention and relief per thousand households 

180



 

7. Priority: Sustaining quality in the Private Rented Sector 
 

• Everyone wants to live in a home that is of good quality and makes them feel 
safe.  As such, Barnet’s Housing Strategy will seek to improve the quality of 
housing across the borough. 

• In all new developments, the Council is committed to building high quality new 
homes where people want to live.  At the same time, there is also a need to 
tackle the issue of poor quality housing in the private rented sector. 

• The high demand for homes has seen an increase in the number of Homes in 
Multiple-Occupation (HMOs) – particularly through the conversion of family 
homes into properties shared by unrelated people which, in some cases, are not 
well managed. 

• The Council will review how HMOs are regulated and crack down on rogue 
landlords and sub-standard properties, working directly with landlords and 
encouraging them to acquire formal accreditation through the London Landlords 
Accreditation Scheme. 

 
In order to ensure high quality housing across the borough, the Council will: 
 

� Ensure that all new homes are built to high standards of quality. 
� Review regulations relating to Homes in Multiple Occupancy. 
� Crack down on rogue landlords and encourage more of the borough’s 

private landlords to acquire formal accreditation through the London 
Landlords Accreditation Scheme.   

 
 
For residents this will mean; 

● Sustained quality in the private rented sector 
● A reduction in poor quality HMOs and associated negative impacts on local 

neighbourhoods 
 

For providers this will mean 
● Improved professionalism within private rented sector 

 
Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 
 

Supporting good landlords in the 
Private Rented Sector and 
intervening where necessary. 

- Houses in Multiple-Occupation – 
Business Case to extend licensing 
beyond the statutory minimum 
scheme to assist in improving the 
housing impact of houses in multiple-
occupation. 

- Use of Article 4 direction to control 
development of new HMOs 

 
These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
 

� Sustaining quality in the Private Rented Sector 

181



 

 
Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 
13/14 

Target - 19/20  

Housing Health and 
Safety Rating System 

 Category 1 hazards reduced in 165 properties 

Improvement in HMOs  60% HMOs licensed in 90 days or less 

Improvement in HMOs  60% Licensed HMOs with expired major 
conditions are complied with or enforcement 
action is taken against owners 

Improvement in HMOs  5% increase in the number of accredited 
landlords 

HMOs licensed  Total number of licensed premises is 
increased by 20 annually 

 
Revenue impact 
 
The revenue position for the services is detailed at the end of the plan. 
 
Capital requirements 
 
The capital position for the services is detailed at the end of the plan. 
  

182



 

8. Priority: Providing suitable housing to support vulnerable people 
 
In order to provide suitable housing to support vulnerable people, the Council 
will: 
Prioritise developments for: 

Older people including: 

• New homes 

• Co-housing 

• Sheltered housing 

• Supported housing options 

• Adapted and Accessible Older Properties 

• Advice 

• Housing for adults with disabilities 

• Mental Health  

• Young People Leaving Care 
 
In providing suitable housing to support vulnerable people in Barnet, the 
Council has: 
 

• Identified a site and funding agreed for new Extra Care Housing Scheme 
• Planning permission granted for Co-housing project  
• Developed additional Sheltered Housing Plus 
• Re-commissioning of housing related floating support services  
• Supported Living Housing Scheme established at Speedwell Court 
• 220 Disability Facility Grants were approved in 2013/14. 

 
For residents this will mean; 

● Increased housing options for vulnerable people in Barnet 
 
For providers this will mean 

● Working with the Council to provide a range of housing options for vulnerable 
people 

 
Commissioning intentions: 
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen 

1 
 

Increased supply of alternatives to 
residential care for vulnerable people 

- New integrated specialist housing 
including extra care 

- More wheelchair accessible housing 

2 Reduce the number of deaths 
amongst older people associated with 
cold weather  

- Continuation of the Winter Well 
programme 

3 Providing sustainable housing options 
for children leaving care 

- Creating a supported housing 
pathway for children leaving care 

4 Providing sustainable housing options 
for people with mental health needs 

- Creating a supported housing 
pathway for people with mental health 
needs which promotes independence 
and recovery 

 

183



 

These commissioning intentions will contribute to the following outcomes: 
 

� Providing suitable housing to support vulnerable people 
 
Outcome measures 
 

Measure Baseline – 
13/14 

Target - 19/20  

Provide additional integrated specialist 
housing including extra care 

 100 additional units 
by 2019/20 

Provide additional wheelchair housing  10% of new housing 
provision 

Provide additional ‘lifetime homes’ housing  100% of new housing 
provision 

 
Revenue impact 
 
The revenue position for the services is detailed at the end of the plan. 
 
Capital requirements 
 
The capital position for the services is detailed at the end of the plan. 
  

184



 

9. Financial contribution to the Council 
 
The Council will work to review the current arrangements with The Barnet Group, to 
assess value for money and to explore options for the future delivery of services to 
meet the Councils strategic needs. This will include options for the delivery and 
management of new homes and a mixed economy of private, social and affordable 
rents. Revised arrangements will be in place by April 2016.   
 
Council Housing and Housing Needs Services 
 
The council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) includes a general fund 
saving of £300k for 2015/16. A Priority Spending Review (PSR) target has been set 
for a 20% reduction of management costs in the HRA for the period from 2016-20. 
This equates to a baseline adjustment of £4.2 million and work is currently underway 
to identify how that can be achieved. This savings assumption has been built into the 
proposals for funding new build and ensuring use of right to buy receipts (see pages 
13 and 14). In order to meet this saving requirement Barnet Homes has developed 
proposals for savings which currently total £3.4 million as laid out in the section on 
savings below. These savings targets are set out in the table below. 
  MTFP PSR 

Service Area 2014/15 budget 
(£'000) 

Proposed Suggested 

  2015/16 budget 
(£'000) 

2019/20 budget 
(£'000) 

HNR (Expenditure) 20,484 20,184 20,184 

HNR (Income) (16,230) (16,230) (16,230) 

Inflation   196 

TOTAL 4,254 3,954 4,150 

    

    

Service Area 2014/15 budget 
(£'000) 

Proposed Suggested 

  2015/16 budget 
(£'000) 

2019/20 budget 
(£'000) 

HRA (Expenditure) 65,176 65,176 60,976 

HRA (Income) (61,830) (61,830) (61,830) 

TOTAL* 3,346 3,346 (854) 

    

* The 2014-15 & 2015-16 periods show a net cost of Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA)  services (funded by the HRA reserve). The PSR period shows a surplus. 
 
HRA Savings proposals – Barnet Homes proposed savings 2016-2020 
 

Service 

Area 

Description How saving will be achieved Saving 

185



 

Barnet 

Homes 

SERVICE 

REVIEWS -  

 

• Reviewing the role of: 

• Support services 

• Income collection and tenancy 

sustainment 

• Caretaking and estate 

management 

• Resident involvement, capacity 

building and community 

engagement 

• Supported housing and Assist 

• Repairs 

• Call Centre 

• Regeneration & housing 

management 

• Management structure 

£1.965m 

Barnet 

Homes 

Efficiency • Consider Revised reward strategy 

• Increasing use of graduates, 

interns, volunteers and 

apprenticeships 

• Negotiate reductions in service 

level agreements between Barnet 

Homes and LBB 

• Review contracts to achieve 

greater purchasing power and 

maximise efficiencies from existing 

contracts 

• Reduction in accommodation costs 

as reducing floor space  

• Efficiencies already delivered to 

fund All Systems Go business 

case 

£1.024m 

Barnet 

Homes 

Growth and 

Income 

• Income from new build  

• Income from new business  

• Income from PRS management 

• Seek introduction of higher fees 

and charges 

• EA & TA savings from new build 

£0.839m 

186



 

Barnet 

Homes 

Reducing 

Demand, 

Promoting 

Independence 

• Reducing demand on services as 

a result of customer portal and 

customer applications 

• Review the landlord and tenant 

contract  

£0.371m 

  Total £4.2m 

 
 
Delivery of Affordable Housing - Delivery of new council homes will be supported 
by a combination of HRA headroom, right to buy receipts and GLA grant. The Savills 
modelling tool shows that in addition to the existing commitments2, a new build 
programme of 500 new council homes over 5 years could be supported subject to 
the availability of suitable land, as well as two further extra care housing schemes 
(100 units). 
 
In addition, Barnet Homes have secured £2.47m funding from the GLA 2015/18 
affordable housing programme to support building 101 new homes at a total cost of 
£19.1m. 
 
Tackling Homelessness – Containing budget pressures associated with the costs 
of temporary accommodation continues to be a challenge especially with the 
demand to bring forward early decanting for regeneration. Detailed plans are in place 
to contain those costs and this will be monitored through existing governance 
structures.  
 
Barnet Homes Capital Programme: 
Investment to refurbish General Fund hostels and 3 new council homes at Alexandra 
Road. 
 

2014-15 TOTAL CAPITAL FUNDING £’000 

General Fund  
2014-
15  

2015-
16  

2016-
17  

2017-
18  

2018-
19  

Tota
l  

Alexandra Road  24     24 

Hostel Refurbishment 
Programme  270         270 

 
Current HRA Capital Programme: 
Investment to ensure that council owned housing stock is well maintained and that 
statutory health and safety obligations are met. Also includes investment to improve 
Granville Road and deliver 38 new council homes. 
 

2014-15 TO 2018-19  TOTAL CAPITAL FUNDING £’000 

                                                           

2
 Existing Barnet Homes programme for 41 units, Extra Care Housing at Morton Close, Advanced Acquisitions 

of Leasehold properties on Regeneration Estates 

187



 

Housing Revenue Account  2014-15  2015-16  2016-17  2017-18  2018-19  Total  

Major Works (excl. Granville Rd)  8,519 8,520 8,438 8,101 6,331 39,908 

Granville Road  293         293 

Regeneration  4,623 2,301 2,506 2,065 1,684 13,181 

Misc. - Repairs  1,316 942 2,020 2,073 2,348 8,698 

M&E/ GAS  14,101 15,014 8,254 8,079 6,826 52,273 

Voids and Lettings  1,980 1,712 1,806 1,853 2,305 9,655 

38 New Affordable Homes  6,832         6,832 

 Totals 37,664 28,488 23,024 22,171 19,493 130,840 

 
Current Actions - Development & Infrastructure  

Priorities for use of HRA Headroom 

• General Fund Savings particularly social care pressures and costs of 
emergency temporary accommodation 

• Tackling Homelessness 

• Regeneration & Growth 

In Place • Additional £32m investment in existing stock 

• £7.7m for 41 New homes on HRA land 

• £12.3m for new supported housing scheme at Morton 
Close 

• £8.7m for advanced acquisitions on Regeneration Estates 

To be confirmed • Additional new build – 500 units by 2019/20 

• Two more supported housing schemes – 100 units by 
2019/20 

Other 
expenditure 

• Development of affordable homes on General Fund land 

• Developing our own Private Rented Sector with prudential 
borrowing 

• Use of Right to Buy Receipts 

• Can we do more with existing assets? (Net Present Value 
project underway) 

 
Critical dependencies for the availability of HRA headroom and design of the 
financial model 

1. Levels of affordable rented homes, including quantity of private rented homes 
at Local Housing Allowance levels 

2. Use of Low Cost Home Ownership and innovative private rented models 
3. Rents policy for the Councils housing stock 
4. Future of non-secure tenants on the regeneration estates in the borough 
5. Delivery of the Barnet Homes HRA saving of £4.2 million 
Establishing role of Barnet Homes going forward  

The table on the next page shows the currently modelled available build budget and 
the maximum numbers of units capable of being built on HRA land assuming: 
 

1. Current Right to Buy projections 
2. Delivery of the HRA management fee saving of £4.2 million 
3. A rent policy of annually increasing rents 0.5% above CPI plus 1% (the 

current rent increase cap) 
4. Holding HRA reserves at a minimum of £7 million 

188



 

5. Build cost of £150,000 per unit (note actual build cost would vary significantly 
dependent upon what was being built especially in terms of density and 
specialist requirements) 

6. Accumulated surpluses are achieved at end of each year and are available for 
subsequent year investment 

 
The following page lays out the financial modelling for investment in house building 
on the Council’s HRA land holding based upon the assumptions above. This shows 
that approximately 750 homes could be built subject to land availability over the next 
five years.

189



 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT              

  2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/2020  

Income £ £ £ £ £ £  

Dwelling rents (53,164,530) (54,168,612) (54,109,790) (53,664,026) (52,570,966) (52,570,616)  

New Build Dwellings 0 0 (4,504,491) (4,956,361) (6,301,029) (7,879,214)  

Non-dwelling rents (1,596,622) (1,689,506) (1,675,027) (1,648,791) (1,603,124) (1,591,130)  

Tenants Charges for services and facilities (4,088,289) (3,858,931) (3,930,169) (3,882,849) (3,844,793) (3,854,227)  

Leaseholder Charges for Services and Facilities (2,898,389) (2,945,732) (2,983,940) (2,995,690) (2,954,934) (2,998,687)  

Total Income (61,747,830) (62,662,781) (67,203,417) (67,147,718) (67,274,846) (68,893,874)  

Expenditure              

Repairs and Maintenance 7,650,000 7,650,000 7,650,000 7,687,310 7,457,970 7,385,863  

Supervision and management              

   General 14,207,510 13,127,510 12,166,510 11,574,469 10,918,657 10,276,274  

   Special 6,756,617 6,756,617 6,756,617 6,986,794 7,161,464 7,340,500  

Rents, Rates, taxes and other charges 121,500 121,500 121,500 124,538 127,651 130,842  

Contribution to capital programme 33,489,000 32,683,000 23,024,000 22,171,000 19,494,000 17,312,130  

Impairment write off for HRA commercial properties 820,000 840,500 861,513 883,050 905,127 927,755  

Debt Management Costs 7,424,728 6,588,108 8,803,092 8,376,508 8,307,310 8,172,716  

Increase in bad debt provision 615,000 615,000 615,000 615,000 615,000 615,000  

Total Expenditure 71,084,355 68,382,235 59,998,232 58,418,668 54,987,178 52,161,080  

Net Cost of HRA Services 9,336,525 5,719,455 (7,205,185) (8,729,049) (12,287,668) (16,732,794)  

Interest and investment income (80,000) (80,000) (80,000) (80,000) (80,000) (80,000)  

(Surplus) or deficit for the year on HRA services 9,256,525 5,639,455 (7,285,185) (8,809,049) (12,367,668) (16,812,794)  

Right to buy receipts retained (6,778,360) (8,261,540) (8,261,540) (8,261,540) (8,261,540) (8,261,540)  

(Surplus) or deficit contributing to HRA balances 2,478,165 (2,622,086) (15,546,726) (17,070,589) (20,629,209) (25,074,334) Totals 

No. of Newbuilds Base Case   412 19 85 88 102 706 

No. of Newbuilds with 4.2m    0 5 12 18 25 60 

No. of Newbuilds CPI+1%+0.5%   0 1 4 6 9 20 

Maximum build total each year.   412 25 101 112 136 786 

 

190



Appendix A7 - Health and Well-Being Board- Public Health Commissioning 

Plan 2015-20 

1. The Context for the development of this plan.    

 

Public services in England during the decade 2010-2020 face an unprecedented 

challenge as the country deals with the impact of the financial crisis of 2008, 

alongside the opportunities and challenges that come from our changing and ageing 

population.   

Despite a growing economy, the UK budget deficit is forecast to be £75bn at the 

2015 General Election, with cuts set to continue to the end of the decade no matter 

who is in Government. At the same time, demand on local services continues to 

increase, driven by a growing population, particularly the number of young and older 

residents. We therefore must plan for the fact that austerity will affect all parts of the 

public sector to the end of the decade and that we will not be able to meet 

increasingly levels of demand from simply doing more of what we are currently 

doing.   

The public too, does not expect simply more of the same. Expectations of local 

services are increasing, advances in customer services and technology provides the 

ability to interact with services 24/7. Local residents as a result expect better 

services and more prompt responses from the Council. However satisfaction with the 

Council and local services remains relatively high in Barnet, and over recent years 

resident satisfaction with a number of local services has increases, despite these 

challenges. 

In thinking about how the Council lives within its means, the Council needs to 

recognise that residents are also facing wider financial pressures, from high energy 

bills, increasing housing costs, continued wage restraint, and benefit reforms, so the 

ability of many households to absorb the impact of reductions from public sector 

funding through increased financial contributions is constrained.  

We can however expect over the duration of this plan that significant opportunities 

will flow from Barnet being part of a growing and arguably booming London 

economy. Unemployment levels have fallen by a third in the last year, the number of 

16-18 year old ‘NEETs’ in Barnet is, at 2.3%, the fourth lowest in England and less 

Barnet residents are claiming out-of-work benefits than the London average. This 

plan needs to ensure that all residents of Barnet can benefit from the opportunities of 

growth, whether through new employment opportunities, increased investment in 

infrastructure such as roads and schools, or enjoying new neighbourhoods and 

places in which all people can live and age well. 

 

 

191



2. Barnet Council’s Overarching Approach to meeting the 2020 Challenge 

The Council’s Corporate Plan sets the framework for each of the Commissioning 

Committees five year Commissioning Plans. Whether the plans are covering 

services for vulnerable residents or about universal services such as the 

environment and waste there are a number of core and shared principles which 

underpin the commissioning outcomes.   

The first is a focus on fairness.  

Fairness for the Council is about striking the right balance between fairness towards 

the more frequent users of services and fairness to the wider taxpayer and making 

sure all residents from our diverse communities - young, old, disabled, and 

unemployed benefit from the opportunities of growth.  

The Council must ‘get the basics right’ so people can get on with their lives – 

disposing of waste, keeping streets clean, allowing people to transact in more 

convenient ways, resolving issues promptly in the most cost effective way.  

We must shift our approach to earlier intervention and demand management �. 

Managing the rising demand on services requires a step change in the Council’s 

approach to early intervention and prevention. Across the public sector, we need to 

work with residents to prevent problems rather than treating the symptoms when 

they materialise.  

The second is a focus on responsibility.  

Continue to drive out efficiencies to deliver more with less� The Council will drive 

out efficiencies through a continued focus on workforce productivity; bearing down 

on contract and procurement costs and using assets more effectively. All parts of the 

system need to play their part in helping to achieve better outcomes with reduced 

resources.  

Change its relationships with residents, with residents working with the Council to 

reduce the impact of funding cuts to services ... In certain circumstances, residents 

will also need to take on more personal and community responsibility for keeping 

Barnet a great place particularly if there is not a legal requirement for the Council to 

provide services. In some cases users will be required to pay more for certain 

services as the Council prioritises the resources it has available.  

The third is a focus on opportunity.  

Prioritise regeneration, growth and maximising income � Regeneration revitalises 

communities and provides residents and businesses with places to live and work. 

Growing the local tax base and generating more income through growth and other 

sources makes the Council less reliant on government funding; helps offsets the 

192



impact of service cuts and allows the Council to invest in the future infrastructure of 

the Borough.  

Redesign service and deliver them differently through a range of models and 

providers � The Council has no pre-determined view about how services should be 

designed and delivered. The Council will work with providers from across the public, 

private and voluntary sectors to provide services which are more integrated, through 

a range of models most appropriate to the service and the outcomes that we want to 

achieve.  

Planning ahead is crucial� The Council dealt with the first wave of austerity by 

planning ahead and focusing in the longer-term, thus avoid short-term cuts - the 

Council is continuing this approach by extending its plans to 2020. 

 

3. Committee context 
 
Responsibility for many aspects of public health services together with public health 
teams and budgets was transferred to local authorities in April 2013. The transfer of 
responsibility for local health improvement to local authorities has been the biggest 
shift in public health delivery in decades. The Government’s approach to improving 
public health is centred on empowering individuals to make healthy choices, and 
giving communities the tools and resources to address their own health needs. 
 
The Government has provided local authorities with significant new powers and 
opportunities to develop effective local solutions to manage public health and 
improve the lives of their residents. Boroughs are uniquely positioned to understand 
the specific needs of their communities and to draw on a range of existing 
knowledge, expertise and resources from within their organisations, and from 
partners, to improve health outcomes for their residents. 
 
The Corporate Plan identifies the Council’s commitment to public health emphasising 
that prevention is better than cure.  It also sets out the need to find new ways to 
encourage families and individuals to look after their health and stay independent 
and to build strong local partnerships, including with the local NHS, to deliver this. 
 
This Commissioning Plan sets out the high level outcomes that Barnet’s Public 
Health team believe will make the biggest difference to the health and wellbeing of 
Barnet’s residents, in line with Sir Michael Marmot’s policy objectives; based on 
evidence of the impact on health and wellbeing outcomes for individuals; and, cost-
effectiveness and return on investment of public health interventions.  
 
This plan aligns with the public health outcomes/ priority areas for action identified in 
Barnet’s Health and Well-Being Strategy (2012-15), that were identified and 
developed in consultation with stakeholders and residents, and based on the 
evidence of population need from Barnet’s JSNA, the Barnet health profile, and the 
NHS, social care and public health outcomes frameworks.  
 
This Commissioning Plan recognises the importance of developing public health 
programmes that focus on the social determinants of health, developed in 

193



partnership with Barnet’s communities, and that make use of community assets to 
support delivery of activities wherever appropriate. As such, the plan makes use of 
recent research from the King’s Fund, NICE and other research bodies who are 
building an evidence base for the return on investment of public health interventions 
in a wider set of Council departments (such as housing, transport, planning) and 
partner organisations (such as schools). 
 
The Health and Well Being Board will provide strategic leadership for this plan, and 
will work across the various other Council Committees, strategic partnership 
arrangements (including those in the voluntary and community sector), and the CCG 
Board to ensure the broadest opportunities to deliver better health and wellbeing 
outcomes for Barnet’s residents are realised. 
 

4. Public Health Commissioning Outcomes 2015-2020  

Priority objective Key Outcomes  

Give every child 
the best start in 
life 

Support for first time mothers. 
 
Women are encouraged to breastfeed their babies and feel 
confident to do so. 
 
Every woman is supported to avoid alcohol and stop smoking in 
pregnancy. 
 
Support is provided for mothers experiencing peri/postnatal 
depression 
 
Children, young people and their families are supported to be 
physically, mentally and emotionally healthy 
 

Enable all 
children, young 
people and 
adults to 
maximise their 
capabilities and 
have control over 
their lives 

People are discouraged from taking up smoking in the first 
place, and encouraged and supported to quit should they wish 
to. 
 
Children and adults who are overweight and obese are 
encouraged and supported to lose weight. 
 
Children and adults are discouraged from misusing alcohol and 
drugs, and encouraged and supported to quit 
 
Children and young people feel supported to achieve and 
engage, while developing their identities and resilience.  
 
Working age adults and older people are well-connected to their 
communities and engage in activities that they are interested in, 
and which keep them well. 
 

194



Create fair 
employment and 
good work for all, 
which helps  
ensure a healthy 
standard of living 
for all 

Those furthest from the labour market are supported to access 
training and employment opportunities, retain job opportunities, 
and return to employment. 
 
Employers in Barnet are encouraged to promote healthy 
workplaces that make it easier for their employees to make 
healthy lifestyle choices.  

Create and 
develop healthy 
and sustainable 
places and 
communities 

The built environment is conducive to healthy living choices 
such as walking and the accessibility of safe open spaces.  
 
The range of green spaces and leisure facilities in the Borough 
are used more extensively, there is more active travel and 
levels of physical activity increase. 
 
Social isolation, especially amongst older people, is reduced 
through schemes that enable the sharing of skills and 
experience.  
 
Working age adults and older people live a healthy, full and 
active life and their contribution to society is valued and 
respected. 
 
Sexual ill health and alcohol/substance misuse are treated early 
and effectively by robust services delivered in partnership 
across the voluntary sector, the Council, the NHS and other 
statutory organisations. 
 
People are given many opportunities for volunteering, which 
increases inclusion into local communities, overcome language 
barriers and develop stronger inter-generational support.  
 

Strengthen the 
role and impact 
of ill health 
prevention 

People aged between 40 and 74 years are offered and take-up 
health and lifestyle checks in primary care to help reduce risk 
factors associated with long term conditions.  
 
People with a long term condition are encouraged and 
supported to self-manage their condition, resulting in a 
delayed/reduced demand for crisis response. 
 
Older people are supported to stay well during winter months. 
 
All people are supported to identify the warning signs of cancer 
and are encouraged to adopt behaviours that may help to 
prevent the onset of cancer. 
 

 

 

 

195



The commissioning intentions below reflect these priority objectives and outcomes. 

It is important to recognise that there are a number of public health statutory services 
that local authorities have to provide, including: 
 

• Sexual health services - STI testing and treatment, and contraception  
• School Nursing and the National Child Measurement Programme 
• Health Visiting (from October 2015) 
• NHS Health Check programme  
• Local authority role in health protection  
• Public health advice – support to the CCG; JSNA; PNA; annual public 

health report; Health and Well-Being Strategy 
 

After funding has been allocated to provide each of these services, local areas have 

the flexibility to decide where to invest their public health funding, based on local 

needs and priorities. The diverse range of services that are currently commissioned 

through the public health ring-fenced grant support delivery of each of the 4 chapters 

of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy (Preparing for a Healthy Life, Wellbeing in the 

Community, How we Live, and Care when needed), and enable a number of the 

priorities of the Strategy to be met.  The Health and Well-Being Board have 

endorsed and approved the current allocation of the public health grant, so this 

Commissioning Plan builds on the work already completed by the public health team 

and Health and Wellbeing Board in partnership, to allocate the grant in line with local 

needs and priorities. 

Following agreement at Health and Wellbeing Board about how the public health 

grant should be allocated (last agreed in January 2014), and in response to the local 

authority’s medium-term financial challenge, the public health team have identified 

opportunities to release efficiency savings of a little over £2.26 million from the 

current baseline public health budget of £14.423 million, approximately 15.7%. This 

will allow for resources to be strategically focused elsewhere, to meet public health 

needs through innovative methods of delivery. These investments are identified in 

the commissioning intentions that follow.  In light of the nature of the public health 

‘ring fenced’ grant allocation the financial models in this paper assume that the 

current funding continues to remain within the public health allocation until 2020. 

These proposals are incorporated into the commissioning intentions below. The 

budget projections within these Commissioning Plans contain indicative figures 

through to 2020. These budgets will be formally agreed each year, after appropriate 

consultation and equality impact assessments, as part of Council budget setting, and 

therefore could be subject to change. 

The prioritisation of spending has been informed by the Kings Fund (2014) review of 

return on public health investments (see table 1 below).  The most significant shift in 

spending is towards early years where the greatest returns on investment are seen 

but which are realised over longer time scales.  These investments are important in 

196



moving toward sustainable service models for the future.  Where possible robust 

local monitoring of evaluation will be conducted to determine benefits realisation.  

 

5. Priority objective: Give every child the best start in life 

Marmot argued that returns on investment in early childhood are higher than in 
adolescence, and that early interventions during pregnancy and on-going support in 
early years are critical to the long-term health of the child and other long-term 
outcomes. 
 
In Barnet, it has long been acknowledged that giving a child the best start in life is 

important not only to the individual child but also to society in general. Parents and 

carers impact should not be underestimated. A child’s early life affects their 

wellbeing and quality of life not only during their childhood but throughout their life – 

and indeed into the next generation. 

Whilst in Barnet, Low Birth Weight, and Infant Mortality is significantly lower than 

both the regional and national averages, analysis of local data shows that there are 

significant variations in both across the Borough (with the highest rates in Burnt Oak, 

Edgware and Woodhouse wards).  

Breastfeeding initiation in Barnet is amongst the highest seen in the country at 

91.2%, and continuation rates are similar to the national and regional averages. 

However, only 76.6% of pregnant women in Barnet have an antenatal assessment 

by the 12th week of pregnancy lower than the London rate (80%) and significantly 

lower than England average (86%). There is also a urgent need to increase health 

visitor capacity in the borough to meet demand for these early help services. 

Children and young people in Barnet have better health and non-health outcomes 

than London and England as a whole. The level of children aged under 16 living in 

poverty in Barnet (19.9%) is below the England average (20.6%), and below the 

London average (26.5%). There is evidence that childhood poverty leads to 

197



premature mortality and poor health outcomes for adults. The level of 4-5 year olds 

who are overweight and obese is also increasing. 

Parents have a vital role in taking responsibility for their children’s health, and we 

need to think about how we work within communities, schools and within families to 

address some of the challenges set out here to ensure that children and young 

people in Barnet have the best outcomes possible.  

 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen?  

1 Retain current children’s centres 
investments (Breast feeding 
programme, Family Nurse 
Partnership, Early education 
programme, Targeted parenting, 
Targeted nutritional information) 
applying 2.5%/annum efficiency 
savings.  Investment in the family 
nurse partnership and non 
mandatory early intervention 
services in children’s centres to 
improve life chances and manage 
social care demand. 

Ongoing contract monitoring and evaluation, 
annual service development/commissioning 
review.  Intentions to be clear by end of 
calendar year for commissioning by new 
financial year. 
 
More effective joint working practices 
between health visiting services and local 
authority commissioned early years services 
are being established now through joint 
commissioning arrangements with NHS 
England. This work will inform a decision on 
the approach to fuller integration by October 
2015 when the authority takes responsibility 
for health visiting commissioning. 

2 Maintain childhood obesity and 
nutrition investment via a tier 2 
weight management programme 
applying 2.5%/annum efficiency 
savings 

Ongoing contract monitoring and evaluation, 
annual service development/commissioning 
review.  Intentions to be clear by end of 
calendar year for commissioning by new 
financial year. 

3 In other areas of the schools 
programme, after capacity 
building investments in 13/14 and 
14/15, schools to determine future 
investment.   

Schools are aware the programme funding 
ends this year.  Council’s future approach to 
schools needs to be determined (i.e. whether 
elements of funding will be retained, school 
funded as delivery unit, or left to determine 
plans – Spring 2015), clear communication 
with schools at that point. 

4 Review school nursing 
commissioning arrangements 
maintaining current level of 
investment applying 2.5%/annum 
efficiency savings 

Notice has been served on current provider.  
Tender notice will go out November 2014, 
and service to commence October 2015. 

 

What this means for residentsI 

• More coordinated early years provision 

• Less fragmentation 

198



• Identification, early intervention and prevention 

What this means for providersI 

• Possible consolidation of services 

• Need to work with collaboratively with other providers 

• Attention to wider social impacts 

 

Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 14/15 Target - 19/20  

Breastfeeding initiation  89.3% 

(2013-14) 

Maintain at over 

85% 

Breast feeding at 6-8 weeks No data for 2013-

14 – baseline to be 

confirmed 

Increase 

Oral health TBD TBD 

Smoking status at time of delivery  4.8% 

(2013-14) 

Maintain at under 

5% 

Numbers of parents receiving parenting 

support 

To be established Increase 

Early childhood development: Children 

defined as having reached a good level of 

development at the end of the EYFS as a 

percentage of all eligible children 

59.56% Increase 

Children in poverty (under 16s) 19.9% Decrease 

School readiness: the percentage of 

children achieving a good level of 

development at the end of reception 

59.6 (2012/13 

data) 

Increase 

Excess weight in 4-5 year olds 23.6% Decrease 

Excess weight in 10-11 year olds 33.6% Decrease 

 

 

 

199



Financial impact 

A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this priority area is shown in the 

table below: 

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

2,033,508 2,244,670 2,101,804 2,439,883 2,778,886 3,118,789 

 

 

6. Priority objective: Enable all children, young people and adults to maximise 

their capabilities and have control over their lives 

Marmot argued that a focus on improving educational outcomes and developing 
skills is crucial to addressing health inequalities, and defined ‘capability and control’ 
in the context of his priority area for action in terms of skills and learning. In Barnet, 
this priority area has been conceived in a broader context, to include the range of 
positive health states and behaviours that will enable residents to stay healthy and 
independent. Enjoying good health is the result of responsibility being shared 
between health services and individuals. Empowering individuals to take responsibly 
for their own health is central to addressing the public health challenges described in 
this section over the coming decade. We need to create a new dialogue with 
residents as ‘active partners’ in achieving good health.   
 
Physical Activity and Obesity 
Nationally and within Barnet, there has been a steady increase in the prevalence of 
those classified as overweight and obese. In children this is considered a primary 
predictor of obesity in adulthood. The health outcomes of sustained obesity are 
numerous and include increased incidence of Type 2 Diabetes, CHD, stroke, 
depression, some cancers and back pain. Obesity throughout adulthood decreases 
life expectancy by up to nine years. 
 
About 33.6% of Barnet’s Year 6 children and 55.6% of Barnet’s adults are classified 
as overweight or obese. The Barnet Sport and Physical Activity Needs Assessment 
2012 found that sport and physical activity rates and the use of outdoor space are 
below the national average.  There are no clear reasons for this given that Barnet 
has a large number of parks and open spaces and leisure provision is comparable 
with other London boroughs.  Given the benefits to population’s health, collective 
action to improve rates of sport and physical activity participation in the Borough is 
essential. (See also Creating Sustainable Communities) 
 
Smoking Cessation 
Tobacco use is the most important preventable risk factor for death from cancer, 
cardiovascular disease and respiratory disease. Despite significant reductions in 
smoking rates in Barnet, smoking continues to be a major driver of health 
inequalities and accounts for over 360 deaths each year in the Borough.  In the past 
10 years, the success of stop smoking services has led to a reduction in smoking 
prevalence of around 10% in Barnet as well as a reduction in the number of hospital 
admissions due to smoking and deaths due to smoking. Face to face smoking 
cessation programmes have made a significant contribution in supporting quit 

200



attempts but alternative approaches are now required because recruitment rates 
have declined.  The Public Health team are looking at a broad range of options to 
encourage people to stop smoking, including integration within care pathways, and 
upstream intervention (including Making Every Contact Count), targeted 
interventions (including focusing on people with mental health problems) and 
legislative change (tobacco control). 
 
Local and national concerns have also been raised about the growing number of 
shisha establishments.  Nationally there has been an increase of over 210% in the 
number of shisha bars and cafes in England over the past five years and this is also 
reflected locally. Public health will need to work with many partners to develop 
tobacco control plans that address these challenges.    
 
Mental wellbeing 
In terms of morbidity, mental health accounts for a great health burden than either 
CHD or cancers.  The promotion of mental wellbeing through life skills and social 
networks has the potential to make a significant contribution to public health 
improving health and social outcomes and containing public sector costs.  Public 
health is working with colleagues across the local authority and CCG to ensure that 
wellbeing is promoted and that awareness of mental health and early intervention 
provision is expanded. However, there are a number of challenges for Barnet to 
address, including the fact that hospital admissions for mental health conditions 
among young people are on the rise, reflecting the lack of early intervention and 
assertive outreach services in the community. Between 2009-10 and 2011-12, there 
were 50 admissions for self harm in young people in under 18 in Barnet (giving a 
rate of 60.2 per 100,000 people aged 17 and under).  This is lower than the London 
average (64.4/100,000 aged 17 and under) and significantly lower than the national 
rate (115.5/100,000 aged 17 and under). 
 
Being able to live independently is a key factor in good mental health and wellbeing. 
Since 2004/05 the rate of social service assistance for Barnet residents to live 
independent lives has steadily increased. The availability of safe, healthy housing 
and inclusive community’s impact on people’s ability to live independently of health 
and social care services. Building social capital and reducing social isolation among 
vulnerable groups of the population is required to ensure that these people are 
supported to maintain good mental health and wellbeing.  
 
Drugs and alcohol 
The abuse of substances such as drugs and alcohol can have a detrimental impact 
on an individual’s health, their families and society, crime and antisocial behaviour 
and the economy.  
 
Information and advice will be provided children and adults to discouraged misuse of 
alcohol and drugs, and identify and refer onto treatment service when needed. 
 
In Barnet, the rates of alcohol hospital related admissions have been steadily 
increasing and alcohol attributed recorded crime levels are also above the London 
average in Barnet. We will need to work with partners to think about the ways in 
which people who are drinking at harmful levels can be supported as quickly and 

201



early as possible building on the development of brief intervention services in 
pharmacists.   
 
Making every contact count 
Making Every Contact Count is an everyday approach to prevention.  All partner 
organisations should require providers and ensure that they themselves use every 
opportunity to deliver brief advice to improve health and wellbeing whether in health, 
social care or other service areas.     
 
What this means for residentsI 

• Reduced provision of face to face smoking cessation services, except for 

target groups with relatively high smoking prevalence such as mental health 

patients, due to declining effectiveness and efficiency  

• Consideration of local measures to discourage smoking and excess alcohol 

consumption 

• Greater prioritisation of alcohol dependence 

• Community weight management offer 

• More information about a range of local services  

• More brief intervention/prevention 

• Information, support but expectation of personal responsibility 

What this means for providersI 

• Different ways of addressing smoking – more targeted face to face 

(particularly Mental Health patients) more tobacco control measures 

• Greater prioritisation of alcohol dependence 

• Need to collaborate with other providers across the statutory and voluntary 

sector 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen?  

1 Maintain physical activity 
promotion investment 

Continue service as normal 

2 Develop weight management 
offer 

Offer developed by April 2015 

3 Reduce budget for smoking 
cessation via service redesign 
away from face to face support, 
except for target populations – 
such as mental health patients, 
develop telephone based support 
and introduce alternative tobacco 
control measures 

Notice serviced 
Options by January 2015 
Commission services by April 2015 

4 Develop emotional wellbeing 
programme in the community to 
compliment CAMHS, adult mental 
health and community resilience 
plans. 

Options by November 2013 
Commission services by April 2015 

202



 Commissioning intention What needs to happen?  

5 Investment to support the 
introduction of Making Every 
Contact Count in the borough 

Options by April 2015 
 

6 Build on Alcohol brief intervention 
in pharmacists to discourage 
alcohol and substance misuse 
and ensure early identification of 
the harm 

Strategy due to be presented to HWBB in 
January  
 
Options by April 2015 

 

Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 14/15 Target - 19/20  

Self-reported wellbeing – people with a 

low satisfaction score1 

6% Decrease 

Self-reported wellbeing- people with a 

low worthwhile score 

4.1% Decrease 

Self-reported wellbeing – people with a 

low happiness score 

8.2% Decrease 

Self-reported wellbeing- people with a 

high anxiety score 

15.9% Decrease 

Percentage of active adults 53.9% Increase 

   

   

Excess weight in adults 55.6% Decrease 

Smoking prevalence 13.9% Decrease 

Rates of harmful drinking Indictor to be 

determined 

following changes 

in national 

measures 

Decrease 

 

 

                                                           
1
 NB. The self-reported well-being measures are not within the sole remit of PH to change – they are 

affected by societal change. No specific target will be set although these will be monitored over the 
duration of this plan. 

203



Financial impact 

A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this priority area is shown in the 

table below: 

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

871,641 884,092 654,603 624,932 611,359 598,125 

     

7. Priority objective: Create fair employment and good work for all, which 
helps ensure a healthy standard of living for all 

 
Marmot argued that unemployment and particularly long-term unemployment has 
significant impact on physical and mental health, and that being in good work 
protects health. Further, he argued that a certain minimum level of income is 
necessary to lead a physically and mentally healthy life. Evidence shows that there is 
a clear association between an individual’s socioeconomic position and their health 
outcomes.  
 
Although in overall terms Barnet is an affluent borough, there are pockets of 

deprivation. These exist along the western edge of the borough and in parts of 

Coppetts, East Finchley and Brunswick Park wards. In these areas, a number of 

health and non-health outcomes are poorer. 

The numbers of unemployed (but economically active) people have fallen from 9% of 

the workforce in September 2012 to 6.6% in April 2013 (a 27% fall). For people 

claiming JSA, the figures have fallen from 2.9% of the workforce in September 2012 

to 1.8% in August 2014 (a 38% fall). Whilst similar declines have been observed in 

London and England there are fewer people claiming out of work benefits in Barnet 

in this period when compared to London and England. However, certain cohorts of 

people are more likely to find themselves out of work, including those with mental 

health problems and substance misuse issues. 

What this means for residentsI 

• More support to stay in/back to work, particularly where motivation/mental 

health concerns 

What this means for providersI 

• Expectation of working with other providers and with NHS 

• More holistic view of client needs 

 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen? 

1 Extending investment in 
employment support programme, 
improving local pathway for 

Ongoing contract monitoring and evaluation, 
annual service development/commissioning 
review.  Intentions to be clear by end of 

204



 Commissioning intention What needs to happen? 

support for clients with 
motivational, mental health and 
alcohol/substance misuse issues. 

calendar year for commissioning by new 
financial year. 

 

Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 14/15 Target - 19/20  

Residents with mental health problems 

supported to retain/return to employment 

To be established Increase 

Promoting healthy workplaces: Number of 

large workplaces signed up to the London 

Healthy Workplace Charter 

5 (2014/15 target) Increase 

 

Financial impact 

A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this priority area is shown in the 

table below: 

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

200,000 295,000 290,125 285,372 280,738 276,219 

     

8. Priority objective: Create and develop healthy and sustainable places 

and communities 

Marmot argued that changes can be made to the built environments to make them 
conducive to health.  For example, outdoor gym infrastructure, marked and 
measured routes, cycling, traffic calming and air quality measures to make walking 
more attractive. 
 
The social environment is also a significant determinant of health and wellbeing.  
Programmes that help stimulate, grow, support, networks in communities tackles 
social isolation and builds resilience at both individual and population level. 
 
In Barnet, Marmot’s policy objective has been broadened again to include ensuring 
effective health services infrastructure, which is another important part of creating 
and developing healthy and sustainable places and communities.  Services that are 
locally accessible for treatment of STIs and drug/alcohol dependence (see below). 
 
Promoting healthy built environments  
The health benefits of physical activity are well established and locally physical 
activity rates are relatively poor.  Beyond sport and leisure activities that can be 
encouraged through the use of initiatives such as outdoor gyms, active travel 

205



presents an important means of increasing physical activity and may more easily be 
integrated into daily living.  The promotion of active travel requires communications, 
workplace health promotion and environmental investments. 
 
Promoting healthy social environments  
The health benefits of building social capital and social connectedness are 
increasingly being recognised within local community development approaches. 
There is evidence that national community development models such as the 
Altogether Better programme support older people to remain healthy and active 
participants in their communities. Whilst nearly three quarters of Barnet’s residents 
report a strong sense of belonging to their communities, the national average is 
slightly higher, and poses a challenge to Barnet about what more can be done to 
build inclusive, supportive communities that all people feel able to contribute to. 
 
Sexual Health 
Sexual health is an important aspect of physical and mental wellbeing. Poor sexual 
health can have a long-lasting and severe impact on people’s lives, for example 
through unintended pregnancies and abortions causing physical disease and poor 
educational, social and economic opportunities; sexually transmitted infections 
(STIs) and HIV/AIDS; ectopic pregnancies leading to infertility; cervical and other 
genital cancers; and hepatitis, chronic liver disease and liver cancer. 
 
Over the past ten years in England there has been a substantial increase in 
diagnoses of many STIs. It is likely that increased transmission through unsafe 
sexual behaviour has contributed to the overall rise in STI diagnoses, though 
improved testing arrangements will have also contributed to the reported increases. 
The true incidence of STIs in Barnet is not known, since much data is reported at 
GUM clinic level, but these clinics see people regardless of their place of residence. 
This presents significant challenges for all local authorities, who have to provide 
adequate local services for people from any Borough.  
 
There are fewer teenage pregnancies in Barnet than across London and England as 
a whole. However teenage pregnancy remains a priority area for attention in sexual 
health, as it is associated with poorer outcomes for both young parents and their 
children. Teenage mothers are less likely to finish their education, are more likely to 
bring up their child alone and in poverty and have a higher risk of poor mental health 
than older mothers. Infant mortality rates for babies born to teenage mothers are 
around 60% higher than for babies born to older mothers. The children of teenage 
mothers also have an increased risk of living in poverty and poor quality housing and 
are more likely to have accidents and behavioural problems. 
 
Demand for sexual health services are increasing, and the challenge for sexual 
health services are to ensure that they diagnose and treat STIs and HIV quickly, and 
ensure that family planning services are in place to reduce unwanted pregnancies. It 
is also necessary that service identify and protect individuals from female genital 
mutilation (FGM) and sexual exploitation. 
 

 

206



 Commissioning intention What needs to happen? 

1 Maintaining outdoor gym 
infrastructure, new investment in 
support of active travel and 
physical activity 

Annual maintenance of outdoor gyms.  
Options for active travel/physical activity 
campaigns and environmental improvements 
by Summer 2015. 

2 Maintain investment in Better 
together programme 

Ongoing contract monitoring and evaluation, 
annual service development/commissioning 
review.  Intentions to be clear by end of 
calendar year for commissioning by new 
financial year. 

3 Contain otherwise escalating 
costs of sexual health services 
whilst maintaining/improving 
outcomes. 

Barnet Sexual Health strategy & West 
London Alliance transformation report to 
Health and Well-Being Board November 14 
Collaborative commissioning already 
underway and contracts for 2015/16 to be 
agreed by respective lead commissioners 
ahead of April 15 
A proposal for collaborative commissioning 
across 20 London Boroughs (led by the 
Barnet and Harrow public health team) is 
expected to come to the Health and Well-
Being Board in November 2014.  
Over the following 12 months it is expected 
that new service specifications will be 
developed, consultation will occur, followed 
by re-commissioning of new services for 
2017/18   

4 Review drug and alcohol service 
commissioning arrangements to 
improve treatment outcomes and 
additional social benefits whilst 
maintaining current level of 
investment. 

Needs assessments completed Oct 2014 
Strategies for HWBB sign off Jan 2015 
The service is currently being re-procured 
with the start date of a new service of 1st 
October 2015. 

 

What this means for residentsI 

• Environmental improvements (more conducive to healthy choices) 

• Personal responsibility for health 

• Support for community networks and workplace health promotion 

• Opportunities to be more physically active 

What this means for providersI 

• Consideration to sustainability concerns in procurement 

 

 

207



Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 14/15 Target - 19/20  

Utilisation of outdoor space for 

exercise/health reasons 

10.6% Increase 

Increased activities for older people To be established Increase 

Physical activity participation 53.9% Increase 

Social isolation: The percentage of adult 

carers who have as much social contact at 

they would like according to the Personal 

Social Services Carers survey2 

35.8% Increase 

Proportion of persons presenting with HIV 

at a late stage of infection 

53.57% Decrease 

Repeat <25 terminations 30.1% Decrease 

Repeat Sexually Transmitted Infections 6.8% (female) 

9.0% (males)  

Decrease 

Successful completion of drug treatment – 

opiate users 

8.4% Increase 

Successful completion of drug treatment – 

non-opiate users 

41.8% Increase 

Promote/ create opportunities for 

volunteering 

To be established Increase 

 

Financial impact 

A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this priority area is shown in the 

table below: 

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

8,226,827 7,815,654 8,384,784
  

8,154,980 7,981,003  7,679,150 

   

                                                           
2
 There is a clear link between loneliness and poor mental and physical health. A key element of the 

Government's vision for social care is to tackle loneliness and social isolation, supporting people to remain 

connected to their communities and to develop and maintain connections to their friends and family. This 

measure will draw on self-reported levels of social contact as an indicator of social isolation for both users of 

social care and carers. 

208



9. Priority objective: Strengthen the role and impact of ill health prevention 

Marmot argued that investment in ill health prevention and health promotion needs to 
substantially increase over coming years. Whilst Marmot specifically referenced work 
that should be done to address smoking, alcohol, drugs and obesity under this policy 
objective, this Commissioning Plan has referenced further major causes of ill health 
in Barnet that have not yet been addressed in the plan, to ensure that a wider set of 
problems are tackled. 
 
This includes focusing on ill-health in later life. Life expectancy has increased 
significantly in recent years but so has the prevalence of chronic degenerative 
disease.  If life expectancy increases at a faster rate than disability-free life 
expectancy, the period that people live with chronic disease and demand on services 
will increase. To avoid this there needs to be substantial delays in the onset of 
disability in later life. This is achieved through primary prevention that promotes the 
widespread adoption of healthier lifestyles and secondary prevention that targets 
those at increased risk of adverse health outcomes.   
 
Cardiovascular disease 
Cardiovascular disease (heart disease and stroke) is the largest cause of death in 
Barnet and the second largest cause of death after cancer in people aged less than 
75 years old. Emergency admission rates for heart disease in Barnet are significantly 
lower than the national rates, but for stroke the Barnet rate is significantly higher than 
national rate. Smoking, high risk drinking and obesity are 3 of the biggest risk factors 
associated with heart disease and stroke, and identifying these risk factors in 
individuals, and supporting them to make healthier lifestyle choices, is central to 
reducing the numbers of people who are affected by cardiovascular disease. 
 
Cancer 
Cancer is the most common cause of premature mortality but an estimated 42% of 
cancer cases each year are linked to lifestyle factors.  In the last 5 years, almost 
600,000 cancer cases in the UK could have been prevented by people not smoking; 
maintaining a healthy weight; not drinking excess alcohol; eating plenty of fruit, 
vegetables and fibre, eating less red meat and cutting down on salt and saturated 
fat; being physically active; and avoiding excess UV radiation from sunlight and 
sunbeds.  Promoting healthy lifestyles and uptake of national screening programmes 
for cancer will make a significant contribution to public health. 
 
Long-term conditions 
Approximately 15.4 million people in England live with a long-term health condition 
such as diabetes, dementia, asthma and arthritis, and an increasing number of 
people are living with more than one long term condition (a phenomenon known as 
“multi-morbidity”). The likelihood of having more than one LTC increases with 
age.  With increasing life expectancy, Barnet’s population of older people is set to 
grow so we need to work with our partners to support this expanding group of 
people. Those with long term conditions, and those who care for them, will need to 
feel empowered to take more responsibility for looking after themselves, but they will 
also need to be supported to develop the tools, skills and knowledge to manage 
these conditions effectively. Developing a new partnership between individuals, their 

209



families and carers, and health and social care professionals is key to addressing 
this significant challenge. 
 
Excess Winter Deaths 
Barnet has a higher than average percentage of excess winter deaths at 22.3% 
compared to 19.1% for London and 16.1% for England as a whole. Addressing cold 
housing is a key requirement to reduce this rate.  Winter Well programmes that 
support vulnerable residents to be energy efficient, to insulate their homes and to 
ensure they are equipped with skills to stay warm through winter will help to tackle 
this challenge.   
 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen? 

1 Develop self management offer – 
e.g. health champions and expert 
patient programmes, maintaining 
intended investment; develop 
targeted prevention offer 

Implementation of commissioning intentions 
in the Health and Social Care Integrated 
Care Business Case from October 2014 

2 Develop a more targeted Health 
checks programme  

Continue to encourage Barnet GP practices 
to offer health checks 
Identify/assess additional outreach 
opportunities 

3 Maintain Winter Well investment Ongoing contract monitoring and evaluation, 
annual service development/commissioning 
review.  Intentions to be clear by end of 
calendar year for commissioning by new 
financial year. 

4 Investment in a health lifestyles 
cancer prevention campaign  

Options appraisal to be conducted by April 
2015 

 

What this means for residentsI 

• Targeted provision of NHS health checks 

• Support for self care 

• Personal responsibility for health 

What this means for providersI 

• Expectation of cooperation with other providers      

 

Outcome measures 

Measure Baseline – 14/15 Target - 19/20  

Patients self managing (delayed/reduced 

demand for crisis response) 

To be established Increase 

210



Under 75 mortality rate from 

cardiovascular diseases (including heart 

disease and stroke) considered 

preventable  

39.54 Decrease 

Cumulative % of the eligible population 

aged 40-74 who have received an NHS 

Health Check  

6% Increase 

Number of households that have had 

insulation as part of Winter Well 

To be established Increase 

 

Financial impact 

A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this priority area is shown in the 

table below: 

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

1,007,149 1,199,708 1,052,809
  

978,958
  

958,140
  

937,842 

 

10. Service component:  staffing 

Workforce efficiency savings of approximately 14% of the public health employee 
budget have also been included. As government funding for local government 
services continues to reduce, all Council delivery units will need to review their 
workforce budgets to ensure that they can improve efficiency by 10% by 2020. 
Corporate initiatives such as the review of terms and conditions and the unified pay 
project will support delivery units in achieving this saving. Delivery units will also 
need to review performance management, use of agency staff, management layers 
and productivity to ensure that this saving can be achieved.  
 

Commissioning intentions: 

 Commissioning intention What needs to happen?  

 Improve the efficiency of workforce 

spend 

Review of the current staffing by April 

2015 in line with the review of the wider 

council commissioning structures. 

 

Financial impact 

A summary of the change in net revenue budget for this priority area is shown in the 

table below: 

211



14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

1,963,265 1,863,265 1,818,265 1,818,265 1,692,265 1,692,265 

 

212



Appendix B - MTFS 2015 - 2020

0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Budget brought forward 294,829 284,415 275,120 267,872 261,841

Statutory/cost drivers

Inflation (pay ) 1,210 1,097 1,108 1,119 1,130

Inflation (non-pay) 3,057 3,309 3,376 3,443 3,512
North London Waste Authority (NLWA) levy 1,500 982 999 1,017 1,035

Capital financing costs 0 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500

Care Act 1,409

Statutory/cost drivers sub-total 7,176 6,888 6,983 7,079 7,177

Central Expenses

Contingency - general risks (3,140) 618 442 443 443

Concessionary Fares 380 227 255 292 346

Central Expenses sub-total (2,760) 845 697 735 789

Balances to/(from) reserves

Specific reserves contribution 2014/15 NHB (8,417)

Specific reserves contribution 2015/16 NHB 10,291 (10,291)

Specific reserves contribution 2016/17 NHB 10,735 (10,735)

Specific reserves contribution 2017/18 NHB 10,548 (10,548)

Specific reserves contribution 2018/19 NHB 9,897 (9,897)

Specific reserves contribution 2019/20 NHB 7,583

Service Development Reserve (955) 955

Reserves sub-total 919 1,399 (187) (651) (2,314)

Total expenditure 300,164 293,547 282,613 275,035 267,492

New Formula grant funding

Business Rates 35,500 36,672 38,028 39,473 41,013

Business Rates- Top up 18,300 18,904 19,603 20,348 21,142

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 48,200 40,000 30,000 20,000 10,000

-17.01% -25.00% -33.33% -50.00%

New Formula grant sub-total 102,000 95,575 87,631 79,821 72,154

Council Tax

Council Tax (CT) 144,613 145,455 148,498 151,390 154,762

Collection Fund contribution (CT) 1,500

CT freeze grant 14-15 1,625

CT freeze grant 15-16 1,647 1,647

Core grants

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) credit 2,235 2,235 2,235 2,235 2,235

Education Servcies Grant 3,567 3,210 2,889 2,600 2,340

NHB 10,291 10,735 10,548 9,897 7,583

Unallocated RSG 460

Housing and CT Benefit Administration Grant 2,142 1,928 1,735 1,562 1,405

Public Health 14,335 14,335 14,335 14,335 14,335

Other funding sub-total 182,415 179,545 180,240 182,019 182,661

 Total Income from grant and Council Tax 284,415 275,120 267,872 261,841 254,816

Proposed Pressures 1,520 3,992 3,583 3,382 3,593 14,550    

Budget Gap before savings & pressures 15,749 18,427 14,741 13,194 12,677 59,039    

Proposed Savings (17,269) (19,577) (12,269) (10,677) (8,109) (50,632)

Budget Gap after savings 0 2,842 6,055 5,899 8,161

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

213



214

This page is intentionally left blank



 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 C
 -
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 2
0
1
5
 –
 2
0
2
0

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 S
a
v
in
g
s
 a
s
 p
e
r 
th
e
 T
h
e
m
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s

T
h
e
m
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

2
0
1
5
-1
6

2
0
1
6
-1
7

2
0
1
7
-1
8

2
0
1
8
-1
9

2
0
1
9
-2
0

T
o
ta
l

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g

(8
,4
2
4
)

(2
,6
5
6
)

(3
,5
1
4
)

(3
,1
9
9
)

(3
,2
3
8
)

(2
1
,0
3
2
)

A
s
s
e
ts
, 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 &
 

G
ro
w
th

(3
0
0
)

(4
,6
3
5
)

(3
,5
5
3
)

(1
,4
1
7
)

(4
7
2
)

(1
0
,3
7
7
)

C
h
ild
re
n
, 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 &
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g

(3
,3
9
4
)

(3
,7
9
5
)

(2
,1
9
5
)

(1
,9
7
3
)

(1
,9
1
2
)

(1
3
,2
6
9
)

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip

(9
)

(8
4
3
)

(8
5
2
)

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

(1
,8
5
1
)

(3
,5
6
0
)

(1
,4
1
0
)

(8
0
0
)

(1
0
0
)

(7
,7
2
1
)

H
o
u
s
in
g

(3
0
0
)

(3
0
0
)

P
o
lic
y
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

(3
,0
0
0
)

(4
,9
2
2
)

(1
,5
9
6
)

(3
,2
8
9
)

(1
,5
4
4
)

(1
4
,3
5
1
)

T
o
ta
l

(1
7
,2
6
9
)

(1
9
,5
7
7
)

(1
2
,2
6
9
)

(1
0
,6
7
7
)

(8
,1
0
9
)

(6
7
,9
0
1
)

215



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C
 -

 A
d

u
lt

s
 &

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e

L
in
e
 r
e
f

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 A
re
a

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
a
v
in
g

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (
H
o
w
 

a
re
 w
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 

o
n
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l)

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

E
1

A
d

u
lt
s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

S
a

v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

s
 o

p
p

o
s
e

d
 t
o

 h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 
c
a

re
 

p
a

c
k
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

T
h

e
 '
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 O

ff
e

r'
 d

e
li
v
e

rs
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

a
n

d
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 w
a

y
s
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

s
 o

p
p

o
s
e

d
 t
o

 

h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 
c
a

re
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 w
il
l 
le

a
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 u

s
e

 

o
f 
u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 
e

n
a

b
le

m
e

n
t,
 t
e

le
c
a

re
, 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
ir

e
c
t 
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

s
te

a
d

 

o
f 
a

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
m

e
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
.

T
h

e
 '
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 O

ff
e

r'
 w

il
l 
b

e
 d

e
li
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 m

u
lt
i-

d
is

c
ip

li
n

a
ry

 t
e

a
m

s
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 

w
o

rk
e

rs
, 
o

c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
th

e
ra

p
is

ts
, 
te

le
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 d
ir

e
c
t 
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

. 

T
h

e
 n

e
t 
c
o

s
t 
o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 s
o

m
e

o
n

e
 o

n
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 i
s
 c

h
e

a
p

e
r 

th
a

n
 

tr
a

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
a

re
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
. 

S
p

e
c
if
ic

 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 -

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 o
f 
te

le
c
a

re
 

a
n

d
 a

s
s
is

ti
v
e

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 (

lo
c
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t)
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
in

g
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 

re
fe

rr
a

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
c
o

u
ld

 

c
o

m
p

ro
m

is
e

 o
u

r 
a

b
il
it
y
 t
o

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

s
 o

u
r 

o
v
e

ra
ll
 

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
, 
m

a
n

a
g

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

p
e

o
p

le
's

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

d
. 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 
c
e

n
tr

e
 w

il
l 
a

ls
o

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

  

C
S

G
 p

ro
v
id

e
r,

 c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 s

e
lf
- 

fu
n

d
e

rs
. 
  

H
ig

h
 -

 L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 o

f 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

b
e

in
g

 u
n

p
o

p
u

la
r 

w
it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

u
s
e

rs
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 a

n
y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 

if
 n

o
t 
c
a

re
fu

ll
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

, 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

  
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

im
 i
s
 t
o

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
, 

c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l.
 

H
ig

h
 -

 T
h

is
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 a

ff
e

c
ts

 b
o

th
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d

 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
. 
  
A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 h
a

s
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
it
 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 

fe
m

a
le

 a
n

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 a

g
e

 o
f 
4

0
 y

e
a

rs
. 
 A

n
y
 

s
ta

ff
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 w

il
l 
n

e
e

d
 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 d

is
-

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

li
ty

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
 T

h
e

 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 

p
o

li
c
y
 w

il
l 
n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
e

d
. 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 

im
p

a
c
t 
- 

A
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 r

e
-c

o
n

fi
g

u
re

d
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
w

il
l 
n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 o

f 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
g

ro
u

p
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
a

rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
, 
th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 t
o

 s
e

lf
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 o
f 
a

 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 
 E

IA
 1

 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

u
p

d
a

te
d

, 
m

in
im

a
l 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t.

1
4

,5
5

4
(8

5
8

)

E
2

O
ld

e
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 

Y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
A

d
u

lt
s
 (

a
ll
 

g
ro

u
p

s
)

S
a

v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

s
 o

p
p

o
s
e

d
 t
o

 h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 c
o

s
t 
o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
th

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
y
:

In
n

o
v
a

ti
v
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

h
il
s
t 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 c

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
. 
T

h
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
  
a

re
:

  
  
  
  
•F

u
ll
 y

e
a

r 
im

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
R

e
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

u
r 

F
lo

a
ti
n

g
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t

  
  
  
  
• 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
S

h
e

lt
e

re
d

 P
lu

s
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 -

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
u

la
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir

 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s
 o

n
 a

 c
a

s
e

 b
y
 c

a
s
e

 b
a

s
is

.

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

F
lo

a
ti
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

o
k
 

p
la

c
e

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

T
h

is
 i
s
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
o

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

n
d

 

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
. 
P

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 u
s
e

 o
f 
te

le
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
is

ti
v
e

 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 (

lo
c
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t)
. 
 P

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 e

n
a

b
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 c
a

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

.

L
o

w
 -

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 u

s
e

rs
 a

n
 

e
n

a
b

le
d

 t
o

 s
ta

y
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
 f
o

r 

lo
n

g
e

r

L
o

w
 -

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 
te

le
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 

a
s
s
is

ti
v
e

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 w

il
l 
e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
m

o
re

 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 t
o

 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
 f
o

r 

lo
n

g
e

r.
  
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
y
 o

n
 

in
fl
u

e
n

c
in

g
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
 b

u
il
d

s
 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

il
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 e

x
is

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
il
it
y
 c

a
n

 l
iv

e
 i
n

 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 e
n

a
b

le
m

e
n

t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

il
l 
a

ls
o

  
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 
s
h

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
 u

s
e

. 
E

IA
 2

 f
o

r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 m

in
im

a
l 
n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t.

2
0

,7
4

7
(7

0
4

)

E
3

A
c
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

S
a

v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 b

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 c
a

re
rs

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 

p
re

v
e

n
t/
re

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f
o

r 
fu

n
d

e
d

 c
a

re

S
a

v
in

g
s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 e
ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

li
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

fo
r 

c
a

re
rs

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

‘C
a

re
rs

 O
ff
e

r’
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 
th

e
 c

a
re

rs
 j
o

u
rn

e
y
. 
 T

h
is

 

w
il
l 
h

e
lp

 t
h

e
 c

a
re

r 
s
u

s
ta

in
 t
h

e
ir

 r
o

le
, 
a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 s

p
e

c
ia

li
s
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
s
p

it
a

l 
a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
. 
 

In
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 2

,1
7

9
 c

a
re

rs
 h

a
d

 a
n

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 i
t 
is

 a
s
s
u

m
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
2

5
%

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 t
h

a
t 
w

o
u

ld
 o

th
e

rw
is

e
 b

e
 i
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
. 
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h

is
 b

y
 

5
%

 w
o

u
ld

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

is
 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

n
d

 a
id

 p
e

o
p

le
 t
o

 l
iv

e
 m

o
re

 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
tl
y
 w

it
h

 m
o

re
 c

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

is
 w

il
l 
in

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 m
e

a
n

 t
h

a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

il
l 
re

c
e

iv
e

 l
o

w
e

r 
c
o

s
t 
p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

ly
.

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n

L
o

w
 -

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 c
a

re
rs

 w
il
l 

e
n

a
b

le
 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 c
a

re
 a

n
d

 

re
m

a
in

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t.
  
F

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 c

a
re

rs
 

th
e

y
 w

il
l 
b

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

lo
n

g
 s

id
e

 

th
e

ir
 c

a
ri

n
g

 d
u

ti
e

s
.

L
o

w
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

L
o

w
 -

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
w

il
l 
im

p
ro

v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o

 

a
 p

ro
te

c
ti
v
e

 g
ro

u
p

. 
E

IA
 3

 f
o

r 
c
a

re
rs

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
, 
m

in
im

a
l 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t.

2
,0

0
3

(5
5

0
)

E
4

A
c
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
S

a
v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 d
e

c
re

a
s
in

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
th

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

n
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 c
o

s
ts

 b
y
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
le

is
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 r
e

n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 

S
a

v
in

g
s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

: 

(1
) 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 l
e

is
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t
o

 o
ff

e
r 

m
o

re
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
 l
e

is
u

re
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 o
n

 s
p

e
c
ia

li
s
t 
d

a
y
 c

a
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

, 
u

s
in

g
 a

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 

le
is

u
re

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(2
) 

R
e

v
ie

w
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 d
a

y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
s
a

v
in

g
 i
s
 p

re
d

ic
a

te
d

 o
n

 a
 1

0
%

 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
s
p

e
n

d
 w

it
h

 d
a

y
 c

a
re

 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
li
v
e

ry
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 l
o

w
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 o
n

c
e

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

n
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

y
n

e
rg

ie
s
 a

re
.

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
, 
th

o
u

g
h

 

th
is

  
w

il
l 
n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 m
o

d
e

l 
u

s
e

d
.

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 m
e

d
iu

m
 -

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
w

il
l 

h
a

v
e

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 a

s
 

th
e

y
 w

il
l 
h

a
v
e

 m
o

re
 c

h
o

ic
e

, 
w

il
l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 

u
n

d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

s
 m

o
d

e
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

s
 C

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

c
h

a
ll
e

n
g

e
 i
n

 f
ro

m
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 a
n

y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t
o

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

. 
E

IA
 

4
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

, 
m

in
im

a
l 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t.

6
,4

7
4

(6
6

0
)

E
5

Y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
A

d
u

lt
s
: 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

S
a

v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

  
s
h

a
ri

n
g

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 M
H

T

In
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
c
t 
o

n
 a

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 3

 

a
t 
th

e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

1
7

 a
ft
e

rc
a

re
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 t
h

a
t 
a

n
y
o

n
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 S
1

1
7

 w
il
l 
a

u
to

m
a

ti
c
a

ll
y
 b

e
 j
o

in
tl
y
 f
u

n
d

e
d

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
. 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
im

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
's

 a
b

il
it
y
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h

e
s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n

T
h

is
 s

a
v
in

g
 a

s
s
u

m
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
n

e
w

 m
o

d
e

ls
 o

f 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 

w
il
l 
re

s
u

lt
 i
n

 l
e

s
s
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

q
u

ir
in

g
 o

n
-

g
o

in
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

e
ir

 c
a

re
 a

n
d

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 n
e

e
d

s
  
a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 f
a

c
il
it
a

te
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 s

ta
ff
in

g
 m

o
d

e
l 
in

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 

T
ru

s
t.
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

ts
 .

M
e

d
iu

m
 -

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

M
e

d
iu

m
 -

 T
h

e
re

 m
a

y
b

e
 a

 d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 u

s
e

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 t
h

o
s
e

 f
ro

m
 B

M
E

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
b

e
 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 f
u

ll
y
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 t
h

e
 

im
p

a
c
t.
 E

IA
 5

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
, 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t.

4
,8

6
5

(4
0

1
)

E
6

A
c
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

S
a

v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 b
a

c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
a

l 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 n

e
w

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 

e
x
p

lo
ri

n
g

 n
e

w
 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 m
o

d
e

ls
. 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 

w
it
h

 s
ta

ff
  

T
h

is
 s

a
v
in

g
  
is

 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 e

x
p

lo
ri

n
g

 n
e

w
 

m
o

d
e

ls
 o

f 
d

e
li
v
e

ri
n

g
 b

a
c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
, 

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 m

o
d

e
l 
a

n
d

 

th
e

re
fo

re
 n

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 i
s
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
.

M
e

d
iu

m
 -

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

c
le

a
rl

y
 m

a
p

p
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

fr
o

m
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
p

e
rs

p
e

c
ti
v
e

 t
o

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 

im
p

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

le
a

r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
n

 

p
la

c
e

. 
A

im
 o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
.

L
o

w
 -

 N
o

n
e

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t
a

rg
e

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
e

o
p

le
 f
ro

m
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 e
th

n
ic

, 

re
li
g

io
u

s
, 
s
e

x
 o

r 
g

e
n

d
e

r 
g

ro
u

p
s
. 
 

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
, 
n

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

o
s
e

 

d
im

e
n

s
io

n
s
 o

f 
e

q
u

a
li
ty

. 
T

h
is

 w
il
l 
n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

k
e

p
t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

s
 p

la
n

s
 a

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

, 

g
o

in
g

 f
o

rw
a

rd
. 
E

IA
 6

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
, 
im

p
a

c
t 
n

o
t 

k
n

o
w

n
.

1
4

,7
5

3
(3

0
0

)
6

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

2
0
1
5
/1
6

S
a
v
in
g
s
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m

216



L
in
e
 r
e
f

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 A
re
a

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
a
v
in
g

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (
H
o
w
 

a
re
 w
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 

o
n
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l)

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

2
0
1
5
/1
6

S
a
v
in
g
s
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m

E
7

Y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
A

d
u

lt
s

S
a

v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 H
R

A
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 n
e

w
 b

u
il
d

 w
h

ic
h

 w
il
l 
re

s
u

lt
 i
n

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 h
ig

h
 

c
o

s
t 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

S
a

v
in

g
s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
li
v
in

g
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
Y

o
u

n
g

e
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 w

it
h

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l/
le

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 n
e

w
 b

u
il
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 u

s
in

g
 H

R
A

 m
o

n
ie

s
 f
o

r 
w

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 B
a

rn
e

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n

te
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
to

 s
o

u
rc

e
 

s
u

it
a

b
le

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
a

d
u

lt
s
. 
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
n

e
e

d
s
. 

B
a

rn
e

t 
H

o
m

e
s
 w

il
l 
c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 a
n

d
 R

E
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 
w

h
e

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

. 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 -

 T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
w

o
u

ld
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 

lo
w

e
r 

n
e

t 
c
o

s
ts

 o
f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
d

is
a

b
il
it
ie

s
. 
It
 i
s
 h

e
a

v
il
y
 

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 s

e
c
u

ri
n

g
 H

R
A

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t.

L
o

w
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 a

s
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 

s
h

o
u

ld
 w

id
e

n
 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

to
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

il
it
y
 t
o

 l
iv

e
 

in
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
.

M
e

d
iu

m
 -

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
w

il
l 
h

a
v
e

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 o

n
e

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
v
e

 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 
E

IA
 7

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
, 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t.

1
5

,4
8

7
(1

,5
1

3
)

E
8

A
c
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

(p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
p

e
n

d
)

S
a

v
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 r

e
n

e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

:

- 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

in
 i
n

fl
a

ti
o

n
a

ry
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n

L
o

w
 -

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
li
v
e

ry
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

to
 b

e
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

ly
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
.

L
o

w
 -

 w
il
l 
n

e
e

d
 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 a
n

y
 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
.

M
e

d
iu

m
 -

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
e

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 a

ll
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

n
y
 

d
if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
is

 u
n

d
e

rs
to

o
d

 a
n

d
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

d
 t
o

. 
Im

p
a

c
t 
n

o
t 

k
n

o
w

n
. 
T

h
is

 E
IA

 w
il
l 
b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
.

5
,2

6
6

(6
0

0
)

E
9

A
c
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
S

a
v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 C
S

G
 p

ro
v
id

e
r

S
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t
o

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 C
S

G
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 e
ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 s
e

lf
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
ta

rg
e

ti
n

g
 

th
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

- 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 n
e

w
 m

o
d

e
l 
o

f 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 C
a

re
 A

c
t 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

- 
R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 f
o

r 
h

ig
h

 c
o

s
t 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 

a
t 
fi
rs

t 
p

o
in

t 
o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 
  
  
  

- 
R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 
th

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 s

p
e

n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

- 
C

o
m

b
in

in
g

 A
d

u
lt
s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 d
u

ty
 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 D
ir

e
c
t 
in

 C
S

G

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 l
o

w
 -

 T
h

e
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 h
a

s
  

s
ta

rt
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

th
a

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

, 
d

e
li
v
e

r 
m

o
re

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 c
h

a
n

n
e

ls
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 m

o
s
t 

c
o

s
t 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

, 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 g

o
o

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
. 
A

c
t 
a

s
 a

n
 a

d
v
o

c
a

te
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
h

a
t 
re

s
p

o
n

d
 

e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 t
o

 t
h

e
ir

 n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

s
ig

h
t 
n

e
e

d
e

d
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 

w
it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 i
n

s
id

e
 a

n
d

 o
u

ts
id

e
 

o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 a
  

s
in

g
le

 f
ro

n
t 
d

o
o

r,
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 a
 w

e
b

 

b
a

s
e

d
 s

e
lf
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
a

re
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 m

o
re

 e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 b

u
t 

a
re

 a
ls

o
 a

b
o

u
t 
m

a
k
in

g
 s

u
re

 t
h

a
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

u
s
e

rs
, 
th

e
ir

 c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 
a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
s
 

m
u

c
h

 c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
a

s
 

lo
n

g
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
.

Im
p

a
c
t 
n

o
t 
k
n

o
w

n
 a

t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t.
 

T
h

is
 w

il
l 
n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 k
e

p
t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

s
 n

e
w

 p
la

n
s
 a

re
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

S
G

 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

a
n

d
 w

il
l 
b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 d

u
e

 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 b

e
fo

re
 a

n
y
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 i
s
 t
a

k
e

n
 f
o

r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
. 

M
e

d
iu

m
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
im

p
a

c
t 
- 

A
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

a
re

 r
e

-c
o

n
fi
g

u
re

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
w

il
l 
n

e
e

d
 

to
 b

e
 t
a

k
e

n
 o

f 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
g

ro
u

p
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

n
e

e
d

s
 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
a

rl
y
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 a

d
v
ic

e
, 
th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 t
o

 s
e

lf
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 u
s
e

 o
f 
a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
s
 i
n

 

li
n

e
 w

it
h

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

li
s
a

ti
o

n
 b

u
t 
w

il
l 
re

q
u

ir
e

 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

is
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 W

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h

a
t 
s
e

le
c
t 
g

ro
u

p
s
 

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 (

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 o

ld
e

r 

p
e

o
p

le
, 
le

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it
ie

s
, 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 

h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
n

e
e

d
s
, 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
s
e

 f
ir

s
t 

la
n

g
u

a
g

e
 i
s
n

't
 E

n
g

li
s
h

) 
w

il
l 
re

ly
 o

n
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
 W

h
e

n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 w

il
l 
n

e
e

d
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 

w
it
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
y
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
ir

 

e
q

u
a

li
ty

 d
u

ti
e

s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 
o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 

o
f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
u

s
e

. 
Im

p
a

c
t 

n
o

t 
k
n

o
w

n
.

8
,1

4
1

(2
,0

0
0

)

E
1

0
O

ld
e

r 
A

d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 

Y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
A

d
u

lt
s
 (

a
ll
 

g
ro

u
p

s
)

S
a

v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

tl
y
 s

e
tt
le

d
 o

u
t 

o
f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h

W
h

e
re

 a
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
h

a
s
 c

h
o

s
e

n
, 
a

s
 t
h

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
, 
o

r 
h

a
v
e

 m
o

v
e

d
 t
o

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
ir

 f
a

m
il
ie

s
’ 
w

is
h

e
s
, 

(a
s
c
e

rt
a

in
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 b

e
s
t 

in
te

re
s
t 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 w
h

e
re

 a
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
),

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 w
il
l 
b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 3

 m
o

n
th

s
’ 
n

o
ti
c
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it
y
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
y
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 f
u

n
d

in
g

. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
is

 n
o

t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

ly
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
li
v
e

ry
.

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n

F
u

n
d

in
g

 d
e

b
a

te
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 l
o

c
a

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 u

n
li
k
e

ly
 t
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

ly
 

o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
li
v
e

ry
.

F
u

n
d

in
g

 d
e

b
a

te
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 l
o

c
a

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 u

n
li
k
e

ly
 t
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

ly
 o

n
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

L
o

w
 -

 n
o

 d
if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t.
  
E

IA
1

0
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
, 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t.

1
3

,4
6

0
(8

3
8

)

E
1

1
3

rd
 P

a
rt

y
 S

p
e

n
d

B
u

d
g

e
t 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f
o

r 
2

0
1

6
-2

0
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 e
ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 t
h

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 b
y
 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

%
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
. 
 T

h
e

 m
a

in
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

s
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 a
re

 f
o

r 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 
c
a

re
. 
T

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
e

n
v
e

lo
p

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

in
fl
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

.5
%

 p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

, 
s
o

 t
h

is
 s

a
v
in

g
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 e

it
h

e
r 

fr
o

m
 c

o
n

ta
in

in
g

 

in
fl
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

, 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
m

o
d

e
ls

 o
f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
li
v
e

ry
 o

r 
th

ro
u

g
h

 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

e
tt
e

r 
ra

te
s
. 
 T

h
e

 b
u

lk
 o

f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
s
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 A
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
s
 o

n
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 f
o

r 
c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

it
h

 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 Y

o
u

r 
C

h
o

ic
e

 B
a

rn
e

t,
 F

re
m

a
n

tl
e

 T
ru

s
t,
 J

e
w

is
h

 C
a

re
 

(t
h

e
 t
o

p
 3

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 b
y
 o

v
e

ra
ll
 s

p
e

n
d

),
 h

o
m

e
 c

a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
m

e
a

ls
 o

n
 w

h
e

e
ls

, 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t.
  
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 o

n
ly

  
1

 b
lo

c
k
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
- 

 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
 w

it
h

 F
re

m
a

n
tl
e

 

tr
u

s
t.
 O

th
e

r 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
re

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 c
a

re
 f
o

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 

(s
p

o
t/
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e

t)
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
g

u
a

ra
n

te
e

d
 v

o
lu

m
e

s
. 
 T

h
e

 r
e

m
it
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

a
ls

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (

e
.g

  
A

g
e

 

U
k
 B

a
rn

e
t,
 C

a
re

rs
 C

e
n

tr
e

).

P
a

rt
 o

f 
g

e
n

e
ra

l 

b
u

d
g

e
t 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 o

f 

th
ir

d
 p

a
rt

y
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
s
p

e
n

d
. 
It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
a

s
 m

o
s
t 
o

f 
th

e
 s

p
e

n
d

 i
s
 o

n
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c
a

re
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
, 
th

is
 w

il
l 
n

e
e

d
 

to
 b

e
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

y
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

a
s
is

.

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
 

e
ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 o

f 
th

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

s
p

e
n

d
. 
It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 

h
a

v
e

 a
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
. 

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 

e
q

u
a

li
ti
e

s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l.
  
T

h
is

 w
il
l 

b
e

 k
e

p
t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

s
 t
h

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

7
8

,0
4

8
(6

6
6

)
(6

5
2

)
(6

3
9

)
(6

2
7

)

E
1

2
S

ta
ff
in

g
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
B

u
d

g
e

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f
o

r 
2

0
1

6
-2

0
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 e
ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 

1
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
d

e
li
v
e

ry
 u

n
it
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 
A

s
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 

lo
c
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

, 
a

ll
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 d

e
li
v
e

ry
 u

n
it
s
 w

il
l 
n

e
e

d
 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h

e
ir

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 b
u

d
g

e
ts

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 e
ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 b

y
 1

0
%

 

b
y
 2

0
2

0
. 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
te

rm
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

u
n

if
ie

d
 p

a
y
 p

ro
je

c
t,
 w

il
l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 u

n
it
s
 i
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t
h

is
 s

a
v
in

g
. 
D

e
li
v
e

ry
 

u
n

it
s
 w

il
l 
a

ls
o

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 u
s
e

 o
f 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 s

ta
ff
, 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
la

y
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 l
e

v
e

ls
 p

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 s

a
v
in

g
 c

a
n

 b
e

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 w

il
l 
b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 f
o

rm
a

l 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 

s
ta

ff
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 

2
0

1
5

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 

s
a

v
in

g
 c

a
n

 b
e

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 i
n

 

2
0

1
6

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
g

e
n

e
ra

te
s
 a

 1
0

%
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o

 2
0

2
0

. 
It
 i
s
 

n
o

t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

d
e

li
v
e

ry

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
g

e
n

e
ra

te
s
 a

 1
0

%
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o

 

2
0

2
0

. 
It
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 e

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 

im
p

a
c
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 w

il
l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 A

n
  

E
q

u
a

li
ti
e

s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
c
o

m
e

 

b
a

c
k
 t
o

 P
R

C
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

 f
o

r 
1

6
/1

7
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
.

1
4

,9
7

1
(3

7
5

)
(4

4
2

)
(4

4
2

)
(4

4
2

)

E
1

3
S

h
a

re
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 &

 

n
e

w
 d

e
li
v
e

ry
 m

o
d

e
ls

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 m

o
d

e
l(

s
) 

a
n

d
 /

 o
r 

s
h

a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

c
a

n
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 
o

f 
th

e
 a

d
u

lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

y
s
te

m
 (

s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

) 
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 b
e

tt
e

r 

u
ti
li
s
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
le

v
e

rs
 (

e
.g

. 
 s

e
lf
-m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
, 

te
le

c
a

re
, 
e

n
a

b
le

m
e

n
t,
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
n

in
g

) 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 c
a

re
 c

o
s
ts

. 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 

b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

L
o

w
 -

 s
h

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 o

f 

d
e

li
v
e

ry
.

N
o

t 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

y
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 e

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 

im
p

a
c
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 w

il
l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 A

n
  

E
q

u
a

li
ti
e

s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
c
o

m
e

 

b
a

c
k
 t
o

 P
R

C
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

 f
o

r 
1

6
/1

7
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
.

8
9

,3
7

7
(2

2
6

)
(5

7
9

)
(5

7
9

)
(5

7
8

)

T
o
ta
l

(8
,4
2
4
)

6
(1
,2
6
7
)

0
(1
,6
7
3
)

0
(1
,6
6
0
)

0
(1
,6
4
6
)

0

217



L
in
e
 r
e
f

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 A
re
a

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
a
v
in
g

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (
H
o
w
 

a
re
 w
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 

o
n
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l)

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

2
0
1
5
/1
6

S
a
v
in
g
s
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 I
n
c
o
m
e

T
o
ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
, 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e

R
1

S
a

v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

s
 

o
p

p
o

s
e

d
 t
o

 h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 

c
a

re
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 ‘
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 O

ff
e

r’
 d

e
li
v
e

ri
n

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

in
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 o
ff
e

ri
n

g
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 w
a

y
s
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 n

e
e

d
s
 

a
s
 o

p
p

o
s
e

d
 t
o

 h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 
c
a

re
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 

a
p

p
li
e

d
 t
o

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
. 
T

h
is

 w
il
l 
le

a
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 u

s
e

 o
f 

u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 
e

n
a

b
le

m
e

n
t,
 t
e

le
c
a

re
, 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
ir

e
c
t 
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 

c
o

s
t 
le

s
s
 t
h

a
n

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
m

e
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
. 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 w

il
l 

th
e

re
fo

re
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 l
o

w
e

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
 w

h
il
s
t 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 e

li
g

ib
le

 n
e

e
d

s
 a

re
 m

e
t.
 

T
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 d

ri
v
e

n
 o

u
t 
b

y
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

  
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
n

g
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 c
a

re
 a

n
d

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
s
t 
le

s
s
 t
h

a
n

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
a

re
 o

r 
th

a
t 
d

o
 n

o
t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il
 

fu
n

d
in

g
. 
T

h
is

 m
ig

h
t 
in

c
lu

d
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
  
v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
, 

u
s
e

 o
f 
lo

c
a

l 
c
lu

b
s
/l
ib

ra
ri

e
s
, 
a

s
 

e
x
a

m
p

le
s
.

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

il
l 
b

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

M
e

d
iu

m
M

e
d

iu
m

. 
E

li
g

ib
le

 n
e

e
d

s
 m

u
s
t 

s
ti
ll
 b

e
 m

e
t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 s

o
m

e
 

u
s
e

rs
/r

e
la

ti
v
e

s
 m

a
y
 s

ti
ll
 p

re
fe

r 

tr
a

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 f
in

d
 

c
re

a
ti
v
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 l
e

s
s
 p

a
la

ta
b

le

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d

 

th
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 A

n
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
c
o

m
e

 b
a

c
k
 t
o

 P
R

C
 i
n

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

 f
o

r 
1

6
/1

7
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
.

7
1

,5
2

6
(3

5
0

)
(3

5
0

)
(3

0
0

)

R
2

C
a

re
rs

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 

D
e

m
e

n
ti
a

H
e

lp
in

g
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
e

m
e

n
ti
a

 t
o

 r
e

m
a

in
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
s
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

-

b
a

s
e

d
 m

o
d

e
l 
o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
B

a
rn

e
t 
c
a

re
rs

 o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
e

m
e

n
ti
a

, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 c
a

re
r 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il
it
y
, 
d

e
la

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 a
d

u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 

d
e

m
a

n
d

. 

H
a

v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 

v
ie

w
s
 f
ro

m
 c

a
re

rs
 

a
n

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 

e
a

rl
y
 o

n
s
e

t 

d
e

m
e

n
ti
a

. 

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 c

a
re

rs
 o

ff
e

r
S

h
o

u
ld

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d

 

th
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 A

n
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
c
o

m
e

 b
a

c
k
 t
o

 P
R

C
 i
n

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

 f
o

r 
1

6
/1

7
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
.

2
8

,5
7

1
(1

2
5

)
(1

2
5

)
(1

2
5

)
(1

2
5

)

R
3

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t

G
e

n
e

ra
ti
n

g
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
fu

n
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 s
p

e
c
ia

li
s
t 
in

te
g

ra
te

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 f
o

r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
5

2
 f
la

ts
 w

it
h

 5
0

%
 h

ig
h

 n
e

e
d

s
, 
2

5
%

 m
e

d
iu

m
 

n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 2
5

%
 l
o

w
 n

e
e

d
s
.

Q
u

a
li
ta

ti
v
e

 r
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 

w
it
h

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

u
n

d
e

rw
a

y

M
o

re
 c

h
o

ic
e

 f
o

r 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

, 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 

ta
k
e

 u
p

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re

S
h

o
u

ld
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d

 

th
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 A

n
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
c
o

m
e

 b
a

c
k
 t
o

 P
R

C
 i
n

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

 f
o

r 
1

6
/1

7
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
.

2
8

,5
7

1
(9

5
)

(2
8

5
)

R
4

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 0
-2

5
 d

is
a

b
il
it
ie

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
h

a
t 
b

e
tt
e

r 
b

ri
n

g
s
 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
h

e
a

lt
h

, 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
g

ro
w

th
 i
s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

il
it
ie

s
.

T
h

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 
to

 a
d

u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 l
o

w
e

r 
c
a

re
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

 

c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
th

o
s
e

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 a

g
e

 o
f 
1

8
 o

v
e

r 
th

is
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
th

a
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 

c
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
p

a
s
t 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
s
 c

a
s
e

s
. 

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 w

o
rk

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 w

it
h

 

fa
m

il
ie

s
. 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 a

s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

F
a

m
il
ie

s
 A

c
t

S
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
a

b
le

 l
e

s
s
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 o
n

 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
 f
u

lf
il
li
n

g
 l
iv

e
s
. 

E
li
g

ib
le

 n
e

e
d

s
 m

u
s
t 
s
ti
ll
 b

e
 m

e
t.
 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 s

o
m

e
 u

s
e

rs
/r

e
la

ti
v
e

s
 m

a
y
 s

ti
ll
 

p
re

fe
r 

tr
a

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 f
in

d
 c

re
a

ti
v
e

 

o
p

ti
o

n
s
 l
e

s
s
 p

a
la

ta
b

le

S
h

o
u

ld
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 b
e

tt
e

r 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

b
u

t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 i
n

 

e
m

b
e

d
d

in
g

 n
e

w
 w

a
y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d

 

th
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 A

n
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
c
o

m
e

 b
a

c
k
 t
o

 P
R

C
 i
n

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

 f
o

r 
1

6
/1

7
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
.

3
7

,6
3

9
(1

2
5

)
(1

2
5

)
(1

2
5

)
(1

2
5

)

R
5

O
ld

e
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 c
a

re
rs

 

in
 w

o
rk

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

m
a

in
 c

a
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 i
n

 w
o

rk
 b

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
o

 c
a

re
rs

 

a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 e

n
a

b
li
n

g
  
c
a

re
rs

  
to

 r
e

m
a

in
 i
n

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 c
a

ri
n

g
. 

S
a

v
in

g
s
 a

re
 f
ro

m
 c

o
s
t 
a

v
o

id
a

n
c
e

 o
f 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 h

o
m

e
c
a

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
.

T
o

 b
e

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
S

h
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

S
h

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d

 

th
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 A

n
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
c
o

m
e

 b
a

c
k
 t
o

 P
R

C
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
y
e

a
r.

5
,9

0
6

(1
4

1
)

(1
5

2
)

R
6

O
ld

e
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 D
F

G
s

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

h
o

ic
e

 i
n

 r
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 a

d
u

lt
s
 -

  
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 a
n

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 a

d
a

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 m
o

v
in

g
 t
o

 a
 m

o
re

 

s
u

it
a

b
le

 h
o

m
e

. 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 i
n

c
re

m
e

n
ta

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 
a

d
a

p
ta

ti
o

n
/m

o
v
e

 

a
v
o

id
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 
e

n
a

b
le

m
e

n
t,
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 h

o
m

e
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
. 

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

S
h

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

S
h

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 

e
q

u
a

li
ti
e

s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l.
  
T

h
is

 w
il
l 

k
e

p
t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

p
e

ri
o

d
.

2
8

,5
7

1
(4

0
5

)

R
7

O
ld

e
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 

re
ti
re

m
e

n
t 
a

b
ro

a
d

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

h
o

ic
e

 i
n

 r
e

ti
re

m
e

n
t 
- 

4
0

%
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
a

n
t 

to
 r

e
ti
re

 a
b

ro
a

d
 +

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 e
x
p

e
rt

is
e

 w
il
l 
h

e
lp

 

th
e

m
 r

e
a

li
s
e

 t
h

is
. 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 c

o
s
t 
a

v
o

id
a

n
c
e

 o
f 
h

o
m

e
c
a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 

ta
k
in

g
 a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
la

y
in

g
 t
h

e
ir

 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 o
f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

S
h

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

S
h

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d

 

th
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 A

n
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
c
o

m
e

 b
a

c
k
 t
o

 P
R

C
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
y
e

a
r.

2
8

,5
7

1
(1

6
2

)
(1

6
2

)

R
8

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
a

s
s
is

ta
n

ts
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 m
e

th
o

d
s
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
a

s
s
is

ta
n

ts
 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t,
 a

s
  
a

n
 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 t
o

 h
o

m
e

 c
a

re
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 e

m
p

lo
y
 t
h

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

a
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t
o

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

li
s
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
ir

 c
a

re
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 

a
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l.
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
a

re
 c

o
s
ts

 p
e

r 

u
s
e

r 
p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 
£

1
,0

0
0

, 
a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

f 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
s
 

a
n

d
 l
o

w
e

r 
o

v
e

r 
h

e
a

d
 c

o
s
ts

 t
h

a
n

 h
o

m
e

 c
a

re
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 
C

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 (

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

4
),

  

1
,7

8
8

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 t
h

e
ir

 h
o

m
e

 c
a

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 a
 h

o
m

e
 c

a
re

 a
g

e
n

c
y
. 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

h
o

m
e

c
a

re
 t
e

n
d

e
r.

 

L
o

w
S

h
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 -
 m

o
re

 c
h

o
ic

e
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d

 

th
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 A

n
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
c
o

m
e

 b
a

c
k
 t
o

 P
R

C
 i
n

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

 f
o

r 
1

6
/1

7
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
.

5
,9

0
6

(6
0

)
(1

4
0

)

218



L
in
e
 r
e
f

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 A
re
a

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
a
v
in
g

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (
H
o
w
 

a
re
 w
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 

o
n
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l)

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

2
0
1
5
/1
6

S
a
v
in
g
s
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m

R
9

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
W

o
rk

in
g

 

a
g

e
 a

d
u

lt
s

R
e

v
ie

w
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
s
 (

w
it
h

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 e
n

a
b

li
n

g
 /
 

tr
a

n
s
it
io

n
) 

to
 m

e
e

t 
n

e
e

d
s
 a

t 
a

 l
o

w
e

r 
c
o

s
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
: 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 t
a

k
e

-u
p

 o
f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 l
iv

in
g

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h

o
s
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 i
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
s
e

tt
in

g
s
.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 m

o
re

 c
re

a
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
s
t 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 h
o

w
 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 c

a
n

 e
n

a
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 

d
is

a
b

il
it
ie

s
 t
o

 l
iv

e
 m

o
re

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y
.

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 c

a
re

r’
s
 o

ff
e

r 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 c

a
re

rs
 f
e

e
l 
a

b
le

 t
o

 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
fo

r 
a

s
 l
o

n
g

 a
s
 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n

.

S
ti
m

u
la

te
 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
to

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 w
h

o
 c

a
n

 e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 

e
n

a
b

le
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
ff
e

r 
fo

r 
a

d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
.

P
a

rt
 o

f 
g

e
n

e
ra

l 

b
u

d
g

e
t 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n

T
B

D
H

ig
h

 -
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

to
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
 o

f 
c
a

re

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d

 

th
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 A

n
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
c
o

m
e

 b
a

c
k
 t
o

 P
R

C
 i
n

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

 f
o

r 
1

6
/1

7
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
.

3
7

,6
3

9
(4

2
5

)
(4

2
5

)
(4

2
5

)
(4

2
5

)

R
1

0
G

ra
n

ts
 p

a
y
m

e
n

t
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
/ 
lo

w
 

le
v
e

l 
/ 
e

a
rl

y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s

P
a

rt
 o

f 
g

e
n

e
ra

l 

b
u

d
g

e
t 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d

 

th
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 A

n
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
c
o

m
e

 b
a

c
k
 t
o

 P
R

C
 i
n

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

 f
o

r 
1

6
/1

7
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
.

1
,8

0
0

(5
9

)

T
o
ta
l

0
0

(1
,2
3
9
)

0
(1
,5
9
1
)

0
(1
,2
8
9
)

0
(1
,2
4
2
)

0

S
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
d
e
s
ig
n

S
1

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 L
a

te
r 

L
if
e

 

C
a

re

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
a

re
 f
o

r 
fr

a
il
 e

ld
e

rl
y
/o

v
e

r 
5

0
 y

e
a

rs
 w

it
h

 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 5

 t
ie

r 
m

o
d

e
l 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
a

n
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

y
s
te

m
 f
o

r 
o

ld
e

r 
fr

a
il
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
t 
th

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 f
o

rm
e

d
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 

C
C

G
’s

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

e
tt
e

r 
C

a
re

 F
u

n
d

 p
la

n
. 

H
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 

o
u

t

S
h

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

S
h

o
u

ld
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
s
 o

n
ly

 t
e

ll
 

s
to

ry
 o

n
c
e

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d

 

th
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 A

n
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti
e

s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

il
l 
c
o

m
e

 b
a

c
k
 t
o

 P
R

C
 i
n

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

 f
o

r 
1

6
/1

7
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
.

3
5

,0
4

9
(1

5
0

)
(2

5
0

)
(2

5
0

)
(3

5
0

)

T
o
ta
l

0
0

(1
5
0
)

0
(2
5
0
)

0
(2
5
0
)

0
(3
5
0
)

0

O
v
e
ra
ll
 S
a
v
in
g
s

(8
,4
2
4
)

6
(2
,6
5
6
)

0
(3
,5
1
4
)

0
(3
,1
9
9
)

0
(3
,2
3
8
)

0

219



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C
 -

 P
o

li
c
y
 &

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

L
in

e
 r

e
f

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 A

re
a

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s

a
v
in

g
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 (

H
o

w
 

a
re

 w
e

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

in
g

 

o
n

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l)

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0

1
4

/1
5

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 D
e

li
v
e

ry
Im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 

S
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 I
m

p
a

c
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y

E
1

E
le
c
to
ra
l 
R
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c
a
n
v
a
s
s
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 a
id
e
d
 b
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 o
n
li
n
e
 r
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n

T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 s
a
v
in
g
 a
n
d
 w

e
 b
e
li
e
v
e
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 i
n
 

e
le
c
to
ra
l 
re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 o
n
li
n
e
 r
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
. 

O
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
1
2
 m

o
n
th
s
 w

o
rk
 w

il
l 
b
e
 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
.

N
/A

E
a
rl
y
 i
n
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

IE
R
 (
th
a
t 
in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 o
n
li
n
e
 r
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
) 
is
 t
h
a
t 

c
a
n
v
a
s
s
 c
o
s
ts
 a
re
 a
c
tu
a
ll
y
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
. 
A
s
 

e
le
c
to
rs
 r
e
m
a
in
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
h
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 

re
-r
e
g
is
te
r 
e
v
e
ry
 y
e
a
r 
it
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 l
ik
e
ly
 (
b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 

th
e
 '
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
a
l 
c
a
n
v
a
s
s
) 
to
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
th
a
t 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

E
F
  
(t
h
e
 n
e
w
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
c
a
n
v
a
s
s
 

fo
rm

) 
w
il
l 
a
c
tu
a
ll
y
 b
e
 m

u
c
h
 l
o
w
e
r 
th
a
n
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
n
t 

y
e
a
rs
. 
T
h
e
 I
E
R
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
s
ti
ll
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 a
 

c
a
n
v
a
s
s
e
r 
to
 v
is
it
 e
v
e
ry
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 t
h
a
t 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 

re
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

E
F
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 -
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 I
E
R
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 

a
n
 o
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
 u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 E
R
O
 t
o
 c
a
n
v
a
s
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 w

h
o
le
 y
e
a
r 
(w

h
e
n
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 

c
a
n
v
a
s
s
in
g
 h
a
s
 o
n
ly
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 w

it
h
in
 a
 

s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
x
. 
3
 m

o
n
th
s
).
 T
h
e
s
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 
 a
lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
(e
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l)
 e
le
c
to
rs
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
fa
m
il
ia
ri
ty
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
e
le
c
to
ra
l 
re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 

u
n
ti
l 
IE
R
 i
s
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 a
s
 B
A
U
 (
re
a
li
s
ti
c
a
ll
y
 i
n
 

2
0
1
6
/1
7
) 
- 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
n
d
ic
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
/s
a
v
in
g
s
) 
w
il
l 

re
m
a
in
 v
e
ry
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 p
ro
je
c
t.

T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 a
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

n
e
w
 (
s
ta
tu
to
ry
) 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

o
f 
IE
R
 a
re
 m

o
re
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
. 
T
h
is
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
it
 

is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 w

il
l 

q
u
ic
k
ly
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 h
ig
h
e
r 
le
v
e
ls
 

o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
. 
 

N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t.
 N

o
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

E
IA
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 d
o
 n
o
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

h
tt
p
s
:/
/w

w
w
.g
o
v
.u
k
/g
o
v
e
r

n
m
e
n
t/
u
p
lo
a
d
s
/s
y
s
te
m
/u
p

lo
a
d
s
/a
tt
a
c
h
m
e
n
t_
d
a
ta
/f
il

e
/6
1
3
3
4
/E
q
u
a
li
ty
-I
m
p
a
c
t-

o
f-
IE
R
-a
n
d
-E

A
-p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
-

0
9
0
5
1
2
.p
d
f

4
9
,9
9
0

(5
0
)

E
2

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
ri
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
ri
e
r 
c
o
s
ts

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 f
ro
m
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p
ri
n
ti
n
g
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 p
a
p
e
rs
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 I
T
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w

il
l 
m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
p
e
rs
 t
o
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
 w

il
l 
n
o
t 
b
e
 

d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
w
ic
e
 w

e
e
k
ly
 b
y
 c
o
u
ri
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 w

il
l 
b
e
 e
n
a
b
le
d
 b
y
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
 u
s
in
g
 

c
o
m
p
u
te
rs
 t
o
 r
e
a
d
 p
a
p
e
rs
 a
n
d
 h
a
rd
 c
o
p
ie
s
 b
e
in
g
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 i
n
 H

e
n
d
o
n
 T
o
w
n
 H

a
ll
. 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
h
a
rd
 c
o
p
ie
s
 w

il
l 
a
ls
o
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
.

O
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
1
2
 m

o
n
th
s
 w

o
rk
 w

il
l 
b
e
 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
.

N
/A

T
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w

il
l 
m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
p
e
rs
 t
o
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
 

w
il
l 
n
o
t 
a
u
to
m
a
ti
c
a
ll
y
 b
e
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 b
y
 c
o
u
ri
e
r 

tw
ic
e
 w

e
e
k
ly
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 w

il
l 
b
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

b
y
 u
s
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
u
te
rs
 b
y
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
a
d
 p
a
p
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
a
p
e
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 g
ro
u
p
 r
o
o
m
s
 a
t 

H
T
H
. 
 O

ff
ic
e
r 
h
a
rd
 c
o
p
ie
s
 w

il
l 
a
ls
o
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
.

C
h
a
n
g
e
 w

il
l 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 c
a
re
fu
ll
y
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 I
S
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
f 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 n
o
t 

to
 b
e
 d
is
s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 w

a
s
 

in
it
ia
ll
y
 r
o
ll
e
d
 o
u
t 
fo
r 
1
4
/1
5
 b
u
t 

a
ft
e
r 
e
a
rl
y
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 w

it
h
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 n
e
w
 I
T
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

h
a
rd
 c
o
p
ie
s
 a
re
 s
ti
ll
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 f
o
r 
ti
m
e
 b
e
in
g
. 
A
 

li
m
it
e
d
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
h
a
rd
 c
o
p
ie
s
 

w
il
l 
s
ti
ll
 b
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

fo
r 
p
u
b
li
c
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

s
o
 n
o
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

p
u
b
li
c
. 

N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t.
 N

o
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

E
IA
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
. 
N
o
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
E
IA
 

is
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 d
o
 n
o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
. 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

w
il
l 
re
c
e
iv
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

tr
a
in
in
g
.

8
7
,6
7
7

(5
0
)

E
3

C
S
G

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
c
o
s
ts

C
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 f
ro
m
 C

S
G
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

T
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
e
n
t 
li
v
e
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 a
n
d
 s
a
v
in
g
 w

il
l 
b
e
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 i
n
 f
u
ll
. 
T
h
e
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 w

il
l 
b
e
 a
s
 g
o
o
d
 a
s
, 
if
 n
o
t 
b
e
tt
e
r,
 t
h
a
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
.

N
/A

T
h
e
 o
u
tp
u
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
C
S
G
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 

th
e
 q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
a
s
 g
o
o
d
 a
s
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
M
o
re
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

h
tt
p
:/
/b
a
rn
e
t.
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
.c
o
.u
k
/d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
/s
6
6
4
9
/N

S
C
S
O
.p
d
f 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
C
S
G
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 u
p
g
ra
d
in
g
 I
T
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e

 E
IA
 h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 e
n
v
is
a
g
e
d
.

h
tt
p
:/
/b
a
rn
e
t.
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
.c

o
.u
k
/d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
/s
6
6
4
9
/N

S
C
S
O
.p
d
f

3
4
,8
6
0

(2
,1
0
0
)

E
4

L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
/ 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 s
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
b
a
rr
is
te
rs

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
n
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
la
w
y
e
rs
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 u
s
e
 o
f 
p
a
n
e
l 
o
f 
b
a
rr
is
te
rs
 

w
h
e
re
 b
e
tt
e
r 
ra
te
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
.

T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
.

N
/A

L
o
w
  

L
o
w
  

N
o
n
e
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
. 
N
o
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
E
IA
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
.

(2
0
0
)

E
5

A
c
ro
s
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
ta
ff
 c
o
s
ts

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
ta
ff
in
g
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G

ro
u
p
. 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 t
ra
d
e
 

u
n
io
n
s
 

L
o
w

L
o
w

S
ta
ff
 e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
to
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t

6
,0
7
7

(2
7
6
)

4

E
6

A
c
ro
s
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
n
 f
e
e
s

L
o
n
d
o
n
 C

o
u
n
c
il
s
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 g
ra
n
ts
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
2
 

y
e
a
rs
. 
B
a
rn
e
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
’s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 C

o
u
n
c
il
s
 f
u
n
d
 –
 b
y
 w

a
y
 o
f 
a
 l
e
v
y
 

–
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 c
a
n
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 C

o
u
n
c
il
s
.

N
/A

L
o
w

N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t.
 I
t 
is
 n
o
t 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 

a
n
 e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 

th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  
T
h
is
 w

il
l 

b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

p
e
ri
o
d
.

1
,1
4
5

(2
4
9
)

E
7

A
c
ro
s
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 I
T
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
fo
rm

 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 C

S
G
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 T
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
th
is
 s
p
e
n
d
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 £
1
m
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
. 
T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
o
u
ld
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
is
 b
y
 a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 1
0
%
 i
n
 2
0
1
6
/1
7
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
IT
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
. 
It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
. 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
IT
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
. 
It
 

is
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 I
T
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
. 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t.
 

1
,1
1
4

(1
4
0
)

E
8

3
rd
 P
a
rt
y
 S
p
e
n
d

B
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
6
-2
0
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
n
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 b
y
 

a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 2
%
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
. 
T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C

o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
. 
T
h
e
 m

a
in
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 

a
re
a
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 
in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 

in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
. 
T
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
e
n
v
e
lo
p
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
in
fl
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

2
.5
%
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
, 
s
o
 t
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 e
it
h
e
r 
fr
o
m
 c
o
n
ta
in
in
g
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 
o
r 
th
ro
u
g
h
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
e
tt
e
r 

ra
te
s
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
th
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
. 
It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
th
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
. 
It
 i
s
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
th
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
. 
It
 i
s
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t.
 

1
,1
5
6

(6
2
)

(4
6
)

(4
5
)

(4
4
)

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
5

/1
6

S
a

v
in

g
s

 p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

220



L
in

e
 r

e
f

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 A

re
a

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s

a
v
in

g
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 (

H
o

w
 

a
re

 w
e

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

in
g

 

o
n

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l)

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0

1
4

/1
5

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 D
e

li
v
e

ry
Im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 

S
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 I
m

p
a

c
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
5

/1
6

S
a

v
in

g
s

 p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

E
9

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s

B
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
6
-2
0
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 w

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 

1
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 u
n
it
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
. 
A
s
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
, 
a
ll
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 w

il
l 
n
e
e
d
 

to
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
ir
 w

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
. 
A
t 
th
is
 

s
ta
g
e
, 
it
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 m

e
t 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
im

p
a
c
ti
n
g
 o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
, 
b
u
t 
th
is
 a
s
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 w

il
l 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 t
e
s
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 t
o
 2
0
2
0
. 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
te
rm

s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 u
n
if
ie
d
 

p
a
y
 p
ro
je
c
t,
 w

il
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 i
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
. 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 w

il
l 

a
ls
o
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 u
s
e
 o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
, 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

la
y
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
F
o
r 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
, 
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
5
/1
6
, 
s
o
 t
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w

il
l 
b
e
 i
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 p
la
n
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 u
n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.

T
h
is
 w

il
l 
b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 

to
 f
o
rm

a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

s
ta
ff
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 i
n
 

2
0
1
5
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 i
n
 

2
0
1
6

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
g
e
n
e
ra
te
s
 a
 1
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 2
0
2
0
. 
It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
g
e
n
e
ra
te
s
 a
 

1
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 2
0
2
0
. 
It
 i
s
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

s
ta
ff
in
g
 e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w

il
l 
b
e
 k
e
p
t 

u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
 A
n
 

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
c
o
m
e
 

b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 i
n
 2
0
1
6
 f
o
r 

1
6
/1
7
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
.

5
,6
6
4

(5
8
0
)

(5
0
)

E
1
0

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e

T
h
e
 b
u
lk
 o
f 
th
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
e
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 o
f 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e
s
  
th
a
t 
w
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 o
n
 1
5
 J
u
ly
. 
T
h
e
 n
e
w
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 o
f 

A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e
s
- 
re
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 w

it
h
 e
ig
h
t 
th
e
m
e
 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
- 
p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
 s
a
v
in
g
 o
f 
£
9
0
,3
5
8
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
£
2
9
,5
4
1
 w

a
s
 

s
a
v
e
d
 a
s
 n
o
 M

e
m
b
e
r 
m
a
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 S
R
A
 p
a
y
in
g
 p
o
s
ts
 w

e
re
 h
e
ld
 b
y
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 
a
n
 

S
R
A
. 
  
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 u
n
d
e
rs
p
e
n
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
th
a
t 
w
il
l 
fu
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 s
a
v
in
g
s
.

C
o
u
n
c
il
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w

a
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
s
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
re
v
ie
w
 

in
to
 R

e
m
u
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
rs
. 
T
h
e
 

a
g
re
e
d
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 

w
a
s
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
. 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w

il
l 
n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

th
a
t 
it
 m

a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
q
u
a
li
ty
 i
m
p
a
c
t.

1
,3
1
5

(1
4
0
)

E
1
1

S
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 &
 

o
u
ts
o
u
rc
in
g

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w

it
h
 o
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
, 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 p
la
n
n
in
g
, 
in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
, 
in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
. 
In
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
, 
th
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w

o
u
ld
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 B
a
rn
e
t 
a
n
d
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
S
im

il
a
r 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 w

it
h
 H

a
rr
o
w
 a
n
d
 B
re
n
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
b
o
d
ie
s
  
in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
le
g
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
li
c
 h
e
a
lt
h
. 
T
o
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 a
 s
a
v
in
g
 o
f 
£
1
0
5
k
, 
th
is
 w

o
u
ld
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 2
 t
o
 3
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
o
s
ts
 w

it
h
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
b
o
ro
u
g
h
 f
o
r 
th
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
N
o
 f
ir
m
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 d
e
li
v
e
r 
th
is
 s
a
v
in
g
, 
b
u
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 d
e
li
v
e
ra
b
le
 b
e
fo
re
 2
0
1
8
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 f
o
rm

a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

o
f 
th
e
s
e
 t
e
a
m
s
 i
n
 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 

a
n
o
th
e
r 
b
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t.
 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts
 o
f 

b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 

a
n
o
th
e
r 
b
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

s
ta
ff
in
g
 e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w

il
l 
b
e
 k
e
p
t 

u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 .
  
A
n
 

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
c
o
m
e
 

b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
y
e
a
r.

-
(1
0
5
)

E
1
2

M
in
im

u
m
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r 
fo
r 
c
o
s
ts
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

re
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
 o
n
 b
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 k
n
o
w
n
 a
s
 "
m
in
im

u
m
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
",
 a
n
d
 i
s
 p
re
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
C
IP
F
A
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
. 
A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 o
f 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's
 M

R
P
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 i
t 
c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 

c
h
a
rg
e
 i
s
 £
1
m
 m

o
re
 p
ru
d
e
n
t 
th
a
n
 i
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
. 
T
h
is
 d
a
te
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 m

a
d
e
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
in
g
 r
e
g
im

e
 c
a
m
e
 i
n
to
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 

2
0
0
4
. 
T
h
is
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs
 a
n
d
 i
s
 

s
ti
ll
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 p
ru
d
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
a
 r
e
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 c
a
p
it
a
l 

fi
n
a
n
c
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
a
 

re
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
in
g
 

c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 
a
 r
e
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 c
a
p
it
a
l 

fi
n
a
n
c
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t

2
4
,0
2
5

(1
,0
0
0
)

E
1
3

R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 

P
a
y
m
e
n
ts

B
a
rn
e
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 i
ts
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 t
e
rm

s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 b
a
c
k
 i
n
 2
0
1
1
 w

h
ic
h
 l
e
d
 

to
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
. 
T
h
is
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w

a
s
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 

w
it
h
 m

a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il
s
 a
t 
th
e
 t
im

e
. 
T
h
is
, 
a
lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 a
 l
o
w
e
r 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie
s
 

p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
 (
p
a
rt
ly
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 o
u
ts
o
u
rc
in
g
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 C

S
G
 a
n
d
 R

e
) 
m
e
a
n
s
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 s
e
ts
 a
s
id
e
 f
o
r 
re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

b
y
 £
1
m
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
a
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 c
o
s
ts
 

a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

N
o
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
E
IA
 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
, 
n
o
 

in
te
rn
a
l 
E
IA
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
o
 n
o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
.

5
,4
2
7

(1
,1
0
0
)

E
1
4

S
to
p
 C

o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 f
e
e
s
 t
o
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
 m

e
m
b
e
r 
o
f.
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 f
e
e
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
, 
w
it
h
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 w

h
e
re
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

c
a
n
c
e
ll
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
n
o
n
-

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 n
o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d

Im
p
a
c
t 
li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 l
o
w
. 
 T
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
n
 s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
s
.

Im
p
a
c
t 
li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 l
o
w
. 
 T
o
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
n
 s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 f
e
e
s
.

Im
p
a
c
t 
li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 l
o
w
. 
 

T
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
n
 

s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
s
.

6
7
8

(4
0
0
)

E
1
5

B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 

in
te
re
s
t 
o
n
 d
e
p
o
s
it
s

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 s
e
ts
 a
s
id
e
 a
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r 
to
 f
u
n
d
 f
u
tu
re
 b
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
. 
T
h
is
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
is
 a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 4
.5
%
 o
f 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
. 
O
v
e
r 
re
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
rs
, 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
o
rr
o
w
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
, 
in
s
te
a
d
 i
t 
h
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 c
a
s
h
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
th
e
 i
n
te
re
s
t 
ra
te
 

o
n
 l
o
a
n
s
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 4
%
, 
le
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
a
v
in
g
. 
If
 f
u
tu
re
 b
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 

c
o
s
ts
 r
e
m
a
in
 b
e
lo
w
 4
%
, 
th
e
n
 a
 s
a
v
in
g
 o
f 
£
3
m
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 t
o
 2
0
2
0
 i
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
. 

If
 i
n
te
re
s
t 
ra
te
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
, 
th
e
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

il
l 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

in
te
re
s
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 o
n
 d
e
p
o
s
it
s
, 
s
o
 t
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w

o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
tr
e
a
s
u
ry
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 i
s
 

n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

tr
e
a
s
u
ry
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 
tr
e
a
s
u
ry
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 i
s
 

n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t.
 

2
4
,0
2
5

(1
,0
0
0
)

(1
,0
0
0
)

(1
,0
0
0
)

E
1
6

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s

S
a
v
in
g
s
 o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
 b
y
 m

e
rg
in
g
 B
a
rn
e
t'
s
 s
e
n
io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
, 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
, 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 a
n
o
th
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 -
 s
im

il
a
r 
to
 t
h
e
 '
T
ri
-B

o
ro
u
g
h
' 
m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
W

e
s
tm

in
s
te
r,
 H

a
m
m
e
rs
m
it
h
 &
 

F
u
lh
a
m
 a
n
d
 K
e
n
s
in
g
to
n
 &
 C

h
e
ls
e
a

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 

2
0
1
7
 b
e
fo
re
 f
in
a
l 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e

Im
p
a
c
t 
li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 l
o
w
 o
n
 f
ro
n
t 
li
n
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 t
h
is
 

is
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 s
tr
e
a
m
li
n
in
g
 s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

Im
p
a
c
t 
li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 l
o
w
 o
n
 f
ro
n
t 

li
n
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 t
h
is
 i
s
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 

o
n
 s
tr
e
a
m
li
n
in
g
 s
e
n
io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

L
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 l
im

it
e
d
 a
n
d
 

re
la
te
s
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
. 
 F
u
ll
 E
IA
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 b
e
fo
re
 f
in
a
l 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 2
0
1
8
.

1
,5
9
7

(6
3
9
)

221



L
in

e
 r

e
f

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 A

re
a

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s

a
v
in

g
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 (

H
o

w
 

a
re

 w
e

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

in
g

 

o
n

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l)

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0

1
4

/1
5

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 D
e

li
v
e

ry
Im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 

S
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 I
m

p
a

c
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
5

/1
6

S
a

v
in

g
s

 p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

E
1
7

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y

T
h
e
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 w

il
l 
u
s
e
 i
n
s
ig
h
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 d
e
s
ig
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
’s
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

m
o
d
e
l.
 I
t 
is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 w

il
l 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 b
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
s
h
if
t 
a
w
a
y
 f
ro
m
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
, 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
v
e
n
tr
y
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
c
e
n
tr
e
, 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 

p
o
s
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
in
c
o
m
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 p
u
b
li
c
 w

il
l 
ta
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C

A
S
 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
, 
b
e
fo
re
 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 

in
 2
0
1
5
. 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 s
ta
ff
 w

il
l 

ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 b
e
fo
re
 

fi
n
a
l 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 o
n
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

a
re
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
.

Im
p
a
c
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

in
im

a
l 
if
 s
e
lf
-s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
. 
In
s
ig
h
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 w

il
l 
u
n
d
e
rp
in
 t
h
e
 f
2
f 
m
o
d
e
l 

c
h
o
s
e
n
.

Im
p
a
c
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

in
im

a
l 
if
 

s
e
lf
-s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
. 
In
s
ig
h
t 

a
b
o
u
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 

p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 w

il
l 
u
n
d
e
rp
in
 t
h
e
 

f2
f 
m
o
d
e
l 
c
h
o
s
e
n
.

Im
p
a
c
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

in
im

a
l 

if
 s
e
lf
-s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
. 

In
s
ig
h
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 

w
il
l 
u
n
d
e
rp
in
 t
h
e
 f
2
f 

m
o
d
e
l 
c
h
o
s
e
n
. 
T
h
e
 

e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 o
u
t 
th
e
 

p
ro
je
c
t

3
4
,8
5
9
  

(i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 

£
8
.6
m
 o
f 

M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

B
u
d
g
e
ts
) 

(5
0
0
)

E
1
8

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 C

S
G
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
a
n
d
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 a
u
tu
m
n
 o
f 
2
0
1
3
. 
T
h
is
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
il
l 
d
e
li
v
e
r 
a
 t
o
ta
l 
£
1
2
5
m
 s
a
v
in
g
 o
v
e
r 
a
 1
0
 y
e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 
W

it
h
in
 t
h
is
 £
1
2
5
m
 t
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
f 
£
7
0
m
, 
o
r 
£
7
m
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
 (
a
v
e
ra
g
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t)
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

p
ri
c
e
 h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 £
6
m
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
 a
n
d
 f
o
rm

s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
s
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 M

T
F
S
. 
A
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
£
1
.5
m
 i
s
 g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
d
 b
y
 y
e
a
r 
5
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t,
 m

e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
a
v
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
s
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
2
0
1
8
/1
9
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
9
/2
0
 a
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
h
e
re
. 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C

S
G
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
h
a
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
e
n
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C

S
G
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
th
a
t 

h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
S
G
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 
th
e
 C

S
G
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
th
a
t 

h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
b
je
c
t 

to
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 

w
il
l 
b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
y
e
a
r.

(5
0
0
)

(1
,0
0
0
)

T
o

ta
l

(2
,9

2
5

)
4

(4
,4

2
2

)
0

(1
,0

9
6

)
0

(2
,7

8
9

)
0

(1
,0

4
4

)
0

G
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

G
1

C
A
F
T

In
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
c
ri
m
in
a
ls
 w

it
h
 r
e
le
a
s
a
b
le
 a
s
s
e
ts

In
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 p
ro
c
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
s
. 
W

h
e
re
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
in
 p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
n
g
 c
ri
m
in
a
ls
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 r
e
le
a
s
a
b
le
 a
s
s
e
ts
, 
th
e
 c
o
u
rt
 a
w
a
rd
s
 a
 

P
ro
c
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
C
ri
m
e
 (
P
O
C
A
) 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
m
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 c
a
n
 s
e
c
u
re
 a
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
. 

T
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 h
a
d
 s
o
m
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
rs
 b
u
t 
th
is
 i
s
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 w

h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 f
lu
c
tu
a
te
 y
e
a
r 
o
n
 y
e
a
r.

N
/A

In
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 P
ro
c
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
C
ri
m
e
 (
P
O
C
A
) 
c
a
n
 

fl
u
c
tu
a
te
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 i
s
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 (
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
) 
a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
c
a
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
ri
m
in
a
ls
 

h
a
v
in
g
 r
e
a
li
s
a
b
le
 a
s
s
e
ts
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 h
a
v
e
 a
 P
O
C
A
 

o
rd
e
r 
a
w
a
rd
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
rt
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
m
. 

N
o
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
o
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
E
IA
 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
. 
N
o
 

in
te
rn
a
l 
E
IA
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
o
 n
o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
.

(5
0
)

G
2

F
e
e
s
 &
 C

h
a
rg
e
s

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
in
g
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 f
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 b
y
 2
%
 a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 2
0
1
6
-2
0

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t.
 A
n
 

e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
c
o
m
e
 

b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 w

h
e
n
 f
e
e
s
 

a
n
d
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
  
a
re
 a
g
re
e
d
.

-

(5
0
0
)

(5
0
0
)

(5
0
0
)

(5
0
0
)

T
o

ta
l

(5
0

)
0

(5
0

0
)

0
(5

0
0

)
0

(5
0

0
)

0
(5

0
0

)
0

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
, 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e

T
o

ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n

S
R
1

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
n
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
tr
a
in
in
g

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 M

e
m
b
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
 T
h
is
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w

il
l 
li
m
it
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
il
it
y
 o
f 
h
ig
h
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 m

a
y
 r
e
s
tr
ic
t 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 t
o
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
.

T
h
is
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w

il
l 
n
o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
th
e
 a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 i
n
d
u
c
t 
n
e
w
 M

e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 m

e
th
o
d
s
.

N
/A

T
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w

il
l 
li
m
it
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
il
it
y
 o
f 
h
ig
h
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 m

a
y
 r
e
s
tr
ic
t 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 t
o
 M

e
m
b
e
rs

N
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t

N
o
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
E
IA
 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
. 
N
o
 

in
te
rn
a
l 
E
IA
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
o
 n
o
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
.

2
4
,7
3
0

(2
5
)

T
o

ta
l

(2
5

)
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
d

e
s

ig
n

T
o

ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

O
v
e

ra
ll

 S
a

v
in

g
s

(3
,0

0
0

)
4

(4
,9

2
2

)
0

(1
,5

9
6

)
0

(3
,2

8
9

)
0

(1
,5

4
4

)
0

222



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

 -
 A

s
s

e
ts

, 
R

e
g

e
n

 &
 G

ro
w

th
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

L
in

e
 r

e
f

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 A

re
a

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s

a
v
in

g
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 (

H
o

w
 

a
re

 w
e

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

in
g

 

o
n

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l)

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0

1
4

/1
5

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

D
e

li
v
e

ry

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 

S
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 I
m

p
a

c
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y

E
1

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
tio
n
 in
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
c
o
s
ts

C
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l s
a
v
in
g
s
 r
e
s
u
lti
n
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 j
o
in
t 
v
e
n
tu
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.

T
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
e
n
t 
liv
e
 in
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 a
n
d
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 in
 f
u
ll.
 T
h
e
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
p
e
c
ifi
e
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
s
 g
o
o
d
 a
s
, 
if 
n
o
t 
b
e
tt
e
r,
 t
h
a
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
ro
u
g
h
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
d
 D
R
S
 p
ro
c
e
s
s

W
ill
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 D
R
S
 

p
ro
je
c
t.

E
x
p
e
c
t 
th
is
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e

E
IA
 im

p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 in
 

o
ri
g
in
a
l t
e
n
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.

h
tt
p
:/
/b
a
rn
e
t.
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
.c
o
.u

k
/d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
/s
6
6
4
9
/N
S
C
S
O
.

p
d
f

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
.

(1
1
5
)

(3
0
0
)

0

E
2

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y

T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
M
T
F
S
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
4
-1
6
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 in
c
lu
d
e
s
 c
ir
c
a
. 
£
3
m
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
 o
f 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
o
ff
ic
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio
n
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 e
x
it 
o
f 
N
L
B
P
4
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
o
lid
a
tio
n
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 in
to
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
s
p
a
c
e
 in
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 N
L
B
P
2
. 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l s
a
v
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 e
x
it 
o
f 
N
L
B
P
4
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 £
3
m
 p
e
r 

a
n
n
u
m
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
n
fir
m
a
tio
n
 o
f 
c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
m
o
v
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
d
ila
p
id
a
tio
n
s
. 
T
h
is
, 

a
lo
n
g
 w
ith
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
u
ld
 a
ri
s
e
 f
ro
m
 e
x
iti
n
g
 f
ro
m
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
u
s
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
a
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 C
o
lin
d
a
le
, 
w
o
u
ld
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 £
1
m
 p
e
r 

a
n
n
u
m
 b
y
 2
0
1
7
. 
In
 a
d
d
iti
o
n
, 
ra
tio
n
a
lis
a
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 w
id
e
r 
e
s
ta
te
 a
n
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
iti
e
s
 t
o
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 g
re
a
te
r 
in
c
o
m
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l p
o
rt
fo
lio
 a
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

to
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 in
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
t 
re
d
u
c
tio
n
s
 t
o
ta
lli
n
g
 £
1
m
 b
y
 2
0
1
7
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 in
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio
n
 

c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 in
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio
n
 

c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n

T
h
e
re
 is
 a
 p
o
te
n
tia
l e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 

u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
. 
 A
n
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 

c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 in
 t
h
e
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
y
e
a
r.

£
8
.6
m

(2
,0
0
0
)

E
3

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
R
e
d
u
c
tio
n

T
h
e
re
 is
 a
 p
o
te
n
tia
l o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
ity
 f
o
r 
a
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l s
a
v
in
g
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 R
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
o
r 

a
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l i
n
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 b
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
. 
£
8
0
0
k
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
b
o
u
t 
6
%
 o
f 
th
e
 g
ro
s
s
 s
p
e
n
d
 R
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 it
 is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 is
 a
 r
e
a
lis
tic
 t
a
rg
e
t 
fo
r 
a
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l s
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
6
/1
7
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 in
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 R
e
 

s
u
p
p
ly
 c
h
a
in
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 is
 

n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a
n
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 in
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 R
e
 

s
u
p
p
ly
 c
h
a
in
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 is
 

n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a
n
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 R
e
 s
u
p
p
ly
 c
h
a
in
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 im

p
a
c
t

(8
0
0
)

E
4

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
  

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 a
 s
a
v
in
g
 f
ro
m
 b
e
in
g
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 p
a
n
-L
o
n
d
o
n
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 w
o
rk
s
 (
k
n
o
w
n
 a
s
 t
h
e
 L
O
H
A
C
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t)
. 
T
h
is
 is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
f 
£
5
5
0
k
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
 w
h
ile
 s
til
l d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 le
v
e
l o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 in
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 in
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

re
n
e
g
o
tia
tio
n
 o
f 

h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

a
n
d
 is
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

to
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 in
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

re
n
e
g
o
tia
tio
n
 o
f 

h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

a
n
d
 is
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

to
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 r
e
n
e
g
o
tia
tio
n
 o
f 
h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 is
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

to
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 im

p
a
c
t

(5
5
0
)

E
5

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
  

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
a
n
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 a
 s
a
v
in
g
 o
f 
£
2
0
0
k
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
 o
n
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

w
o
rk
s
 b
y
 e
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 c
h
e
a
p
e
r 
a
lte
rn
a
tiv
e
s
 t
o
 p
a
v
in
g
 s
to
n
e
s
 o
n
 f
o
o
tw
a
y
s
. 
In
 m

a
n
y
 

in
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 a
lte
rn
a
tiv
e
s
 t
o
 p
a
v
in
g
 s
to
n
e
s
 a
re
 m

o
re
 e
ff
e
c
tiv
e
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 o
n
 t
re
e
 li
n
e
d
 

s
tr
e
e
ts
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry

T
h
e
re
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 o
f 

h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 b
y
 u
s
in
g
 

ta
rm

a
c
 a
s
 o
p
p
o
s
e
d
 

to
 p
a
v
in
g
 s
to
n
e
s

T
h
e
re
 is
 a
 p
o
te
n
tia
l e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 

u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
. 
 A
n
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 

c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 in
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
6

(2
0
0
)

E
6

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
  

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
n

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 c

la
im

 m
o

n
e

y
 b

a
ck

 f
ro

m
 t

h
ir

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s 

in
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

d
a

m
a

g
e

 t
o

 

h
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
a

n
d

 f
o

o
tw

a
y

s.
 T

h
is

 w
il

l 
re

su
lt

 i
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

in
co

m
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry

T
h
e
re
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 f
ro
m
 

g
re
a
te
r 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

in
 t
h
is
 a
re
a

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

to
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t

(1
0
0
)

E
7

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
  

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
c
u
rs
 s
ig
n
ifi
c
a
n
t 
c
o
s
t 
e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt 
o
f 
in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 c
la
im
s
 in
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
ta
te
 o
f 
h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 a
n
d
 f
o
o
tw
a
y
s
. 
A
 m

o
re
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 d
e
a
lin
g
 

w
ith
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
la
im
s
 c
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt 
in
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
tio
n
 in
 a
n
n
u
a
l e
x
p
e
n
d
itu
re
 o
n
 in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

c
la
im
s
 b
y
 £
5
0
k
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
. 
 N
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
o
lic
y
.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry

T
h
e
re
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 f
ro
m
 

th
is
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

to
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t.
  
N
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
o
lic
y
.

(5
0
)

E
8

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
tio
n

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
c
u
rs
 s
ig
n
ifi
c
a
n
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
itu
re
 e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r 
o
n
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
tio
n
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 e
x
p
e
n
d
itu
re
 f
o
rm

s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 R
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
p
ri
c
e
. 
A
 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
is
 e
x
p
e
n
d
itu
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 it
 is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
£
5
0
0
k
 p
e
r 

a
n
n
u
m
 o
f 
th
is
 e
x
p
e
n
d
itu
re
 c
a
n
 b
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 t
o
 e
x
is
tin
g
 c
a
p
ita
l p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

o
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 2
0
1
6
-2
0
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a
n
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a
n
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 im

p
a
c
t

(5
0
0
)

T
o

ta
l

(3
0

0
)

0
(2

,2
0

0
)

0
(2

,0
0

0
)

0
0

0
0

0

G
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

G
1

In
c
re
a
s
e
 in
 C
T
 a
n
d
 

B
R

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
tio
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tly
 p
ro
je
c
tin
g
 a
n
 in
c
re
a
s
e
 in
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
a
te
s
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 2
0
1
6
-2
0
. 
T
h
is
 in
c
o
m
e
 is
 o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
b
o
v
e
 

th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
a
te
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
in
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
a
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l i
n
c
o
m
e
.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l w

ill
 

g
e
n
e
ra
te
 a
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l 

in
c
o
m
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l i
s
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
. 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

to
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t

B
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
C
T
 

in
c
o
m
e
 is
 

1
7
9
,9
8
5
 a
n
d
 B
R
 

is
 3
4
,5
0
0

(2
,4
3
5
)

(5
5
3
)

(1
,4
1
7
)

(4
7
2
)2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
5

/1
6

S
a

v
in

g
s

 p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

T
h
e
s
e
 a
ll 
fo
rm

 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 R
E
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t,
 w
h
ic
h
 

h
a
s
 a
 g
ro
s
s
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
o
f 
1
0
,6
6
8
 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
 o
f 
1
,0
6
5

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

223



L
in

e
 r

e
f

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 A

re
a

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s

a
v
in

g
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 (

H
o

w
 

a
re

 w
e

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

in
g

 

o
n

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l)

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0

1
4

/1
5

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

D
e

li
v
e

ry

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 

S
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 I
m

p
a

c
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
5

/1
6

S
a

v
in

g
s

 p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

G
2

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
iti
e
s

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
iti
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
tio
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
iti
e
s
 c
o
u
ld
 c
re
a
te
 

a
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l c
a
p
ita
l r
e
c
e
ip
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 f
u
tu
re
 b
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
iti
e
s
 c
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 a
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l i
n
c
o
m
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
th
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
T
a
x
, 
re
n
ts
, 
d
iv
id
e
n
d
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
k
in
g
 

a
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
ro
le
, 
e
ith
e
r 
d
ir
e
c
tly
, 
o
r 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
tio
n
 in
 a
 J
o
in
t 
V
e
n
tu
re
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 w
ill
 c
o
m
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A
s
s
e
ts
, 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
tio
n
 a
n
d
 G
ro
w
th
 

C
o
m
m
itt
e
e
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l w

ill
 

g
e
n
e
ra
te
 a
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l 

in
c
o
m
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l i
s
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
. 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

to
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t

-

(1
,0
0
0
)

T
o

ta
l

0
0

(2
,4

3
5

)
0

(1
,5

5
3

)
0

(1
,4

1
7

)
0

(4
7

2
)

0

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
, 
p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

T
o

ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
d

e
s

ig
n

T
o

ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

O
v
e

ra
ll
 S

a
v
in

g
s

(3
0

0
)

0
(4

,6
3

5
)

0
(3

,5
5

3
)

0
(1

,4
1

7
)

0
(4

7
2

)
0

224



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

 -
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e

L
in

e
 r

e
f

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 A

re
a

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s

a
v
in

g
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 (

H
o

w
 

a
re

 w
e

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

in
g

 o
n

 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l)

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0

1
4

/1
5

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

D
e

li
v
e

ry

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

S
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 I
m

p
a

c
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y

E
1

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 r
e
v
is
io
n
  
o
f 
th
e
 c
h
a
rg
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
R
A

A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 t
o
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
g
ro
u
n
d
s
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 is
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
T
h
is
 is
 t
o
 b
e
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 

u
s
e
 o
f 
a
m
e
n
iti
e
s
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
u
til
is
in
g
 H
R
A
 f
a
c
ili
tie
s
. 
T
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
ill
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
c
h
a
rg
in
g
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
R
A
, 
re
s
u
lti
n
g
 in
 a
n
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
a
re
n
t 
 g
e
n
e
ra
l f
u
n
d
 c
h
a
rg
e
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
G
e
n
e
ra
l B

u
d
g
e
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
.

It
 is
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 is
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l. 
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie
w
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
.

3
,7
4
4

(1
1
0
)

E
2

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 im

p
ro
v
e
d
 s
tr
e
e
t 
c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 r
o
u
te
 o
p
tim

is
a
tio
n

S
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 im

p
ro
v
e
d
 r
o
u
te
 o
p
tim

is
a
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 

c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
A
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 E
6
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt 
in
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
tio
n
 o
f 
re
p
e
a
t 
a
n
d
 

d
u
p
lic
a
te
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 le
a
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
ta
rg
e
t 
c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 f
o
r 
h
ig
h
e
r 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 a
re
a
s
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
G
e
n
e
ra
l B

u
d
g
e
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
.

L
o
w
 -
 R
o
u
te
 o
p
tim

is
a
tio
n
 

is
 li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 in
c
lu
d
e
 

re
s
c
h
e
d
u
lin
g
 o
f 

m
e
c
h
a
n
ic
a
l s
w
e
e
p
in
g
. 

T
h
is
 m

a
y
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
ith
 d
is
a
b
ili
tie
s
. 

E
IA
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
, 
n
e
u
tr
a
l 

im
p
a
c
t.

4
,2
5
5

(1
0
0
)

E
3

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e

S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 in
te
rn
a
lis
a
tio
n
 o
f 
fle
e
t

T
h
e
 in
te
rn
a
lis
a
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 G
o
 p
la
n
t 
fle
e
t 
w
ill
 r
e
s
u
lt 
in
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 s
a
v
in
g
s
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 im

p
ro
v
e
d
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

o
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
G
e
n
e
ra
l B

u
d
g
e
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
.

It
 is
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 is
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l. 
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie
w
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
.

4
,9
6
6

(1
6
7
)

2

E
4

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e

C
a
p
ita
lis
a
tio
n
 o
f 
 f
le
e
t 
o
v
e
r 
8
 y
e
a
rs
 n
o
t 
5
 y
e
a
rs

T
h
e
 c
a
p
ita
lis
a
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e
 f
le
e
t 
o
v
e
r 
a
n
 e
ig
h
t 
y
e
a
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
, 
ra
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 

o
ri
g
in
a
l f
iv
e
 y
e
a
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 w
ill
 le
a
d
 t
o
 a
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ith
in
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
G
e
n
e
ra
l B

u
d
g
e
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

It
 is
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 is
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l. 
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie
w
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
.

4
,9
6
6

(6
0
)

E
5

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e

S
tr
e
e
t 
c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 t
e
rm

s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
d
iti
o
n
s

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 v
a
ri
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 
p
a
y
 a
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
 le
v
e
l o
f 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ith
in
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
G
e
n
e
ra
l B

u
d
g
e
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

S
ta
ff
 E
IA
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 

u
n
ifi
e
d
 p
a
y
 r
e
w
a
rd
 

p
ro
je
c
t.

4
,2
5
5

(1
0
0
)

E
6

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e

S
tr
e
e
t 
c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 im

p
ro
v
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 a
re
a
 b
a
s
e
d
 t
e
a
m
s

T
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 n
e
w
 o
p
tim

is
e
d
 a
n
d
 f
le
x
ib
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m

o
d
e
l w

ith
 a
re
a
 

b
a
s
e
d
 t
e
a
m
s
 is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
 le
v
e
l o
f 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ith
in
 t
h
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 
c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
lo
n
g
 w
ith
 im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 r
o
u
te
 o
p
tim

is
a
tio
n
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
G
e
n
e
ra
l B

u
d
g
e
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
.

L
o
w
 -
 T
h
e
 in
tr
o
d
u
c
tio
n
 o
f 

a
re
a
-b
a
s
e
d
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g
  

m
a
y
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
lin
g
 o
f 
m
e
c
h
a
n
ic
a
l 

s
w
e
e
p
in
g
. 
T
h
is
 m

a
y
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
ith
 

d
is
a
b
ili
tie
s
. 
L
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 E
2
. 
E
IA
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
, 
n
e
u
tr
a
l.

4
,2
5
5

(3
5
0
)

2
0

E
7

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e

 R
e
d
u
c
tio
n
 in
 t
re
e
 in
s
p
e
c
tio
n
s
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

S
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
tio
n
 in
 t
re
e
 in
s
p
e
c
tio
n
s
 f
o
r 
d
is
c
re
tio
n
a
ry
 

a
re
a
s
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
w
h
ils
t 
e
s
s
e
n
tia
l i
n
s
p
e
c
tio
n
s
 a
re
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
G
e
n
e
ra
l B

u
d
g
e
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 

T
h
is
 is
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
tio
n
 

in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

a
n
d
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

m
in
o
r 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
.

It
 is
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 is
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l. 
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie
w
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
.

3
,7
4
4

(5
0
)

E
8

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e

 W
a
s
te
 &
 R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 r
o
u
te
 o
p
tim

is
a
tio
n

T
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 m

o
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
c
o
lle
c
tio
n
 o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
tic
 w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 

w
ill
  
re
s
u
lt 
in
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l o
f 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
lle
c
tio
n
 r
o
u
n
d
s
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
G
e
n
e
ra
l B

u
d
g
e
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
.

It
 is
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 is
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l. 
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie
w
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
.

4
,9
6
6

(2
1
7
)

4

E
9

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm

in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
itu
re

T
h
e
re
 is
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 in
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 w
in
te
r 
g
ri
tt
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

d
e
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
w
in
te
r 
g
ri
tt
in
g
 m

a
c
h
in
e
s
 f
ro
m
 n
in
e
 t
o
 s
e
v
e
n
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 r
e
d
u
c
tio
n
 in
 le
a
s
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
ra
tin
g
 c
o
s
ts
.

T
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d

T
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d

It
 is
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 is
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l. 
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie
w
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
.

4
2
2

(5
0
)

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
5

/1
6

S
a

v
in

g
s

 p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

225



L
in

e
 r

e
f

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 A

re
a

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s

a
v
in

g
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 (

H
o

w
 

a
re

 w
e

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

in
g

 o
n

 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l)

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0

1
4

/1
5

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

D
e

li
v
e

ry

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

S
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 I
m

p
a

c
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
5

/1
6

S
a

v
in

g
s

 p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

E
1
0

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm

in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 e
x
p
e
n
d
itu
re

T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
 s
ig
n
 s
h
o
p
 w
ill
 a
im
 t
o
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 n
e
w
 a
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l i
n
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
T
o
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 t
h
is
 in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 le
v
e
l o
f 
in
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
  

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
h
e
re
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
  
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 in
v
e
s
t 
in
 n
e
w
 a
s
s
e
ts
.

T
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d

T
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d

It
 is
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 is
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l. 
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie
w
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
.

(4
4
)

(8
0
)

E
1
1

F
le
e
t

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 f

le
e

t 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y

: 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 c
o
n
tin
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 u
n
it 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 b
y
 im

p
ro
v
in
g
 s
u
p
p
ly
 c
h
a
in
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
tiv
e
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
th
e
 f
le
e
t 
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 e
.g
. 
th
ro
u
g
h
 in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
tiv
e
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

re
s
u
lti
n
g
 in
 f
e
w
e
r 
u
n
p
la
n
n
e
d
 r
e
p
a
ir
s
.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 im

p
a
c
t.

2
,1
7
7

(1
2
5
)

E
1
2

G
ro
u
n
d
s
 

M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

b
o

w
li
n

g
 g

re
e

n
s

: 
U
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l t
h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
b
o
w
lin
g
 g
re
e
n
s
 w
o
u
ld
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 a
 

ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
lo
c
a
lly
-b
a
s
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ity
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
s
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 -
 D
e
ta
ile
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
ith
 b
o
w
in
g
 

c
lu
b
s

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
e
re
 is
 a
 p
o
te
n
tia
l 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 im

p
a
c
t 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
 A
n
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 

c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 in
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
6

1
3
5

(5
0
)

(5
0
)

E
1
3

P
a
rk
in
g
 

R
e

-p
ro

c
u

re
 t

h
e

 P
a

rk
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t:

 T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 is
 d
u
e
 t
o
 e
x
p
ir
e
 in
 2
0
1
7
. 
A
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 t
o
 r
e
-p
ro
c
u
re
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

w
ill
 a
llo
w
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
s
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
o
 b
e
 id
e
n
tif
ie
d
.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 -
 S
o
ft
 

m
a
rk
e
t 
te
s
tin
g
 w
ill
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt 

p
o
te
n
tia
l p
a
rt
n
e
rs

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 im

p
a
c
t.

3
,0
2
8

(1
5
0
)

E
1
4

S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
tin
g
 P
F
I

P
F

I 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

S
tr

e
e

t 
li
g

h
ti

n
g

 s
a

v
in

g
s

: 
T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
tr
e
e
t 
lig
h
tin
g
 P
F
I 
re
q
u
ir
e
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
to
 m

a
in
ta
in
 q
u
a
lit
y
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 r
e
la
tin
g
 t
o
 li
g
h
tin
g
 le
v
e
ls
. 
C
o
m
p
le
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
to
 im

p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 c
e
n
tr
a
l m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 w
ill
 a
llo
w
 f
o
r 
lig
h
tin
g
 le
v
e
ls
 t
o
 

b
e
 r
e
m
o
te
ly
 c
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
, 
fo
r 
in
s
ta
n
c
e
 b
y
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
ri
g
h
tn
e
s
s
 o
f 
s
o
m
e
 s
tr
e
e
t 

lig
h
ts
, 
o
r 
m
a
k
in
g
 g
re
a
te
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
L
E
D
 li
g
h
tin
g
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
n
 f
o
o
tp
a
th
 a
s
s
e
ts
.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
. 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
ilo
te
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
th
e
 in
tr
o
d
u
c
tio
n
.

T
h
is
 is
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
tio
n
 

in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

b
u
t 
is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
.

T
h
e
re
 is
 a
 p
o
te
n
tia
l 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 im

p
a
c
t 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
 A
n
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 

c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 in
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
6
.

6
,0
8
2

(9
0
)

E
1
5

S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
tin
g
 P
F
I

S
h

a
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 P

F
I 
C

li
e

n
t 

fu
n

c
ti

o
n

: 
T
h
e
 S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
tin
g
 P
F
I 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
a
s
 p
ro
c
u
re
d
 

jo
in
tly
 w
ith
 L
B
 E
n
fie
ld
. 
G
iv
e
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 s
p
e
c
ifi
c
a
tio
n
 a
n
d
 t
y
p
e
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 

th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
a
re
 s
im
ila
r 
in
 b
o
th
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 it
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 

s
m
a
lle
r,
 s
h
a
re
d
 c
lie
n
t 
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
c
tio
n
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 b
o
th
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
s
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 a
n
d
 it
 is
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 
m
a
y
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 

v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
e
re
 is
 a
 p
o
te
n
tia
l 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 im

p
a
c
t 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
 A
n
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 

c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 in
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
6
.

6
,0
8
2

(2
0
)

E
1
6

S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
tin
g
 P
F
I

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

t:
 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l w

ill
 s
e
e
  
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
e
k
 t
o
 a
g
re
e
 w
ith
 t
h
e
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
a
  
re
v
is
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
p
e
c
ifi
c
a
tio
n
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 le
v
e
l o
f 
n
ig
h
t 
in
s
p
e
c
tio
n
s
, 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 in
 w
h
ic
h
 f
a
u
lt 
re
p
a
ir
s
 n
e
e
d
 

to
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
lo
n
g
 w
ith
 c
o
m
b
in
in
g
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 r
o
u
tin
e
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
c
tiv
iti
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 c
le
a
n
in
g
, 
b
u
lk
 la
m
p
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 in
s
p
e
c
tio
n
 a
c
tiv
iti
e
s
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
. 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
ilo
te
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
th
e
 in
tr
o
d
u
c
tio
n
.

T
h
is
 is
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
tio
n
 

in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

a
n
d
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

m
in
o
r 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 m

a
y
 h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 a
n
d
 it
 is
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 
m
a
y
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 

v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
e
re
 is
 a
 p
o
te
n
tia
l 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 im

p
a
c
t 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
 A
n
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 

c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 in
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
6
.

6
,0
8
2

(9
0
)

E
1
7

W
a
s
te

W
a

s
te

 m
in

im
is

a
ti

o
n

: 
M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w
a
s
te
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 w
ill
 s
e
e
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
c
u
r 
lo
w
e
r 
c
o
s
ts
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw
a
rd
. 
T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 b
o
th
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 c
o
lle
c
tio
n
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 b
y
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
iz
e
 o
f 

w
h
e
e
le
d
 b
in
s
 f
ro
m
 2
4
0
l t
o
 1
8
0
l o
r 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 b
in
s
. 

E
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 a
u
th
o
ri
tie
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 im

p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 s
u
c
h
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
s
 

th
e
ir
 p
o
s
iti
v
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w
a
s
te
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 r
e
s
u
lti
n
g
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 

c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs
. 
T
h
is
 it
e
m
 is
 c
o
n
n
e
c
te
d
 w
ith
 a
n
d
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

w
ith
 s
a
v
in
g
 R
4
.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
e
re
 is
 a
 p
o
te
n
tia
l 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 im

p
a
c
t 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
 A
n
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 

c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 in
 t
h
e
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
y
e
a
r.

1
1
,3
2
4

(1
0
0
)

(1
0
0
)

226



L
in

e
 r

e
f

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 A

re
a

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s

a
v
in

g
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 (

H
o

w
 

a
re

 w
e

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

in
g

 o
n

 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l)

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0

1
4

/1
5

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

D
e

li
v
e

ry

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

S
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 I
m

p
a

c
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
5

/1
6

S
a

v
in

g
s

 p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

E
1
8

W
a
s
te

H
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

 W
a

s
te

 R
e

c
y

c
li
n

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

 t
o

 t
ra

n
s

fe
r 

to
 N

L
W

A
: 
U
n
d
e
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

th
e
 o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
n
 a
 le
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 S
u
m
m
e
rs
 L
a
n
e
 R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 w
ill
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
to
 t
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 a
ll 
s
u
c
h
 f
a
c
ili
tie
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
  
s
e
v
e
n
 m

e
m
b
e
r 
b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

N
L
W
A
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
e
re
 is
 a
 p
o
te
n
tia
l 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 im

p
a
c
t 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
 A
n
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 

c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 in
 t
h
e
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
y
e
a
r.

8
2
6

(6
0
)

E
1
9

N
L
W
A

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

N
o

rt
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

 t
o

 r
e

-p
ro

c
u

re
 d

is
p

o
s

a
l 
fa

c
il
it

ie
s

: 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
ith
 o
th
e
r 
N
o
rt
h
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te
 A
u
th
o
ri
tie
s
 t
o
 p
ro
c
u
re
 n
e
w
 

fa
c
ili
tie
s
 t
o
 t
re
a
t 
a
n
d
 d
is
p
o
s
e
 o
f 
re
s
id
u
a
l w

a
s
te
 t
o
 r
e
p
la
c
e
 f
a
c
ili
tie
s
  
th
a
t 
a
re
 r
e
a
c
h
in
g
 

th
e
ir
 e
n
d
 o
f 
lif
e
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 le
s
s
 w
a
s
te
 is
 s
e
n
t 
to
 la
n
d
fil
l a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
la
n
d
fil
l t
a
x
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 t
o
 p
a
y
 c
u
rr
e
n
tly
.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 -
 

C
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

N
L
W
A
 p
ro
c
e
s
s

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 im

p
a
c
t.

1
1
,3
2
4

(5
0
0
)

E
2
0

S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 

O
u
ts
o
u
rc
e

S
a

v
in

g
s

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 m

o
d

e
l:

P
o
te
n
tia
l a
lte
rn
a
tiv
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 m

o
d
e
ls
 m

a
y
 in
c
lu
d
e
 a
 s
o
c
ia
l e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
, 
m
u
tu
a
l o
r 

o
u
ts
o
u
rc
in
g
 f
o
r 
W
a
s
te
, 
R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
, 
S
tr
e
e
t 
C
le
a
n
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 G
ro
u
n
d
s
 

M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
A
n
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
a
 f
u
tu
re
 a
lte
rn
a
tiv
e
 m

o
d
e
l w

ill
 b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 

to
 f
u
ll 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 o
p
tio
n
s
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 

c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w
ith
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 in
-h
o
u
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 -
 S
o
ft
 

m
a
rk
e
t 
te
s
tin
g
 w
ill
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt 

p
o
te
n
tia
l p
a
rt
n
e
rs

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
e
re
 is
 a
 p
o
te
n
tia
l 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 im

p
a
c
t 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
 A
n
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 

c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 in
 t
h
e
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
y
e
a
r.

1
0
,5
0
3

(2
5
0
)

(4
5
0
)

E
2
1

M
o
rt
u
a
ry
 s
h
a
re
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

C
re

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
 s

h
a

re
d

 m
o

rt
u

a
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
:

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l c
o
n
s
id
e
rs
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 m

o
d
e
rn
 f
a
c
ili
tie
s
 in
 a
 s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t 

w
ith
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
o
p
e
ra
tio
n
a
l e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
, 
re
a
lis
e
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
e
t 

v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
e
 F
in
c
h
le
y
 M
o
rt
u
a
ry
 o
n
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l a
n
d
 c
o
n
tin
u
e
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
 h
ig
h
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 -
 S
o
ft
 

m
a
rk
e
t 
te
s
tin
g
 w
ill
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt 

p
o
te
n
tia
l p
a
rt
n
e
rs

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 im

p
a
c
t.

1
4
1

(4
5
)

T
o

ta
l

(1
,2

8
4

)
2

6
(4

2
0

)
0

(8
6

0
)

0
(7

0
0

)
0

(1
0

0
)

0

G
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

G
1

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e

A
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l i
n
c
o
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 im

p
ro
v
e
d
 u
til
is
a
tio
n
 o
f 
p
a
rk
s
 a
s
s
e
ts

T
h
e
 e
x
is
tin
g
 p
a
rk
 a
s
s
e
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 h
ig
h
e
r 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
in
c
o
m
e
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 m

a
rk
e
tin
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 le
tt
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
ts
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 c
a
fe
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
v
ili
o
n
s
. 

M
o
re
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 f
ro
m
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
5
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
w
id
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 o
n
  
th
e
 

d
ra
ft
 P
a
rk
s
 &
 O
p
e
n
 

S
p
a
c
e
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

It
 is
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 is
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l. 
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie
w
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 in
 P
a
rk
s
 &
 

G
re
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

E
IA
.

3
,7
4
4

(1
0
0
)

G
2

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e

In
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 c
e
n
tr
a
l g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t

In
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 C
e
n
tr
a
l G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
re
la
tin
g
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
in
g
 w
e
e
k
ly
 r
e
fu
s
e
 c
o
lle
c
tio
n

P
a
rt
 o
f 
G
e
n
e
ra
l B

u
d
g
e
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
.

It
 is
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 is
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l. 
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie
w
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
.

(8
3
2
)

(4
2
7
)

G
3

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 z
o
n
e

T
h
e
  
c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 p
a
rk
in
g
 p
e
rm

its
 t
o
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
ith
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 z
o
n
e
 f
o
r 
S
a
ra
c
e
n
s
 r
u
g
b
y
 c
lu
b
 r
e
s
id
e
n
tia
l a
re
a
s
. 
T
h
is
 is
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 lo
c
a
l a
re
a
 o
n
 m

a
tc
h
 d
a
y
s
. 
T
h
e
 r
u
g
b
y
 c
lu
b
 w
ill
 p
a
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 p
e
rm

its
, 
re
s
u
lti
n
g
 in
 a
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l i
n
c
o
m
e
. 
 

T
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d

T
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d

It
 is
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re
 is
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l. 
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie
w
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
.

(7
,3
8
1
)

(4
0
)

227



L
in

e
 r

e
f

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 A

re
a

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s

a
v
in

g
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 (

H
o

w
 

a
re

 w
e

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

in
g

 o
n

 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l)

B
u

d
g

e
t

2
0

1
4

/1
5

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

D
e

li
v
e

ry

Im
p

a
c

t 
o

n
 C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

S
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 I
m

p
a

c
t

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E
£

0
0

0
F

T
E

£
0

0
0

F
T

E

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
5

/1
6

S
a

v
in

g
s

 p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

G
4

G
re
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
s

In
v
e

s
t 

in
 3

G
 P

it
c

h
e

s
 (

x
3

):
 T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l w

ill
 s
e
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
c
u
re
 a
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
(i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
ith
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 b
o
d
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 T
h
e
 F
o
o
tb
a
ll 
F
o
u
n
d
a
tio
n
) 
in
 

m
o
d
e
rn
 3
G
 s
p
o
rt
s
 p
itc
h
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 b
e
n
e
fit
 f
ro
m
 a
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 f
o
r 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 a
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l i
n
c
o
m
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
 f
ro
m
 n
e
w
 p
itc
h
e
s
 w
ith
 a
n
y
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
a
rt
n
e
r.
 

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 im

p
a
c
t.

N
e
w
 in
c
o
m
e
 

s
tr
e
a
m
 -
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tly
 £
0

(1
0
0
)

G
5

W
a
s
te

In
c

o
m

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 N
o

n
-S

ta
tu

to
ry

 W
a

s
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

: 

A
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 in
c
o
m
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
tio
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
rg
e
a
b
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 b
u
t 
n
o
t 
lim

ite
d
 t
o
: 
b
u
lk
y
 w
a
s
te
 c
o
lle
c
tio
n
, 
s
p
e
c
ia
l c
o
lle
c
tio
n
s
, 
a
d
d
iti
o
n
a
l 

c
o
lle
c
tio
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 id
e
n
tif
ic
a
tio
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 c
h
a
rg
in
g
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
r 
m
o
re
 in
 

o
rd
e
r 
to
 o
ff
s
e
t 
th
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
w
id
e
r 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
tio
n
s
 is
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
.

T
o
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 f
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
ll 
tr
a
n
s
a
c
tio
n
a
l s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
.g
. 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 t
ra
d
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l w

a
s
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 in
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
ll 
in
c
o
m
e
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 in
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 id
e
n
tif
y
 n
e
w
 o
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 in
c
o
m
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
iti
e
s
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 b
e
 d
o
n
e
 w
ith
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l w

a
s
te
 t
o
 b
o
th
 o
b
ta
in
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 o
ff
e
r 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 e
tc
.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 a
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
  
n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 im

p
a
c
t.

N
e
w
 in
c
o
m
e
 

s
tr
e
a
m
 -
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tly
 £
0

(7
7
0
)

T
o

ta
l

(5
6

7
)

0
(7

7
0

)
0

0
0

(1
0

0
)

0
0

0

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
, 
p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

R
1

S
tr
e
e
t 
c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 &
 

P
a
rk
s

O
p

ti
m

is
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s

tr
e

e
t 

c
le

a
n

s
in

g
, 
p

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 t
re

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
: 
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
o
u
te
  

o
p
tim

is
in
g
 r
o
u
te
s
, 
re
m
o
v
in
g
 d
u
p
lic
a
tio
n
, 
m
a
k
in
g
 b
e
tt
e
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
m
o
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
. 
T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l w

ill
 a
ls
o
 in
c
lu
d
e
: 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t;
 l
itt
e
ri
n
g
, 
d
o
g
 f
o
u
lin
g
, 
fly
-

tip
p
in
g
. 
 A
ls
o
, 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 in
c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 w
id
e
r 
p
a
rk
s
 a
s
s
e
ts
..
 R
e
v
is
e
d
 s
c
h
e
d
u
lin
g
 o
f 

h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 g
ro
u
n
d
s
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 in
c
lu
d
in
g
 g
ra
s
s
 c
u
tt
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
n
n
u
a
l b
e
d
d
in
g
.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
e
re
 is
 a
 p
o
te
n
tia
l 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 im

p
a
c
t 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
A
n
  
E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 

c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 in
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
6
 f
o
r 
1
6
/1
7
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
.

8
,7
5
6

(1
5
0
)

(2
0
0
)

R
2

W
a
s
te

H
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

 W
a

s
te

 R
e

c
y

c
li
n

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

 o
p

e
n

in
g

 h
o

u
rs

: 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
 m

a
n
a
g
e
s
 a
 

H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 W

a
s
te
 R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 C
e
n
tr
e
 a
t 
S
u
m
m
e
rs
 L
a
n
e
 w
h
e
re
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
 

d
is
p
o
s
e
 o
f 
o
v
e
r 
4
0
 d
iff
e
re
n
t 
ty
p
e
s
 o
f 
w
a
s
te
. 
T
h
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 c
u
rr
e
n
tly
 o
p
e
n
s
 7
 d
a
y
s
 a
 

w
e
e
k
 f
ro
m
 8
a
m
 t
o
 4
p
m
 M
o
n
d
a
y
 t
o
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
 a
n
d
 9
a
m
 t
o
 4
p
m
 o
n
 S
u
n
d
a
y
's
. 
U
n
d
e
r 

th
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l t
h
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
 w
ill
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 it
s
 o
p
e
n
in
g
 h
o
u
rs
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
p
e
a
k
 

a
n
d
 h
ig
h
e
r 
u
s
a
g
e
.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 -
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
n
e
w
 

o
p
e
ra
tin
g
 h
o
u
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lte
d
 u
p
o
n
.

T
h
is
 is
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
tio
n
 

in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n

T
h
e
re
 is
 a
 p
o
te
n
tia
l 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 im

p
a
c
t 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
A
n
  
E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 

c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 in
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
6
 f
o
r 
1
6
/1
7
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
.

8
2
6

(2
0
)

R
3

N
L
W
A

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 m

e
n

u
 p

ri
c

in
g

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 W

a
s

te
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

h
is

to
ri

c
 l
e

v
y

 b
a

s
e

d
 s

y
s

te
m

: 
T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 
w
a
s
te
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 

lo
n
g
-s
ta
n
d
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 w
h
e
re
 e
a
c
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
a
y
s
 a
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 p
ri
c
e
 p
e
r 
to
n
n
e
 in
 

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 t
o
 it
s
 r
e
la
tiv
e
 s
iz
e
. 
T
h
is
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
is
 m

a
d
e
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
rs
 in
 a
rr
e
a
rs
. 
T
h
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
tio
n
 o
f 
m
e
n
u
 p
ri
c
in
g
 w
ill
 s
e
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
a
y
 a
 p
ri
c
e
 p
e
r 
to
n
n
e
 s
p
e
c
ifi
c
a
lly
 

fo
r 
th
e
 t
y
p
e
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
w
a
s
te
 s
e
n
t 
fo
r 
d
is
p
o
s
a
l w

ith
in
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
th
a
t 
th
e
 d
is
p
o
s
a
ls
 

o
c
c
u
rs
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 in
c
e
n
tiv
is
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 t
o
 m

in
im
is
e
 w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 a
 s
a
v
in
g
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 B
a
rn
e
t 
s
e
n
d
in
g
 le
s
s
 w
a
s
te
 f
o
r 
d
is
p
o
s
a
l c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 w
ith
 o
th
e
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

th
e
 N
o
rt
h
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 

a
n
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
 

a
n
d
 it
 is
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
h
a
t 
it 

m
a
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

p
e
rc
e
p
tio
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 im

p
a
c
t.

1
0
,1
9
4

(1
,9
0
0
)

R
4

S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 W

a
s
te
 

O
ff
e
r

R
e

v
is

e
d

 w
a

s
te

 o
ff

e
r 

to
 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
 r

e
c

y
c

li
n

g
:

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
lle
c
ts
 r
e
s
id
u
a
l w

a
s
te
, 
re
c
y
c
la
b
le
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
o
o
d
 w
a
s
te
 f
ro
m
 a
ll 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l i
s
 f
o
r 
a
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
tio
n
s
 

a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 w
h
ic
h
 a
im
s
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs
 a
n
d
 d
ri
v
e
 

u
p
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 r
a
te
s
 in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 c
o
lle
c
tio
n
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l c
o
s
ts
. 
 T
h
is
 in
c
lu
d
e
s
 

m
a
k
in
g
 it
 e
a
s
ie
r 
to
 r
e
c
y
c
le
 f
o
o
d
 w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
u
ls
o
ry
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 o
f 
d
ry
 a
n
d
 f
o
o
d
 

w
a
s
te
; 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 in
 f
la
ts
; 
a
n
d
 o
p
tim

is
in
g
 w
a
s
te
 c
o
lle
c
tio
n
 r
o
u
te
s
. 
 T
h
is
 

s
c
a
le
 o
f 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
s
s
u
m
e
s
 a
 s
te
p
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 in
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
to
w
a
rd
s
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 

d
ri
v
e
n
 b
y
 a
 b
e
tt
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
w
a
s
te
 c
o
lle
c
tio
n
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l.

P
a
rt
 o
f 
g
e
n
e
ra
l b
u
d
g
e
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 

a
n
tic
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

to
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
tis
fa
c
tio
n
.

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 is
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 

a
d
v
e
rs
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 im

p
a
c
t.

2
,0
3
6

(3
0
0
)

(3
5
0
)

T
o

ta
l

0
0

(2
,3

7
0

)
0

(5
5

0
)

0
0

0
0

0

S
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
d

e
s

ig
n

T
o

ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

O
v
e

ra
ll
 S

a
v
in

g
s

(1
,8

5
1

)
2

6
(3

,5
6

0
)

0
(1

,4
1

0
)

0
(8

0
0

)
0

(1
0

0
)

0

228



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C
 -

 C
h

il
d

re
n

, 
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

, 
L

ib
ra

ri
e
s
 &

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e

L
in
e
 r
e
f

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 A
re
a

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
a
v
in
g

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (
H
o
w
 

a
re
 w
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 

o
n
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l)

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

E
1

S
p
e
c
ia
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

n
e
e
d
s
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

s
a
v
in
g
s

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 c
o
s
ts

A
c
h
ie
v
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 w
it
h
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

N
e
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
b
y
:

- 
ta
rg
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 i
s
 n
o
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
d

- 
ro
u
te
 o
p
ti
m
is
a
ti
o
n

F
ro
m
 a
n
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
o
f 
£
6
m
, 
£
7
0
0
k
 o
f 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 i
n
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
£
1
m
. 
In
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 d
e
li
v
e
r 
th
e
 f
u
ll
 s
a
v
in
g
, 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
1
0
%
 o
r 

th
e
re
 w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
a
ll
y
 m
o
re
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 b
y
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
.

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
/s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
  
to
o
k
 

p
la
c
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 2
4
th
 

J
u
n
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 1
2
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

2
0
1
4

T
h
e
 r
e
m
o
d
e
ll
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
-

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
S
E
N
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

c
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
, 
a
n
d
 s
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
T
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 

d
ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

tr
a
v
e
l 
tr
a
in
in
g
 m
ig
h
t 
le
a
d
 t
o
 f
e
w
e
r 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 

m
a
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 s
o
m
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n
e
t 

c
o
s
ts
.

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 c
o
u
ld
 

m
a
k
e
 s
o
m
e
 p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 l
e
s
s
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
rs
 m
o
re
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

w
o
u
ld
 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 m
in
im
is
e
 

d
is
ru
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

c
h
il
d
re
n
.

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 

im
p
a
c
t.
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
il
it
ie
s
 c
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly
 a
n
d
/o
r 
p
o
s
it
iv
e
ly
 

im
p
a
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
 A
 

fu
ll
 E
IA
 w
il
l 
b
e
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 

P
R
C
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
5
.

4
,3
1
8

 (
5
0
0
)

E
2

A
c
ro
s
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
)

S
a
v
in
g
s
 f
ro
m
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
ta
ff
 r
e
la
te
d
 c
o
s
ts

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 f
ro
m
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm

in
g
 t
h
e
 F
a
m
il
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 d
e
li
v
e
r 
th
e
 b
e
s
t 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
il
ie
s
 w
it
h
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
s
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
rs
, 
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
re
 c
lo
s
e
r 
to
 f
ro
n
tl
in
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 

w
e
ll
 t
ra
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
.

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 m
in
im
is
e
 r
is
k
 w
h
e
re
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 r
is
k
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 

e
li
m
in
a
te
d
. 
T
h
e
ir
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 w
il
l 
b
e
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
re
 u
n
li
k
e
ly
 

to
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

th
is
 w
il
l 
b
e
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
.

A
 n
e
u
tr
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 i
s
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
. 
T
h
e
 

in
te
rn
a
l 
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
w
il
l 

b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
. 
S
ta
ff
 E
IA
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 

P
R
C
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
5
.

1
6
,7
7
0

(1
,1
5
1
)

2
8

E
3

A
c
ro
s
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
p
e
n
d
) 

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 b
y
 r
e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
th
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 c
o
s
ts

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 h
ig
h
 c
o
s
t,
 h
ig
h
 n
e
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
y
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
li
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
n
ta
in
 

in
fl
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 f
in
d
in
g
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
d
.

W
o
rk
 i
s
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 t
o
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
li
e
rs
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

q
u
a
li
ty
.

G
e
n
e
ra
l 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

T
h
is
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

s
m
a
rt
e
r 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
s
 

u
n
li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d

T
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
il
l 
d
e
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 m
a
d
e
. 
A
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
is
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 b
u
t 

w
il
l 
b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
.

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 u
n
li
k
e
ly
 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 

im
p
a
c
t.
 N
o
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
E
IA
 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
. 
N
o
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
E
IA
 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 d
o
 n
o
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
.

1
6
,9
6
7

(5
2
3
)

E
4

3
rd
 P
a
rt
y
 S
p
e
n
d

B
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
6
-2
0
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
n
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 b
y
 

a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 2
%
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
..
 T
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
e
n
v
e
lo
p
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
in
fl
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
2
.5
%
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
, 
s
o
 t
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 e
it
h
e
r 
fr
o
m
 

c
o
n
ta
in
in
g
 i
n
fl
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 
o
r 
th
ro
u
g
h
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
e
tt
e
r 
ra
te
s
. 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 

th
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
. 
It
 i
s
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
th
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
. 
It
 i
s
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
. 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 

is
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  
T
h
is
 w
il
l 
b
e
 k
e
p
t 

u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 a
s
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 d
e
v
e
lo
p

7
,3
5
1

(8
1
)

(1
3
5
)

(1
3
4
)

(1
8
8
)

E
5

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 S
a
v
in
g
s

B
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
6
-2
0
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 

1
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 u
n
it
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
. 
A
s
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
, 
a
ll
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 w
il
l 
n
e
e
d
 

to
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
ir
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 b
y
 1
0
%
 

b
y
 2
0
2
0
. 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
te
rm

s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

u
n
if
ie
d
 p
a
y
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
il
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 i
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
. 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 

w
il
l 
a
ls
o
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 u
s
e
 o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
, 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
la
y
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

T
h
is
 w
il
l 
b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 

to
 f
o
rm

a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

s
ta
ff
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

y
e
a
r

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
g
e
n
e
ra
te
s
 a
 1
0
%
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 2
0
2
0
. 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
g
e
n
e
ra
te
s
 a
 

1
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 t
o
 2
0
2
0
. 
It
 i
s
 n
o
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
il
l 
b
e
 k
e
p
t 

u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
. 
A
n
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 

P
R
C
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

y
e
a
r.

1
7
,5
5
7

(9
0
0
)

(9
0
0
)

E
6

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 b
y
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
. 
A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 b
u
t 
th
e
s
e
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

re
d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
a
s
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
.

G
e
n
e
ra
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 

e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
.

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

to
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
il
l 
b
e
 k
e
p
t 

u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
. 
 A
n
  
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
c
o
m
e
 

b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
6
 

fo
r 
1
6
/1
7
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
.

5
0
,2
6
7

(1
,3
4
6
)

T
o
ta
l

(2
,1
7
4
)

2
8

(1
,4
2
7
)

0
(1
3
5
)

0
(1
,0
3
4
)

0
(1
,0
8
8
)

0

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 I
n
c
o
m
e

T
o
ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
, 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e

R
1

L
A
C
 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y

R
e
d
u
c
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 b
y
 g
ro
w
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 

th
e
 i
n
-h
o
u
s
e
 f
o
s
te
r 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
; 
in
te
rv
e
n
in
g
 e
a
rl
y
 t
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
, 

s
te
p
p
in
g
-d
o
w
n
  
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
to
 f
o
s
te
r 
c
a
re
, 
a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

o
f 
h
ig
h
 q
u
a
li
ty
, 
c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
v
e
ly
 p
ri
c
e
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

B
y
 2
0
1
9
 B
a
rn
e
t 
w
il
l 
h
a
v
e
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 l
a
rg
e
s
t 
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
s
 o
f 
lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 

p
la
c
e
d
 w
it
h
 i
n
-h
o
u
s
e
 f
o
s
te
r 
c
a
re
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 /
 c
o
-

p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
  
w
it
h
 

fo
s
te
r 
c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 

u
n
d
e
rw
a
y

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
h
a
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
to
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 

k
e
e
p
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 

to
 b
e
tt
e
r 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
lo
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft
e
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
il
l 
b
e
 k
e
p
t 

u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
. 
 A
n
  
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
c
o
m
e
 

b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
6
 

fo
r 
1
6
/1
7
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
.

1
3
,4
6
0

(1
3
1
)

(1
4
4
)

(1
4
9
)

(6
9
)

T
o
ta
l

0
0

(1
3
1
)

0
(1
4
4
)

0
(1
4
9
)

0
(6
9
)

0

S
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
d
e
s
ig
n

S
1

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 R
e
v
ie
w
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 e
a
rl
y
 

y
e
a
rs
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
s
t 
c
o
n
fi
g
u
re
d
 w
it
h
in
 l
im
it
e
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
U
s
e
 o
f 
p
u
b
li
c
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

g
ra
n
t 
to
 f
u
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 i
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 m
in
im
u
m
 (
£
1
.5
m
).
 T
a
rg
e
te
d
 

e
a
rl
y
 y
e
a
rs
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
im
s
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
ro
u
b
le
d
 f
a
m
il
ie
s
/s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
.

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
a
n
d
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

N
e
w
 m
o
d
e
l 
s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

q
u
a
li
ty
 b
u
t 
s
o
m
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

o
p
e
n
in
g
 h
o
u
rs
 o
n
 t
h
re
e
 s
it
e
s
. 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m
o
d
e
l 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

m
e
d
iu
m
 t
e
rm

 b
u
t 
s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 w
il
l 
m
e
a
n
 s
o
m
e
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
re
 l
e
s
s
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 m
e
a
n
ti
m
e
. 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 E
IA
 f
o
rm

s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

E
a
rl
y
 y
e
a
rs
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 C
E
L
S
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

2
9
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
4
. 
  
T
h
e
 E
IA
 

w
il
l 
b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
  
c
o
m
e
 

b
a
c
k
 t
o
 P
R
C
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
5
.

4
,8
0
4

(5
2
5
)

(5
5
0
)

(5
0
6
)

(5
3
5
)

(4
0
5
)

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

2
0
1
5
/1
6

S
a
v
in
g
s
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m

229



L
in
e
 r
e
f

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 A
re
a

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
a
v
in
g

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (
H
o
w
 

a
re
 w
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 

o
n
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l)

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

Im
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

2
0
1
5
/1
6

S
a
v
in
g
s
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m

S
2

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 L
ib
ra
ri
e
s

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
li
b
ra
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
u
ll
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 

2
8
 O
c
t 
C
E
L
S
 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
.

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 w
il
l 

d
e
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 o
p
ti
o
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 C
E
L
S
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
.

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
il
l 
d
e
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 

o
p
ti
o
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 C
E
L
S
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 2
0
1
5
.

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 t
h
is
 i
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 p
a
p
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 

C
E
L
S
 o
n
 t
h
e
 2
8
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 
 A
n
  
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
il
l 
c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 

P
R
C
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
6
 f
o
r 

1
6
/1
7
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
.

4
,5
3
7

(1
,6
0
2
)

(1
,2
5
0
)

S
3

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 S
k
il
ls
- 

N
e
w
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 m
o
d
e
l

C
re
a
te
 a
n
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 w
a
y
 t
o
 d
e
li
v
e
r 
th
e
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 S
k
il
ls
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
a
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 w
it
h
 

s
p
e
c
ia
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
, 
p
o
s
t-
1
6
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
a
te
ri
n
g
 .
 B
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 

n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 m
o
d
e
l 
in
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
th
e
re
  
is
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 

g
ro
w
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
m
. 

  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 

p
a
re
n
ts
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

A
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
1
4
. 

F
o
rm

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 s
ta
ff
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
4
/2
0
1
5
 

T
h
is
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
s
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 

im
p
a
c
t.
  
A
n
 i
n
it
ia
l 
E
IA
 f
o
rm

e
d
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 d
ra
ft
 o
u
tl
in
e
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
  
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 

C
E
L
S
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
5
th
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 
T
h
e
 E
IA
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 

P
R
C
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 1
5
.

6
,7
9
7

(6
9
5
)

1
(8
5
)

(1
6
0
)

(2
5
5
)

(3
5
0
)

T
o
ta
l

(1
,2
2
0
)

1
(2
,2
3
7
)

0
(1
,9
1
6
)

0
(7
9
0
)

0
(7
5
5
)

0

O
v
e
ra
ll
 S
a
v
in
g
s

(3
,3
9
4
)

2
9

(3
,7
9
5
)

0
(2
,1
9
5
)

0
(1
,9
7
3
)

0
(1
,9
1
2
)

0

230



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

 -
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

L
in
e
 r
e
f

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 A
re
a

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
a
v
in
g

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (
H
o
w
 

a
re
 w
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 

o
n
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l)

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

E
1

B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p

S
a
v
in
g
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
tio
n
 in
 o
p
e
ra
tio
n
a
l c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
ru
n
n
in
g
 h
o
s
te
l

A
n
n
u
a
l s
a
v
in
g
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
a
 h
o
s
te
l a
re
 b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

p
re
v
e
n
ta
tiv
e
 w
o
rk
 in
 r
e
la
tio
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio
n
. 
S
a
v
in
g
 is
 a
s
 

a
 r
e
s
u
lt 
o
f 
th
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 h
o
s
te
l a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
.

C
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
 w
ith
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 

b
y 
th
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
 w
a
s
 

c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
th
e
 d
e
c
a
n
t 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

H
ig
h

H
ig
h

N
o
 im
p
a
c
t.
 H
o
s
te
l c
lo
s
e
d
 in
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 a
n
d
 

d
u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
 w
a
s
 p
a
id
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 a
t 
th
e
 

tim
e
.

4
,7
6
3

(3
0
0
)

0

T
o
ta
l

(3
0
0
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 I
n
c
o
m
e

T
o
ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
, 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e

T
o
ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
d
e
s
ig
n

T
o
ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

O
v
e
ra
ll
 S
a
v
in
g
s

(3
0
0
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Im
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
S
a
v
in
g
s
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

231



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

 -
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 L

e
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

L
in
e
 r
e
f

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 A
re
a

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
a
v
in
g

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (
H
o
w
 

a
re
 w
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 

o
n
 t
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l)

B
u
d
g
e
t

2
0
1
4
/1
5

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 I
m
p
a
c
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

£
0
0
0

F
T
E

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

E
1

P
o
lic
y

N
o
n
-r
e
n
e
w
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 M
O
S
IA
C
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
d
a
ta
 

s
e
g
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
to
 a
v
o
id
 d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 i
d
e
n
ti
c
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 u
s
e
d
 b
y 
th
e
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
&
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 G
ro
u
p
 I
n
s
ig
h
t 
T
e
a
m
. 
M
O
S
IA
C
 i
s
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 w
h
ic
h
 a
llo
w
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 c
a
rr
y 
o
u
t 
m
o
d
e
lli
n
g
 o
n
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 g
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 i
n
fo
rm

 

p
o
lic
y 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 C
S
G
 I
n
s
ig
h
t 
T
e
a
m
 u
s
e
s
 a
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
c
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 c
a
lle
d
 C
a
ll 
C
re
d
it
. 
 T
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 i
s
 n
o
t 
to
 r
e
n
e
w
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 M
O
S
IA
C
 t
o
 a
v
o
id
 d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
fu
s
io
n
 b
y 
u
s
in
g
 t
w
o
 s
im
ila
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
 a
 s
a
v
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 n
o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 t
h
is
 i
s
 a
 

n
o
n
-s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

s
o
ft
w
a
re
 w
h
ic
h
 a
id
s
 

p
o
lic
y 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.

L
o
w
. 
 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y,
 t
h
e
 

C
S
G
 I
n
s
ig
h
t 
T
e
a
m
 -
 

w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
s
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

w
it
h
 C
a
p
it
a
 -
 h
a
s
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
 s
im
ila
r 

s
o
ft
w
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 

w
h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 

fo
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
 a
s
 

M
O
S
IA
C
. 
 T
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
re
ta
in
s
 a
ll 
o
f 

th
e
 d
a
ta
 u
s
e
d
 b
y 
th
e
 

C
S
G
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

L
o
w
. 
 C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y,
 t
h
e
 

C
S
G
 I
n
s
ig
h
t 
T
e
a
m
 -
 

w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
s
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

w
it
h
 C
a
p
it
a
 -
 h
a
s
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
 s
im
ila
r 

s
o
ft
w
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 

w
h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 

fo
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
 a
s
 

M
O
S
IA
C
.

N
o
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
/ 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 

E
IA
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry

9
(9
)

T
o
ta
l

0
0

(9
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 I
n
c
o
m
e

T
o
ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
, 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e

T
o
ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
d
e
s
ig
n

S
1

C
C
T
V

M
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 C
C
T
V
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 a
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 n
e
u
tr
a
l 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
p
re
fe
ra
b
ly
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 

th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c
ri
m
e
, 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 
c
ri
m
e
, 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

d
e
te
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
a
n
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
s
.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
 1
8
/1
9
 

w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

p
o
s
it
io
n
 i
s
 c
le
a
r.

H
ig
h
 i
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
e
a
s
e
s
.

H
ig
h
 -
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 

v
a
lu
e
d
.

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 

u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 a
s
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 d
e
v
e
lo
p

8
4
3

(8
4
3
)

T
o
ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

(8
4
3
)

0

O
v
e
ra
ll
 S
a
v
in
g
s

0
0

(9
)

0
0

0
0

0
(8
4
3
)

0

Im
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

2
0
1
5
/1
6

S
a
v
in
g
s
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m

232



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C
 -

 A
d

u
lt

s
 &

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 P
re

s
s
u

re
s
 

L
in
e
 r
e
f

S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (
H
o
w
 a
re
 

w
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l)

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

E
F

F
IC

IE
N

C
Y

 -
 D

E
M

A
N

D
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

T
o
ta
l

0
0

0
0

0

P
1

A
c

ro
s

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

D
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
s

 p
re

s
s

u
re

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
 i

n
 

th
o

s
e

 w
it

h
 s

o
c

ia
l 

c
a

re
 n

e
e

d
s

 e
s

p
e

c
ia

lly
 

th
o

s
e

 w
it

h
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 D

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 O
ld

e
r 

A
d

u
lt

s
 i

n
c

lu
d

in
g

 d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
.

8
0

0

P
2

A
c

ro
s

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

D
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
s

 p
re

s
s

u
re

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 

tr
e

n
d

s
 a

n
d

 p
ri

c
e

 a
s

 w
e

ll 
a

s
 t

ra
n

s
it

io
n

s
 o

f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 j

o
in

in
g

 a
d

u
lt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s

1
,6

8
0

2
,0

1
8

2
,0

1
4

2
,3

7
5

T
o
ta
l

8
0
0

1
,6
8
0

2
,0
1
8

2
,0
1
4

2
,3
7
5

O
v
e
ra
ll
 P
re
s
s
u
re
s

8
0
0

1
,6
8
0

2
,0
1
8

2
,0
1
4

2
,3
7
5

C
o
re
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

D
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
y
/g
ro
w
th

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m

233



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

 -
 C

h
il

d
re

n
's

, 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 P
re

s
s

u
re

s
 

L
in
e
 r
e
f

S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (
H
o
w
 a
re
 

w
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l)

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

C
o
m
p
le
x
it
y

P
1

C
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
 (
S
E
N
, 
s
h
o
rt
 

b
re
a
k
s
, 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
s
y
c
h
o
lo
g
y
) 
&
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re

D
u
e
 t
o
  
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 c
a
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
. 
S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
ri
v
e
n
 b
y
 a
n
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts
. 

9
5
0

6
0
0

4
0
0

2
0
0

T
o
ta
l

0
9
5
0

6
0
0

4
0
0

2
0
0

P
2

D
e
m
a
n
d
 l
e
d
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
n
d
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
e
.g
. 

c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 c
a
re
, 
c
h
ild
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
, 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
, 

y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
, 
fa
m
ily
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
) 

P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts
 f
o
r 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
h
ild
re
n
, 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 c
h
ild
re
n
.

7
2
0

P
3

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le

D
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
ic
 p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 o
n
 0
 t
o
 1
7
 a
g
e
 g
ro
u
p
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 t
re
n
d
s

1
,0
0
2

9
6
5

9
6
8

1
,0
1
8

T
o
ta
l

7
2
0

1
,0
0
2

9
6
5

9
6
8

1
,0
1
8

O
v
e
ra
ll
 P
re
s
s
u
re
s

7
2
0

1
,9
5
2

1
,5
6
5

1
,3
6
8

1
,2
1
8

C
o
re
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

D
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
y
/g
ro
w
th

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m

234



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C
 -

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
P

re
s
s
u

re
s
 

L
in
e
 r
e
f

S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (
H
o
w
 a
re
 

w
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
is
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l)

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

E
F
F
IC
IE
N
C
Y
 -
 D
E
M
A
N
D
 M
A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T

T
o
ta
l

0
0

0
0

0

P
1

W
a
s
te

M
a
jo
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
e
s
te
rn
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 m

e
a
n
 h
ig
h
e
r 
w
a
s
te
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

n
e
e
d
s

3
6
0

T
o
ta
l

0
3
6
0

0
0

0

O
v
e
ra
ll
 P
re
s
s
u
re
s

0
3
6
0

0
0

0

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m

C
o
re
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t

D
e
m
o
g
ra
p
h
y
/g
ro
w
th

235



236

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 -

 C
a
p

it
a
l 
A

d
d

it
io

n
s
 2

0
1
5
-2

0
2
0

C
o
m
m
it
te
e

P
ro
je
c
t

2
0
1
5
-1
6

2
0
1
6
-1
7

2
0
1
7
-1
8

2
0
1
8
-1
9

2
0
1
9
-2
0

T
o
ta
l

G
ra
n
ts

R
C
C
O
/ 

M
R
A

O
th
e
r 

(i
n
c
l.
 

S
1
0
6
)

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
s
e
rv
e

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip
ts

B
o
rr
o
w
in
g

T
o
ta
l

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
 R
o
a
d
s
 &
 P
a
v
e
m
e
n
t

1
5
,0
0
0

1
3
,0
0
0

8
,0
0
0

8
,0
0
0

6
,3
7
5

5
0
,3
7
5

5
0
,3
7
5

5
0
,3
7
5

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
B
in
s

2
5
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

2
5
0

1
,2
5
0

1
,2
5
0

1
,2
5
0

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

P
a
rk
s
 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

V
e
h
ic
le
s

5
0
0

1
0
0

7
5
0

1
0
0

8
0
0

2
,2
5
0

2
,2
5
0

2
,2
5
0

P
o
lic
y
 &
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
y
s
te
m

1
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0

1
,0
0
0

3
,0
0
0

3
,0
0
0

3
,0
0
0

C
E
L
S

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 -
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
tr
a
te
g
y

2
0
0
0

2
,0
0
0

2
,0
0
0

2
,0
0
0

P
o
lic
y
 &
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t:
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
In
c
lu
d
e
s
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
u
p
g
ra
d
e
s
 /
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

W
is
d
o
m
 E
D
R
M
S
 a
n
d
 G
IS
 s
y
s
te
m
s
; 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
to
o
ls
; 
c
la
s
s
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
, 

m
e
ta
d
a
ta
 a
n
d
 s
e
a
rc
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
; 
p
ro
te
c
ti
v
e
 

m
a
rk
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 a
n
d
 P
S
N
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s

7
5
0

7
5
0

1
,5
0
0

1
,5
0
0

1
,5
0
0

C
E
L
S

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la
c
e
s

-1
1
,9
2
0

2
,5
7
5

-1
2
,0
8
5

2
5
,3
0
0

2
5
,3
0
0

2
9
,1
7
0

2
1
,0
0
0

8
,1
7
0

2
9
,1
7
0

C
E
L
S

E
a
rl
y
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 -
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 w
e
s
t 
o
f 
b
o
ro
u
g
h

3
,0
0
0

3
,0
0
0

3
,0
0
0

3
,0
0
0

C
E
L
S

S
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 -
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 

fo
s
te
ri
n
g
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
s

8
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
,2
0
0

1
,2
0
0

1
,2
0
0

C
E
L
S

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
- 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
y
o
u
th
 

o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 s
in
g
le
 v
ie
w
 o
f 
d
a
ta
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
's

1
0
0

1
5
0

4
0
0

6
5
0

6
5
0

6
5
0

H
o
u
s
in
g

In
c
re
a
s
e
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 G
ra
n
t

1
,0
8
0

1
,6
3
0

1
,6
8
0

1
,7
3
0

6
,1
2
0

6
,1
2
0

6
,1
2
0

T
o

ta
l

7
,4

8
0

1
8
,0

0
5

3
,1

4
5

3
6
,5

3
0

3
5
,6

5
5

1
0
0
,8

1
5

2
1
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
9
,8

1
5

1
0
0
,8

1
5

F
u
n
d
in
g

237



238

This page is intentionally left blank



T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
1
5
 -

2
0
2
0

239



T
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

T
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 k
e

y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
, 
c
o

m
p

le
x
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
a

n
d

 k
e

y
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

, 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
:

T
h
a
t 

B
a
rn

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l,
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
w

ill
 s

tr
iv

e
 

to
 m

a
k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h
e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

is
 t

h
e
 p

la
c
e
:

�
O
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
, 
w
h
e
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
a
n
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
th
e
ir
 q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
li
fe

�
W
h
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 i
s
 s
h
a
re
d
, 
fa
ir
ly

�
W
h
e
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 h
e
lp
e
d
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
, 
re
c
o
g
n
is
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 c
u
re
 

�
W
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
, 
m
a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 g
e
t 
v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 t
a
x
p
a
y
e
r

240



S
c
o
p
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

T
h
is

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

w
ill

d
e
liv
e
r

£
4
4
.4
m

s
a
v
in
g
s
fr
o
m

2
0
1
5
–

2
0
2
0

a
t
a

c
o
s
t
o
f
£
1
6
.1
m
.

D
e
liv
e
ri
n
g

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

a
n
d
th
e

c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts

s
e
t
o
u
t

in
th
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te

P
la
n
.

T
h
is
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 

R
e
tu
rn
 o
n
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
lo
s
e
 

to
 £
3
s
a
v
e
d
 p
e
r 
£
1
 s
p
e
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
v
e
r 

5
 y
e
a
rs
 a
re
 £
1
2
4
m
.

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 

£
’0

0
0 S
a
v
in
g
s
 m
a
rk
e
d
 i
n
 b
lu
e
 a
re
 e
it
h
e
r:

•
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
s
 u
s
u
a
l 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
o
 b
e
 m
e
t 
w
it
h
in
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

•
S
a
v
in
g
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 o
r 
a
re
 

u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
/1
5

0

5
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0

1
5

0
0

0

2
0

0
0

0

2
5

0
0

0

2
0

1
5

/1
6

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

a
ti

o
n

 R
e

se
rv

e
 D

ra
w

D
o

w
n

 2
0

1
5

-2
0

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
F
u

tu
re

T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

a
ti

o
n

 R
e

se
rv

e

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n

B
A

U
 /

 N
o

 t
ra

n
sf

o
rm

a
ti

o
n

re
se

rv
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

F
u

n
d

in
g

 S
o

u
rc

e

241



2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
: 
h
ig
h
-l
e
v
e
l 
p
la
n

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t

U
n
if
ie
d
 R
e
w
a
rd
 

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 S
k
il
ls

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 I
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 (
0
-2
5
)

L
o
o
k
e
d
 A
ft
e
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

2
0
1
4
/1
5

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s

S
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
A
c
ti
v
it
y
 (
S
P
A
)

P
a
rk
in
g

C
C
T
V

H
o
u
s
in
g
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

-
O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 M

o
d
e
ls

-
W
a
s
te
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 N
L
W
A
 

-
P
a
rk
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

-
S
tr
e
e
t 
C
le
a
n
s
in
g

-
S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
ti
n
g

-
P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

F
a
m
il
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 B
a
c
k
 O
ff
ic
e
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 

S
m
a
rt
e
r 
W
o
rk
in
g

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 T

h
e

m
e

s

In
co

m
e

, 
G

ro
w

th
 &

 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

C
h

il
d

re
n

 &
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 &

 S
k

il
ls

 

W
e

lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm

Li
b

ra
ri

e
s

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
a

l 
C

a
re

 &
 

H
e

a
lt

h

E
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
 

fo
r 

m
o

n
e

y

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
E

x
p

e
ri

e
n

ce

T
h
ir
d
 P
a
rt
y
 S
p
e
n
d

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

242



2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

C
a
p
it
a
l 
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t,
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
ts

2
0
1
4
/1
5

P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
G
a
te
w
a
y

O
ff
ic
e
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
je
c
t

H
o
u
s
in
g

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 -
In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
 R
o
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 P
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts

D
e
p
o
t

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
2
8
,0
0
0
 h
o
m
e
s
 t
o
 2
0
2
5
/6
, 
n
e
w
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 a
n
d
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
, 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

g
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 a
 n
e
w
 t
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 C
ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
, 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 n
e
w
 

T
h
a
m
e
s
lin
k
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 a
t 
B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 –
In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 R
o
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 P
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts

P
la
n
n
e
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 o
f 
ro
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts

P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

A
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
s
, 
s
e
e
k
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 m
a
x
im
is
in
g
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g

O
th
e
r 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

M
o
v
e
 t
o
 a
 n
e
w
 d
e
p
o
t 
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
W
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
, 
s
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s

O
ff
ic
e
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 C
iv
ic
 E
s
ta
te
 t
o
 c
re
a
te
 f
it
 f
o
r 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
, 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
d
e
c
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 b
e
y
o
n
d

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
G
a
te
w
a
y
 a
n
d
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g

D
e
liv
e
ry
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
n
e
w
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
m
e
s
 

b
y
 2
0
1
9
/2
0
, 
a
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

u
p
g
ra
d
e
 t
o
 s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

p
ip
e
lin
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
u
p
p
ly
 o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

T
o
ta
l 
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
£
1
7
3
m
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
1
8
 f
o
rm
s
 

o
f 
e
n
tr
y
 b
y
 2
0
2
0

243



P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
s

ts
 –

tr
a

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

P
ro

je
c
t

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

fu
n

d
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t

H
o
u
s
in
g
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

£
1
5
0
,0
0
0

S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

£
2
,8
9
6
,6
2
1

P
a
rk
in
g

£
1
8
3
,9
1
2

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 –
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s

£
3
4
5
,2
9
0

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 o
f
Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 L
D
 (
0
-2
5
) 

£
3
5
0
,0
0
0

F
a
m
il
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
B
a
c
k
 O
ff
ic
e
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s

£
2
5
0
,0
0
0

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 S
k
il
ls
 

£
1
,3
0
0
,0
0
0

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
a
b
il
it
y

£
4
3
6
,9
7
8

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s

£
5
0
0
,0
0
0

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 C
E
L
s
 p
ro
je
c
ts

£
2
2
4
,0
0
0

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n

£
1
0
0
,0
0
0

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

£
1
,7
2
4
,0
0
0

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 I
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n

N
/A
 (
S
2
5
6
 f
u
n
d
e
d
)

S
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
A
c
ti
v
it
y
 (
S
P
A
)

£
1
,0
3
3
,0
0
0

C
C
T
V
 

£
7
0
,0
0
0

U
n
if
ie
d
 R
e
w
a
rd

£
4
5
0
,0
0
0

S
m
a
rt
e
r 
W
o
rk
in
g

£
2
0
0
,0
0
0

B
A
U
 (
c
e
n
tr
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
)

£
1
0
0
,0
0
0

L
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
is
o
ry
 

£
1
,5
0
0
,0
0
0

P
M
O
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
te
a
m

£
1
,9
3
8
,4
2
8

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
d
v
is
o
ry
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt

£
1
,3
6
2
,0
0
0

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y

£
1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0

T
o
ta
l 
C
o
s
t

£
1
6
,1
1
4
,2
2
9

244



P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts

P
ro

je
c
t

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

2
0
1
7
/1
8

2
0
1
8
/1
9

2
0
1
9
/2
0

T
o
ta
l

H
o
u
s
in
g
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
 a
n
d
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

2
4

0
,0

0
0

8
4

5
,0

0
0

1
,3

8
5

,0
0

0
9

0
5

,0
0

0
1

,6
1

0
,0

0
0

4
,9

8
5

,0
0

0

S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 

7
8

4
,0

0
0

3
,3

1
5

,0
0

0
1

,4
1

0
,0

0
0

6
5

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

6
,2

5
9

,0
0

0

P
a
rk
in
g

0
0

0
1

5
0

,0
0

0
0

1
5

0
,0

0
0

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 –
 C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s

5
2

5
,0

0
0

5
5

0
,0

0
0

5
0

6
,0

0
0

5
3

5
,0

0
0

4
0

5
,0

0
0

2
,5

2
1

,0
0

0

L
o
o
k
e
d
 A
ft
e
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n

0
1

3
1

,0
0

0
1

4
4

,0
0

0
1

4
9

,0
0

0
6

9
,0

0
0

4
9

3
,0

0
0

F
a
m
il
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 B
a
c
k
 O
ff
ic
e
 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s

0
1

,3
4

6
,0

0
0

0
0

0
1

,3
4

6
,0

0
0

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 S
k
il
ls

6
9

5
,0

0
0

8
5

,0
0

0
1

6
0

,0
0

0
2

5
5

,0
0

0
3

5
0

,0
0

0
1

,5
4

5
,0

0
0

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
a
b
il
it
y

0
0

0
0

1
0

2
,0

0
0

1
0

2
,0

0
0

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 

0
1

,6
0

2
,0

0
0

1
,2

5
0

,0
0

0
0

0
2

,8
5

2
,0

0
0

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

0
1

,1
8

6
,0

0
0

1
,7

6
0

,0
0

0
1

,7
4

3
,0

0
0

1
,2

9
0

,0
0

0
5

,9
7

9
,0

0
0

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 0
-2
5

0
1

2
5

,0
0

0
1

2
5

,0
0

0
1

2
5

,0
0

0
1

2
5

,0
0

0
5

0
0

,0
0

0

H
S
C
I

0
1

5
0

,0
0

0
2

5
0

,0
0

0
2

5
0

,0
0

0
3

5
0

,0
0

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

S
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
A
c
ti
v
it
y
 (
S
P
A
)

0
0

1
,2

0
0

,0
0

0
0

0
1

,2
0

0
,0

0
0

C
C
T
V

0
0

0
0

8
4

3
,0

0
0

8
4

3
,0

0
0

U
n
if
ie
d
 R
e
w
a
rd

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
r
d
 P
a
rt
y
 S
p
e
n
d
- 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
-

p
ro
v
is
io
n
in
g
 

 0
8

0
9

,0
0

0
8

3
3

,0
0

0
8

1
8

,0
0

0
8

5
9

,0
0

0
3

,3
1

9
,0

0
0

S
m
a
rt
e
r 
W
o
rk
in
g

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

0
0

0
5

0
0

,0
0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

B
A
U
 (
C
e
n
tr
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 d
e
li
v
e
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
) 

0
6

4
0

,0
0

0
5

6
7

,0
0

0
1

,0
6

7
,0

0
0

1
,5

6
7

,0
0

0
3

,8
4

1
,0

0
0

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
d
v
is
o
ry
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt

0
9

5
5

,0
0

0
4

2
5

,0
0

0
1

,2
7

5
,0

0
0

1
,2

7
5

,0
0

0
3

,9
3

0
,0

0
0

T
o
ta
l 
s
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 B
a
s
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t

2
,2
4
4
,0
0
0

1
2
,7
3
9
,0
0
0

1
2
,0
1
5
,0
0
0

8
,4
2
2
,0
0
0

8
,9
4
5
,0
0
0

£
4
4
.3
6
m
+

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 b
a
s
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t

2
,2
4
4
,0
0
0

1
4
,9
8
3
,0
0
0

2
6
,9
9
8
,0
0
0

3
5
,4
2
0
,0
0
0

4
4
,3
6
5
,0
0
0

£
1
2
4
m
+

245



P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 G
a
te
w
a
y
 M
o
d
e
l

�
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 h
a
s
 a
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo
r 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
n
 a
n
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w
a
y
, 
w
it
h
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 a
t 
s
e
t 
p
o
in
ts
. 
 

�
W
e
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
a
ll 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 u
s
in
g
 a
 r
is
k
-b
a
s
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 
 

L
a
rg
e
r,
 m

o
re
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 o
r 
m
o
re
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 a
n
d
, 
w
h
e
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
g
a
te
w
a
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
. 

�
A
t 
e
a
c
h
 p
ro
je
c
t 
g
a
te
w
a
y
, 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
a
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
. 
W
h
e
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
u
p
d
a
te
s
 o
r 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 P
&
R
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
.

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 O
u
tl
in
e

C
a
s
e
 (
S
O
C
)

O
u
tl
in
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

C
a
s
e
 (
O
B
C
)

F
u
ll
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
a
s
e
 

(F
B
C
)

P
ro
je
c
t 
D
e
li
v
e
ry

In
te
rn
a
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 P
ro
je
c
t 
B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 E
n
a
b
li
n
g
 B
o
a
rd
s

K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 f
ro
m
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
h
e
re
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l

A
p
p
ro

v
a
l

246



P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
, 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
, 
p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

K
e
y
 P
ri
n
c
ip
le
s

P
ro

je
c
t

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s

H
o
u
s
in
g
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 

R
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fu
tu
re
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
re
s
e
tt
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 V
F
M
 f
ro
m
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
r.
 I
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
ly
 

a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
-u
p
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 l
iv
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
.

* 
P

ro
je

c
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
it
ia

te
d

W
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 r
a
te
s
, 
re
d
u
c
e
 w
a
s
te
 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
ta
in
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls
 

o
f 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 w

a
s
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
e
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 g
re
a
te
r 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

R
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
rf
a
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 N

o
rt
h
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 r
e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
h
ic
h
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 f
o
r 
B
a
rn
e
t

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
 ‘
in
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
-l
e
d
’ a

p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 d
e
p
lo
y
in
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m
a
in
ta
in
s
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
s
tr
e
e
t 
c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
im

p
ro
v
e
s
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

re
a
lis
e
s
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
a
v
in
g
s

W
a
s
te
 f
u
tu
re
s

N
L
W
A

S
tr
e
e
t 
C
le
a
n
s
in
g
 *

S
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
 m

o
d
e
ls

P
F
I 
O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
ti
n
g

E
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 m

o
d
e
ls
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U

n
it
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

E
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 r
e
-n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 a
n
d
 a
m
e
n
d
 c
e
rt
a
in
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
F
I 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
ti
n
g
 t
o
 r
e
a
lis
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s

P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 *

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
rs
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
, 
s
a
fe
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
e
lig

ib
le
 

p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
rs
 b
y
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

e
a
n
s
 w
h
ile

 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 q
u
a
lit
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

Street Scene Transformation

247



P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s

P
a
rk
in
g

E
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 a
ll 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 P
a
rk
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
P
a
rk
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
, 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
, 
p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

K
e
y
 P
ri
n
c
ip
le
s

P
ro

je
c
t

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s

* 
P

ro
je

c
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
it
ia

te
d

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 *

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 a
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
e
a
rl
y
 y
e
a
rs
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

a
 m

o
re
 f
le
x
ib
le
, 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
lla

b
o
ra
ti
v
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
w
it
h
 g
re
a
te
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 f
a
m
ili
e
s

L
o
o
k
e
d
 A
ft
e
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
 (
L
A
C
) 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 *

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 c
h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
in
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 b
u
t 
fo
r 
th
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
d
o
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
te
r 
th
e
 c
a
re
 

s
y
s
te
m
, 
e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
ri
n
g
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
m
 w
it
h
 a
 g
o
o
d
 s
ta
rt
 i
n
 l
if
e
, 
a
 s
ta
b
le
 h
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
to
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
g
a
p
 i
n
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 c
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

F
a
m
il
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 B
a
c
k
 O
ff
ic
e
 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 b
e
tt
e
r 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 a
u
to
m
a
te
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 
b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

re
a
lis
e
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 S
k
il
ls
 *

R
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 i
n
 

s
e
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
m
a
in
 h
ig
h
 p
e
rf
o
rm

in
g
, 
c
o
s
t-
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
*

In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 b
e
tt
e
r 
p
a
id
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
b
y
 

g
e
n
e
ra
ti
n
g
 n
e
w
 j
o
b
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 t
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

to
 p
ro
s
p
e
r 
a
n
d
 g
ro
w
 i
n
 B
a
rn
e
t

248



O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
, 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
, 
p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

K
e
y
 P
ri
n
c
ip
le
s

P
ro

je
c
t

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s

* 
P

ro
je

c
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
it
ia

te
d

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 *

L
ib
ra
ry
 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 o
ft
e
n
 a
c
t 
a
s
 f
o
c
a
l 
p
o
in
ts
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
in
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
tt
e
r 
u
s
e
 o
f 
li
b
ra
ry
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
lo
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
. 

T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 s
h
a
p
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

lib
ra
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
 e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 r
o
le
s
, 
a
d
v
is
o
ry
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
e
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

(0
-2
5
) 
*

In
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 a
 0
-2
5
 d
is
a
b
il
it
ie
s
s
e
rv
ic
e
th
a
t 
b
e
tt
e
r 
b
ri
n
g
s
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
fa
m
il
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 c
h
il
d
re
n
, 
im

p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 i
n
 w

h
ic
h
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 w
o
rk
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
in
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 h
e
lp
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 m

o
re

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

A
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
li
ty
  
o
f 
a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ils
t 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
rc
h
in
g
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
c
a
re
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 m

o
re
 c
re
a
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
li
s
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
la
n
s
, 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 c
a
re
rs
, 
th
e
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
a
s
s
is
ta
n
ts
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

th
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 w
is
h
 t
o
 r
e
ti
re
 a
b
ro
a
d
, 
th
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
n
e
w
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
ie
s
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 s
h
a
re
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 m
o
d
e
ls
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 I
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
*

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
fr
a
il 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 

th
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
, 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 m
o
d
e
ls
 o
f 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

b
e
s
t 
fi
t

S
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
A
c
ti
v
it
y
 (
S
P
A
) 
*

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
c
a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls
 i
n
 s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
im

p
ro
v
in
g
 a
s
s
e
ts
, 
 w

h
ile

 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
t 
z
e
ro
-c
o
s
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il

249



P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
, 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
, 
p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

K
e
y
 P
ri
n
c
ip
le
s

P
ro

je
c
t

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s

* 
P

ro
je

c
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
it
ia

te
d

U
n
if
ie
d
 R
e
w
a
rd
 *

R
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 p
a
y,
 g
ra
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
  
b
e
tt
e
r 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
b
a
s
ic
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
in
fo
rc
in
g
 a
 c
u
lt
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
re
w
a
rd
s
 h
ig
h
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
a
n
d
 d
ri
v
e
s
 u
p
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
it
y

C
C
T
V

M
o
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 C

C
T
V
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 a
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 n
e
u
tr
a
l 
p
o
s
it
io
n
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c
ri
m
e
, 
a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 
c
ri
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 d
e
te
c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 s
a
n
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
s

U
s
in
g
 i
n
s
ig
h
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 d
e
s
ig
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m
o
d
e
l

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

T
h
ir
d
 P
a
rt
y
 S
p
e
n
d

W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
s
 t
o
 r
e
-d
e
s
ig
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 p
o
w
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

S
m
a
rt
e
r 
W
o
rk
in
g

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 p
ro
p
e
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
a
v
in
g
 o
f 
£
2
m

C
e
n
tr
a
ll
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 B
A
U
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls

A
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 s
a
v
in
g
s
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 

in
 A
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
, 
ra
ti
o
n
a
li
s
in
g
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 I
T
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 l
ic
e
n
s
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 U

n
it
s
, 
a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
S
G
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
a
n
d
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

re
a
li
g
n
in
g
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
s
 a
n
d
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 f
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 

c
h
a
rg
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

250



T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
e
n
a
b
le
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 d
e
s
ir
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s

E
n
a
b
le
rs

A
 n
e
w
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 –
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 g
re
a
te
r 

le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
, 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

a
n
d
 e
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 –
p
u
tt
in
g
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
y
s
te
m
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 s
tr
o
n
g
 

c
e
n
tr
a
l 
P
M
O
, 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 l
e
d
 a
n
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
e
d

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 –
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
a
n
d
 r
e
in
fo
rc
in
g
 

a
 c
u
lt
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
re
w
a
rd
s
 h
ig
h
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty

L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 –
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 

le
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs
, 
c
a
p
a
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e

T
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

–
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

fr
o
m
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
e
 

ri
g
h
t 
s
y
s
te
m
s
, 
a
s
s
e
ts
 a
n
d
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 –

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 g
a
in
 a
n
d
 r
e
ta
in
 t
ru
s
t,
 u
s
in
g
 

a
n
 i
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
in
s
ig
h
t 
–
e
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
 a
n
d
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 o
u
r 
in
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 

s
e
c
to
r 
to
 i
n
fo
rm
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g

E
m
b
e
d
d
in
g
 t
o
o
ls
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 

to
 d
o
 m
o
re
 f
o
r 
th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 –
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

th
e
 n
e
w
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
g
a
te
w
a
y
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

o
n
lin
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

O
ff
ic
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 –
re
s
tr
u
c
tu
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 o
ff
ic
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
 t
o
 

c
re
a
te
 f
it
 f
o
r 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 a
n
d
 f
le
x
ib
le
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

251



252

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix F - Write Offs 01.10.14

Customer Name Transaction 

date

Sales 

Office

Description Amount Comments

ROYAL BRITISH 

LEGION NORTH

25-Mar-2010 COMM Commercial 

Rents

26,250.00 Property Services have advised the 

company is dissolved.

Redacted 19-Nov-2007 ADUL Appointeeshi

p

31,372.66 Barnet Council is the appointee now and 

the debt relates to suspected financial 

abuse.

Redacted 22-Sep-2008 ADUL Resident-

DWP Payts

6,759.21 Barnet Council became appointee prior to 

death and the debt relates to mis-

management of finances.

Redacted 24-Apr-2006 ENVS Works in 

Default

281.38 County Court judgement obtained and 

referred to High Court Sheriffs, but unable 

to enforce the debt.

Redacted 07-Jan-2008 ENVS Works in 

Default

13,161.38 County Court judgement obtained and 

referred to High Court Sheriffs, but unable 

to enforce the debt.

Redacted 05-Jun-2009 ADUL Residential 

Write Off

1,577.83  Debtor has passed away, can not locate 

a next of kin and probate searches have 

come back negative.

Redacted 23-Jul-2012 ADUL Residential 

Write Off

4,378.85 Debtor has deceased, can not locate a 

next of kin and probate searches have 

come back negative.

Redacted 30-Aug-2011 ADUL Residential 

Write Off

5,446.85 Debtor has passed away, can not locate a  

next of kin & probate searches have 

come back negative

Redacted 09-Jul-2010 ADUL Appointeeshi

p

5,549.25 Barnet Council became appointee prior to 

death and the debt relates to mis-

management of finances.

Redacted 31-Mar-2009 ADUL Residential 

Write Off

7,264.73 Debtor has passed away, can not locate a 

next of kin and probate searches have 

come back negative.

Redacted 01-Jun-2009 ADUL Residential 

Write Off

1,328.68 Debtor has passed away, can not locate a 

next of kin and probate searches have 

come back negative.

Redacted 12-Mar-2012 ADUL Residential 

Write Off

7,124.38 Customer is paying ongoing invoices. 

This relates to initial charge and proof has 

been received that they do not have the 

means to pay.

Redacted 30-Aug-2011 ADUL Residential 

Unsecured 

Norwel

5,886.84 Debtor has passed away and insufficent 

funds in estate to pursue.

Redacted 12-Nov-2012 ADUL Residential 

Write Off

721.08 Debtor has passed away, can not locate a 

next of kin and probate searches have 

come back negative.

Redacted 26-Nov-2010 ADUL Residential 

Write Off

6,392.75 Debtor has passed away, can not locate a 

next of kin & probate searches have 

come back negative.

Redacted 28-Aug-2012 ADUL Residential 

Write Off

7,138.01 Debtor has passed away and insufficent 

funds in estate to pursue.

Redacted 28-Aug-2012 ADUL Residential 

Write Off

16,054.73 Debtor has passed away, can not locate a 

next of kin and probate searches have 

come back negative.

Redacted 18-Dec-2013 ADUL FC Actuals 

Billing

7,045.00 Debtor has passed away and insufficent 

funds in estate to pursue.

Redacted 02-Jan-2012 ADUL Residential 

Unsecure

5,362.33 Debtor has passed away and insufficent 

funds in estate to pursue.

Redacted 14-Oct-2013 ADUL Residential 

Unsecured 

Norwel

6,552.12 Debtor has passed away and insufficent 

funds in estate to pursue.

Total 165,648.06

253



254

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix G - RESERVES ANALYSIS

Corporate earmarked reserves: £'000 Commentary - is the reserve set at an appropriate level?

Risk reserve 15,500      

Yes. The reserves policy has recommended this balance to be at £15m in recent 

years. It is set at this level to provide funding for unforeseen legal risks, and also 

future uncertainty over government grant levels.

Transformation Reserve 11,293      

No. This reserve is projected to have a balance of £5m by the end of 2014/15. To 

enable the Council to fund future transformation through to 2020, it is 

recommended that another £10m is needed in this reserve.

Service Development Reserve 9,577        

It is proposed that this reserve is merged with the transformation reserve to ensure 

that this reserve has sufficient funding through to 2020. 

Financing reserve 3,266        

Yes. This balance is set aside for risks associated with insufficient funding available in 

the capital programme (for example land receipts that do not complete as 

anticipated leading to a funding shortfall). It is recommended that this balance 

Welfare reform 1,896        

Yes. This balance is set aside for specific welfare reform and revenues and benefits 

risks over the coming years and will be used for this purpose. 

TOTAL CORPORATE 41,532      

Reserves earmarked for infrastructure:

Infrastructure reserve (NHB) 21,572      

Community Infrastructure Levy 992           

Inglis Consortium 3,479        

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE 26,043      

Service reserves:

Adults FMH Playground 100           This is committed to be spent in 2014/15

Dementia Café 30             This is committed to be spent in 2014/15

Notting Hill Contract 80             

Most of this is committed to be spent in 2014/15, the remainder will be used to fund 

any overspend in Adults Social Care

Employment Services 27             This is committed to be spent in 2014/15

237           

Assurance Audit Plan 22             Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity. 

Local elections 544           Yes. This is set aside to fund elections activity. 

Tenancy fraud 130           

This balance is not committed and will be considered to offset any other 14/15 

pressures

Mayoral Allowance 8               Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity. 

704           

Commissioning Group Area Committees 1,229        

Yes. This is set aside to fund area committee budgets of £100k per annum, per 

committee for the next 4 years. 

Member development 30             This balance is not committed, but will remain to fund future member development

Data Portal 22             Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity. 

Local lottery 33             Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity. 

Avenue house 167           

Yes. This is set aside to fund the Council's agreed contribution to the refurbishment 

of Avenue House. 

Milly Apthorp 5               Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity. 

Big Society Innovation Bank 269           No. It is recommended that this is transferred into the service development reserve. 

1,755        

Children's North London School Int'l Network 10             Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

Children's Centres 52             Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

Adoption Grant 182           

This is not expected to be used in 14/15, but will be used to offset any current year 

service overspends

Social Work Improvement 204           Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

YOS Cross Borough Devt 60             Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

Safeguarding board 68             Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

E CAF 200           Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

Community Budgets 1,642        Yes. This is set aside to fund the troubled families team over the period of the MTFS.

Efinance 45             Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

2,463        

Streetscene Streetlighting wayleave 165           Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

Weekly collection 661           

Yes. This is government grant received which is being used to deliver a saving in the 

MTFS.

GAF 43             This is not committed, and will be used to offset any service pressures in 2014/15

Repossessions and evictions 31             Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

Flood grant 53             Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

Preventing re-possessions 98             Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

Rent deposit 8               Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

1,059        

RE Outer London Fund 30             Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

Wireless 21             Yes. This is expected to be used to fund current year activity

51             

TOTAL SERVICE SPECIFIC 6,269        

Ringfenced reserves

Dedicated schools grant 3,678        n/a. This reserve is ringfenced, and can only be used to fund DSG activity. 

Public Health 831           n/a. This reserve is ringfenced, and can only be used to fund public health activity. 

Section 256 - NHS Social Care Funding 1,596        

n/a. This reserve is ringfenced, and can only be used in line with Department of 

Health guidance. 

North London Sub Region 1,228        n/a. This reserve is held on behalf of the North London Sub Region. 

Private Finance Initiative 4,265        

n/a. This reserve is held to fund future commitments under the Streetlighting PFI 

contract. 

Housing benefits 5,773        

n/a. This reserve was held at the end of 2013/14 to fund housing benefits in early 

April due to timing differences between grant and payments to recipients, and no 

longer exists. 

TOTAL RINGFENCED 17,371      

TOTAL 91,215      

Yes. This reserve, along with future projected New Homes Bonus is supporting 

expenditure in the capital programme currently totalling £32.8m. Future CIL, NHB 

and Inglis receipts will need to be earmarked for future infrastructure projects, and 

will give the Council the opportunity to fund other projects such as development 

activity and office accommodation. Both of these types of project directly support 

savings to the Council's revenue account. 

255



256

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	7 Business Planning 2015/16 - 2019/20
	Appendix A - Cover Report for the Policy and Resources Committee
	Appendix A1 - Adults  Safeguarding Commissioning Plan
	Appendix A2 - Assets Regen  Growth Commissioning Plan
	Appendix A3 - CELSC commissioning Plan
	Appendix A4 - CLC commissioning Plan
	Appendix A5 - Environment Committee Commissioning Plan
	Appendix A6 - Housing Committee Commissioning Plan
	Appendix A7 - Public Health Commissioning Plan
	Appendix C - Medium Term Financial Strategy
	Appendix D - Budget savings 2015 - 2020
	Appendix E - Capital programme additions
	Appendix F - Transformation programme
	Appendix G - Write offs
	Appendix H - Review of reserves


